
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
SEPTEMBER 12, 2005 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 



TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
 
 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

September 12, 2005 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Paul Lehman – Glen Oaks Alliance 
Church 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1  Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2239 East Maple Road 1 

C-2 Rezoning Application – South Side of Long Lake Road, West of Calvert Drive, 
Section 14 – R-1C to CR-1 (Z 706) 3 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

D-1 Rezoning Application – West Side of Rochester Road, North of Creston, Between 
Long Lake and Trinway – Section 10 – R-1C to R-1T (Z 705) 3 

D-2 Revision of Troy’s Sign Ordinances 3 



CONSENT AGENDA: 4 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 5 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 5 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 5 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations – None Proposed 5 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 5 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Ice Melt............ 5 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Snow Removal 

Services – Home Chore Program......................................................................... 6 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Volunteer 

Firefighter Uniforms .............................................................................................. 6 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award:  Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Ramp and Stair Replacement at the Troy Historical Museum .... 6 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Pavement 

Seam and Fracture Sealing Program ................................................................... 7 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – 

Troy Community Coalition .................................................................................... 7 
g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 6:  Grant Approval and Authorization to 

Expend City Funds – Radio Equipment ................................................................ 7 
h) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Slate Roof Repair 

and Replacement – Troy Historical Museum........................................................ 8 

E-5 Request to Waive Parking Restrictions – Smith Middle School 8 

E-6 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easements for Ashbury Drive – Sanitary 
Sewer – Northeast ¼ of Section 24 8 

E-7 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed and Permanent Easements for 
Maplewood Site Condominium, Milano Building Company, Section 3 – Sidwell 
#88-20-03-226-009 9 

E-8 Request to Waive Parking Restrictions – Congregation Shir Tikvah 9 

E-9 Winter Maintenance Agreement – Road Commission for Oakland County 9 



PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 9 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 9 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Downtown 
Development Authority  b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Animal Control 
Appeal Board; Cable Advisory Committee; Ethnic Community Issues Advisory 
Committee; Historic District Commission; Liquor Committee; Parks and Recreation 
Board; and Traffic Committee 10 

F-2 Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 and Bid Waiver – Option to Renew (1 Year) 
and Bid Waiver (1 Year) to Extend – Casualty and Property Insurance with the 
MMRMA for November 2005-06 and November 2006-07 18 

F-3 Sole Source – In-Car Camera and Radar Equipment Parts and Service 19 

F-4 Designation of Voting Delegates at Annual NLC Meeting – Charlotte, North 
Carolina 19 

F-5 Recommendation to Negotiate Purchase of Replacement Ladder Truck 19 

F-6 Final Site Condominium Review – Hidden Creek Site Condominium, East Side of 
Ellenboro, South Side of Vanderpool, Section 22 – R-1E 20 

F-7 Amendment #1 – SLC Meter Service, Inc. – Automatic Meter Reading System 20 

F-8 Resolution Opposing Senate Bill 528 21 

F-9 Section 23 – Pavement Replacement Project – Change Order No. 2, Contract 05-
02 22 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 22 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 22 

a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2256 Garry – September 19, 2005 ..................... 22 
b) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2002 Atlas – September 19, 2005 ...................... 22 
c) Parking Variance – 4550 Investment Drive – September 19, 2005 .................... 22 
d) Rezoning Application – Cambridge Square Office Buildings, West Side of 

Dequindre, North of Long Lake, Section 12 – R-1C to O-1 and E-P (Z 707) – 
September 19, 2005 ........................................................................................... 22 



G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted 22 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 22 

H-1  Councilwoman Broomfield has requested a resolution advising the Planning 
Commission to make a recommendation to City Council regarding child daycare 
group homes. This recommendation would be advanced by the Planning 
Commission after conclusion of their public hearing which is going to be held on 
September 27, 2005.  Please refer to the attached memorandum from the City 
Manager for further information. 22 

H-2  Council Member Howrylak has requested City Council set a public hearing to 
consider geographically modifying the Downtown Development Authority (DDA) 
district.    Please know that statutory procedure requires the governing body to 
make a determination that an amendment to the district is in the best interest of 
the public.  Attached is a staff memo indicating minimum statutory timeframes 
required to modify the DDA district. 23 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 23 

I-1  No Council Comments 23 

REPORTS: 24 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 24 

a) Troy Youth Council/Final – May 18, 2005........................................................... 24 
b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – June 1, 2005 ............. 24 
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – June 1, 2005 ............. 24 
d) Planning Commission Regular/Final – July 12, 2005 ......................................... 24 
e) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – July 13, 2005 .......... 24 
f) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – July 19, 2005 .................................................. 24 
g) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – July 19, 2005 .................................................. 24 
h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – July 26, 2005 ................................ 24 
i) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – August 2, 2005 ........................................ 24 
j) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – August 2, 2005 ............................. 24 
k) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – August 2, 2005 ............................. 24 
l) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – August 3, 2005 .................................... 24 
m) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – August 16, 2005 ............................................. 24 
n) Troy CAC Advisory Committee/Draft – August 18, 2005 .................................... 24 
o) Troy Youth Council/Draft – August 24, 2005 ...................................................... 24 

J-2 Department Reports: 24 

a) The Report of the Twenty fifth Annual Actuarial Valuation – December 31, 
2004 of the City of Troy Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters....................... 24 



b)  Preliminary Report from the Historic District Study Committee Concerning the 
Brian and Mary Jean Wattles Property ............................................................... 24 

c) Update on Futures Project, as well as Big Beaver Corridor Study...................... 24 
d) Development of City of Troy Comprehensive Plan/Amendments to City of 

Troy Future Land Use Plan................................................................................. 24 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 24 

a) Letter of Thanks to Carol Anderson from Cathy Killian, Thanking Troy Aquatic 
Center Staff – Jen Harvey, Michelle Harvey, Kevin Losey and Andy Gillett for 
Their Outstanding Efforts.................................................................................... 24 

b) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Julie Zenger Hain, Thanking Officer 
Broderick and Other Officers and Staff for Their Professionalism in Court......... 24 

c) Letter to Troy Police Department from Mothers and More, In Appreciation of 
the Presentation at Their Annual Family Picnic .................................................. 24 

d) Letter of Thanks to Jay Reynolds from Lorri Konieczko-Jim Hadden of ARUP, 
In Appreciation of the Presentation on Identity Theft .......................................... 24 

e) Letter of Thanks to John Szerlag from Tom Kafkes, In Appreciation of His 
Assistance with the Monarch Project.................................................................. 24 

f) Letter of Thanks to Cindy Stewart from Paula and Steve Brazel, Thanking 
Cindy for Her Presentation at the Home and Garden Awards ............................ 24 

g) Letter of Appreciation to Cindy Stewart from Roberta Beauchamp, Regarding 
Aldo and Orleta Cairo – Most Tranquil Garden Award ....................................... 24 

h) Letter of Appreciation to Mayor Schilling from Marvin Danto of the Michigan 
Design Center, Regarding the Organized Repaving of Maple Road .................. 24 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 24 

a) Resolution from the Oakland County Board of Commissioners – Support for 
Widening of I-75 in Oakland County ................................................................... 25 

J-5  Calendar 25 

J-6  Notice of Rating Action for Troy DDA from Fitch Ratings 25 

J-7  Notice of Rating Action for City of Troy from Fitch Ratings 25 

J-8  Letter from James R. Stokes, Deputy Director of Governor’s Office for Southeast 
Michigan, Regarding the Resolution adopted by Troy City Council – Supporting the 
Legislative Correction of the WPW v. Troy Taxable Value Inequity 25 

J-9   2005-2007 Economic Outlook Forecast for Oakland County – Final Report 
Attached as a Separate Item 25 

J-10   Letter from Phoebe White Regarding Penalty on Tax Bill 25 

J-11   Memorandum Regarding OPTECH Eagle IIIP Voting Devices and Supplies 25 



STUDY ITEMS: 25 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 25 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 25 

CLOSED SESSION: 25 

L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 25 

RECESSED 25 

RECONVENED 26 

ADJOURNMENT 26 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 26 

Monday, September 19, 2005 Regular City Council ............................................. 26 
Monday, September 26, 2005 Regular City Council ............................................. 26 
Monday, October 3, 2005 Regular City Council .................................................... 26 
Monday, October 17, 2005 Regular City Council .................................................. 26 
Monday, October 24, 2005 Regular City Council .................................................. 26 
Monday, November 14, 2005 Regular City Council .............................................. 26 
Monday, November 21, 2005 Regular City Council .............................................. 26 
Monday, November 28, 2005 Regular City Council .............................................. 26 
Monday, December 5, 2005 Regular City Council ................................................ 26 
Monday, December 19, 2005 Regular City Council .............................................. 26 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 12, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Paul Lehman – Glen 
Oaks Alliance Church 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 
 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1  Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2239 East Maple Road 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
Proposed Resolution A (For Approval) 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 12, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance:   
              
         . 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Mr. Roger Coley, 2239 East 
Maple Road, for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to 
permit outdoor parking of a Chevrolet dump truck in a residential district is hereby APPROVED 
for      (not to exceed two years). 
 
Or Proposed Resolution B (For Denial) 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has not found that the petitioner has 
demonstrated the presence of condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 12, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Mr. Roger Coley, 2239 East 
Maple Road, for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to 
permit outdoor parking of a Chevrolet dump truck in a residential district is hereby DENIED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-2 Rezoning Application – South Side of Long Lake Road, West of Calvert Drive, 

Section 14 – R-1C to CR-1 (Z 706) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1C to CR-1 rezoning request, located on the south side of Long Lake 
Road, west of Calvert Drive, Section 14, being 3.07 acres in size, is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Rezoning Application – West Side of Rochester Road, North of Creston, Between 
Long Lake and Trinway – Section 10 – R-1C to R-1T (Z 705) 

 
Pending Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the west side of Rochester 
Road, north of Creston, between Long Lake and Trinway, Section 10, being 29,040 square feet 
in size, is hereby GRANTED, as recommended by City Management and the Planning 
Commission. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
D-2 Revision of Troy’s Sign Ordinances 
 
Pending Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Eisenbacher   
 
a) Revision of Sign Ordinance – Enact Chapter 85 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 12, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

 
RESOLVED, That an ordinance to enact Chapter 85 – Signs, is hereby ADOPTED as 
recommended by the City Administration, a copy of this ordinance shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
b) Revision of Sign Ordinance – Amendment to Chapter 60 
 
RESOLVED, That an ordinance amendment to Chapter 60, Section 60.03, is hereby 
ADOPTED as recommended by the City Administration, a copy of this ordinance shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
c) Revision of Sign Ordinance – Amendment to Chapter 3 
 
RESOLVED, That an ordinance amendment to Chapter 3, Section 1.141(6), is hereby 
ADOPTED as recommended by the City Administration, a copy of this ordinance shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
d) Revision of Sign Ordinance – Chapter 78 Repealed 
 
RESOLVED, That Chapter 78 – Signs, of the Troy City Code, is hereby REPEALED. 
 
e) Revision of Sign Ordinance – Chapter 85-A Repealed 
 
RESOLVED, That Chapter 85-A – Political Signs, of the Troy City Code, is hereby REPEALED. 
 
Proposed Resolution to Amend 
 
Pending Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Schilling 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed Resolution for the Revision of Troy’s Sign Ordinance be 
AMENDED by modifying Section 60.03.02 B.1 by STRIKING  “six square feet” and INSERTING 
“four square feet” and Section 60.03.02 B.2 by STRIKING “three temporary signs” and 
INSERTING “two temporary signs” and Section 60.03.02 B.4 by STRIKING “ninety days” and 
INSERTING “sixty days”. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 12, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of August 15, 2005 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations – None Proposed   
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Ice Melt 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
 
WHEREAS, On November 15, 2004, a one-year contract with an option to renew for one 
additional year to provide Ice Melt Compound to the City of Troy and participating members of 
the MITN Purchasing Cooperative was AWARDED to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, 
Washington Elevator Company of Washington, MI (Resolution #2004-11-591E4);  
 
WHEREAS, The awarded bidder has agreed to exercise the option to renew the contract for 
one additional year under the same pricing, terms, and conditions. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract is hereby 
EXERCISED with Washington Elevator to provide Ice Melt Compound under the same contract 
price, terms and conditions at an estimated cost of $18,760.00 for one-year expiring October 
31, 2006.   



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 12, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Snow Removal 

Services – Home Chore Program 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
 
RESOLVED, That contracts to provide for seasonal requirements of snow removal services for 
the Home Chore Program are hereby AWARDED to the low total bidders, Advanced Services 
of Sterling Heights, as primary contractor, and Kathy’s Lawn Maintenance of Saginaw as 
secondary contractor, for Proposal A and Proposal B for an estimated total cost of $11,092.00 
per season, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened August 10, 2005, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Volunteer 

Firefighter Uniforms 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
 
WHEREAS, On September 22, 2003, two-year contracts with an option to renew for two 
additional one-year periods to purchase volunteer firefighter uniforms were AWARDED to the 
low bidders, Metropolitan Uniform of Detroit, Michigan and Allie Brothers, Inc. of Livonia, 
Michigan (Resolution #2003-09-467-E-4);  
 
WHEREAS, Both vendors have agreed to exercise the first one-year option to renew under the 
same pricing, terms and conditions as the original contracts. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contracts are hereby 
EXERCISED with Metropolitan Uniform and Allie Brothers, Inc. to provide Volunteer Firefighter 
Uniforms under the same prices, terms, and conditions for one-year at an estimated cost of 
$12,000.00, to expire September 8, 2006. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award:  Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Ramp and Stair Replacement at the Troy Historical Museum 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to replace the accessibility ramp and stairs at the main museum 
building is hereby AWARDED to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Poe Restoration and 
Waterproofing of Commerce, Michigan for an estimated total cost of $16,250.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the vendor submission of 
proper contract and bid documents, including insurance certificates, bonds and all other 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 12, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

specified requirements; and if additional work is required that could not be foreseen, such 
additional work is AUTHORIZED in an amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost or 
$1,625.00. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Pavement Seam 

and Fracture Sealing Program 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
 
WHEREAS, On October 18, 2004, a contract to provide a Pavement Seam and Fracture 
Sealing Program with an option to renew for two (2) additional one-year periods was 
AWARDED to the low bidder, Scodeller Construction, Inc. of South Lyon, MI, at an estimated 
total cost of $657,500.00; (Resolution # 2004-10-546-E7);  
 
WHEREAS, Scodeller Construction, Inc. has agreed to exercise the first one-year option to 
renew under the same prices, terms, and conditions. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the first year of the option to renew the contract 
for a Pavement Seam and Fracture Sealing Program is hereby EXERCISED with Scodeller 
Construction, Inc. for an estimated total cost of $500,000.00, under the same contract prices, 
terms, and conditions expiring June 30, 2006; and if changes in the quantity of work are 
required, either additive or deductive, such changes are AUTHORIZED in an amount not to 
exceed 25% of the contract total project cost or $125,000.00 and within budgetary limitations.   
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – Troy 

Community Coalition 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
 
RESOLVED, That approval to expend funds budgeted in the 2005/2006 fiscal year to the Troy 
Community Coalition to provide community services to prevent drug and alcohol abuse in the 
amount of $100,000.00 is hereby APPROVED, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED on behalf of the City of Troy to sign the agreement, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 6:  Grant Approval and Authorization to Expend 

City Funds – Radio Equipment 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council does hereby AUTHORIZE the Troy Fire Department to 
receive a United States Fire Administration FIRE ACT Grant and EXPEND funds for the for the 
purchase of radio equipment from M/A-Com Inc. of Lynchburg, VA at an estimated cost of 
$131,000 through an Oakland County Contract in accordance with the Appendix, Radio 
Equipment Price Breakdown; and  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 12, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Fire Department capital equipment budget is hereby 
AMENDED due to the grant award in the amount of $131,000.    
 
h) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Slate Roof Repair and 

Replacement – Troy Historical Museum 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to repair and replace the slate roof at the main museum building is 
hereby AWARDED to the low bidder, Butcher & Baeker Construction Co., Inc of Rochester 
Hills, Michigan for an estimated cost of $91,033.00, at prices contained in the attached bid 
tabulation opened August 17, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s submission 
of properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements; and if additional work is needed that could not be foreseen, such 
additional work is AUTHORIZED in an amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost or 
$9,103.00.  
 
E-5 Request to Waive Parking Restrictions – Smith Middle School  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy does hereby WAIVE the No Parking 
restrictions on the west side of Donaldson Street from Square Lake Road to Cotswold Street, 
on September 15, 2005, between the hours of 6:30 pm - 9:30 pm; November 16 and 17, 2005, 
between the hours of 11:30 am - 9:00 pm; March 2, 2006, between the hours of 11:30 am - 
9:00 pm; March 3, 2006, between the hours of 5:30 pm - 9:30 pm; and June 14, 2005, between 
the hours of 9:00 am - 12:00 noon.   
 
E-6 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easements for Ashbury Drive – Sanitary 

Sewer – Northeast ¼ of Section 24  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
 
RESOLVED, That the permanent easement from Muhammad A. Munir and Zahida Razzaq, 
having Sidwell #88-20-24-226-082, and the permanant easement from Babi Construction, Inc., 
having Sidwell #88-20-24-226-083 are hereby ACCEPTED for the operation, maintenance and 
repair or replacement of sanitary sewer on Ashbury Drive; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds Office, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 12, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

E-7 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed and Permanent Easements for 
Maplewood Site Condominium, Milano Building Company, Section 3 – Sidwell #88-
20-03-226-009  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Warranty Deed for right-of-way and four Permanent Easements for 
watermain, sanitary sewer and storm sewer from Milano Building Company, Inc., owner of the 
property having Sidwell #88-20-03-226-009, are hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8 Request to Waive Parking Restrictions – Congregation Shir Tikvah  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy does hereby WAIVE the No Parking 
restrictions on the East side of Northfield Parkway from the parking lot entrance to 
Congregation Shir Tikvah to the entrance to Boulan Park, on October 3, 2005, 7:00 pm – 11:00 
pm; October 4, 2005, 9:00 am – 5:00 pm; October 12, 2005, 7:00 pm – 11:00 pm; October 13, 
2005, 9:00 am – 9:00 pm. 
 
E-9 Winter Maintenance Agreement – Road Commission for Oakland County  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Winter Maintenance Agreement between the Road Commission for 
Oakland County and the City of Troy for Snow and Ice Control of certain primary and local 
roads, which are described and outlined in Exhibit A, is hereby APPROVED and the Mayor and 
City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE the necessary documents, a copy of this 
agreement, which is authorized by the provisions of 1951 PA 51 (MCL 247.651 et seq.), shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 12, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Downtown 
Development Authority  b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Animal Control 
Appeal Board; Cable Advisory Committee; Ethnic Community Issues Advisory 
Committee; Historic District Commission; Liquor Committee; Parks and 
Recreation Board; and Traffic Committee 

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Downtown Development Authority 
Mayor, Council Approval (13) – 4 years 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/09 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/09 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/09 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 12, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Michael W. Culpepper 09/30/08 
Stuart Frankel 09/30/07 
David R. Hay 09/30/07 
Michele Hodges (Requests Reappointment) 09/30/05 
William Kennis 09/30/06 
Alan M. Kiriluk 09/30/08 
Daniel MacLeish  (Requests Reappointment) 09/30/05 
Carol A. Price 09/30/07 
Ernest C. Reschke 09/30/06 
Louise E. Schilling 09/30/08 
Douglas J. Schroeder 09/30/06 
Harvey Weiss  (Requests Reappointment) 09/30/05 
G. Thomas York 09/30/08 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Deborah L. Baughman 03/29/01-0618/01-05/2003 04/09/01-07/09/01 
Jerry E. Bloom 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
Anju C. Brodbine 08/13/02-08/2004 08/19/02 
Mark A. Calice 06/1997  
Anita Elenbaum 04/17/02-04/2004 04/22/02 
David R. Hay 07/19/04-07/2006 08/23/04 
Frank J. Howrylak 04/05/01-06/11/03-05/2005 04/09/01-06/16/03 
Yul Woog Hyun (Jeff) 02/26/03-09/2005 10/06/03 
Laurence G. Keisling 04/29/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Michael O’Brien 07/28/03-07/2005 08/04/03 
Al Petrulis 02/11/03-02/2005 02/17/03 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Gordon Schepke 03/22/05 04/04/05 
Robert M. Schultz 06/19/01 01/22/01-07/09/01 
Jayshree Shah 08/28/01-04/23/04-04/2006 09/17/01-02/02/04-05/03/04
Frank Shier 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 

Neil S. Silver 
08/11/00-06/20/01-06/09/03-
05/2005 08/21/00-07/09/01 

Beatrice G. Smits 12/02/03-12/2005 12/15/03 
Robert Victor 06/03/03-05/2005 06/16/03 

Bruce J. Wilberding 08/05/99-06/17/03-03/1004-
03/2006 04/12/04 

Wayne C. Wright 01/07/99-06/18/03-06/2005  
Gary Yousif 11/24/03-11/2005 01/05/04 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b) City Council Appointments 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 12, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council  (9 Regular Members; 3 Alternates) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 
 Unexpired Term 11/01/05 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Leonard G. Bertin - Resigned 11/01/05 
Cynthia Buchanan 11/01/07 
Susan Burt 11/01/06 
Angela J. Done (Requests reappointment) 11/01/05 
Adam Fuhrman (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Kul B. Gauri 11/01/05 
Theodora House 11/01/06 
Nancy Johnson (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Pauline Manetta 11/01/06 
Dorothy Ann   Pietron 11/01/07 
Mark Pritzlaff (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Susan Werpetinski 11/01/07 
Anbereen Wigar (Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Margaret Apte 01/19/05 01/24/05 
Kathleen Ann Connor 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
O. Carlene Geier 08/10/05 08/15/05 
M.K. Laudicina 07/20/04-07/2006 08/09/04 
Renee Uitto 12/03/04-12/2006 12/06/04 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
James Berar 04/30/07 
Burdette L. Black, Jr. (Bud) 04/30/07 
Merrill W. Dixon (Sr Rep for Parks & Rec Board) 04/30/06 
Marie Hoag 04/30/06 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 12, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

Pauline Y. Noce 04/30/07 
David S. Ogg 04/30/08 
Josephine Rhoads 04/30/08 
JoAnn Thompson 04/30/06 
William Weisgerber (Does not request reappointment) 04/30/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Cynthia Buchanan 06/07/00 06/07/00 
Susan Burt 09/24/01 10/01/01 
Kathleen Ann Connor 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
Mary E. Freliga 11/25/02-11/2004 12/02/02 
Victor P. Freliga 04/19/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Victoria Lang 06/16/03-06/2005 07/07/03 
Dorothy A. Pietron 12/21/98-07/10/01 07/23/01 
Mark Pritzloff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shiva Shakara K. Sastry 07/20/04-07/2006 08/23/04 
Donald E. Schafer 06/08/04-06/2006 06/21/04 
Remedios Solarte 09/15/04 09/20/04 
Nancy Wheeler 03/108/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by  (5) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Patrick K. Carolan 09/30/07 
Kathleen Melchert 09/30/07 
Al Petrulis 09/30/06 
Jayne Saeger (Requests Reappointment) 09/30/05 
Vincent James Viola 09/30/06 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Patricia M. Larue 08/12/02-08/2004 08/19/02 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/28/0304/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Nancy Wheeler 04/12/0403/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
Cable Advisory Committee (CAC)  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06  (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 12, 2005 
 

- 14 - 

NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Jerry L. Bixby 02/28/06 
Shazad Butt 11/30/05 
Richard Hughes 02/28/06 
Penny Marinos 02/28/07 
Alan Manzon 09/30/06 
Fan Lin (Student) 07/01/05 
W. Kent Voigt 02/28/07 
Bryan H. Wehrung 02/28/08 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Robert Lin 08/25/05 09/12/05 
 
Ethnic Community Issues Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/06 (Student) 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Anju C. Brodbine 09/30/05 
Amin Hashmi (Requests reappointment) 09/30/05 
Kara Huang (Student) 07/01/05 
Yul Woong (Jeff) Hyun (Would prefer to serve on a different committee) 09/30/05 
Tom Kaszubski (Requests reappointment) 09/30/05 
Padma Kuppa (Requests reappointment) 09/30/05 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 12, 2005 
 

- 15 - 

Hailu S. Robele (Does not request reappointment) 09/30/05 
Oniell Shah (Requests reappointment) 09/30/05 
Flora M. Tan 09/30/05 
Charles Yuan (Does not request reappointment) 09/30/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Margaret Apte 01/19/05 01/24/05 
Violet-Viorica Balasa 06/27/03 07/07/03 
Kathleen Ann Connor 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
Reuben T. Ellis 08/17/05 09/12/05 
Yogesh Gusani 08/17/05 09/12/05 
Michele Haight 10/18/02-10/2004 11/04/02 
Kelly Jones 08/16/05 09/12/05 
Dick Kuschinsky 06/19/03-06/2005 07/07/03 
Al Petrulis 02/11/03-07/31/03-07/2005 02/17/03 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Malina Sarma 06/27/05 07/11/05 
Jayshree (Gita) Shah 04/23/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Remedios A. Solarte 09/15/04 09/20/04 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Kelly Gu 09/06/05 09/12/05 
Lulu Guo 09/06/05 09/12/05 
  
Historic District Commission One member must be an architect. 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years Two members-Historical Society recommendations. 
 One member – Historical Commission recommendation. 
 
  Term expires 03/01/08 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06  (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Marjorie A. Biglin 03/01/07 
Wilson Deane Blythe (Does not request reappointment) 03/01/05 
Barbara Chambers (Historical Commission) 03/01/08 
Robert Hudson 05/15/06 
Paul C. Lin (Architect) 05/15/06 
Ann Partlan (Historical Society) 03/01/08 
Muriel Rounds 05/15/06 
Vilin Zhang (Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 12, 2005 
 

- 16 - 

Kerry S. Krivoshein 08/12/99-06/14/01-05/2003 07/09/01 
Al Petrulis 02/11/03-07/31/03-07/2005 02/17/03-08/18/03 
Nancy Wheeler 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Liquor Committee  
Appointed by Council - (7) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Henry W. Allemon 01/31/06 
Alex Bennett 01/31/06 
Max K. Ehlert 01/31/06 
W.S. Godlewski 01/31/08 
Patrick C. Hall 01/31/06 
James R. Peard 01/31/06 
Bohdan L. Ukrainec 01/31/08 
Emily Polet (Student) 07/01/05 
Capt. Gary Mayer (Ex-officio) 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Parks and Recreation Board 
Appointed by  (10) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Merrill Dixon (Senior Rep) 04/30/06 
Kathleen Fejex 09/30/07 
Tod Gazetti 09/30/07 
Brad Henson (Student) 07/01/06 
Gary Hauff (School Rep) 07/31/06 
Orestes (Rusty) Kaltsounis 09/30/06 
Meaghan Kovacs (Does not request reappointment) 09/30/05 
Tom Krent 09/30/07 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 12, 2005 
 

- 17 - 

Stuart Redpath 09/30/06 
Jeffrey Stewart 09/30/06 
Janice C. Zikakis (Requests reappointment) 09/30/05 
Carol Anderson  
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Zarina J. Asjad 05/01/03-05/2005 05/05/03 
Violet-Viorica Balasa 06/27/03-06/2005 07/07/03 
Daniel H. Bliss 03/17/03-03/2005 04/14/03 
Leonette Ciepielowski 07/27/04-07/2006 08/23/04 
James Feldkamp 10/15/04-10/2006 11/08/04 
Lynne (Mr.) Gregory 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 

Paul V. Hoef 
09/12/01-08/14/02-
08/2004 09/17/01 

Thomas F. Hrynik 
10/16/00-06/14/01-
06/09/03-05/2005 11/06/00-07/09/01-06/16/03 

Yul Woong (Jeff) Hyun 09/26/03-09/2005 10/06/03 
Dan Kaiser 10/18/04-10/2006 11/08/04 
Laurence Keisling 04/29/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Victor Lenivov 04/08/04-04/2006 04/12/04 
Terry Navratil 06/10/03-05/2005 06/16/03 
Michael O’Brien 07/25/03-07/2005 08/04/03 

Al Petrulis 
02/11/03-07/31/03-
07/2005 02/17/03 

Robert S. Preston 10/11/02 11/04/02 
Mark Pritzloff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Muriel Rounds 07/25/03-07/2005 08/04/03 
Gordon Schepke 03/22/05 04/04/05 
Jayshree Shah 04/23/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Oniell Shah 08/07/02 09/23/02 
Beatrice G. Smits 12/02/03-12/2005 12/15/03 
Renee Uitto 12/03/04-12/2006 12/06/04 
Robert Victor 06/03/03-05/2005 06/16/03 
Brian J. Wattles 07/10/01 07/23/01 
Charles Yuan 07/12/05 07/18/05 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Traffic Committee  
Appointed by Council  (7) – 3 years 
 
 Unexpired Term 01/31/06 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 12, 2005 
 

- 18 - 

CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
John Diefenbaker 01/31/06 
Lawrence Halsey 01/31/06 
Jan L. Hubbell 01/31/08 
Richard D. Kilmer 01/31/08 
Richard D. Minnick II 01/31/06 
Charles Solis (Resigned 08/09/05) 01/31/06 
Grace Yau (Student) 07/01/05 
Peter F. Ziegenfelder 01/31/08 
John Abraham (Ex-officio) 
Charles Craft (Ex-officio) 
William Nelson (Ex-officio) 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Katherine Tan 09/06/05 09/12/05 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 and Bid Waiver – Option to Renew (1 Year) and 

Bid Waiver (1 Year) to Extend – Casualty and Property Insurance with the MMRMA 
for November 2005-06 and November 2006-07 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, On August 9, 2004, a one-year contract with an option to renew for one (1) 
additional year to provide Casualty and Property Insurance was AWARDED to the Michigan 
Municipal Risk Management Authority (MMRMA) for a premium of $293,689 for coverage year 
2004/2005 (Resolution #2004-08-415); and 
 
WHEREAS, the MMRMA has agreed to EXERCISE the one-year option to renew and EXTEND 
the contract for one (1) additional year under the same terms and conditions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the agreement would include a 2% premium increase in the first year (2005/2006), 
and a not to exceed 5% premium increase in the second year (2006/2007).  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedures are hereby WAIVED 
and the option to renew and extend the contract is hereby EXERCISED with the MMRMA to 
provide Casualty and Property Insurance for a premium of $299,563.00 in 2005/2006, and a not 
to exceed premium of $314,541.00 in 2006/2007; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, This contract also includes the maintenance of a positive loss 
fund balance of up to $150,000 expiring November 7, 2007.  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 12, 2005 
 

- 19 - 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Sole Source – In-Car Camera and Radar Equipment Parts and Service 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Decatur Electronics of Decatur, Illinois is the manufacturer and main service facility 
of the 8mm In-car video camera systems and radar equipment used by the Troy Police 
Department;  
 
WHEREAS, It is necessary to maintain these systems so that Police Department incidents may 
be recorded to reduce liability and aid in litigation. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy is AUTHORIZED to purchase 
parts and services from Decatur Electronics to maintain the Police Department’s fleet of 8mm 
in-car video systems and radar equipment for an estimated annual cost of $25,000.00 which is 
commensurate to authorized service center rates. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Designation of Voting Delegates at Annual NLC Meeting – Charlotte, North 

Carolina 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That ________________________ is hereby DESIGNATED as Voting Delegate 
and ____________________________ is hereby DESIGNATED as the Alternate Voting 
Delegate to cast the vote of the City of Troy at the Annual Meeting of the National League of 
Cities to be held December 10, 2005 at Charlotte, North Carolina. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-5 Recommendation to Negotiate Purchase of Replacement Ladder Truck 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 12, 2005 
 

- 20 - 

WHEREAS, The Troy Fire Department has standardized aerial ladder trucks over the last 
twenty years to allow simplified firefighter training on this type of complex apparatus;  
 
WHEREAS, Maintenance is simplified by having platform units that have similar ladder, 
hydraulic, and stabilizing systems. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That City Administration is AUTHORIZED to 
NEGOTIATE a contract with Sutphen Corporation of Amlin, Ohio for the purchase of an aerial 
ladder truck; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the final contract will be SUBMITTED to the Troy City 
Council for review and final approval. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-6 Final Site Condominium Review – Hidden Creek Site Condominium, East Side of 

Ellenboro, South Side of Vanderpool, Section 22 – R-1E 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Final Plan as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance 
(Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the development of a One-Family 
Residential Site Condominium known as Hidden Creek Site Condominium and as 
recommended for approval by City Management, located on the east of Ellenboro, south of 
Vanderpool, including 13 home sites, within the R-1E zoning district, being 7.97 acres in size, is 
hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-7 Amendment #1 – SLC Meter Service, Inc. – Automatic Meter Reading System 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, On February 7, 2005, Troy City Council approved a contract to provide an 
automatic meter reading system for the Department of Public Works Water Division to SLC 
Meter Service, Inc. of Davisburg, MI, the lowest, most qualified bidder as a result of a best 
value process for an estimated net total cost of $78,350.00 at prices as outlined in the bid 
tabulation opened October 15, 2004 (Resolution #2005-02-057);  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 12, 2005 
 

- 21 - 

WHEREAS, The initial system converted 1,000 industrial meters to an automatic meter reading 
system and City management recommends the scope of work be expanded to include 26,000 
residential meters over a four (4) year period. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That City Management is AUTHORIZED to 
NEGOTIATE and AMEND the contract with SLC Meter Service, Inc.; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the final contract will be SUBMITTED to the Troy City 
Council for review and final approval. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-8 Resolution Opposing Senate Bill 528 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, President Bush has established a priority for universal affordable access to 
broadband technology by 2007;  
 
WHEREAS, Legislation has also been filed by Senators John McCain (Arizona) and Frank 
Lautenburg (New Jersey), entitled the “Community Broadband Act of 2005”, that would protect 
a city’s right to explore the option of providing municipal broadband;   
 
WHEREAS, For local governments, reliable high-speed internet (broadband) service attracts 
businesses, spurs economic development and supports urban renewal;  
 
WHEREAS, Historically, government involvement has often been necessary to provide 
essential services to our citizens – from rural power to public libraries.  In today’s global market, 
internet (broadband) access is an essential service, and municipalities have the obligation to 
make sure that all citizens and businesses have equal access to this service;  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan local governments already have specific restrictions and a well thought 
out statutory law (Metro Act) that regulates local government involvement in 
telecommunications services;  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan now has the worst unemployment rate in the country and internet 
(broadband) access is a vital economic development tool and is essential for Michigan to 
successfully attract new jobs and transitioning from a manufacturing-based to a technology-
based economy;  
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County has initiated a county-wide project with private partners to develop 
a multi-tiered wireless broadband service to attract business, spur economic development and 
provide efficient and effective service for all residents and visitors of the county. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 12, 2005 
 

- 22 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council requests the legislative 
bodies to OPPOSE SB 528 is it prevents local governments from providing any 
telecommunication services to citizens; including cable, high-speed internet (broadband) and 
wireless communications; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the Troy City Council that a copy of this resolution 
is PROVIDED to our state legislators and the Governor’s office. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-9 Section 23 – Pavement Replacement Project – Change Order No. 2, Contract 05-02 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Change Order No. 2 in the amount of $413,223.15 with Florence Pavement 
Providers for the Section 23 Pavement Replacement Project in Raintree Village No. 1 is hereby 
APPROVED.  The change order in effect RATIFIES the work already done and AUTHORIZES 
the completion of the project, the balance of which is $ 685,401.83; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That if additional work is required such additional work is 
AUTHORIZED in an amount not to exceed 10% of the amount of Change Order No. 2. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 
a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2256 Garry – September 19, 2005 
b) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2002 Atlas – September 19, 2005  
c) Parking Variance – 4550 Investment Drive – September 19, 2005  
d) Rezoning Application – Cambridge Square Office Buildings, West Side of Dequindre, 

North of Long Lake, Section 12 – R-1C to O-1 and E-P (Z 707) – September 19, 2005 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  Councilwoman Broomfield has requested a resolution advising the Planning 
Commission to make a recommendation to City Council regarding child daycare 
group homes. This recommendation would be advanced by the Planning 
Commission after conclusion of their public hearing which is going to be held on 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 12, 2005 
 

- 23 - 

September 27, 2005.  Please refer to the attached memorandum from the City 
Manager for further information.   

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission is ADVISED TO ADVANCE a recommendation to 
the Troy City Council regarding child daycare group homes in the R-1A through R-1E zoning 
classifications; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission’s recommendation IS 
EXPECTED to be formulated after conclusion of the public hearing on this matter at the 
Planning Commission meeting of September 27, 2005 
 
Yes: 
No: 

H-2  Council Member Howrylak has requested City Council set a public hearing to 
consider geographically modifying the Downtown Development Authority (DDA) 
district.    Please know that statutory procedure requires the governing body to 
make a determination that an amendment to the district is in the best interest of 
the public.  Attached is a staff memo indicating minimum statutory timeframes 
required to modify the DDA district. 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council FINDS it is in the best interest of the public to MODIFY the 
boundaries of the Troy Downtown Development Authority (DDA) district. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, Troy City Council SETS a public hearing to amend the 
boundaries of the Troy DDA on    , 2005 at Troy City Hall. 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 12, 2005 
 

- 24 - 

REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Troy Youth Council/Final – May 18, 2005  
b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – June 1, 2005 
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – June 1, 2005 
d) Planning Commission Regular/Final – July 12, 2005 
e) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – July 13, 2005 
f) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – July 19, 2005   
g) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – July 19, 2005 
h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – July 26, 2005 
i) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – August 2, 2005   
j) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – August 2, 2005   
k) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – August 2, 2005 
l) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – August 3, 2005   
m) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – August 16, 2005 
n) Troy CAC Advisory Committee/Draft – August 18, 2005   
o) Troy Youth Council/Draft – August 24, 2005  
 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) The Report of the Twenty fifth Annual Actuarial Valuation – December 31, 2004 of the 

City of Troy Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters  
b)  Preliminary Report from the Historic District Study Committee Concerning the Brian and 

Mary Jean Wattles Property 
c) Update on Futures Project, as well as Big Beaver Corridor Study  
d) Development of City of Troy Comprehensive Plan/Amendments to City of Troy Future 

Land Use Plan 
 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Thanks to Carol Anderson from Cathy Killian, Thanking Troy Aquatic Center 

Staff – Jen Harvey, Michelle Harvey, Kevin Losey and Andy Gillett for Their Outstanding 
Efforts   

b) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Julie Zenger Hain, Thanking Officer Broderick and 
Other Officers and Staff for Their Professionalism in Court  

c) Letter to Troy Police Department from Mothers and More, In Appreciation of the 
Presentation at Their Annual Family Picnic 

d) Letter of Thanks to Jay Reynolds from Lorri Konieczko-Jim Hadden of ARUP, In 
Appreciation of the Presentation on Identity Theft  

e) Letter of Thanks to John Szerlag from Tom Kafkes, In Appreciation of His Assistance 
with the Monarch Project   

f) Letter of Thanks to Cindy Stewart from Paula and Steve Brazel, Thanking Cindy for Her 
Presentation at the Home and Garden Awards   

g) Letter of Appreciation to Cindy Stewart from Roberta Beauchamp, Regarding Aldo and 
Orleta Cairo – Most Tranquil Garden Award   

h) Letter of Appreciation to Mayor Schilling from Marvin Danto of the Michigan Design 
Center, Regarding the Organized Repaving of Maple Road 

    
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 12, 2005 
 

- 25 - 

a) Resolution from the Oakland County Board of Commissioners – Support for Widening of 
I-75 in Oakland County  

 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Notice of Rating Action for Troy DDA from Fitch Ratings 
 
J-7  Notice of Rating Action for City of Troy from Fitch Ratings 
 
J-8  Letter from James R. Stokes, Deputy Director of Governor’s Office for Southeast 

Michigan, Regarding the Resolution adopted by Troy City Council – Supporting 
the Legislative Correction of the WPW v. Troy Taxable Value Inequity 

 
J-9   2005-2007 Economic Outlook Forecast for Oakland County – Final Report 

Attached as a Separate Item  
 
J-10   Letter from Phoebe White Regarding Penalty on Tax Bill 
 
J-11   Memorandum Regarding OPTECH Eagle IIIP Voting Devices and Supplies 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 
 
 
RECESSED 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 12, 2005 
 

- 26 - 

RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

 
 
 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, September 19, 2005 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 26, 2005 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 3, 2005 .......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 17, 2005 ........................................................Regular City Council 
Monday, October 24, 2005 ........................................................Regular City Council 
Monday, November 14, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 21, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 28, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 5, 2005 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 19, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 
 
 



 
 
DATE:   September 6, 2005 

  
 

 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Public Hearing 
  Commercial Vehicle Appeal  
   2239 E. Maple Road 
  

 
On April 28, 2003, City Council approved a request from Mr. Roger Coley for approval 
to park two dump trucks and a commercial trailer on his property on East Maple Road.  
That approval was for a period of two years and has now expired.  In response to our 
contact with Mr. Coley regarding the status of the vehicles, Mr. Coley has submitted an 
application seeking Council’s approval to continue parking one of the dump trucks on 
the property.  The other dump truck and trailer are no longer parked on the property.   
 
The appeal requests that a public hearing date be held in accordance with the 
ordinance.  A public hearing has been scheduled for your meeting of September 12, 
2005. 
 
The property in question has an existing house that is 903 square feet in area.  There is 
also an attached garage that is 308 square feet in area.  Based upon the restrictions of 
Section 40.56.01 the area of the attached garage could be increased to 677 square 
feet.  In addition, based upon the size of the property and the limitations of Section 
40.56.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, detached accessory buildings totaling 836 square 
feet would be permitted.   
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
 
Attachments 
 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



 



 
 



 





 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 1

DATE:  August 29, 2005 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (Z 706) – 

South side of Long Lake Road, West of Calvert Drive, Section 14 – R-1C to 
CR-1 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The proposed rezoning is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan as adopted in 1971.  
The application is compatible with abutting uses and zoning districts.  The Planning 
Commission recommended approval of the rezoning request at the July 12, 2005 Regular 
Meeting.  City Management recommends approval of the rezoning request. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owners and applicants are Maurice Gennari and Antonio Vettraino. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the south side of Long Lake Road, west of Calvert Drive in 
Section 14. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 3.07 acres in area. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
Three single family homes presently sit on the property. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-1C One Family Residential District. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
CR-1 One Family Residential Cluster District. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to construct a 10-unit cluster development, comprised of detached 
units, on the property.  Note that it appears the applicant can only develop 9 units on the 
property, based on the parcel size and the permitted CR-1 density (3.07 acres x 3.1 units 
per acre = 9.517 units). 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



 2

Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Single family residential. 
South: Single family residential. 
East: Single family residential. 
West: Single family residential.  
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1C One Family Residential. 
South: R-1C One Family Residential. 
East: R-1C One Family Residential. 
West: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in the Proposed CR-1 Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 

PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
One-Family dwelling units (as defined in Section 04.20.43) developed according to the 
standards of the One-Family Residential (R-1A through R-1E) District in effect immediately 
prior to the application of the CR-1 District. If the previous District was other than R-1A 
through R-1E, the standards of the abutting or nearest One-Family Residential District 
shall be applicable. 
 
All other Principal Uses Permitted and as regulated in the R-1A through R-1E One-Family 
Residential Districts, as described in Section 10.20.00. 
 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 
The following uses shall be permitted, subject to the conditions hereinafter imposed for 
each use and subject further to the review and approval of the Planning Commission: 
 
All uses permitted and as regulated in R-1A through R-1E, One-Family Residential, 
Districts, as described in Section 10.30.00 of this Chapter. 
 
One-Family Residential Cluster Dwelling units developed in accordance with the 
standards of Section 11.40.00. 
 

Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on Long Lake Road. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will be required to provide on-site storm water detention.  



 3

Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map does not indicate any significant natural features located on the 
property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The property is classified as Low Density Residential on the Future Land Use Plan as 
adopted in 1971.  This designation correlates with R-1A through R-1E and CR-1 in the 
Future Land Use Plan.  The application is in compliance with the Future Land Use Plan. 
 
Compliance with Location Standards: 
 
Article 11.40.00 of the Zoning Ordinance states that the application of the CR-1 (One Family 
Residential Cluster) District shall be based upon one of the following locational standards: 
 

(A) Transition Basis 
(B) Topographic Condition or Environmental Basis 
(C) Difficult Parcel Configuration Basis 

 
The applicant’s letter indicates that they are applying for CR-1 zoning under the Difficult 
Parcel Configuration Basis.  Under the Difficult Parcel Configuration Basis, CR-1 may be 
applied to parcels with major thoroughfare frontage, which are also physically restricted in 
such a manner as to make conventional single-family residential development physically 
unfeasible.  The parcel has relatively narrow width (244 feet) that limits its development 
potential under R-1C.   
 
The Planning Commission and the City Council must also find that the subject property 
cannot reasonably be combined with abutting properties to enable conventional single-family 
residential development and that the proposed District and development will not interfere with 
the development of the surrounding area, and will not be detrimental to the safety or 
convenience of vehicular and/or pedestrian traffic.  It appears that the applicant would not be 
able to purchase abutting property, given the single-family residential character of the abutting 
neighborhood.  Access to the property would be from Long Lake Road, a major thoroughfare; 
therefore traffic in abutting neighborhood would not be directly impacted.  
 
The application qualifies under (C) Difficult Parcel Configuration Basis and therefore meets 
the Location Standards of the CR-1 District. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Letter from petitioner, dated June 8, 2005. 
3. Potential R-1C Layout with 60-foot wide right-of-way (public street). 
4. Potential R-1C Layout with 40-foot wide easement (private road). 
5. Minutes from July 12, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z 706) 
 
PREPARED BY RBS/MFM 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-706 Village of Tuscany Sec 14\CC Public Hearing Z-706 09 12 05.doc 



JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

K
S

WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

BIG BEAVER

LIV
E

R
N

O
IS

SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE LAKE

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ST
E

PH
E

N
S

O
N

M
A

IN R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

I75

MAPLE



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1C TO CR-1



E LONG LAKE

AL
TO

N
CARR

C
AL

V
E

R
T

H
U

BB
A

R
D

TY
LE

R

PIC
K

FO
R

D

D
AVIS C

T

AL
LI

S
O

N

PR
E

N
TIS

WELLING

G
A

M
B

E
R

WILMET

W
H

ITE
S

E
LL

QUEEN

HALE

W
E

S
TM

O
R

E
LA

N
D

 C
T

G
R

E
EN

D
A

LE

ALT
ON CT

TY
LE

R

±

REZONING REQUEST
PROP. VILLAGE OF TUSCANY CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT
FROM R-1C TO CR-1
SOUTH SIDE OF LONG LAKE, WEST OF CALVERT
SEC.  14  (Z-706)

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1C TO CR-1

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet

















PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 12, 2005 

REZONING REQUESTS 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 706) – Proposed Village of 
Tuscany Cluster Development, South side of Long Lake, West of Calvert, 
Section 14 – Section R-1C to CR-1 
 
Mr. Chamberlain announced that he lives next to the property that is proposed for 
rezoning.  He asked the Assistant City Attorney if it would be appropriate for him 
to abstain from discussion and voting on the request.   
 
Mr. Motzny said it appears Mr. Chamberlain’s participation in the discussion and 
voting process would not be appropriate because there is a possibility that the 
proposed rezoning could have an affect on his personal interest that could result 
in financial implications.  He recommended consideration of a motion to allow Mr. 
Chamberlain to abstain from voting on the matter.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain asked to be excused.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-113 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To allow Mr. Chamberlain to abstain from voting on Agenda Item 
#5, at his request, because of the proximity of his residential property to the 
development.   
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Chamberlain 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
(Mr. Chamberlain exited the meeting.) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning request.   
 
Joseph Vaglica of GES Engineering, 8155 Annsbury, Shelby Township, was 
present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Vaglica provided an explanation for the 
discrepancy in the cluster density in relation to the 60-foot easement that was 
recently sold to the City of Troy.  Mr. Vaglica said the proposed development 
would be a better fit for the property and more suitable to its environment. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 12, 2005 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-114 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to CR-1 rezoning request, located on the south side of 
Long Lake Road, west of Calvert, within Section 14, being approximately 3.07 
acres in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Chamberlain (per Resolution #PC-2005-07-113) 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
(Mr. Chamberlain returned to the meeting.) 

 



 1

DATE:  September 6, 2005 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM (TABLED) – REZONING APPLICATION (Z 705) – West 

side of Rochester Road, North of Creston, between Long Lake and 
Trinway, Section 10 – R-1C to R-1T 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The proposed rezoning is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan and the proposed 
zoning district is compatible with abutting uses and zoning districts.  The Planning 
Commission recommended approval of the rezoning request at the June 14, 2005 
Regular Meeting.  City Management recommends approval of the rezoning request. 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The building is proposed to face Creston Street.  The Future Land Use Plan does not 
provide any guidance related to the orientation of the building.  The petitioner has 
submitted a sketch proposing 5 units on 29,040 square feet, which is a density of 7.5 
units per acre.  This exceeds the maximum density of 6.2 units per acre in R-1T.  When 
submitting for Preliminary Site Plan Approval, the petitioner must reduce the number of 
proposed units to 4 meet the 6.2 units per acre density requirement. 
 
The date of the amendment to the Future Land Use Plan that classified the frontage of 
Rochester Road to Medium Density Residential in this area was 1999. 
 
The City of Troy Storm Sewer Network Maps were created in August 2005.  These 
maps indicate there is an 8-inch underground drain within the Creston Street right-of-
way.  No open drain is located on the property that would affect the property’s 
development potential. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner is Delores Khatami.  The applicant is Fadi Nassar.  
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the west side of Rochester Road and north side of Creston, 
between Long Lake and Trinway, in section 10. 

campbellld
Text Box
D-01



 2

Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 29,040 square feet in area. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
A single family home presently sits on the property. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-1C One Family Residential District. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
R-1T One Family Attached District. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to construct a 5-unit condominium development on the property. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Vacant. 
South: Office and retail. 
East: Single family residential. 
West: Single family residential.  
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1C One Family Residential. 
South: B-2 Community Business. 
East: R-1C One Family Residential. 
West: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in the Proposed R-1T Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
 All principal uses permitted and as regulated in the nearest R-1A through R-1E One 

Family Residential Districts. 
 
 Two family dwellings developed in accordance with the provisions of the 

Condominium Act, MCL 559.1, et seq. 
 
 One family attached dwellings as defined in sub-Section 04.20.44 developed in 

accordance with the provisions of the Condominium Act, MCL 559.1, et seq. 
 

  Accessory buildings and uses customarily incidental to the above principal uses. 



 3

 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 
 
 Churches and other facilities normally incidental thereto. 
 
 Schools. 
 
 Child care centers. 
 
 Utility and public service buildings and uses. 
 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on Creston Avenue and Rochester Road, a major thoroughfare. The 
units will front on Creston and will face the back of a restaurant and an office building, 
including dumpsters.  This may affect marketability.    
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will be required to provide on-site storm water detention.  
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there is a drain located on the property.  It will need 
to be determined during the site plan review process whether there are any wetlands on 
the property.   
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The Future Land Use Plan was amended in 1999 to classify the Rochester Road 
frontage in this area as Medium Density Residential.  The Medium Density Residential 
classification correlates with the R-1T Zoning District in the Plan.  The exact depth of 
the Medium Density Residential classification cannot be determined from the Future 
Land Use Plan because it is conceptual in nature.  Creston appears to be the 
demarcation line between Community Service Area and Medium Density Residential.  
The subject parcel falls within the area designated as Medium Density Residential.  The 
parcel is relatively small in area, however the applicant has provided a site plan that 
indicates it can be developed as an attached condominium development.  The rezoning 
application is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan.   
 
Compliance with Location Standards: 
 
Article 12.40.01 states that the R-1T (One-family Attached Residential) District may be 
applied to property when one or more of the following conditions prevail: 
 
 (A) When the application of such a classification is consistent with the intent of the 

Master Land Use Plan, and therefore involves areas indicated as medium density 
or high density residential. 

 
 (B) When the application of such a classification would be an integral part of a 

planned residential development approach, such as a planned neighborhood 
development (34.50.00), wherein the overall density is consistent with the intent of 
the Master Land Use Plan. 



 4

The application meets the standard of (A) above and therefore meets the Location 
Standards of the R-1T District. 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Applicant Statement of Request. 
3. Proposed Troy Condominium Development (conceptual site plan) 
4. Minutes from the June 14, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 
 
PREPARED BY RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z 705) 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-705 Robin's Nest Sec 10\CC Tabled Item Robins Nest 09 12 05.doc 



JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

K
S

WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

BIG BEAVER

LIV
E

R
N

O
IS

SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE LAKE

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ST
E

PH
E

N
S

O
N

M
A

IN R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

I75

MAPLE



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1C TO R-1T



E LONG LAKE

TRINWAY

CRESTON

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

ASHLEY

A
B

IN
G

TO
N

MAYBERRY

B
E

V

BABBIT

±0 100 200 300 40050
Feet

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED ROBIN'S NEST CONDOMINIUM
FROM R-1C TO R-1T
NW CORNER OF ROCHESTER & CRESTON
SEC.  10  (Z-705)

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1C TO R-1T







z 705 robins nest condo.dgn  6/8/2005 3:09:41 PM







PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 17 - 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 705) – Proposed Robin’s Nest 
Condominium, North side of Creston, West side of Rochester, Section 10 – From R-
1C to R-1T 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning application.   
 
The petitioner, Fadi Nassar of 930 Smith Avenue, Birmingham, was present.  Mr. 
Nassar said the proposed high-end development would complement the area and 
act as a nice buffer.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-06-102 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the north side of 
Creston and west side of Rochester, within Section 10, being approximately 0.67 
acres in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 

Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager- Services 
Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning  
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

DATE: September 7, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: Proposed Revision of Troy’s Sign Ordinances   
 

 
 

 
 Proposed modifications to the City of Troy sign ordinances were proposed at the August 15, 
2005 City Council meeting.  At that meeting, there was some discussion about the draft proposal.  In 
addition, City Council was encouraged to provide any additional input to City Administration, so that 
a revised proposal could be submitted at the September 12, 2005 City Council meeting.  After 
receiving this input, City Administration believes that the following proposed ordinance amendments 
reflect a convergence of the opinions of the individual City Council members.   
 
 The substantive ordinance revisions are as follows:     
 

1. The previous allowance of up to three temporary signs per parcel has been 
modified to allow up to 12 square feet of temporary signage per parcel.  However, 
the size of any individual temporary signs is limited to a maximum of 6 square feet. 

 
2. Flags have been removed from the regulations governing temporary signs.   

 
3. The 90-day time frame for temporary signage has been reduced to 60 days.    

 
4. If a sign relates to an on-premises activity, such as the sale or lease of a house, 

then a temporary sign can remain for the duration of any contract covering such 
property, even if it exceeds the 60- day time frame.  

 
 If the Chapter 85 ordinance revision is acceptable, City Council would need to approve the 
new Chapter 85, as well as rescind Chapter 85A and Chapter 78, which are now incorporated into 
the revised Chapter 85.   Council would also need to revise Chapter 3 (Administrative Service) to 
expressly provide the Building Department with authorization to enforce the new sign law (Chapter 
85).  Chapter 60 (Fees) should also be revised to set forth the fees for signs, under the new Chapter 
85, into the Chapter that provides for the rest of the City’s fees.     
 
 We are available to answer any questions concerning this matter.    

campbellld
Text Box
D-02



TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 

Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager- Services 
Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning  
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

DATE: August 9, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: Proposed Revision of Troy’s Sign Ordinances     
 

 
 
 The City of Troy’s sign ordinance has recently been challenged in the Fehribach v. City of 
Troy lawsuit.  Since the 1970’s, Troy has one ordinance that governs political signs (Chapter 85A) 
and a second ordinance that governs all other signs (Chapter 78).   The ACLU challenged this 
separation, and argued that Troy’s ordinances were impermissible content- based regulations.  
According to the ACLU, political speech was afforded less protection than commercial speech, 
which is a violation of the First Amendment to the U.S. Constitution.   
 
 As a result of this lawsuit, City Administration has scrutinized the current sign ordinances, 
and has drafted proposed revisions for your consideration.  Since the proposed changes were 
extensive, and difficult to convey in a red line draft format, it is our recommendation that the 
regulations be incorporated into a new Chapter- Chapter 85.  This modification would also 
necessitate revisions to Chapter 3, which provides the authorization for enforcement of the sign 
ordinance.  The proposed revision also proposes to remove the fees and incorporate them into 
Chapter 60 (Fees).  In addition, Council would also need to rescind the existing Chapters 85A and 
78.   
 
 In this proposed ordinance revision, political signs are characterized as temporary signs, 
similar to garage sale signs and real estate signs.  Each parcel of property would be limited to three 
such temporary signs.  These three signs must be smaller than six square feet, and cannot be up for 
longer than 90 days.  In addition to the temporary sign modifications, this proposal also incorporates 
a re-organization of the chapter, as well as grammatical changes.  Additionally, some of the existing 
provisions have been clarified in the new proposal.   
 
 The treatment of political signs in the same manner as other temporary signs addresses the 
ACLU’s concerns that political signs receive less protection than commercial temporary signs.  It 
protects the City’s obligation to regulate signage for health, safety and welfare reasons, while 
simultaneously balancing the rights of free speech.  However, Council should be aware that the 
adoption of this proposed sign ordinance may or may not resolve the ACLU’s concerns that were 
raised in the Fehribach lawsuit.               
 
 Although it is only August, the November 2005 election is right around the corner, and the 
rules concerning political signage should be resolved at the earliest opportunity.  We would 
appreciate receiving any comments on the ordinance revision proposal at your earliest convenience, 
so that any issues can be addressed prior to the City Council meeting.   We are available to answer 
any questions concerning this matter.    



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO ENACT 
CHAPTER 85 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Enactment 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as Chapter 85 – Signs of the Code of the City of 
Troy. 

 
 

CHAPTER 85 - SIGNS 
 
85.01.00   Administration 
 
85.01.01   Title and Purpose 
 
A. Short Title: This Ordinance shall be known as and may be cited as the City of Troy Sign 

Ordinance. 
 
B. Findings and Purpose:  It is hereby determined that proliferation of signs in the City is 

unduly distracting to motorists and pedestrians, creates a traffic hazard, and reduces the 
effectiveness of signs needed to direct and warn the public.  It is also determined that the 
appearance of the City is marred by proliferation of signs.  It is also determined that 
proliferation of signs restricts light and air.  It is also determined that proliferation of signs 
negatively affects property values.  It is also determined that proliferation of signs results in 
an inappropriate use of land.  The purpose of this Ordinance is to control the occurrence 
and size of signs in order to reduce the aforementioned negative effects.  It is also 
determined that the signs of least value to people within the City are those which carry 
commercial messages other than the advertisement of any product, service, event, person, 
institution or business located on the premises where the sign is located or indicates the 
sale or rental of such premises.  It is also determined that the regulations contained in this 
Ordinance are the minimum amount of regulation necessary to achieve its purposes.  It is 
also determined that restrictions in this Ordinance on the size of signs, their height and 
placement on real estate, are the minimum amount necessary to achieve its purposes. 

 
85.01.02   Enforcement:  
 
A. This Chapter shall be administered and enforced by the Building Inspector as provided for 

in Chapter 3 of the Troy City Code. 
 
B. Responsibility of Compliance: The owner of any property on which a sign is placed, and the 

person maintaining said sign are equally responsible for the condition of the sign and the 
area in the vicinity thereof. 

 
C. Removal of Signs:  Should any sign be found unsafe, insecure, improperly constructed or 

not in accordance with the requirements of this Chapter, the Sign Erector and/or Owner 
shall be required to make the sign safe, secure and otherwise in compliance with the 
requirements of this Chapter within 30 days of written notice.  If the Sign Erector or Owner 
fails to comply within the allocated 30 day period, then the Building Inspector shall remove 



  2

the offending sign within 48 hours from the time of written notification.  However, if the 
enforcing official determines that a sign is unsafe and an immediate hazard to health or 
safety, then the sign shall be removed or repaired at the owner’s expense within 48 hours 
of written notification of such condition. 

 
85.01.03   Definitions: For the purpose of this chapter, certain terms, words and tenses used 
herein, shall be interpreted or defined as follows: 
 
Board of Appeals: Board of Appeals means the Building Code Board of Appeals. 
 
Business Development: One or more uses within a building or buildings that share common 
parking facilities. 
 
Building Inspector: The Director of Building and Zoning or his/her authorized representative. 
 
Department: The Building Department of the City of Troy, its officers, inspectors and other 
employees. 
 
Ground Sign: A freestanding sign supported by one or more uprights, braces, or pylons located in 
or upon the ground and not attached to any building. 
 
Owner: A person, firm, partnership, association or corporation and/or their legal successors. 
 
Person: Any individual firm, partnership, association or corporation and their legal successors. 
 
Political Sign: A sign whose message relates to: The election of a person to public office, or to 
a political party, or to a public issue, which shall be voted on at an election called by a public 
body. 
 
Projecting Sign: A sign which is affixed to any building or part thereof, or structure, which extends 
beyond the building wall or parts thereof, or structure, by more than twelve (12) inches. 
 
Public Property: All publicly-owned property, including streets, rights-of-way, and everything 
affixed thereto and there over.  
 
Roof line: The vertical distance measured from the established grade to the highest point of the 
roof surface for flat roofs, the deck line of mansard roofs, and the average height between eaves 
and ridge boards for gable, hip and gambrel roofs. 
 
Roof Sign: A sign that is erected, constructed or maintained upon, and projects above or beyond 
the roof or parapet. 
 
Sign: A sign means any structure or wall or other object used for the display of any message, and 
includes but is not limited to any bill, poster, placard, handbill, flyer, painting, balloon, streamer or 
other similar object in any form whatsoever which contains printed or written matter in words, 
symbols, or pictures, or in any combination thereof attached to or affixed to the ground or any 
structure. 
 
Sign Erector: Any person engaged in the business of erecting, altering, or removing signs on a 
contractual or hourly basis. 
 



  3

Wall Sign: A sign attached to, painted on, or placed flat against the exterior wall or surface of any 
building, no portion of which projects more than 12 inches from the wall, and which may not project 
above the roof or parapet line.  
 
85.01.04   Requirements for Permits 
 
A. Permit Required: It is unlawful for any person to erect, re-erect, alter, or relocate any sign 

without obtaining a permit from the Building Inspector and paying the applicable permit fee, 
as set forth-in Chapter 60 of the City Code. 

 
 Exceptions:   
 

1. Sign Permits shall not be required for street signs, which are erected by the City, 
State or Federal Government for street direction or traffic control.   

 
2. Sign Permits shall not be required for signs located on the interior of buildings.  
 
3. Sign Permits shall not be required for signs that are not visible from any adjacent 

right-of-way which do not exceed thirty-six square feet.  
 
4. Sign Permits shall not be required for small ground signs for uses other than one 

and two family dwellings, as long as the signs are not more than two square feet in 
area. 

 
5. Sign Permits shall not be required for temporary signs, as set forth in Section 

85.03.02 of this Chapter. 
 
6. Sign Permits shall not be required for flags that are allowed by Section 85.03.04.  

 
B.   Permit Application:  Applications for sign permits shall be made upon forms provided by 

the Department and shall contain the following information: 
 

1. Name, address and telephone number of applicant. 
 
2. Name and address of the Sign Erector. 
 
3. Location of the building or structure to which the sign is to be attached or lot where 

the sign is to be erected. 
 
4. Position of the sign in relation to nearby buildings, structures, property lines, and 

existing or proposed rights-of-way.  
 
5. The zoning district of the real property where the sign is to be located.  
 
6. Two copies of the plans and specifications for the proposed sign and the method of 

construction and attachment to the building or placement in the ground. 
 
7. If deemed necessary by the Building Inspector, two copies of stress sheets and 

calculations, bearing the signature and seal of a registered professional engineer or 
architect, which show the structure as designed for dead load and wind pressure, 
and demonstrate that the proposed sign will satisfy the regulations adopted by the 
City of Troy. 



  4

 
8. Such other information as the Building Inspector may require to demonstrate that 

the proposed sign would meet full compliance with this and other applicable laws of 
the City of Troy and the State of Michigan. 

 
C.  Contractor Registration Required:   
 

1. All Sign Erectors, as defined in Section 85.01.03 of this Chapter, shall annually 
register with the Department.  The Sign Erector registrations shall expire April 1st of 
each year.  The registration fee is as set forth in Chapter 60 of the City Code. 

2. Insurance Requirement: The following insurance is required before a sign permit 
will be issued:   

 
a. Insurance Certificates: Before a permit is issued for the erection of a sign, 

the installing company shall submit a Certificate of Insurance  for Public 
Liability in the amount of One Hundred Thousand ($100,000) Dollars for 
injuries to one person and Three Hundred Thousand ($300,000) Dollars for 
injury to more than one person, and Property Damage insurance in the 
amount of Twenty-Five Thousand ($25,000) Dollars for damage to any 
property due to the actions of the Sign Erector or any of their agents or 
employees. This Certificate shall be submitted to the Building Department, 
and approved by the City’s Risk Manager or his/her delegate.  

 
b. Lapsing of Insurance:  Sign Erectors shall maintain the above referenced 

insurance coverage at all times in order to be eligible to obtain sign permits.  
If the insurance coverage lapses at any time, the City can automatically 
revoke the right of a Sign Erector to obtain sign permits. 

 
c. Notification of Change: A Sign Erector shall notify the Building Department 

of any change in address, or any change in ownership or management that 
differs from what is indicated on the Insurance Certificates. 

 
D.   Permit Fees:  Permit fees are as set forth in Chapter 60 of the City Code.   
 
85.01.05   Prohibited Signs 
 
A. Signs in Right-of-Way:  No sign shall be located in, project into, or overhang a public right-

of-way or dedicated public easement, except as provided below:   
 

1. Signs established and maintained by the City, County, State, or Federal 
Governments may be located in the right of way. 

 
2.  Banners advertising civic events may be permitted on lighting poles within the 

median of Big Beaver Road, between Rochester Road and Cunningham Drive, for 
a period not to exceed thirty days, subject to the approval of the City Manager. 

 
3.  In its discretion, City Council may approve an agreement to allow residential 

development identification signs in the medians of boulevard entrance streets.  Any 
such agreement shall require continuing liability insurance and also provide 
satisfactory maintenance of the sign, as well as any other condition that is deemed 
necessary by the Troy City Council to protect the right of way.  The agreement must 
also indicate the City Council’s approval of the proposed design and materials for 



  5

the sign. The residential development identification sign shall not exceed five feet in 
height, and shall not be more than 50 square feet in area.  The height of such signs 
shall not exceed 30” when located in the corner clearance area depicted in Figure 
85.01.05 A. 

 

 
Figure 85.01.05 A 

 
B. Corner Clearance:  Signs higher than 30 inches shall be prohibited in the triangular area 

formed at the intersection of any two street right-of-way lines (existing or proposed) by a 
straight line drawn between said right-of-way lines at a distance along each line of 25 feet 
from their point of intersection. No sign shall be located in that area, or project into, or 
overhang into the area.    

 
C. Roof Projecting Signs:  Roof signs and projecting signs are prohibited. 
 
D. Fire Escapes: No signs of any kind shall be attached to or placed upon a building in such a 

manner as to obstruct any fire escape. 
 
E. Support Location: No pole, cable or support of any nature shall be placed on any publicly 

owned property, street right-of-way, or proposed street right-of-way. 
 
F. Traffic Interference: No advertising device shall be erected or maintained which simulates 

or imitates in size, color, lettering, or design any traffic sign or signal or other word, phrase, 
symbol, or character in such a manner as to interfere with, mislead, or confuse traffic. 

 
G. Flashing Signs: Flashing or intermittent illumination of signs shall be prohibited. 
 
H. Neon Tubes: Installation of neon tubing used as borders or accent strips on the exterior of 

any building shall be prohibited. 
 
 
85.01.06   Inspections 
 
A. Concealed Work:  In cases where fastenings are to be installed and enclosed in such a 

manner that the Building Inspector cannot easily remove material to see the fastenings and 
material used, the Sign Erector must advise the Building Inspector so that the inspection 
may be made before concealment. 

 
B.  Compliance Certification:  All signs shall be inspected at original installation; if found to 

comply with this chapter, the sign shall be issued a certificate of compliance. 



  6

 
C: Inspections of Existing Signs:  The Building Inspector can inspect existing signs to 

determine compliance with the provisions of this chapter. 
 
85.01.07   Non-Conforming Signs: 
 
A. Intent:  It is the intent of this Chapter to encourage eventual elimination of signs that, as a 

result of the adoption of this Chapter, become non-conforming. It is considered as much a 
subject of health, safety, and welfare as the prohibition of new signs in violation of this 
Chapter.  It is the intent, therefore, to administer this Chapter to facilitate the removal of 
illegal non-conforming signs while simultaneously avoiding any unreasonable invasion of 
established private property rights. 

 
B. Continuance:  A non-conforming sign shall be maintained in good condition.  A non-

conforming sign may be continued, but shall not be: 
 
1. Replaced by another non-conforming sign; or  
 
2. Structurally altered so as to prolong the life of the sign; or 
 
3. Expanded; or  
 
4. Re-established after damage or destruction to the sign, if the estimated expense of 

reconstruction exceeds 50% of the estimated replacement cost of the sign. 
 
85.01.08   Appeals: 
 
A. Procedure 
 

1. Any person aggrieved by any decision, ruling or order from the Building Inspector 
may appeal that decision to the Board of Appeals.  The appeal shall be made by 
filing an application for a hearing with the Department.  The application shall specify 
the grounds for the appeal.  The Building Inspector shall transmit the application 
and all other documents relating to the appeal to the Board of Appeals.  Upon 
receipt of the Appeal Application, the Building Inspector shall administratively 
establish a date of the Public Hearing.   

 
2. The Building Inspector shall notify all owners of real property within 300 feet of the 

real property that is proposed as the site of the sign subject to the appeal.  The 
notice shall be sent by U.S. Mail to the owners at the address listed with the Troy 
Assessing Department, and shall be postmarked no less than 14 days before the 
date of the Public Hearing. 

 
B. Powers of the Board of Appeals 
 

1. The Board of Appeals has the power to grant specific variances from the 
requirements of this Chapter, upon a showing of each of the following:   

 
a. The variance would not be contrary to the public interest or general purpose 

and intent of this Chapter; and  
 



  7

b. The variance does not adversely affect properties in the immediate vicinity 
of the proposed sign; and  

 
c. The petitioner has a hardship or practical difficulty resulting from the unusual 

characteristics of the property that precludes reasonable use of the 
property. 

 
2. Duration of Variances:  The Board of Appeals shall not grant any variance for a 

period that exceeds 15 years.  All variances shall terminate at the expiration of the 
period of time set by the Board of Appeals, or upon alteration or reconstruction of 
more than 50% of the sign, whichever occurs first. 

 
85.01.09   Violations 
 
A. It shall be unlawful for any person to erect, construct, maintain, enlarge, alter, move, or 

convert any sign in the City of Troy, or cause or permit the same to be done, contrary to or 
in violation of any of the provisions of this Chapter.  Any person violating any of the 
provisions of this Chapter shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction of any 
such violation, shall be punished with a fine of between $50 and $500 and/or incarceration 
of up to 90 days.  Any sign constituting an immediate hazard to health and safety is 
deemed a nuisance and may be removed by the Building Inspector at the expense of the 
owner of the sign or other responsible party, in the discretion of the Building Inspector. 

 
B. Signs in Public Right-of-Way:  In addition to the penalties prescribed in paragraph 85.01.09 

A, any sign erected in violation of this Chapter may be removed by the Building Inspector or 
his/her authorized representative and stored in a safe location for at least 48 hours.  During 
this period of time, the owner of the sign may obtain the sign from the Building Inspector 
upon request and payment of a fee of Fifty Dollars ($50) for each sign to cover the costs of 
removal and storage.  After 48 hours, the Building Inspector may dispose of the sign. 

 
C. Public Nuisance: Signs installed after the effective date of the adoption or subsequent 

amendment of this Chapter that are in violation of this Chapter are hereby declared to be 
public nuisances, and may be abated by the City.  The City can take any legal action to 
abate the public nuisance.  The collection of removal fees from the Owner, Sign Erector, or 
other responsible person shall not preclude the City from prosecuting the responsible 
person.  

 
 
85.02.00   General Provisions 
 
85.02.01  Construction Requirements 
 
A. Material Requirement:  All signs shall be designed and constructed in conformity to the 

provisions for materials, loads, and stresses of the latest adopted edition of the Michigan 
Building Code and the requirements of this Chapter. 

 
B. Fastenings:  All signs must be erected in such a manner and with such materials to remain 

safe and secure during the period of use and all bolts, cables, and other parts of such signs 
shall be kept painted and free from corrosion. Any defect due to the fault of the Sign Erector 
shall be repaired by the Sign Erector. 

 



  8

C. Changeable Message Signs: The message change cycle of a changeable message sign 
shall be not less than one minute per message, except in a combined time and temperature 
sign, where the change cycle shall not be less than 30 seconds. 

 
D. Revolving Signs: Signs that revolve shall make no more than four complete revolutions per 

minute. 
 
E. Proximity to Electrical Conductors: No sign shall be erected so that any part, including 

cables, guys, etc, will be within six feet of any electrical conductor, electric light pole, street 
lamp, traffic light, or other public utility pole or standard. 

 
F. Sanitation: Property surrounding any ground sign shall be kept clean, sanitary, free from 

obnoxious and offensive substances, free from weeds, rubbish, and inflammable material. 
 
85.02.02   Illuminated Signs: 
 
A. Illumination:  Only listed electrical devices shall be used for the illumination of signs.  These 

listed electrical devices shall be installed in accordance with the requirements of the 
regulations adopted by the City of Troy.  No open spark or flame may be used for display 
purposes unless specifically approved by the Building Inspector. 

 
B. Shielding from Residential Districts:  Any lighting used to illuminate signs shall be directed 

away from and shall be shielded from any adjacent residential zoning districts and shall not 
adversely affect driver visibility on adjacent public thoroughfares. 

 
85.02.03   Identification of Sign Erector: 
 
A. Sign Erector's Imprint: Every sign, other than temporary signs herein defined, must carry 

the identification of the Sign Erector, in clearly legible letters. 
 
B. Re-hanging: In case of re-hanging or re-erection of any sign, the Sign Erector must place 

his/her identification and the date of the re-hanging on the sign. 
 
85.02.04  Measurement of Signs: 
 
A. Sign Area:  For the purpose of this Chapter, the area of the sign shall include the total area 

within any circle, triangle, rectangle or other geometric shape enclosing the extreme limits 
of writing, representation, emblem or any similar figure, together with any frame or other 
material forming an integral part of the display or used to differentiate such sign from the 
background against which it is placed, and is further calculated as follows: 

 
1. Single Face Sign:  For a single face sign, the area shall be computed as the total 

exposed exterior surface in square feet.   
 

2. Multi-faced Signs:  When the sign has two or more faces, the area of all faces shall 
be included in computing the area of the sign. 

 
 Exceptions: 
 

1. For a sign that has two or more faces placed back to back, the area shall be 
computed as one-half the total exposed exterior surface area in square feet. 

 



  9

2. For a sign that has two or more faces so arranged that the faces are greater 
than 24 inches from one another or such sign with any two faces that form a 
"V" is greater than 15 degrees, the area shall be computed as a single face 
sign. 

 
3. Wall Signs:  When a sign consists solely of writing, representation, emblems, logos, 

or any other figure or similar character which is painted or mounted on the wall of a 
building or a self-supporting wall or fence, without distinguishing border, the area of 
such sign shall be computed as if it were framed by a border consisting of horizontal 
and vertical lines touching the outer limits of the sign and extending not more than 
one foot from smaller sign elements.  However, in no instance shall there be any line 
having a dimension of less than one foot. 

 
B. Sign Height:  The height of the sign is measured from the ground to the highest point of the 

sign from the ground. 
 
85.02.05   Allowable Signs: 
 
A. The Zoning District Regulations and Table 85.02.05 set forth the allowable signs in each 

zoning district.  These are in addition to the signage that is exempted from permits by 
Section 85.01.04 A. 

 
B. Nothing in this Chapter shall be construed so as to prohibit ideological or non-commercial 

advertising on any sign on which commercial advertising is allowed. 
 
C. Specific Zoning District Regulations 
 

1. R-1 and R-2 Districts:  Signs in single-family and two-family districts shall be 
allowed as follows: 

 
a. For Special Approval Uses listed in Chapter 39, Section 10.30.00 of the 

Troy City Code:  One sign not to exceed 100 square feet in area. 
 
b. For Subdivision Entrances:  One sign not to exceed 100 square feet in 

area. 
 
c. For Subdivisions Under Development:  One sign not to exceed 100 square 

feet in area is allowed until such time as a certificate of occupancy is issued 
for all homes in the subdivision. 

 
2. R-M, RI-T, CR-1 and C-F Districts:  Signs in Multiple Family Housing or Cluster 

Housing, and Community Facility Developments shall be allowed as follows: 
 

a. One sign not to exceed 100 square feet in area. 
 
b. One additional sign not to exceed 36 square feet in area. 
 
c. No sign shall be located closer than 30 feet to any property line of an 

adjacent R-1 or R-2 District. 
 

3. All O and R-C Districts:  Signs in Office and Research Center districts shall be 
allowed as follows: 



  10

 
a. One wall sign for each building, not to exceed 10% of the area of the front 

of the structure, to a maximum size of 200 square feet in area.  
 
b. One ground sign for each building in accordance with Table 85.02.05. 
 
c. One additional ground sign for each building, not to exceed thirty-six 

square feet in area, if the site fronts on a major thoroughfare. 
 
d. Each tenant on the ground floor may have one wall sign, which shall not 

exceed 20 square feet in area.  The sign must be located on the face of the 
area occupied by the tenant.   

 
e. No sign shall be located closer than 30 feet to any property line of an 

adjacent R-1 or R-2 district. 
 

4. B-1, B-2, B-3 and H-S Districts:  Signs for each business development in the 
Commercial Districts shall be allowed as follows: 

 
a. One ground sign in accordance with Table 85.02.05.   

 
b. One additional ground sign, not to exceed thirty-six square feet in area, if 

the site fronts on a major thoroughfare. 
 
c. The required setback for ground signs from adjacent residentially zoned 

property shall be the same as for buildings within the zoning district.  
 

d. Any number of wall signs, such that the total combined area of all wall signs 
for each tenant shall not exceed 10% of the front area of the structure or 
tenant area.  Wall signs must be located on the face of the area that is 
occupied by the tenant. 

 
5. M-1 Districts:  Signs for each M-1 development shall be allowed as follows:   

 
a. One ground sign in accordance with Table 85.02.05.   
 
b. One additional ground sign, not to exceed thirty-six square feet in area, if 

the site fronts on a major thoroughfare. 
 
c. One wall sign for each building, not to exceed 10% of the area of the front 

of the structure, up to a maximum of 100 square feet. 
 
d. One wall sign, not to exceed 20 square feet in area, for each tenant in 

multi-tenant buildings. Tenant signs must be located on the face of the area 
that is occupied by the tenant. 

 
e.  One additional ground sign, provided it complies with all of the following: 

 
1. The sign is set back a minimum of 200 feet from any street right-of-

way. 
 
2. The sign is located at least 1,000 feet from any sign exceeding 100 



  11

square feet in area. 
 
3. The sign does not exceed 300 square feet in area.  
 
4. The sign does not exceed 25 feet in height. 

 
f. A dealership within a Planned Auto Center shall be allowed the following 

additional signage:   
 

1. One ground sign, in accordance with Table 85.02.05. 
 
2. Two wall signs, with each sign being 20 square feet in area or less. 

 
g. No sign shall be located closer than 50 feet to any property line of an 

adjacent R-1 or R-2 district. 
 

TABLE 85.02.05 
STANDARDS FOR GROUND SIGNS 

Zoning District Minimum Setbacks* Maximum Height Maximum Area 
All R and C-F 10 ft. from Street 12 ft. See Section 

85.02.05,C,1 & 
85.02.05,C,2 

0 ft. - 20 ft. 10 ft. 50 sq. ft. 
20 ft. - 30 ft 20 ft. 100 sq. ft. 

All B, H-S, O, R-C and 
Planned Auto Centers in 
M-1 

30 ft. + 25 ft. 200 sq. ft. 
M-1 10 ft  12 ft. 100 sq. ft. Max.  

See Section 
85.02.05,C,5,e 

* Indicates setback from existing street right-of-way, or from planned right-of-way (Master 
Thoroughfare Plan), whichever is greater. 
 
85.03.00  General Exceptions:  The regulations of this Chapter shall be subject to the 
following exceptions. 
 
85.03.01   Special Event Signs 
 
A.  Signs advertising a Special Event may be allowed for events that include, but are not 

limited to, grand openings, vehicle shows/displays, craft shows, benefit rummage/bake 
sales and festivals, as long as a Special Event Sign permit is issued.  The application for a 
Special Event sign permit shall be submitted to the Building Inspector, and shall include 
the following:   

 
1. Plans indicating the following: 

 
a. Site layout (building location, parking, etc.) 
 
b. Number, size and location of proposed signs, including banners, flags, cold 

air balloons, and other forms of signage. 
 

2. Documentation detailing the purpose of the event and desired dates for the 
placement of the Special Event signs.   



  12

 
3. If the applicant for the Special Event Sign permit is not the property owner of the 

site where the signage is proposed to be located, then the written approval of 
property owner must be submitted with the application.  

 
4. The required application fee, as set forth in Chapter 60 of the Troy City Code.   

 
Exception:  All fees for a Special Event sign application shall be waived for all non-
profit applicants who provide satisfactory proof of the non-profit status to the 
Building Inspector. 
 

B. A Special Event Sign permit shall be issued for not more than seven (7) consecutive days 
within any twelve (12) month period. 

 
C. No more than four off-site signs related to a Special Event may be permitted.  Such off-site 

signs shall each be limited to six (6) square feet in area.  Applicant must also submit 
written approval from the owners of properties where the off-site Special Event Signs are 
proposed to be located.  This permission must be provided prior to the issuance of a 
permit. 

 
85.03.02   Temporary Signs  
 

 
A. Temporary signs include, but are not limited to the following:    

 
1. For a single dwelling or building or vacant land: an on-site real estate sign, 

advertising the premise for sale, rent or lease.  
 
2. For a single dwelling or building or vacant land: an off-site real estate sign for the 

purpose of providing direction to another premise that is offered for sale, rent, or 
lease. 

 
3. An on-site sign advertising an on-going garage, estate or yard sale. 
 
4. An off-site sign for the purpose of providing direction to another premise that is 

having a garage, estate or yard sale, as long as the dates of the sale are clearly 
indicated on the sign. 

 
5. Non-commercial signs, which contain non-commercial informational or directional 

messages.  
 
6. Political signs. 
 
7. Holiday or other seasonal signs.  
 
8. Construction signs for buildings under construction.  
 

 
B. All temporary signs must comply with all of the following regulations:   

 
1. Size of Temporary Signs: The total aggregate sign area of all temporary signs on 

any one site shall not exceed twelve (12) square feet.  The maximum size of 



  13

individual temporary signs shall not exceed six square feet in area.  Temporary 
signs shall not be higher than forty-two (42) inches above average mean grade of 
the yard on which it is placed. 

 
Exceptions: 

 
1. For uses other than one and two family dwellings, signs for buildings under 

construction shall be a maximum size of 10% of the square foot area of the 
front of the structure, and not more than 10 feet in height. 

 
2. One sign advertising the sale or lease of vacant land, when the parcel 

exceeds two acres in area, shall be allowed to have a size equal to 15 
square feet of sign area per acre of land or 15 square feet of sign area 
per 100 lineal feet of thoroughfare frontage.  In no case shall the sign be 
allowed to exceed 100 square feet of sign area or be more than 10 feet in 
height. 

 
 

2. Location of Temporary Signs: 
 
a. Temporary signs shall not be attached to any utility pole or be located 

within any public right-of-way 
 
b. Temporary signs shall not be located closer than twenty (20) feet to the 

edge of the traveled portion of the roadway and shall not be located in a 
dedicated right-of-way.  

 
c. Temporary signs shall not be erected in such a manner that they will or 

reasonably may be expected to interfere with, obstruct, confuse or 
mislead traffic.   

 
d. Temporary signs cannot be placed or constructed so as to create a 

hazard of any kind.   
 
e. Prior to the erection or placement of a temporary sign, the permission of 

the property owner where the sign is to be located must be secured.      
 

3. Time Limitations for Temporary Signs:  Each temporary sign shall be removed 
within 60 days of placement. 

 
  Exceptions 
 

1. Where there is a valid contract for work on the premises that exceeds sixty 
(60) days, then temporary signs shall be permitted on the premises for the 
length of the contract. 

 
85.03.03   Signs on Motor Vehicles  
 
A. No person, corporation, partnership or other legal business entity shall stand or park a 

motor vehicle on public or private property in the City of Troy for the purpose of advertising 
same "for sale" or "for trade". 
 



  14

Exceptions: 
 

1. Properly licensed auto dealerships and properly licensed used car lots. 
 

2. The owner of a motor vehicle who places a “for sale” or “for trade” sign on or within 
the vehicle provided: 

 
a. The vehicle is located only on the vehicle owner’s residential property; and 

 
b. The owner of the vehicle displays a clearly visible sign on the vehicle 

indicating the owner’s name and address; and 
 

c. Not more than one vehicle is displayed on the residential property. 
 

3. The owner of non-residential property who places or allows to be placed a “for 
sale” or “for trade” sign on or within the vehicle provided: 

 
a. Not more than one vehicle is displayed on the nonresidential property; and 

 
b. The owner of the vehicle displays a clearly visible sign indicating the 

nonresidential property owner’s consent to the display of the vehicle. 
 
B. A displayed message containing a phone number in or on a parked motor vehicle that is 

or was visible constitutes a presumption that it is or was for the purpose of offering the 
vehicle for sale or trade. 

 
C. Proof that the vehicle described in the complaint was parked in violation of this Section, 

together with proof that the defendant named in the complaint was at the time of the cited 
parking the registered owner of the vehicle constitutes a presumption that the registered 
owner is responsible for the violation. 
 

85.03.04 Flags 
 
A. The display of the flag of the United States of America or other political subdivision thereof 

shall not be regulated by this Chapter when attached to a structure or standardized 
flagpole. 

 
B. The display of not more than one flag, such as but not limited to, corporate, civic, social, 

cultural, church or club group shall be permitted if flown in conjunction with an American 
flag of equal or greater size. 

 
Section 2.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the time this 
Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be consummated under and 
according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This 
ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent 
prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended 
by this ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date 
of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the 
effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date 



  15

of this ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time 
of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 3.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid or 
unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 4.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, 
whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ 
day of _____________, ____. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                      Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 3 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 3 – 
Administrative Service, Section 1.141(6), of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 3, Section 1.141(6), shall be amended as follows 
 
1.141(6) A City of Troy Building Department Inspector shall have authority to issue and 
serve upon a person an appearance ticket if he/she has reasonable cause to believe 
that the person has committed a violation of any of the following provisions of the Troy 
City Code. 
 
Chapter 2: House Numbering and Street Naming 
Chapter 16: Garbage and Rubbish 
Chapter 18: City Water Utility 
Chapter 19: City Sewer Service 
Chapter 20: Water and Sewer Rates 
Chapter 39: Zoning 
Chapter 47: House Trailers and Trailer Courts 
Chapter 48: Litter 
Chapter 64: Gasoline Stations 
Chapter 67: Dances and Dance Halls 
Chapter 68: Amusements and Recreation Places 
Chapter 69: Miscellaneous Licensed Businesses 
Chapter 70: Self Service Laundries and Dry Cleaners 
Chapter 71: Auto Wash 
Chapter 73: Drive-In Restaurant 
Chapter 79: General Building Regulations 
Chapter 79-A: One and Two Family Dwellings 
Chapter 81: Moving of Buildings 
Chapter 82: Property Maintenance Regulations 
Chapter 82-A: Rental and Dwelling Inspection and Enforcement 
Chapter 82-B: Dangerous Buildings 
Chapter 83: Fences 
Chapter 85: Signs 
Chapter 85-A. Political Signs 
Chapter 88: Nuisances 
Chapter 93: Fire and Explosives (provisions related to building codes) 
Chapter 97: Coin-Operated Amusement Devices and Arcades 
 
 
 



Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, ____. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 60 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 60, 
Section 60.03, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 60, Section 60.03 – Fee Schedule, shall be amended by adding the 
following items: 
 
 

ITEM/SERVICE: FEE: 
Sign Permits (Chapter 85)  
Painted Wall Sign – under 100 square feet $75.00 
Painted Wall Sign – 101 – 200 square feet $100.00 
Painted Wall Sign – 201 – 300 square feet $100.00 
Attached Wall Sign – under 100 square feet $100.00 
Attached Wall Sign – 101 – 200 square feet $125.00 
Attached Wall Sign – 201 – 300 square feet $150.00 
Ground Sign – under 100 square feet $125.00 
Ground Sign – 101 – 200 square feet $150.00 
Ground Sign – 201 – 300 square feet $175.00 
Special Event Sign $30.00 
 
 
 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 



accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, ____. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 
 



1 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL 
CHAPTER 78 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as repeal of Chapter 78 of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Repeal 
 
Chapter 78 – Signs of the Code of the City of Troy shall be repealed in its entirety. 

 
 

Chapter 78 
 

Signs 
 
1.00  Short Title 
 
  This Ordinance shall be known as and may be cited as the City of Troy Sign Ordinance. 
 
2.00  General Provisions 
 
2.01  Findings and Purpose: 
 
  It is hereby determined that proliferation of signs in the City is unduly distracting to motorists 

and pedestrians, creates a traffic hazard, and reduces the effectiveness of signs needed to 
direct and warn the public.  It is also determined that the appearance of the City is marred 
by proliferation of signs.  It is also determined that proliferation of signs restricts light and air. 
 It is also determined that proliferation of signs negatively affects property values.  It is also 
determined that proliferation of signs results in an inappropriate use of land.  The purpose of 
this Ordinance is to control the occurrence and size of signs in order to reduce the 
aforementioned negative effects.  It is also determined that the signs of least value to 
people within the City are those which carry commercial messages other than the 
advertisement of any product, service, event, person, institution or business located on the 
premises where the sign is located or indicates the sale or rental of such premises.  It is also 
determined that the regulations contained in this Ordinance are the minimum amount of 
regulation necessary to achieve its purposes.  It is also determined that restrictions in this 
Ordinance on the size of signs, their height and placement on real estate, are the minimum 
amount necessary to achieve its purposes. 

 
2.02  Definitions: For the purpose of this chapter, certain terms, words and tenses used herein, 

shall be interpreted or defined as follows: 
 
2.02.01 Sign: A sign means any structure or wall or other object used for the display of any message.  

Nothing in this ordinance shall be construed so as to prohibit ideological or noncommercial 
advertising on any sign on which commercial advertising is permitted. 

 
2.02.02 Roof Sign: A sign which is erected, constructed or maintained upon, and projects above or beyond 

the roof or parapet. 
 



2 

2.02.03 Ground Sign: A free standing sign supported by one or more uprights, braces, or pylons located in 
or upon the ground and not attached to any building. 

 
2.02.04 Projecting Sign: A sign which is affixed to any building or part thereof, or structure, which extends 

beyond the building wall or parts thereof, or  structure by more than twelve (12) inches. 
 
(Rev. 04-24-95) 
 



3 

 
2.02.05 Wall Sign: A sign attached to, painted on, or placed flat against the exterior wall or surface of any 

building, no portion of which projects more than 12 inches from the wall, and which may not 
project above the roof or parapet line. The roof line means the vertical distance measured 
from the established grade to the highest point of the roof surface for flat roofs, the deck line 
of mansard roofs, and the average height between eaves and ridge boards for gable, hip 
and gambrel roofs. 

 
2.02.06 Building Inspector: The Director of Building and Zoning or his authorized representative. 
 
  (Rev. 08-02-99) 
 
2.02.07 Department: The Building Department of the City of Troy, its officers, inspectors and other 

employees. 
 
2.02.08 Owner: A person, firm, partnership, association or corporation and/or their legal successors. 
 
2.02.09 Person: Any individual firm, partnership, association or corporation and their legal successors. 
 
2.02.10 Sign Erector: Any person engaged in the business of erecting, altering, or removing signs on a 

contractual or hourly basis. 
 
2.02.11 Board of Appeals: Board of Appeals means the Building Code Board of Appeals. 
 
  (Rev. 07-19-99) 
 
3.00  Signs Not Requiring Permits: 
 
  No erection permit shall be required for signs enumerated as follows by this paragraph.  

Such exemptions, however, shall not be construed to relieve the owner of the sign from 
responsibility for its proper location, erection, and maintenance. 

 
3.01  Small Signs: Any sign erected on a premise which is not more than two square feet in area. 
 
3.02  Sale, Rent or Lease Signs: Signs not to exceed six (6) square feet in area used to advertise 

real estate or garage sales and directional signs for such sales as further described below 
and limited to a height of 42".  Signs located in a corner clearance shall not exceed 30" in 
height. 

 
  A. A real estate sign advertising a premise for sale, rent or lease, for a single dwelling 

or building or vacant land. 
 
  B. A real estate sign for the purpose of providing direction may be located on private 

property on Sundays, Tuesdays and Saturdays with permission from the property 
owner. 

 
  C. A garage sale sign having the dates of the sale clearly indicated for the purpose of 

providing direction may be located on private property on Thursday, Friday, 
Saturday and Sundays with permission from the property owner. 

   (Rev. 06-07-99) 



4 

 
3.03  Street Signs: Signs erected by the City, County, State or Federal Government for street 

direction or traffic control. 
 
3.04  Non-commercial Signs: Signs containing non-commercial informational or directional 

messages which do not exceed six square feet in area. 
 
3.05  Interior Building Signs: Signs located on the interior of buildings. 
 
3.06  Signs Not Visible From Rights of Way: Signs not visible from any adjacent right-of-way 

which do not exceed thirty-six square feet. 
 
3.07  Corporate Flags: Not more than one corporate flag when flown in conjunction with the 

American or State flag. 
 
  (Rev. 11-27-95) 
 
4.00  Administration 
 
4.01  Enforcement: This Chapter shall be administered and enforced by the Building Inspector as 

provided for in Chapter 1 of the Troy City Code. 
 
4.02  Permit Required: It shall be unlawful for any person to erect, re-erect, alter, or relocate any 

sign unless a permit shall have been first obtained from the Building Inspector, except as 
provided in Section 03.00 and a permit fee paid in accordance with the schedule adopted by 
resolution of the City Council. 

 
4.03  Application: Applications for sign permits shall be made upon forms provided by the Building 

Department for this purpose and shall contain the following information: 
 
4.03.01 Name, address and telephone number of applicant. 
 
4.03.02 Location of the building, structure, or lot to which the sign is to be attached or erected. 
 
4.03.03 Position of the sign in relation to nearby buildings, structures, property lines, and rights-of-way 

existing or proposed. 
 
4.03.04 Two copies of the plans and specifications and method of construction and attachment to the 

building or in the ground. 
 
4.03.05 Copy of stress sheets and calculations, if deemed necessary, showing the structure as designed for 

dead load and wind pressure in accordance with the regulations adopted by the City of 
Troy. 

 
4.03.06 Name and address of the sign erector. 
 
(04-24-95) 
 
4.03.07 Insurance policy as required herein. 
 
4.03.08 Such other information as the Building Inspector may require to show full compliance with this and 

other applicable laws of the City of Troy and the State of Michigan. 



5 

 
4.03.09 When the public safety so requires, the application containing the aforesaid material shall, in 

addition, bear the certificate or seal of a registered structural or civil engineer as a condition 
to the issuance of a permit. 

 
4.03.10 Indicate the zoning district that the sign is to be located in. 
 
4.04  Insurance Requirement: Permits may be issued to sign erectors only under the following 

conditions. 
 
4.04.01 Insurance Certificates: Before a permit is issued for the erection of a sign, the installing company 

shall submit for filing with the Building Department, a Certificate of Insurance, approved by 
the City Attorney, for Public Liability in the amount of One Hundred Thousand ($100,000) 
Dollars for injuries to one person and Three Hundred Thousand ($300,000) Dollars for injury 
to more than one person, and Property Damage insurance in the amount of Twenty-Five 
Thousand ($25,000) Dollars for damage to any property due to the actions of himself or any 
of his agents or employees. 

 
4.04.02 Lapsing of Insurance:  At any time the insurance of any sign erector is permitted to lapse, his right 

to obtain permits shall automatically be revoked.  
 
4.04.03 Notification of Change: A sign erector shall notify the Building Department of any change in 

address, and if a firm or corporation, an change in ownership or management if other than 
that indicated on the Insurance Certificates. 

 
4.04.04 Registration Required:  Sign erectors shall be registered with the City of Troy; registrations shall 

expire April 1st of each year.  Registration fee shall be established by a schedule adopted 
by resolution of the City Council. 

 
5.00  Permit Fees:  Permit fees shall be determined based on size, type and height according to 

the following schedule: 
 
     WALL SIGNS     GROUND SIGNS 

  Painted on wall Structurally Attached 
AREA  
 
Under 100 sq. ft. $  75.00   $ 100.00    $125.00 
100 to 200 sq. ft.   100.00      125.00      150.00 
200 to 300 sq. ft.    100.00       150.00      175.00 
___________________________________________________________________________________  

 
  EXCEPTION:   Special Event Signs $30.00 per event. 
 
  (Rev. 10-6-97) 
 
6.00  Construction Requirements 
 
6.01  General Provisions: 
 
6.01.01 Material Requirement:  All signs shall be designed and constructed in conformity to the provisions 

for materials, loads, and stresses of the latest adopted edition of the B.O.C.A. Code and 
requirements of this Chapter. 



6 

 
6.01.02 Fastenings:  All signs must be erected in such a manner and with such materials to remain safe 

and secure during the period of use and all bolts, cables, and other parts of such signs shall 
be kept painted and free from corrosion. Any defect due to the fault of the erector shall be 
repaired by the erector. 

 
6.01.03 Fire Escapes: No signs of any kind shall be attached to or placed upon a building in such a manner 

as to obstruct any fire escape. 
 
6.01.04 Support Location: No pole, cable or support of any nature shall be placed on any publicly owned 

property, street right-of-way, or proposed street right-of-way. 
 
6.01.05 Flashing Signs: Flashing or intermittent illumination of signs shall be prohibited. 
 
6.01.06 Changeable Message Signs: The message change cycle of a changeable message sign shall be 

not less than one minute per message, except in a combined time and temperature sign 
where the change cycle shall not be less that 30 seconds. 

 
6.01.07 Revolving Signs: Signs that revolve shall make no more than four complete revolutions per minute. 
 
6.01.08 Traffic Interference: No advertising device shall be erected or maintained which simulates or 

imitates in size, color, lettering, or design any traffic sign or signal or other word, phrase, 
symbol, or character in such a manner as to interfere with, mislead, or confuse traffic. 

 
6.01.09 Rehanging: In case of rehanging or re-erection of any sign, the erector must place his identification 

and the date on the sign. 
 
6.01.10 Proximity to Electrical Conductors: No sign shall be erected so that any part including cables, guys, 

etc. will be within six feet of any electrical conductor, electric light pole, street lamp, traffic 
light, or other public utility pole or standard. 

 
6.01.11 Sanitation: Property surrounding any ground sign shall be kept clean, sanitary, free from obnoxious 

and offensive substances, free from weeds, rubbish, and inflammable material. 
 
6.01.12 Responsibility of Compliance: The owner of any property on which a sign is placed, and the person 

maintaining said sign, are equally responsible for the condition of the sign and the area in 
the vicinity thereof. 

 
6.01.13 Erector's Imprint: Signs of every class must carry the identification of the sign erector in clearly 

legible letters. 
 
6.02  Compliance Certificate Required: 
  (Rev. 04-24-95) 
 
6.02.01 Compliance Certification: All signs shall be inspected at original installation; if found to comply with 

this chapter, the sign shall be issued a certificate of compliance. 
 
6.02.02 Inspections: The Director of Building and Zoning shall cause existing signs to be inspected if 

deemed necessary by him to determine continuation of compliance with the provisions of 
this chapter. 

 
  (Rev. 7-12-99) 



7 

 
6.02.03 Concealed Work:  In cases where fastenings are to be installed and enclosed in such a manner that 

the Building Inspector cannot easily remove material to see the fastenings and material 
used, the sign erector must advise the Building Inspector so that the inspection may be 
made before concealment. 

 
6.02.04 Removal of Signs:  Should any sign be found unsafe, insecure, improperly constructed or not in 

accordance with the requirements of this Chapter, the erector and/or owner shall be 
required to make the sign safe, secure and otherwise in compliance with the requirements 
of this Chapter within 30 days of notice.  Failure to comply shall result in an order to remove 
the sign within 48 hours from the time of notification in writing. 

 
  Exception:  Existing signs determined to be unsafe and an immediate hazard to health or 

safety shall be removed or repaired at the owner's expense within 48 hours of notification. 
 
6.03  Illuminated Signs: 
 
6.03.01 Illumination:  No sign shall be illuminated by other than approved electrical devices and shall be 

installed in accordance with the requirements of the regulations adopted by the City of Troy. 
 No open spark of flame may be used for display purposes unless specifically approved by 
the Building Inspector. 

 
6.03.02 Shielding from Residential Districts:  Any lighting for the illumination of signs shall be directed away 

from and shall be shielded from any adjacent residential zoning districts and shall not 
adversely affect driver visibility on adjacent public thoroughfares. 

 
7.00  Regulations for Permitted Signs 
 
  General Provisions:  The following conditions shall apply to all signs erected or located in 

any zoning district. 
 
7.01.01 Signs in Right-of-Way:  No sign shall be located in, project into, or overhang a public right-of-way or 

dedicated public easement. 
 
  Exceptions: 
 
  A) Signs established and maintained by the City, County, State, or Federal 

Governments. 
 
  B) Banners, advertising civic events may be permitted on lighting poles within the 

median of Big Beaver Road, between Rochester Road and Cunningham Drive, for a 
period not to exceed thirty days, subject to the approval of the City Manager. 

 
   (Rev. 07-17-00) 
 
  C) Residential development identification signs not more than five feet in height and not 

more than 50 square feet in area located within the median of boulevard entrance 
streets subject to City Council approval of design and materials and further subject 
to the execution of an agreement with the City of Troy covering liability and 
maintenance of the sign. The height of such signs shall further be subject to the 
corner clearance requirements of Figure 7.01.01. 

 
   (Rev. 11-04-02) 



8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(Rev. 11-05-01) 
 
7.01.02 Signs Overhanging Intersections:  No sign above a height of 30 inches shall be located within, 

project into, or overhang the triangular area formed at the intersection of any two street 
right-of-way lines (existing or proposed) by a straight line drawn between said right-of-way 
lines at a distance along each line of 25 feet from their point of intersection. 

 
7.01.03 Construction Signs:  A building under construction may have one sign on the site of construction.  

The sign may not exceed 10% of the square foot area of the front of the structure with a 
maximum size of 200 square feet. 

 
7.01.04 Roof Projecting Signs:  Roof signs and projecting signs are prohibited. 
 
  Vacant Land Signs: 
 
  (a) One sign not to exceed six square feet in area on parcels of vacant land two acres 

in size or less. 
 
  (b) Signs on parcels of vacant land exceeding two acres shall not exceed 15 square 

feet of sign per acre of land or 15 square feet of sign per 100 lineal feet of 
thoroughfare frontage, not to exceed 100 square feet of sign area.  Signs shall be 
spaced 200 feet or more apart. 

 
7.01.06 For Sale or Lease Signs:  For sale or lease signs shall be removed within 10 days of sale or lease 

or within one year of date of installation, whichever occurs first. 
 
7.01.07 Neon Tubes: Installation of neon tubing used as borders or accent strips on the exterior of any 

building shall be prohibited. 
 
  (10-19-98) 
 



9 

8.00  Measurement of Signs: 
 
8.01.00 Sign Area:  For the purpose of this Chapter, the area of the sign shall include the total area within 

any circle, triangle, rectangle or other geometric shape enclosing the extreme limits of 
writing, representation, emblem or any similar figure, together with any frame or other 
material forming an integral part of the display or used to differentiate such sign from the 
background against which it is placed. 

 
8.01.01 Single Face Sign:  For a single face sign, the area shall be computed as the total exposed exterior 

surface in square feet.   
 
8.01.02 Multi-faced Signs:  When the sign  has two or more faces, the area of all faces shall be included in 

computing the area of the sign. 
 
  Exceptions: 
 
  1. For a sign that has two or more faces placed back to back, the area shall be 

computed as one-half the total exposed exterior surface area in square feet. 
 
  2. For a sign that has two or more faces so arranged that the faces are greater than 24 

inches from one another or such sign with any two faces that form a "V" is greater 
than 15 degrees, the area shall be computed as a single face sign. 

 
8.01.03 Wall Signs:  When a sign consists solely of writing, representation, emblems, logos, or any other 

figure or similar character which is painted or mounted on the wall of a building or a self-
supporting wall or fence, without distinguishing border, the area of such sign shall be 
computed as if it were framed by a border consisting of horizontal and vertical lines touching 
the outer limits of the sign and extending not more than one foot from smaller sign 
elements.  However, in no instance shall there be any line having a dimension of less than 
one foot. 

 
  (Rev. 04-24-95) 
 
8.02  Sign Height:  The height of the sign is measured from the ground to the highest point of the 

sign from the ground. 
 
9.00  Schedule of Sign Regulations: 
 
9.01   Permitted Signs:  Except as otherwise provided herein, signs shall only be permitted 

according to the following Tables, and Zoning District Regulations. 
 



10 

STANDARDS FOR GROUND SIGNS 
 
 TABLE A - GENERAL PROVISIONS  
 
 Zoning    Minimum  Maximum   Maximum 
 District    Setbacks  Height    Area 
___________________________________________________________________________________  

 
 All R and C-F   10 ft. from  l2 ft.    See 09.02.01 & 
     Street       09.02.02 
___________________________________________________________________________________  

 
 All B, H-S, O, 
 R-C and Planned  O*   See Table B   See Table B 
 Auto Centers in 
 M-1 
___________________________________________________________________________________  

 
 M-    10 ft   12 ft.    100 sq. ft. Max. 
     from street*      See 09.02.05 
     50 ft. from 
     "R" Dist. 
___________________________________________________________________________________  

 
 
 TABLE B - HEIGHT AND AREA REQUIREMENTS IN "O"  "B", "H-S",  
 "R-C" AND PLANNED AUTO CENTER DISTRICT  
 
 Setback Range   Height Maximum   Area Maximum 
 
 O ft. - 20 ft.    10 ft.     50 sq. ft. 
 20 ft. - 30 ft    20 ft.     100 sq. ft. 
 30 ft. +     25 ft.     200 sq. ft. 
___________________________________________________________________________________  

 
  * Indicates setback from existing street right-of-way, or 
    from planned right-of-way (Master Thoroughfare Plan), 
    whichever is greater. 

 
(Rev. 04-24-95) 



11 

 
9.02  Zoning District Regulations: 
 
9.02.01 R-1 and R-2 Districts:  Signs in single-family and two-family districts shall be permitted as follows: 
 
  A. Dwelling Units:  Not more than one of each sign described in Section 3.02. 
 
  B. Special Approval Uses Listed in Chapter 39, Section 10.30.00 and Subdivision 

Entrances:  One sign not to exceed 100 square feet in area. 
 
  C. Subdivision Under Development:  Signs in a subdivision being developed shall not 

exceed 200 square feet in area, and shall be spaced a minimum of 200 feet apart. 
 
9.02.02 RM, RIT, CR-1 and CF Districts:  Signs in Multiple Family Housing or Cluster Housing, and 

Community Facility Developments shall be permitted as follows: 
 
  A. One sign not to exceed 100 square feet in area. 
 
  B. One additional sign not to exceed 36 square feet in area. 
 
  C. No sign shall be located closer than 30 feet to any property line of an adjacent R-1 

or R-2 District. 
 
9.02.03 All O and R-C Districts:  Each building shall be permitted signs as follows: 
 
  A. One wall sign for each building, not to exceed 10% of the area of the front of the 

structure to a maximum size of 200 square feet in area.  
 
  B. One ground sign in accordance with tables "A" and "B". 
 
   Exception:  No sign shall be located closer than 30 feet to any property line of 

adjacent residential district. 
 
  C. One ground sign not to exceed thirty-six square feet in area when the site fronts a 

major thoroughfare. 
 
  D. Each tenant may have one wall sign on the ground floor not to exceed 20 square 

feet in area.  The sign must be located on the face of the area occupied by the 
tenant.  Individual ground signs for each tenant within an office building  shall not 
be permitted. 

 
9.02.04 B-1, B-2, B-3 and H-S Districts:  Each business development (one or more uses within a building 

or buildings using common parking facilities) shall be permitted signs as follows: 
 
  A. Ground Sign:  One ground sign in accordance with Tables "A" and "B" above plus 

one not to exceed thirty-six square feet in area when the site fronts on a Major 
Throughfare. 

 
   Exception: The Required setback for ground signs from adjacent residentially 

zoned property shall be the same as for buildings within the zoning district. 
(Rev. 04-24-95) 



12 

 
  B. Wall Sign:  The total combined area of all  wall signs for each tenant shall not 

exceed 10% of the front area of structure or tenant area.  The signs must be 
located on the face of an area occupied by the tenant. 

 
9.02.05 M-1 Districts:  Each M-1 development shall be permitted signs as follows. 
 
  A. Ground Signs:  One ground sign in accordance with Tables "A" and "B" plus one 

not to exceed thirty-six square feet in area when the site fronts on a Major 
Thoroughfare. 

 
  B. Wall Signs:  One wall sign for each building not to exceed 10% of the area of the 

front of the structure to a maximum of 100 square feet, plus one wall sign for each 
tenant, not to exceed 20 square feet in area. Signs must be located on the face of 
an area occupied by the tenant. 

 
  C. In M-1 districts, in addition to paragraph  A. & B., an M-1 Site may be permitted an 

additional ground sign, provided: 
 
   1. The sign is set back a minimum of 200 feet from any street right-of-way. 
 
   2. The sign is located at least 1,000 feet from any sign exceeding 100 square 

feet in area. 
 
   3. The sign does not exceed 300 square feet in area.  
 
   4. The sign does not exceed 25 feet in height. 
 
  D. In M-1 Districts a dealership within a Planned Auto Center shall be permitted signs 

as follows: 
 
   1. One Ground Sign in accordance with Tables "A" and "B" above. 
 
   2. Two additional signs not to exceed 20 square feet in area each. 
 
10.00  Non-Conforming Signs: 
 
10.01  Intent:  It is the intent of this Chapter to encourage eventual elimination of signs that, as a 

result of the adoption of this Chapter, become non-conforming. It is considered as much a 
subject of health, safety, and welfare  as the prohibition of new signs in violation of this 
Chapter.  It is the intent, therefore, to administer this Chapter to realize the removal of 
illegal non-conforming signs and to avoid any unreasonable invasion of established private 
property rights. 

 
10.02  Continuance:  A non-conforming sign may be continued, and shall be maintained in good 

condition, but shall not be:  
 
10.02.01 Replaced by another non-conforming sign. 
 
10.02.02 Structurally altered so as to prolong the life of the sign. 
 
(Rev. 04-24-95) 



13 

 
10.02.03 Expanded. 
 
10.02.04 Re-established after damage or destruction if the estimated expense of reconstruction 

exceeds 50% of the estimated replacement cost. 
 
11.00.00 Signs on Motor Vehicles 
 
  (Rev. 04-19-99) 
 
11.01.00 No person, corporation, partnership or other legal business entity shall stand or park a 

motor vehicle on public or private property, in the City of Troy, for the purpose of 
advertising same "for sale" or "for trade". 

 
  (Rev. 04-19-99) 
 
11.01.01 Exceptions: 
 
  A. This section shall not apply to properly licensed auto dealerships and properly 

licensed used car lots. 
 
  B. This section shall not apply to the owner of a motor vehicle who places a “for sale” 

or “for trade” sign on or within the vehicle provided: 
 
   1. The vehicle is located only on the vehicle owner’s residential property, and; 
 
   2. The owner of the vehicle displays a clearly visible sign on the vehicle 

indicating the owner’s name and address. 
 
   3. Not more than one vehicle is displayed on the residential property. 
 
   (Rev. 08-02-99) 
 
  C. This section shall not apply to the owner of nonresidential property who places or 

allows to be placed a “for sale” or “for trade” sign on or within the vehicle provided: 
 
   1. Not more than one vehicle is displayed on the nonresidential property; and; 
 
   2. The owner of the vehicle displays a clearly visible sign indicating the 

nonresidential property owner’s consent to the display of the vehicle. 
 
  (Rev. 04-19-99) 
 
 
11.01.02 A sign containing a phone number in or on a parked motor vehicle which was visible 

constitutes a presumption that the sign was for the purpose of offering the vehicle for sale 
or trade. 

 
  (Rev. 04-19-99) 



14 

 
11.01.03 Proof that the vehicle described in the complaint was parked in violation of this Section, 

together with proof that the defendant named in the complaint was at the time of the 
parking, the registered owner of the vehicle, constitutes a presumption that the registered 
owner is responsible for the violation. 

 
  (Rev. 04-19-99) 
 
12.00  Appeals 
 
12.01  General:  Any person aggrieved by any decision, ruling or order from the Building 

Inspector, may appeal to the Building Code Board of Appeals. The Building Code Board of 
Appeals may grant a variance after a public hearing. The appeal shall be made by filing 
with the Building Department an application for hearing before the Building Code Board of 
Appeals specifying the grounds for appeal.  The Director of Building and Zoning shall 
transmit to the Building Code Board of Appeals all documents relating to the appeal. 

 
  Upon receipt of the Appeal Application from the Director of Building and Zoning, the City 

Administration shall by resolution establish a date of the Public Hearing which date shall 
respect the following requirements: 

 
  1. All owners of property within 300 feet of the property proposed to be the site of 

such sign shall be notified by U.S. Mail.  
 
  2. Said notice shall be postmarked no less than 14 days before the date of the Public 

Hearing. 
 
   (Rev. 07-19-99) 
 
12.02  Variances: The Building Code Board of Appeals has the power to grant specific variances 

from the requirements of this Chapter upon a showing that: 
 
  (Rev. 07-19-99) 
 
12.02.01 The variance would not be contrary to the public interest or general purpose and intent of 

this Chapter;  
 
12.02.02 The variance does not adversely affect properties in the immediate vicinity of the proposed 

sign; and 
 
12.02.03 The petitioner has a hardship or practical difficulty resulting from the unusual characteristics 

of the property that precludes reasonable use of the property. 
 
12.03  Duration of Variances:  No variance shall be given for a period greater than 15 years. All 

variances shall terminate upon alteration or reconstruction of more than 50% of the sign or 
at a date set by the Building Code Board of Appeals, whichever occurs first. 

 
  (Rev. 07-19-99) 
 
13.00  Penalties 

 



15 

 
13.01  General:  It shall be unlawful for any person to erect, construct, maintain, enlarge, alter, 

move, or convert any sign in the City of Troy, or cause or permit the same to be done, 
contrary to or in violation of any of the provisions of this Chapter.  Any person violating any 
of the provisions of this Chapter shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction of 
any such violation, shall be punishable with a fine of not more than $500 and not less than 
$50.  Any sign constituting an immediate hazard to health and safety is deemed a nuisance 
and may be removed by the Building Inspector at the expense of the owner of the sign. 

 
13.02  Signs in Public Right-of-Way:  In addition to the penalties prescribed in paragraph 13.01, 

any sign erected in violation of this section in a public right-of-way may be removed by the 
Building Inspector or his authorized representative and stored in a safe location for at least 
48 hours.  During this period of time the owner of the sign may obtain his sign upon request 
and payment of a fee of Fifty Dollars ($50) for each sign to cover the costs of removal and 
storage.  After 48 hours, the Building Inspector may dispose of the sign. 

 
14.00  SPECIAL EVENT SIGNS 
 
14.01  General: Special sign permit requests for events such as, but not limited to, grand 

openings, vehicle shows/displays, craft shows, benefit rummage/bake sales and festivals 
occurring on sites, which exceed the signage permitted in this Chapter, shall be eligible for 
a Special Event Sign Permit, subject to the following provisions: 

 
  1. Submittal of plans indicating the following: 
  
   a. Site layout (building location, parking, etc.) 
 
   b. Number, size and location of signs including banners, flags, cold air 

balloons, other forms of signage. 
 

  2. Provide documentation detailing the purpose of the event and desired dates, and 
written approval of property owner, if the applicant is not the owner. 

 
14.02  Special Event Sign permit shall be issued for no more than seven (7) consecutive days 

within any twelve (12) month period. 
 
14.03  No more than four off-site signs related to the event may be permitted.  Such off-site signs 

shall be limited to six (6) square feet in area.  Applicant must also submit written approval 
from the owners of properties proposed for off-site signs, prior to obtaining a permit. 

 
14.04  Any appeal from a determination of the Building Department relative to Special Event Signs 

shall be considered by the Building Code Board of Appeals, and shall be subject to the 
procedures and the fees as established by the Building Code Board of Appeals for Sign 
Variances. 

 
  Exception: All fees related to a variance requested by those submitting proof of non-profit 

status, shall be waived. 
 
  (Rev. 07-19-99) 
 
(All Section 14.00 - 10-6-97) 
 
 
 



16 

Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the time this 
Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be consummated under and according 
to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be 
construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may 
be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance with the 
provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, whichever 
shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a regular 
meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of 
_____________, ____. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                      Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 



1 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL 

CHAPTER 85-A OF THE CODE 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as repeal of Chapter 85-A of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Repeal 
 
Chapter 85-A – Political Signs of the Code of the City of Troy shall be repealed in its entirety. 

 
CHAPTER 85-A 

 
POLITICAL SIGNS 

 
1. Definitions 
 
 Unless it appears from the context that a different meaning is intended, the following words shall 

have the meanings given them in this section. 
 
 (a) "Director" means the Building Official or his authorized representative of the City of Troy. 
 
 (b) "Political Sign" means a sign whose message relates to: The election of a person to public 

office, or to a political party, or to a public issue, which shall be voted on at an election called 
by a public body.  Signs relating to an  expression of opinion may be included in this 
definition providing they are not signs as defined in Chapter 78. 

 
(Rev. 9-23-96) 

 
 (c) "Public Property" means all publicly-owned property, including streets, rights-of-way, 

easements, and everything affixed thereto and thereover. 
 
 (d) "Sign" means and includes any bill, poster, placard, handbill, flyer, painting, sign or other 

similar object in any form whatsoever which contains printed or written matter in words, 
symbols, or pictures, or in any combination thereof. 

 
2.  Measurement of Sign Area  
 
 For the purpose of this Chapter, for either single face or double face signs, the area of the sign shall 

be determined by calculating the outermost dimensions of any circle, triangle, rectangle or other 
geometric shape enclosing the extreme limits of writing, representation, emblem or any similar 
figure, together with any frame or other material forming an integral part of the display or used to 
differentiate such sign from the background against which it is placed.  For a sign so arranged that 
the faces are greater than twenty-four (24) inches from one another or such sign with any two (2) 
faces that form a "V" in plan and the angle of the "V" is greater than fifteen (15) degrees, the total 
area shall be computed as a single face sign. 

 
 (Rev. 2-1-99 - Effective April 6, 1999) 
 
3. Political Sign Control 



2 

 
 (a) Political signs may be erected in addition to all other signs permitted by Chapter 78 without 

a permit if they comply with the provisions of this section.  Permission shall be obtained from 
the property owners where signs are located. 

 
  (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
  
 (b) Uses:  Political signs shall be solely for the purpose of providing information relating to the 

election of a person to public office, or relating to a political party, or relating to a matter to 
be voted upon at an election called by a public body, or any other public issue or expression 
of opinion, and shall be permitted subject to the following conditions. 

 
  (1) Maximum Area and Number:  No more than two (2) political signs shall be placed on 

any parcel of real property in one ownership and the area of each sign shall not 
exceed two and one half (2.5) square feet.  Political Signs shall not be located closer 
than twenty (20) feet to the edge of the traveled portion of the roadway and not in a 
dedicated right-of-way.  Political signs shall be ground or wall signs, no ground sign 
shall be higher than thirty-six (36) inches above average mean grade of the yard on 
which it is placed.  

 
   (Rev 2-1-99 - Effective 4-6-99) 
 
 (2) No sign shall be erected or displayed earlier than thirty (30) days before an election or event 

to which it relates, and shall be removed within ten (10) calendar days after the event or 
election.  Signs that express an opinion unrelated to an election date are limited to a period 
of display not to exceed thirty (30) days in one (1) calendar year on any parcel of real 
property in one ownership.  Signs shall not be attached to any utility pole or be located 
within any public right-of-way. 

 
 (3) Such signs shall not be erected in such a manner that they will or reasonably may be 

expected to interfere with, obstruct, confuse of mislead traffic. 
 
  (Rev. 12-19-77) 
 
4. Removal of Illegal Signs 
 
 The Director, or his authorized agents, shall remove any political campaign sign found posted within 

the corporate limits of the City which is in violation of this Chapter.  
 
 (Rev. 12-19-77) 
 
5. Authority of the Directory 
 
 For the purpose of removing political signs, the Director or his authorized agents, are empowered to 

enter upon the property where the signs are posted, and the Director is further authorized to enlist 
the aid or assistance of any other department of the City and to secure legal process to the end that 
all such signs shall be expeditiously removed from any property where posted.  

 
6. Removal Procedure 
 
 Where the Director or his agents find that a political sign has been posted in violation of this 

Chapter, he shall remove the sign and store it in a safe location.  
 



3 

 (Rev. 8-3-98) 
 
7. Storage -- Notice -- Return 
 
 If the Director or his agents remove any political sign, he shall keep a record of the location from 

which the sign was removed.  He shall store the political sign in a safe location for at least seven (7) 
days, and shall immediately notify by telephone the candidate, committee or person responsible for 
the posting of the sign, indicating the fact of removal and the location where it may be retrieved.  If 
the Director is unable to make telephone contact, he shall provide written notice, if the address of 
the candidate, committee or person is known or can be ascertained.  The Director shall return any 
political campaign sign upon the payment of a fee of Ten ($10) Dollars for each sign, to cover the 
costs of removal, notice and storage. 

 
 EXCEPTION:  Beginning seven (7) days prior to any election the storage and notification 

requirements shall not apply to those illegal signs removed by the Director or his agents. 
 
 Illegal signs removed during this time period may be disposed of as necessary. 
 
 (Rev. 9-23-96) 
 
8. Removal of Sign - Charge 
 
 The City shall be entitled to receive the sum of Ten ($10) Dollars for every political campaign sign 

removed by the Director, to cover the expense of removal, notice and storage. In cases where 
unusual effort is needed to remove a sign, such as the cutting or removal of supporting structures, 
use of aerial devices, towing of "trailer signs", or other unusual situation, the City shall collect from 
the person responsible a sum sufficient to cover the costs and hourly wages of employees so 
utilized. 

 
 (Rev. 12-19-77) 
 
9. Persons Responsible 
 In a campaign for political office, the candidate for such office shall be deemed the person 

responsible for the posting of political campaign signs, unless he first notifies the Directory or 
another person who is responsible.  In such case, the candidate shall provide the name, address, 
telephone number, and signed consent of such other responsible person.  In a campaign regarding 
a ballot measure, the president of the committee supporting or opposing such ballot measure shall 
be deemed responsible, unless he first notifies the Director or some other person responsible, in 
the manner described above.  The candidate, or in the case of a ballot measure, the committee 
president, or other responsible person if so designated, shall be liable to pay any fees or costs for 
the removal and storage of illegal signs, as set out herein. 

 
10. Illegal Signs - Public Nuisance 
 
 Political signs in violation of this Chapter are hereby declared to be public nuisances, and may be 

abated by the City.  The collection of removal fees shall not preclude the City from prosecuting the 
responsible person. 

 
 (Rev. 12-19-77) 

 
 
 
 
Section 3.  Savings 



4 

 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the time this 
Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be consummated under and according 
to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be 
construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may 
be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance with the 
provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, whichever 
shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a regular 
meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of 
_____________, ____. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                      Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, August 15, 2005, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:32 PM. 

Pastor Dennis Wegner – Troy Church of the Nazarene gave the Invocation and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling  
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 
 
a) Recognition of the City of Troy’s 50th Anniversary of Council-Manager Government by 

the ICMA – International City/Council Management Association 
  
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Parking Variance – 701-705 Minnesota  
 
Resolution #2005-08-384 
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by Stine 
 
WHEREAS, Articles XLIII and XLIV (43.00.00 and 44.00.00) of the Zoning Ordinance provide 
that the City Council may grant variances from the off-street parking requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance upon general findings that: 
 
1. The variance would not be contrary to public interest or general purpose and intent of the 

Zoning Ordinance. 
 
2. The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use as a principal use 

within a zoning district. 
 
3. The variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the immediate vicinity or 

zoning district. 
 
4. The variance relates only to property described in the application for variance; and 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

 
WHEREAS, Article XLIII (43.00.00) requires that in granting, the City Council shall find that the 
practical difficulties justifying the variances are: 
 
A. That absent a variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property; or 
 
B. That absent a variance, a significant natural feature would be negatively affected or 

destroyed; or 
 
C. That absent a variance, public health, safety and welfare would be negatively affected; or 
 
D. That literal enforcement of the Zoning Ordinance precludes full enjoyment of the 

permitted use and makes conforming unnecessarily burdensome. In this regard, the City 
Council shall find that a lesser variance does not give substantial relief, and that the relief 
requested can be granted within the spirit of the Ordinance, and within the interests of 
public safety and welfare; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds the above-stated general conditions to be present and finds 
the practical difficulty stated above to be operative in the appeal: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Raj Patel for waiver of 6 
additional parking spaces at the development at 701-705 Minnesota be APPROVED. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
C-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 212) – Articles IV, XXV, XXVI and XXVII 

– Freestanding Restaurants, Banks and Daycare Facilities in the R-C, O-M and O-
S-C Districts 

 
Resolution #2005-08-385 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
RESOLVED, That Article IV (DEFINITIONS), Articles XXV (O-M Office Mid-Rise District), XXVI 
(O-S-C Office–Service-Commercial District), and XXVII (R-C Research Center District) of the 
City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, be AMENDED to read as written in the proposed Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 212), dated June 21, 2005, as recommended by the 
Planning Commission and City Management. 
 
Yes:  All-7 
 
C-3 Rezoning Application (Z 705) – West Side of Rochester Road, North of Creston, 

Between Long Lake and Trinway, Section 10 – R-1C to R-1T   
 
Resolution # 
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by Stine 
RESOLVED, That the R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the west side of Rochester 
Road, north of Creston, between Long Lake and Trinway, Section 10, being 29,040 square feet 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

In size, is hereby GRANTED, as recommended by City Management and the Planning 
Commission. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2005-08-386 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the west side of Rochester 
Road, north of Creston, between Long Lake and Trinway, Section 10, being 29,040 square feet 
in size, be POSTPONED until the Regular City Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, 
September 12, 2005. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  No Postponed Items 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2005-08-387 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Broomfield 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item E-4c-2, which shall be considered after Consent Agenda 
(E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:  All-7 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2005-08-387-E-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of August 1, 2005 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 City of Troy Proclamation   
 
Resolution #2005-08-387-E-3 

a) Proclamation Celebrating 85 Years – American Legion Charles Edwards Post 14 – 
Birmingham/Troy 

 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Tee Shirt Contract 
 
Resolution #2005-08-387-E-4a 
 
WHEREAS, On October 18, 2004, a one year contract with an option to renew for one 
additional year for Tee Shirts was awarded to the low bidder, Kel Graphics of Cadillac, Michigan 
(Resolution #2004-10-546-E-17);  
 
WHEREAS, Kel Graphics has agreed to exercise the one-year option to renew the contract 
under the same pricing, terms and conditions. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract is hereby 
EXERCISED with Kel Graphics to provide Tee Shirts under the same prices, terms, and 
conditions for one year at an estimated total cost of $27,153.00, to expire September 30, 2006. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 6: Grant Approval and Authorization to Expend City 

Funds – Safer Star Software and Associated Equipment 
 
Resolution #2005-08-387-E-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council does hereby AUTHORIZE the Troy Fire Department to 
receive a State of Michigan Homeland Security Critical Infrastructure Grant and EXPEND funds 
for the purchase of Safer Star Software from Safer Systems, LLC, of Camarillo, CA, the sole 
source provider of proprietary software, at an estimated cost of $300,000.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Fire Department Operations equipment budget is 
hereby AMENDED due to the grant award in the amount of $300,000.00. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds for Troy City Council Members’ Travel Expenses – Michigan Municipal League 
107th Annual Convention 

 
Resolution Authorizing Attendance of Mayor and City Council Members 
 
Resolution #2005-08-387-E-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That pursuant to the Rules of Procedure of the City Council of the City of Troy, the 
City Council hereby APPROVES the payment and use of City funds for transportation, 
registration, pre-conference workshops, food, and lodging for the Mayor and City Council 
Members to attend the Michigan Municipal League Annual Conference to be held in Grand 
Rapids, Michigan, September 20 through 23, 2005, all in accordance with the accounting 
procedures of the City of Troy. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

E-5 Application to Transfer Location of a Class C Liquor License – TGI Friday’s, Inc. 
(TGI Friday’s Restaurant) 

 
(a) License Transfer 
 
Resolution #2005-08-387-E-5a 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from TGI FRIDAY’S INC. (A NEW YORK CORPORATION), to 
transfer the location of a 2005 Class C licensed business (in escrow), with official permit (food), 
and outdoor service (1 area), from 911 Wilshire, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, to 591 W. 
Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, be CONSIDERED for APPROVAL. 
 
It is the consensus of this legislative body that the application BE RECOMMENDED “above all 
others” for issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Resolution #2005-08-387-E-5b 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with TGI FRIDAY’S INC. (A NEW YORK CORPORATION), to 
transfer location of a 2005 Class C licensed business (in escrow), with official permit (food), and 
outdoor service (1 area), from 911 Wilshire, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, to 591 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting.  
 
E-6 Fireworks Permit – Troy Daze  
 
Resolution #2005-08-387-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That a fireworks permit be ISSUED to Mad Bomber Fireworks Productions, of 
Kingsbury, IN for the display of fireworks at the conclusion of the 2005 Troy Daze Festival. 
  
E-7 Private Agreement for Hidden Creek Site Condominiums – Project No. 03.909.3  
 
Resolution #2005-08-387-E-7 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and GFA Development Company is hereby APPROVED 
for the installation of sanitary sewer, storm sewer, detention, water main, soil erosion, 
sidewalks, landscaping and paving on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor 
and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

E-8 Approval of Increased Interest Differential Payment and Closing Cost Payment – 
Emad and Niran Youno, 2955 Thames, Sidwell #88-20-25-229-005 – Big Beaver, 
Rochester to Dequindre Road Project #01.105.5  

 
Resolution #2005-08-387-E-8 
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, an Increased 
Interest Differential payment of $8,215.49 and reimbursable closing costs payment of $5,431.04 
are hereby APPROVED to be paid to Emad and Niran Youno as part of the relocation 
payments for relocating from 2955 Thames, having Sidwell #88-20-25-229-005, which was 
acquired by the City of Troy for the Big Beaver to Dequindre Road improvement project. 
 
E-9 Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from the Kimberly Anne Gillary 

Foundation for the Purpose of Obtaining a Charitable Gaming License  
 
Resolution #2005-08-387-E-9 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from the Kimberly Anne Gillary Foundation, asking that they be 
recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the community for the purpose of obtaining 
a charitable gaming license be APPROVED as recommended by City Management. 
 
E-10 Gerback et. al v. City of Troy  
 
Resolution #2005-08-387-E-10 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy in the matter of James Gerback, et al v City of Troy and to pay all expenses and to 
retain any necessary expert witnesses to adequately represent the City.  
 
E-11 Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement  
 
Resolution #2005-08-387-E-11 
 
RESOLVED, That Municipal Credit Funds and Community Credit Funds in the amount of 
$76,084.00 and $93,916.00 respectively, for a total of $170,000.00 are hereby TRANSFERRED 
to Troy Medi-Go Plus for transportation services of senior citizens and persons with disabilities; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City is AUTHORIZED to retain Community Credit 
Funds in the amount of $4,518.00 to purchase discount tickets for Smart Dial-A-Ride; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Council are AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the master agreement from SMART for the 2005/2006 fiscal year, and a copy shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
Resolution #2005-08-388 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That David Lambert is hereby DESIGNATED as Voting Delegate and Robin 
Beltramini is hereby DESIGNATED as the Alternate Voting Delegate to cast the vote of the City 
of Troy at the Annual Meeting of the Michigan Municipal League to be held September 20 
through September 23, 2005 in Grand Rapids, Michigan.  
 
Yes: All-7 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments: Historical Commission 

 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled 
 
(b)  City Council Appointments   
 
Resolution #2005-08-389 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Stine 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Historical Commission 
Appointed by Council – (7) – 3 years 
 
Remedios Solarte        Term Expires 07/31/08  
 
Yes: All-7 
 
F-2 Local Match for a Michigan Economic Growth Authority (MEGA) Retention 

Incentive Package 
 
Resolution #2005-08-390 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Stine 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVE the commitment of daily and/or annual 
Aquatic Center passes (limited to 15 annual passes per year for 3 years) at a value not to 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

exceed $7,000.00 as part of the local match for a MEGA incentive package to retain ASTI in 
Troy. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
F-3 Traffic Committee Recommendations – July 20, 2005 
 
Resolution #2005-08-391 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
a) No Changes be Made to the Intersection on Berwyck at Hampshire 
 
RESOLVED, That NO CHANGES be made to the intersection on Berwyck at Hampshire. 
 
b) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones at 1650 Research Drive 
 
RESOLVED, That fire lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch BE ESTABLISHED 
at 1650 Research Drive. 
 
c) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones at 1775 Research Drive 
 
RESOLVED, That fire lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch BE ESTABLISHED 
at 1775 Research Drive. 
 
d) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones at 1850 Research Drive 
 
RESOLVED, That fire lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch BE ESTABLISHED 
at 1850 Research Drive. 
 
e) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones at 1875 Research Drive 
 
RESOLVED, That fire lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch BE ESTABLISHED 
at 1875 Research Drive. 
 
f) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones at 1960 Research Drive 
 
RESOLVED, That fire lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch BE ESTABLISHED 
at 1960 Research Drive. 
 
g) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones at 1965 Research Drive 
 
RESOLVED, That fire lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch BE ESTABLISHED 
at 1965 Research Drive. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

F-4 2006 City Calendar Contract Extension 
 
Resolution #2005-08-392 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract be AWARDED to University Lithoprinters to print 40,000 copies of 
the 2006 City Calendar including an 8-page spread for the Popular Annual Financial Report 
(PAFR) and an 8-page spread for advertising at an estimated cost of $38,650.00 with the 
Community Affairs Department to sell approximately $15,775.00 in advertising resulting in an 
estimated net cost to the City of Troy of approximately $22,875.00.   
 
Yes:   Beltramini, Lambert, Stine, Schilling 
No:   Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-5 Authority to Initiate Lawsuit to Abate Public Nuisance – 2766 Rhodes 
 
Resolution #2005-08-393 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is AUTHORIZED to initiate a nuisance abatement lawsuit 
against the owners of the home located at 2766 Rhodes, and to expend the necessary funds 
expedient for the litigation of such proceedings. 
 
Yes:  Howrylak, Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini  
No:  Broomfield, Eisenbacher 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-6 Bid Waiver – Troy Daze Large Tents 
 
Resolution #2005-08-394 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Daze Festival requires tents to house various community, cultural, and 
entertainment activities for their annual event; 
 
WHEREAS, No companies submitted a bid during the formal bid process on the two large tents; 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has been able to locate a company, Dial Tent and Awning, of Saginaw, MI 
who does have the sizes of the two large tents and can make them available for the event. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bid procedures be hereby WAIVED and a 
contract be APPROVED to rent two large tents from Dial Tent and Awning, of Saginaw, MI for 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

the estimated total cost of $11,000.00 CONTINGENT upon submission of required insurance 
certificates.  
 
Yes: All-7 
 
F-7 Resolution Supporting the Legislative Correction of the WPW v. Troy Taxable 

Value Inequity 
 
Resolution #2005-08-395 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
WHEREAS, The Michigan Supreme court issued a decision in the WPW Acquisitions v City of 
Troy case concerning the assessment of property taxes on commercial properties; 
 
WHEREAS, The Supreme Court’s decision has resulted in inequities as it relates to property 
assessments whose value is based on occupancy rates;  
 
WHEREAS, The WPW decision declared the “additions” language for increase in occupancy is 
unconstitutional but did not address the offsetting “loss” language, which has a large impact on 
many properties in the State; 
 
WHEREAS, Prior to this decision, a commercial/industrial property owner could work with their 
local assessor for assessment relief if the property’s occupancy rated dropped (loss), and 
subsequently, when the occupancy rate improved, the assessment would return to a stabilized 
level when the occupancy recovered (addition); 
  
WHEREAS, This was a fair and reasonable way to help property owners who were struggling 
with a particular property, and the “addition” and “loss” sections of the statute worked in 
harmony, providing temporary relief for decrease in occupancy; 
 
WHEREAS, Since the “addition” section of the statute has been ruled unconstitutional, 
commercial property owners can now manipulate the system by decreasing their occupancy 
level to achieve a permanent reduction in their Taxable Value and then lock in non-market 
property taxes at a reduced level; 
 
WHEREAS, The decision unintentionally rewards those commercial property owners who 
operate inefficiently and maintain high vacancy rates while penalizing those property managers 
who offer competitive lease rates;  
 
WHEREAS, The decision is unfair to residential taxpayers as the resulting effect will shift the 
property tax burden to residential taxpayers over time since, theoretically, property taxes 
collected from commercial properties as a percentage of total tax revenues will decrease; 
 
WHEREAS, The potential loss in property tax revenue within the City of Troy as a result of the 
Supreme Court decision is significant. Such potential revenue loss will not only impact the City 
of Troy, but also the County of Oakland and the Local and Intermediate school district(s), the 
State of Michigan Education Tax, etc.  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy STRONGLY URGES its State 
Legislators to establish tax equity and correct the impact of the WPW Acquisitions v City of Troy 
decision by supporting legislation to remove both the additions and losses sections of the 
General Property Tax Act (MCL 211.34d(1)(b)(vii) and 211.34d(1)(h)(iii); and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That copies of this Resolution be SENT to Governor Granholm, 
State Senator Shirley Johnson, Representative Robert Gosselin and the MML State and 
Federal Affairs Division. 
 
Yes: All-7 
  
F-8 Authority to Initiate Lawsuit to Abate Public Nuisance – 5165 Prentis 
 
Resolution #2005-08-396 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is AUTHORIZED to initiate a nuisance abatement lawsuit 
against the owners of the home located at 5165 Prentis, and to EXPEND the necessary funds 
expedient for the litigation of such proceedings. 
 
Yes:  Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini 
No:   Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The Meeting RECESSED at 9:20 PM. 
 
The Meeting RECONVENED at 9:33 PM. 
  
F-9 Revision of Troy’s Sign Ordinances 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
a) Revision of Sign Ordinance – Enact Chapter 85 
 
RESOLVED, That an ordinance to enact Chapter 85 – Signs, is hereby ADOPTED as 
recommended by the City Administration, a copy of this ordinance shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
b) Revision of Sign Ordinance – Amendment to Chapter 60 
 
RESOLVED, That an ordinance amendment to Chapter 60, Section 60.03, is hereby 
ADOPTED as recommended by the City Administration, a copy of this ordinance shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

c) Revision of Sign Ordinance – Amendment to Chapter 3 
 
RESOLVED, That an ordinance amendment to Chapter 3, Section 1.141(6), is hereby 
ADOPTED as recommended by the City Administration, a copy of this ordinance shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
d) Revision of Sign Ordinance – Chapter 78 Repealed 
 
RESOLVED, That Chapter 78 – Signs, of the Troy City Code, is hereby REPEALED. 
 
e) Revision of Sign Ordinance – Chapter 85-A Repealed 
 
RESOLVED, That Chapter 85-A – Political Signs, of the Troy City Code, is hereby REPEALED. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Schilling 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed Resolution for the Revision of Troy’s Sign Ordinances be 
AMENDED by modifying Section 60.03.02 B.1 by STRIKING  “six square feet” and INSERTING 
“four square feet” and Section 60.03.02 B.2 by STRIKING “three temporary signs” and 
INSERTING “two temporary signs” and Section 60.03.02 B.4 by STRIKING “ninety days” and 
INSERTING “sixty days”. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2005-08-397 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed Resolution for the Revision of Troy’s Sign Ordinances (a-e) 
and the proposed amendment be POSTPONED until the Regular City Council Meeting 
scheduled for Monday, September 12, 2005. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
F-10 Public Benefit Requirement to Satisfy Preliminary Approval of Planned Unit 

Development (PUD-004) – The Monarch Private Residences 
 
Resolution #2005-08-398 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Stine 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council granted conditional preliminary planned unit development 
approval PUD-004, the Monarch private residences on July 18, 2005, Resolution # 2005-07-
357; 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

WHEREAS, The resolution contains a condition related to the appropriate public benefit, which 
was either the purchase of the two properties to the north or a donation to the City to implement 
the results of the Big Beaver corridor study; 
 
WHEREAS, The petitioner, property owners of 3128 Alpine (Sidwell #88-20-20-402-016) and 
3141 McClure (Sidwell #88-20-20-402-030) and the Troy City Management signed a Letter of 
Understanding dated August 9, 2005 and is attached to this resolution. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That City Council ACCEPTS the attached Letter of 
Understanding dated August 9, 2005 as the appropriate public benefit for preliminary approval 
of PUD-004. 
 
Yes: All-7 
  
F-11 Intergovernmental Cable Communications Authority (ICCA) Contract with 

Community Media Network (CMN) 
 
Resolution #2005-08-399 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Broomfield 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES the proposed contract and bylaws 
between the Intergovernmental Cable Communications Authority (ICCA) and Community Media 
Network (CMN) as presented for a three-year contract which will expire on December 31, 2007 
for the purpose of Public Access Television Services.  
 
Yes:   Beltramini, Broomfield, Lambert, Stine, Schilling 
No:   Eisenbacher, Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
  
F-12 Bid Waiver – Authorization to Purchase an Enterprise Content Management 

System 
 
Resolution #2005-08-400 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedures are hereby WAIVED and a contract to purchase 
an Enterprise-wide Content Management (ECM) System from Liberty Information Management 
Systems and Ricoh Business Systems is hereby APPROVED at an estimated cost of 
$542,000.00, plus an estimated $59,000.00 per year for maintenance and support, in 
accordance with Appendix A, Detailed Pricing; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Those contracts to purchase the necessary hardware, software, 
and back file conversion services from REMC and State of Michigan contracts are hereby 
APPROVED. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 14 - 

Yes: All-6 
No: None   
Absent:  Schilling  
  
F-13 Revisions to Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service – Elimination of Connection 

Requirement 
 
Resolution #2005-08-401 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Broomfield 
 
RESOLVED, That Sections 19.01, 19.02, 19.03 and 19.05 of Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer 
Service, of the Troy City Code be REVISED in accordance with the proposal prepared by City 
Management, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of the meeting. 
 
Yes:       All-6 
No:          None 
Absent:   Schilling 
 
F-14 Replacement of November 2005 Ballot Proposals 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Stine 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following proposed 
Charter Amendment Proposals 1-8 and Proposal 10 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter Amendment 
Proposals at that election:  
 
Proposed Resolution #1 
 
RESOLVED, That Resolution #2005-07-346, Resolution #2005-08-382, and Resolution  
#2005-08-383 are hereby RESCINDED by the Troy City Council.    
 
Proposed Resolution #2  
 
1. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 1 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 1 at that election:    

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 1 
 
AMENDMENT OF SECTIONS 3.4 (TERMS OF OFFICE) and 7.5 (ELECTIVE 
OFFICERS AND TERMS OF OFFICE) OF THE TROY CITY CHARTER TO REFLECT 
THE CURRENT FOUR-YEAR TERMS OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
MEMBERS  

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 15 - 

Shall Sections 3.4 (Terms of Office) and 7.5 (Elective Officers and Terms of Office) of 
the Troy City Charter be amended by deleting section 7.5 and incorporating the former 
section 7.5 as the first sentence of section 3.4 with the terms of the Mayor and the 
Council Members being four years to reflect the change from three years to four years on 
account of the 2004 election consolidation legislation and providing that these terms 
expire at 7:30 pm (rather than 8 pm) on the first Monday following the regular City 
election in the fourth year of these terms?  

 
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 1 Passes) 

 
Section 3.4- Elective Officers and Terms of Office: 
The elective officers of the City shall be the six (6) members of council and the Mayor all 
of whom shall be nominated and elected from the city at large for the terms provided 
herein.  City Council Members and the Mayor shall be elected for terms of four (4) years 
and shall serve until 7:30 PM on the first Monday following the regular election of the 
fourth year of their term. 

 
2. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 2 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 2 at that election: 

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 2 

 
AMENDMENT TO RE-NUMBER SECTION 7.5.5 OF THE TROY CITY CHARTER AS 
SECTION 3.4.1, ADD A TITLE TO THE SECTION, AND CHANGE THE SECTION’S 
DEFINITION OF “TERM” IN ITS THIRD SENTENCE  

 
Shall Section 7.5.5 of the Troy City Charter be re-numbered as section 3.4.1 to state as 
follows:   

 
“3.4.1- Elective Officers Term Limitations  
Any elected member of the City Council shall not serve more than three terms as 
Councilperson.  The Mayor shall not serve more than two terms as Mayor.  Any service 
greater than two (2) years plus one (1) month shall constitute a term.  This amendment 
shall apply only to terms starting after passage of this amendment” ?  

 
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 2 Passes) 

 
Section 3.4.1- Elective Officers Term Limitations: 
An elected member of the City Council shall not serve more than three terms as 
Councilperson.  The Mayor shall not serve more than two terms as Mayor.  Any service 
greater than two (2) years plus one (1) month shall constitute a term.  This amendment 
shall apply only to terms starting after passage of this amendment.  

 
3. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 3 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 3 at that election: 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 16 - 

Charter Amendment Proposal 3 
  

PROPOSAL FOR A NEW SECTION 3.4.2 (STAGGERING TERMS OF OFFICE) OF 
THE TROY CITY CHARTER TO PROVIDE FOR THREE COUNCIL MEMBERS TO BE 
ELECTED TO FOUR-YEAR TERMS EVERY TWO YEARS  

 
In lieu of the current provision under the 2004 election consolidation legislation for four 
council members and the Mayor to be elected in 2007 and every four years thereafter 
and two council members to be elected in 2009 and every four years thereafter, shall 
section 3.4.2 be added to the Troy City Charter to provide for a two-year transitional term 
(2007-2009) for one council member, so that the Mayor and three members of the 
council will be elected in 2007 and every four years thereafter and three members will be 
elected in 2009 and every four years thereafter?  

 
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 3 Passes): 

 
Section 3.4.2- Staggering Terms of Office:  
City Council Members with terms expiring April 2006 shall have their terms extended 
until November 2007; City Council Members with terms expiring April 2007 shall have 
their terms extended until November 2007.  The Mayor’s term, expiring April 2007, shall 
be extended until November 2007.  The staggering of terms shall be established as 
follows:  

 
November 8, 2005- Two (2) Council Members shall be elected for four (4) year terms 
with the terms expiring on November 9, 2009;  
November 6, 2007- One (1) Council Member shall be elected for a two (2) year term with 
the term expiring on November 9, 2009;  
November 6, 2007- Three (3) Council Members shall be elected for four (4) year terms 
with the terms expiring on November 14, 2011;  
November 6, 2007- Mayor shall be elected for a four (4) year term with the term expiring 
November 14, 2011.  

 
4. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 4 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 4 at that election: 

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 4 

  
AMENDMENT OF SECTION 7.3 (ELECTION DATE) OF THE TROY CITY CHARTER 
TO REFLECT THE CURRENT REQUIREMENT FOR REGULAR ELECTIONS IN 
NOVEMBER OF EACH ODD- NUMBERED YEAR 

 
Shall Section 7.3 (Election Date) be amended to provide for regular City elections in 
November of each odd-numbered year to reflect the current requirements of the 2004 
election consolidation legislation? 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 17 - 

Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 4 Passes) 
 

Section 7.3- Election Date:  
A regular City election shall be held on the first Tuesday after the first Monday of every 
odd year November.  

 
5. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 5 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 5 at that election: 

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 5 

 
PROPOSAL TO RE-STATE SECTION 7.6 (SPECIAL ELECTION) OF THE TROY CITY 
CHARTER 

 
Shall Section 7.6 of the Troy City Charter be re-stated by providing: “Special City 
elections shall be called in the manner and time as provided by State Statute” and 
eliminating “Special City elections shall be held when called by resolution of the Council 
at least 40 days in advance of such election, or when required by this charter or statute.  
Any resolution calling a special election shall set forth the purpose of such election.  No 
more special city elections shall be called in any one year than the number permitted by 
statute”?   

 
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 5 Passes) 

 
Section 7.6- Special Election:  
Special City Elections shall be called in the manner and time as provided by State 
Statute.    

 
6. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 6 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 6 at that election: 

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 6 

  
PROPOSAL TO AMEND SECTION 7.9 (NOMINATIONS) OF THE TROY CITY 
CHARTER TO DELETE A PROVISION THAT IS INCONSISTENT WITH MICHIGAN 
ELECTION LAW 

 
Shall the fourth and fifth sentences of Section 7.9 (Nominations) of the Troy City Charter, 
rejecting any signatures on nominating petitions where a voter has signed more 
nominating petitions for candidates for any city office than there are persons to be 
elected to that office, be deleted to reflect that the counting of some of these signatures 
is permitted under the provisions of section 547(a) of the Michigan Election Code [(MCL 
168.547(a)]? 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 18 - 

Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 6 Passes) 
 

Section 7.9- Nominations:  
The method of nomination of all candidates at city elections shall be by petition.  Each 
petition may comprise one or more pages. The petition for each candidate must be 
signed by not less than sixty registered electors of the City.   

 
Nomination petitions for candidates for regular city elections are to be filed with the Clerk 
on or before 4 o’clock p.m. of the one hundredth (100th) day preceding the City election 
for each election year.  

 
The Clerk shall, prior to every election, publish notice of the last day permitted for filing 
nomination petitions and of the number of persons to be elected to each office, at least 
one week and not more than three weeks before such day. 

 
7. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 7 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 7 at that election: 

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 7 

  
PROPOSAL TO AMEND SECTION 7.10 (FORM OF PETITIONS) OF THE TROY CITY 
CHARTER TO DELETE A PROVISION THAT IS INCONSISTENT WITH MICHIGAN 
LAW 

 
Shall the first sentence of Section 7.10 of the Troy City Charter be re-stated by striking 
“The Council shall approve a form of nominating petition with spaces thereon for address 
and date of signing for each signer, an affidavit form for the circulator to sign affirming 
that he and the petitioners are registered electors and a summary of the qualifications 
required of candidates and the regulations governing the petition” and substituting 
“Nominating petitions shall be in a form as provided by Michigan Election Law”?   

 
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 7 Passes) 

 
Section 7.10- Form of Petitions:  
Nominating Petitions shall be in a form as provided by State Statue.  A supply of official 
petition forms shall be provided and maintained by the Clerk.  

 
8. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 8 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 8 at that election: 

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 8 

 
PROPOSAL TO AMEND SECTION 5.13 (SUBMISSION OF INITIATORY AND 
REFERENDARY ORDINANCES TO ELECTORS) OF THE TROY CITY CHARTER, 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 19 - 

REGARDING ITS REQUIREMENTS FOR SPECIAL ELECTIONS FOR INITIATIVE 
PROPOSALS  

 
Shall section 5.13 of the Troy City Charter be amended to delete the 60 day deadline for 
the City Council to call a special election for an initiative proposal, where the Council 
declines to enact the proposal as an ordinance and no election is to be held in the City 
for any other purpose within 150 days from the date the proposal is presented to the 
Council, to provide that these special elections shall be scheduled in accordance with 
Michigan election law and to specify that Council decisions under this section shall be by 
affirmative vote of the members elect? 

 
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 8 Passes) 

 
Section 5.13- Submission of Initiatory and Referendary Ordinances to Electors:  
Should the Council, by an affirmative vote of the members elect, decide to submit the 
proposal to the electors, it shall be submitted at the next election held in the City for any 
other purpose, or, in the discretion of the Council, at a special election called for that 
specific purpose in accordance with State Election Law.  In the case of any initiatory 
petition, if no election is to be held in the City for any other purpose within one hundred 
fifty days from the time the petition is presented to the Council and the Council does not 
enact the ordinance, then the Council shall call a special election in accordance with 
State Election Law.  The result of all elections held under the provisions of this section 
shall be determined by a majority vote of the electors voting thereon, except in cases 
where otherwise required by Statute or the Constitution. 

 
10. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 10 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 10 at that election: 

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 10 

 
PROPOSAL TO AMEND SECTION 12.3 (RESTRICTIONS ON POWERS TO LEASE 
PROPERTY) OF THE TROY CHARTER TO SUBJECT LONG TERM USE 
AGREEMENTS TO THE RESTRICTIONS ON LEASING AND RENTING CITY 
PROPERTY SET FORTH IN THAT SECTION  

 
Shall Section 12.3 of the Troy City Charter be amended to subject long-term (more than 
3 years) use agreements to the restrictions in this section for the leasing or renting of 
City property, including the requirements for fair consideration as determined by the city 
council and the provision for referendum petitions for such agreements? 

 
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 10 Passes) 

 
Section 12.3- Restriction on Powers to Lease Property:  
Any agreement or contract for the renting or leasing or long term use of public property 
to any person for a period longer than three years shall be subject to the same 
referendum procedure as is provided in the case of ordinances passed by the Council, 
but any petition for such referendum must be filed within thirty days after publication of 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 20 - 

the proceedings of the meeting of the Council at which such agreement or contract is 
authorized.  

 
The transfer or assignment of any agreement or contract for such renting or leasing or 
long-term agreements exceeding three years for public property may be made only upon 
approval of the Council, but approval of such transfer shall not be subject to referendum.  

 
Rentals, leases, long-term use agreements exceeding three years, and renewals thereof shall 
be for a fair consideration, as determined by the Council. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend by Separation 
 
Resolution #2005-08-402 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Lambert 
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution for the Replacement of November 2005 Ballot Proposals be 
AMENDED by SEPARATING Proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 9 for discussion 
purposes.   
 
Yes:  All-7 
 
Vote on Resolution  for the Replacement of November 2005 Ballot Proposals (1-8 & 10) 
as Amended 
 
Resolution #2005-08-403 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Stine 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following proposed 
Charter Amendment Proposals 1-8 and Proposal 10 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter Amendment 
Proposals at that election:  
 
Proposed Resolution #1 
 
RESOLVED, That Resolution #2005-07-346, Resolution #2005-08-382, and Resolution  
#2005-08-383 are hereby RESCINDED by the Troy City Council.    
 
Proposed Resolution #2  
 
2. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 1 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 1 at that election:    

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 21 - 

Charter Amendment Proposal 1 
 
AMENDMENT OF SECTIONS 3.4 (TERMS OF OFFICE) and 7.5 (ELECTIVE 
OFFICERS AND TERMS OF OFFICE) OF THE TROY CITY CHARTER TO REFLECT 
THE CURRENT FOUR-YEAR TERMS OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
MEMBERS  

 
Shall Sections 3.4 (Terms of Office) and 7.5 (Elective Officers and Terms of Office) of 
the Troy City Charter be amended by deleting section 7.5 and incorporating the former 
section 7.5 as the first sentence of section 3.4 with the terms of the Mayor and the 
Council Members being four years to reflect the change from three years to four years on 
account of the 2004 election consolidation legislation and providing that these terms 
expire at 7:30 pm (rather than 8 pm) on the first Monday following the regular City 
election in the fourth year of these terms?  

 
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 1 Passes) 

 
Section 3.4- Elective Officers and Terms of Office: 
The elective officers of the City shall be the six (6) members of council and the Mayor all 
of whom shall be nominated and elected from the city at large for the terms provided 
herein.  City Council Members and the Mayor shall be elected for terms of four (4) years 
and shall serve until 7:30 PM on the first Monday following the regular election of the 
fourth year of their term. 

 
2. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 2 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 2 at that election: 

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 2 

 
AMENDMENT TO RE-NUMBER SECTION 7.5.5 OF THE TROY CITY CHARTER AS 
SECTION 3.4.1, ADD A TITLE TO THE SECTION, AND CHANGE THE SECTION’S 
DEFINITION OF “TERM” IN ITS THIRD SENTENCE  

 
Shall Section 7.5.5 of the Troy City Charter be re-numbered as section 3.4.1 to state as 
follows:   

 
“3.4.1- Elective Officers Term Limitations  
Any elected member of the City Council shall not serve more than three terms as 
Councilperson.  The Mayor shall not serve more than two terms as Mayor.  Any service 
greater than two (2) years plus one (1) month shall constitute a term.  This amendment 
shall apply only to terms starting after passage of this amendment” ?  

 
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 2 Passes) 

 
Section 3.4.1- Elective Officers Term Limitations: 
An elected member of the City Council shall not serve more than three terms as 
Councilperson.  The Mayor shall not serve more than two terms as Mayor.  Any service 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 22 - 

greater than two (2) years plus one (1) month shall constitute a term.  This amendment 
shall apply only to terms starting after passage of this amendment.  

 
3. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 3 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 3 at that election: 

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 3 

  
PROPOSAL FOR A NEW SECTION 3.4.2 (STAGGERING TERMS OF OFFICE) OF 
THE TROY CITY CHARTER TO PROVIDE FOR THREE COUNCIL MEMBERS TO BE 
ELECTED TO FOUR-YEAR TERMS EVERY TWO YEARS  

 
In lieu of the current provision under the 2004 election consolidation legislation for four 
council members and the Mayor to be elected in 2007 and every four years thereafter 
and two council members to be elected in 2009 and every four years thereafter, shall 
section 3.4.2 be added to the Troy City Charter to provide for a two-year transitional term 
(2007-2009) for one council member, so that the Mayor and three members of the 
council will be elected in 2007 and every four years thereafter and three members will be 
elected in 2009 and every four years thereafter?  

 
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 3 Passes): 

 
Section 3.4.2- Staggering Terms of Office:  
City Council Members with terms expiring April 2006 shall have their terms extended 
until November 2007; City Council Members with terms expiring April 2007 shall have 
their terms extended until November 2007.  The Mayor’s term, expiring April 2007, shall 
be extended until November 2007.  The staggering of terms shall be established as 
follows:  

 
November 8, 2005- Two (2) Council Members shall be elected for four (4) year terms 
with the terms expiring on November 9, 2009;  
November 6, 2007- One (1) Council Member shall be elected for a two (2) year term with 
the term expiring on November 9, 2009;  
November 6, 2007- Three (3) Council Members shall be elected for four (4) year terms 
with the terms expiring on November 14, 2011;  
November 6, 2007- Mayor shall be elected for a four (4) year term with the term expiring 
November 14, 2011.  

 
4. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 4 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 4 at that election: 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 23 - 

Charter Amendment Proposal 4 
  

AMENDMENT OF SECTION 7.3 (ELECTION DATE) OF THE TROY CITY CHARTER 
TO REFLECT THE CURRENT REQUIREMENT FOR REGULAR ELECTIONS IN 
NOVEMBER OF EACH ODD- NUMBERED YEAR 

 
Shall Section 7.3 (Election Date) be amended to provide for regular City elections in 
November of each odd-numbered year to reflect the current requirements of the 2004 
election consolidation legislation? 

 
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 4 Passes) 

 
Section 7.3- Election Date:  
A regular City election shall be held on the first Tuesday after the first Monday of every 
odd year November.  

 
5. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 5 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 5 at that election: 

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 5 

 
PROPOSAL TO RE-STATE SECTION 7.6 (SPECIAL ELECTION) OF THE TROY CITY 
CHARTER 

 
Shall Section 7.6 of the Troy City Charter be re-stated by providing: “Special City 
elections shall be called in the manner and time as provided by State Statute” and 
eliminating “Special City elections shall be held when called by resolution of the Council 
at least 40 days in advance of such election, or when required by this charter or statute.  
Any resolution calling a special election shall set forth the purpose of such election.  No 
more special city elections shall be called in any one year than the number permitted by 
statute”?   

 
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 5 Passes) 

 
Section 7.6- Special Election:  
Special City Elections shall be called in the manner and time as provided by State 
Statute.    

 
6. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 6 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 6 at that election: 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 24 - 

Charter Amendment Proposal 6 
  

PROPOSAL TO AMEND SECTION 7.9 (NOMINATIONS) OF THE TROY CITY 
CHARTER TO DELETE A PROVISION THAT IS INCONSISTENT WITH MICHIGAN 
ELECTION LAW 

 
Shall the fourth and fifth sentences of Section 7.9 (Nominations) of the Troy City Charter, 
rejecting any signatures on nominating petitions where a voter has signed more 
nominating petitions for candidates for any city office than there are persons to be 
elected to that office, be deleted to reflect that the counting of some of these signatures 
is permitted under the provisions of section 547(a) of the Michigan Election Code [(MCL 
168.547(a)]? 

 
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 6 Passes) 

 
Section 7.9- Nominations:  
The method of nomination of all candidates at city elections shall be by petition.  Each 
petition may comprise one or more pages.  The petition for each candidate must be 
signed by not less than sixty registered electors of the City.   

 
Nomination petitions for candidates for regular city elections are to be filed with the Clerk 
on or before 4 o’clock p.m. of the one hundredth (100th) day preceding the City election 
for each election year.  

 
The Clerk shall, prior to every election, publish notice of the last day permitted for filing 
nomination petitions and of the number of persons to be elected to each office, at least 
one week and not more than three weeks before such day. 

 
7. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 7 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 7 at that election: 

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 7 

  
PROPOSAL TO AMEND SECTION 7.10 (FORM OF PETITIONS) OF THE TROY CITY 
CHARTER TO DELETE A PROVISION THAT IS INCONSISTENT WITH MICHIGAN 
LAW 

 
Shall the first sentence of Section 7.10 of the Troy City Charter be re-stated by striking 
“The Council shall approve a form of nominating petition with spaces thereon for address 
and date of signing for each signer, an affidavit form for the circulator to sign affirming 
that he and the petitioners are registered electors and a summary of the qualifications 
required of candidates and the regulations governing the petition” and substituting 
“Nominating petitions shall be in a form as provided by Michigan Election Law”?   

 
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 7 Passes) 

 
Section 7.10- Form of Petitions:  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 25 - 

Nominating Petitions shall be in a form as provided by State Statue.  A supply of official 
petition forms shall be provided and maintained by the Clerk.  

 
8. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 8 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 8 at that election: 

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 8 

 
PROPOSAL TO AMEND SECTION 5.13 (SUBMISSION OF INITIATORY AND 
REFERENDARY ORDINANCES TO ELECTORS) OF THE TROY CITY CHARTER, 
REGARDING ITS REQUIREMENTS FOR SPECIAL ELECTIONS FOR INITIATIVE 
PROPOSALS  

 
Shall section 5.13 of the Troy City Charter be amended to delete the 60 day deadline for 
the City Council to call a special election for an initiative proposal, where the Council 
declines to enact the proposal as an ordinance and no election is to be held in the City 
for any other purpose within 150 days from the date the proposal is presented to the 
Council, to provide that these special elections shall be scheduled in accordance with 
Michigan election law and to specify that Council decisions under this section shall be by 
affirmative vote of the members elect? 

 
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 8 Passes) 

 
Section 5.13- Submission of Initiatory and Referendary Ordinances to Electors:  
Should the Council, by an affirmative vote of the members elect, decide to submit the 
proposal to the electors, it shall be submitted at the next election held in the City for any 
other purpose, or, in the discretion of the Council, at a special election called for that 
specific purpose in accordance with State Election Law.  In the case of any initiatory 
petition, if no election is to be held in the City for any other purpose within one hundred 
fifty days from the time the petition is presented to the Council and the Council does not 
enact the ordinance, then the Council shall call a special election in accordance with 
State Election Law.  The result of all elections held under the provisions of this section 
shall be determined by a majority vote of the electors voting thereon, except in cases 
where otherwise required by Statute or the Constitution. 

 
10. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 10 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 10 at that election: 

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 10 

 
PROPOSAL TO AMEND SECTION 12.3 (RESTRICTIONS ON POWERS TO LEASE 
PROPERTY) OF THE TROY CHARTER TO SUBJECT LONG TERM USE 
AGREEMENTS TO THE RESTRICTIONS ON LEASING AND RENTING CITY 
PROPERTY SET FORTH IN THAT SECTION  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 26 - 

Shall Section 12.3 of the Troy City Charter be amended to subject long-term (more than 
3 years) use agreements to the restrictions in this section for the leasing or renting of 
City property, including the requirements for fair consideration as determined by the city 
council and the provision for referendum petitions for such agreements? 
 
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 10 Passes) 

 
Section 12.3- Restriction on Powers to Lease Property:  
Any agreement or contract for the renting or leasing or long term use of public property 
to any person for a period longer than three years shall be subject to the same 
referendum procedure as is provided in the case of ordinances passed by the Council, 
but any petition for such referendum must be filed within thirty days after publication of 
the proceedings of the meeting of the Council at which such agreement or contract is 
authorized.  

 
The transfer or assignment of any agreement or contract for such renting or leasing or 
long-term agreements exceeding three years for public property may be made only upon 
approval of the Council, but approval of such transfer shall not be subject to referendum.  

 
Rentals, leases, long-term use agreements exceeding three years, and renewals thereof 
shall be for a fair consideration, as determined by the Council.   

 
Yes: All-7 
 
Vote on Resolution  for the Replacement of November 2005 Ballot Proposals (9)  
 
Resolution #2005-08-404 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Stine 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following proposed 
Charter Amendment Proposal 9 for the November 8, 2005 City General Election, and the 
revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter Amendment Proposal 9 at that 
election: 
 

Charter Amendment Proposal 9 
 

A PROPOSAL TO ADD TO THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 7.9.5 (COUNCIL 
INITIATED BALLOT QUESTIONS) TO THE TROY CITY CHARTER TO ALLOW CITY 
COUNCIL TO PLACE ADVISORY QUESTION ON REGULAR CITY ELECTIONS 
BALLOTS 

 
Shall Section 7.9.5 (Council Initiated Ballot Questions) of the Troy City Charter be added 
to provide a mechanism for the City Council to place advisory ballot questions on the 
Regular City Election Ballot, by an affirmative majority vote of the members elect? 

  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 27 - 

Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 9 Passes) 
 

Section 7.9.5- Submission of Council Initiated Advisory Ballot Questions to 
Electors:  
Should the Council, by an affirmative vote of the members elect, decide to submit an 
advisory ballot question to the electors, it shall be submitted at the next Regular City 
Election.  The results of all elections held under the provisions of this section shall be 
determined by a majority vote of the electors voting thereon except in cases where 
otherwise required by Statue or the Constitution. 
 

Yes: Stine, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert 
No:   Schilling 

 
MOTION CARRIED  

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2239 East Maple Road – September 12, 2005  
b) Rezoning Application – South Side of Long Lake Road, West of Calvert Drive, Section 

14 – R-1C to CR-1 (Z 706) – September 12, 2005 
Noted and Filed 

 
G-2 Green Memorandums:   
a) Options for Remnant Parcel – Site for Troy’s First Volunteer Fire Station 

Noted and Filed 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
H-1  No Council Referrals 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business, Article 15 I. 
 
Resolution #2005-08-405 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Stine 
 
RESOLVED, That City Council SUSPEND Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 
Order of Business, Article 15-I. Council Comments and AUTHORIZE City Council to discuss 
and take action on G-2a Options for Remnant Parcel – Site for Troy’s First Volunteer Fire 
Station. 
 
Yes: All-7   
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 28 - 

Proposed Resolution Regarding 5930 Livernois (G-2a Options for Remnant Parcel – Site 
for Troy’s First Volunteer Fire Station)  
 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Manager to request input from 
the members of the Parks and Recreation Board, the Historical Commission, and the Historic 
District Commission to advise on the desirability of transforming 5930 Livernois (G-2a Options 
for Remnant Parcel – Site for Troy’s First Volunteer Fire Station) into a passive or active park 
site.  
 
Proposed Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS City Staff to hold the 
parcel for six months and actively seek a group of other individuals to adopt this site and 
subsequently raise funds for implementing design elements. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2005-08-408 
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed Resolution Regarding 5930 Livernois (G-2a Options for 
Remnant Parcel – Site for Troy’s First Volunteer Fire Station) and proposed Amendment be 
POSTPONED indefinitely. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Troy Historic District Study Committee/Final – June 7, 2005 
b) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – July 6, 2005 
c) Planning Commission Regular/Draft – July 12, 2005 
d) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – July 13, 2005  
e) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust Minutes/Draft – July 13, 2005 
f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – July 26, 2005  

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 29 - 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of July, 2005  
b) Police Department – 2005 Year-to-Date Crime and Calls for Service Report 
c) Planning Department – Zoning Ordinance Test Amendment  (ZOTA 214) – Article XXVIII 

– Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A Through R-1E Districts  
d) Purchasing Department – Auction (Off Site and On-line) – Vehicle Sale in Port Huron, 

Michigan and an On-Line Auction for a Diamond Bracelet on BidNet  
e) Building Department – Additional Information on Examples of Allowable Accessory 

Structures Based Upon Final Action – ZOTA 215A 
Noted and Filed 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:   
a) Letter of Thanks to Mayor Schilling from Paul Marcus, Barton Malow Company, 

Thanking Gary Bowers, Rick Kessler, Doug Smith, Ron Figlan, Bob Matlick, Mark 
Stimac, Bill Jawlik, Pat Pettito, Gary Streight, the Entire Inspection Staff, and the Very 
Kind Administrators in the Building Department for Their Cooperation with Planning and 
Construction of Automation Alley’s Technology Center  

b) Letter of Thanks to John Szerlag from Harriet Barnard, Thanking Brian Murphy for City 
Staff’s Quick Response  

c) Letter of Thanks to Carol Anderson from Stacy Pilut, Thanking Her for the Nursery 
School Olympics  

d) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Clive D. Mattice, Jr., Thanking Officer Melissa 
Baroky for Her Assistance on I-75  

e) Letter of Thanks to Carol Anderson from Lynn and Brian Coury, Thanking Ron Hynd for 
His Prompt Service, Attention and Courtesy  

f) Letter to Chief Nelson from Vicki Barnett, Mayor, and Richard Marinucci, Fire Chief, of 
Farmington Hills, Thanking Chief Nelson and the Troy Fire Department for Participating 
in FARMEX II 

g) Letter to Troy Fire Department from Mothers & More, in Appreciation of the 
Demonstration at Their Annual Family Picnic 

h) Letter of Appreciation to Steve Vandette from Richard Bury for His Assistance 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  
a) Resolution from the City of Ferndale Extending Appreciation to the Mayors of Hiroshima 

and Nagasaki for their Leadership in Working for the Elimination of Nuclear Weapons. 
b) Resolution from Charter Township of White Lake Regarding Local Control of Liquor 

Licenses  
c) Resolution from the City of Ferndale – I-75 Final Environment Impact Statement – M-102 

to M-59 Proposed Expansion 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-6  Standard & Poor’s Annual Review of “AAA” United States Municipalities 
Noted and Filed 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 15, 2005 
 

- 30 - 

J-7  Municipal Sign Regulations v. the First Amendment 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-8  Cable Franchise Lawsuit Against the City of Troy 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-9  Memo from the Friends of the Troy Public Library Book Shop Management 
Committee 

Noted and Filed 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 11:37 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 

 
 

 Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
 



 August 10, 2005 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise 

Renewal Option – Ice Melt 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On November 15, 2004, the Troy City Council approved a contract to provide one-year 
requirements of ice melt compound with an option to renew for one (1) additional year 
for the City of Troy and participating members of the MITN Purchasing Cooperative to 
the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Washington Elevator of Washington MI. 
{Resolution #2004-11-591-E4}.  City management recommends exercising the option to 
renew for one-year under the same prices, terms and conditions as the original contract 
to expire October 31, 2006.  
 
Washington Elevator has agreed to exercise the one-year option to renew under 
2004/2005 prices, terms, and conditions. 
 

Description Price/bag 
Ice Melt – 50# bag $6.70 

 
 
MARKET SURVEY 
The Purchasing Department has conducted a market survey and concurs with the 
recommendation to exercise the option to renew due to the effects of fuel prices on 
market pricing.  
 
BUDGET 
Funds for these materials are available through the Parks Operation Account # 
770.7740.010.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Ron Hynd, Landscape Analyst 
                       Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Systems Administrator 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a



 
 

   August 3, 2005 
 

TO:      Jeanette Bennett 
      Purchasing Director 
 
FROM:    Linda N. Bockstanz 
      Associate Buyer 
 
RE:      MARKET SURVEY – ICE MELT COMPOUND – 
 
JOHN DEERE LANDSCAPES – Janson Parko                                         (517) 552-0906 
Janson has indicated that prices for Ice Melt Compound would be increasing about 10% 
to 15%.  He believes that this product price increase is due to the fuel costs – 
transportation costs have risen 20% to 30%.  As of now, he has no other products that 
can replace this product. 
 
SUPPLY DEN, INC. – Oliver Denoff                                                          (586) 939-0747 
Mr. Denoff commented that prices are going up because of fuel costs. He is figuring 
about an 8% increase on the product.   As to any products that will replace or be equal 
to the product he has now – he has not heard of any. 
 
WEINGARTZ SUPPLY COMPANY, INC - Daniel Weingartz                    (586) 731-7240 
According to Daniel, Ice Melt Compound is expected to increase about 6% to 8% this 
year because of fuel costs.  Last year’s increase was about 12 % - due to the raw 
material costs.  He does know of a new product that is out in the market that is called 
“Premium Ice Melter”.   It costs a couple of dollars less per bag, but it is made with more 
salt and it’s not popular with some companies, because it tracks into buildings, kills the 
grass around the walkways in the spring, and is not good for the environment. 
 
CONTRACTORS CONNECTION  - Steven Patterson                             (586) 726-9690 
Steven believes that Ice Melt Compound will be going up in price because of fuel costs.   
He figures that cost per bag will be $11.50 instead of $8.47.  (About $3.00 more per 
bag.)  He has not heard of any new products for Ice Melt Compound. 
 
GEISLER COMPANY – Harrie DenBoer                                                     (313) 255-1450 
Harrie told me that Ice Melt Company would increase 2% to 5%, because of the raw 
material costs and the rise of fuel costs.  Harrie is not aware of any new products for Ice 
Melt Compound. 
 
CONTINENTAL PAPER CO. – Dennis Mahr                                                (800) 333-7277 
Dennis commented that prices would be increasing 5% to 6%, because of the high cost 
of fuel, insurance, and raw material to make the product.   
 
COLMAN-WOLF – Ken Hunt                                                                         (586) 779-5500 
Per Ken Hunt, Professional Ice Melt will be increasing about 5% to 7%, due to 
transportation costs and raw materials to produce the product.   Ken does not have any 
new product that would replace this Ice Melt at this time. 
 
 
SHEMIN NURSERIES – John Standish                                                        (248) 449-8000 



John has a new product that he would like to introduce to us called “CMA-Landscaper’s 
Choice”.  This new product does not stain floors, if tracked in buildings – does not burn 
the skin – is very environmentally safe to surrounding landscapes and to grass – can be 
applied to walk areas before storms come in – and comes in 50lb Bags, 40lb Pails, and 
1 Ton Totes.   Some of their Ice Melt products will be increasing about 5% to 8%, 
because of raw materials and transportation (Fuel) Costs.  
 
ZEP MFG. COMPANY – Diane Kruliski                                                          (734) 525-0800 
Diane said that price would increase a little, but their Company has not been very 
competitive with this product.    
 
Based upon the above comments, I respectfully recommend that the City accept the 
offer to renew the contract for Ice Melt Compound due to an expected increase in cost 
per bag, mainly because of fuel costs for the next year.  
 
CC: Susan Leirstien 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Page 1 of 2 

October 25, 2004 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – 

Lowest Acceptable Bidder – Ice Melt Compound 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION   
On October 20, 2004, bid proposals were opened for one-year requirements of 
ice melt compound for use on pedestrian areas on Municipal properties. After 
reviewing these proposals, City management recommends awarding the contract 
to the low bidder meeting specifications, Washington Elevator Co., Inc. of 
Washington MI, for those participating MITN (Michigan Intergovernmental Trade 
Network) cooperative members at an estimated total cost of $18,760.00, at the 
unit price contained in the attached bid tabulation.  Troy’s portion is estimated at 
$10,988.00 per year.    
 
 
SUMMARY 
The contract is for ice melting compound used by City staff for application to 
sidewalks, stairs, and ramps located on municipal properties and properties 
controlled by the City.  Guaranteed Analysis shall be: 

• 25% Calcium chloride 
• 25% Magnesium chloride 
• 20% Potassium chloride 
• 30% sodium chloride 

 
and shall contain  an inert pattern indicator and an organic anti-caking agent. 
Compound shall be FOB delivered in 50# bags.   
 
Other participating agencies include but are not limited to:  

• Eastpointe 
• Rochester Hills 
• Livingston County  
• West Bloomfield Twp. 

 
EXPLANATION OF BID NOT MEETING SPECIFICATIONS 
Arnold Sales was unable to meet the City’s specific ice melt requirements for this 
year’s bid.  However, they did offer a comparable product for reconsideration as 
an alternative for future solicitations.  Samples need to be provided to test during 
the upcoming season.  The Parks and Recreation Director or her designated 
representative will determine acceptability and their decision will be deemed to 
be in the City’s best interest.  If approved, the product will be included on future 
bids. 



Page 2 of 2 

October 25, 2004 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
RE: Bid Award – Ice Melt Compound 
 
 
BUDGET 
Funds for this purchase are available in the Parks operating Account # 770.7740.010. 
 
 
73 Vendors Notified on the MITN System 
11 Bid Responses Received 
  1 Bid did not meet specifications 
  1 Late Bid 
  4 No Bids: (1) Company had insufficient time to respond. 

(3) Companies cannot meet specifications for a four-way ice melt product.  
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Ron Hynd, Landscape Analyst 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-49
Opening Date -- 10/20/04 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 3
Date Prepared -- 10/25/04 ICE MELT COMPOUND

VENDOR NAME: * WASHINGTON JOHN DEERE SUPPLY DEN COLMAN-WOLF
ELEVATOR LANDSCAPES INC SUPPLY CO

CO, INC
EST PRICE/EA PRICE/EA PRICE/EA PRICE/EA

QTY (BAGS)               DESCRIPTION BAG BAG BAG BAG
2,800 BAGS SIDEWALK ICE MELTING COMPOUND, Four-Way Blend,

"Professional Ice Melt" or Approved Alternate 6.70$           7.09$            7.79$           7.95$             

Quoting On:
CAPITOL PROF ICE 

MELT POWERTHAW WINTER STORM
PROFESSIONAL ICE 

MELTER

Manufactured By:
WASHINGTON 

ELEVATOR EC GROW INC
NORTH AMERICAN 

SALT CO SPRING VALLEY

50# Bags/Pallet 40 49 49 50

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL - * 18,760.00$   19,852.00$   21,812.00$  22,260.00$    

DELIVERY: No. of Days after verbal request 5 5 1-2 1-2

CONTACT INFORMATION Hrs of Oper. 8-5 7-5:30PM 7:30-5 7:30-5PM
Phone # (248)321-7939 (248)960-1882 (586)939-0747 (586)779-5500x131

  EXTENSION OF AWARD TO MITN PURCHASING COOP:Y/N YES YES YES YES
  Minimum Order (Initial) 1 TON 1 TON 1 PALLET 2 /12 TONS
  (Add'l) 1 TON 1/4 TON 2 1/2 TONS

TERMS NET 30 30 DAYS NET 30 NET 30 DAYS
FULLY

WARRANTY NONE NONE GUARANTEED N/A

DELIVERY 5 DAYS 1 HR- 5 DAYS 1-2 DAYS 1-2 DAYS

EXCEPTIONS SEE SPEC SHEET LISTED IN N/A BLANK
ATTACHED TO BID BID

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT Y or N YES YES YES YES
DMS:

Arnold Sales @ $6.25/bag => $17,500
  Reason: Comparable product offered to test for reconsideration on future bids.

* DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDER
PROPOSAL:  One year requirements of Ice Melt Compound with an option to renew for one additional year for the City of

Troy and participating MITN Purchasing Cooperative Members
ATTEST:

Jeffrey Biegler
Charlene McComb
Linda Bockstanz

___________________________
Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G:IceMelt - w/MITN PUR COOP ITB-COT 04-49.xls



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-49
Opening Date -- 10/20/04 BID TABULATION Pg. 2 of 3
Date Prepared -- 10/25/04 ICE MELT COMPOUND

VENDOR NAME: CONTINENTAL WEINGARTZ SHEMIN CONTRACTORS
PAPER SUPPLY CO INC NURSERIES CONNECTION

INC INC

EST PRICE/EA PRICE/EA PRICE/EA PRICE/EA
QTY (BAGS)               DESCRIPTION BAG BAG BAG BAG
2,800 BAGS SIDEWALK ICE MELTING COMPOUND, Four-Way Blend,

"Professional Ice Melt" or Approved Alternate 8.02$             8.47$             8.70$           9.75$             

Quoting On: EVCO PREMIUM
PROFESSIONAL ICE 

MELTER
LANDSCAPERS 

CHOICE
ZERO ICE, ICE& SNOW 

MELTER

Manufactured By: FLOR DRI SUPPLY SPRING VALLEY KISSNER GROUP
HOWARD JOHNSON 

ENTERPRISES

50# Bags/Pallet 56 50 50 48

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL - 22,456.00$    23,716.00$    24,360.00$  27,300.00$    

DELIVERY: No. of Days after verbal request 1 2 5-7 3-10

CONTACT INFORMATION Hrs of Oper. 8-5 8:30-5:30PM 8-4:30PM 7-6PM
Phone # (586)405-6839 (586)255-9960 N/A (586)405-5021

  EXTENSION OF AWARD TO MITN PURCHASING COOP:Y/N YES YES YES YES
  Minimum Order (Initial) 1 1/2 TON 1 1/4 TON 1 1/4 TON 4 PALLETS
  (Add'l) 1 1/2 TON 1 1/4 TON 1 1/4 TON 1 PALLET

TERMS NET 30 DAYS NET 30 DAYS N 30 DAYS NET 20 DAYS

WARRANTY MFR NONE N/A BLANK
FOB

DELIVERY OUR TRUCK OUR TRUCK DESTINATION 2-10 DAYS ARO

EXCEPTIONS LISTED IN BLANK LISTED IN LISTED IN
BID BID BID

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT Y or N YES YES YES YES

G:IceMelt - w/MITN PUR COOP ITB-COT 04-49.xls



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-49
Opening Date -- 10/20/04 BID TABULATION Pg. 3 of 3
Date Prepared -- 10/25/04 ICE MELT COMPOUND

VENDOR NAME: GEISLER ZEP MFG CO
COMPANY

EST PRICE/EA PRICE/EA
QTY (BAGS)               DESCRIPTION BAG BAG
2,800 BAGS SIDEWALK ICE MELTING COMPOUND, Four-Way Blend,

"Professional Ice Melt" or Approved Alternate 12.15$           12.70$           

Quoting On: SAFE STEP ICE MELT POWER THAW

Manufactured By: DOW EC GROW

50# Bags/Pallet 49 47

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL - 34,020.00$    35,560.00$    

DELIVERY: No. of Days after verbal request 7-10 2-7

CONTACT INFORMATION Hrs of Oper. 8-5 8-4:30PM
Phone # (313)920-9028 (313)938-6671

  EXTENSION OF AWARD TO MITN PURCHASING COOP:Y/N YES YES
  Minimum Order (Initial) 2 TONS 4 TONS
  (Add'l) BLANK 2 TONS

TERMS BLANK NET 30 

WARRANTY BLANK 60 DAYS

DELIVERY BLANK PREPAID

EXCEPTIONS BLANK BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT Y or N YES YES

NO BIDS:
Apac Paper
Advantage Distribution Corp
Hercules & Hercules
Industrial Cleaning Supply

G:IceMelt - w/MITN PUR COOP ITB-COT 04-49.xls









August 22, 2005 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager   
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
Re: Agenda Item: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder- 

           Snow Removal Services - Home Chore Program 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Bid proposals were opened August 10, 2005, for seasonal requirements of Snow 
Removal Services for the Home Chore Program. After reviewing the bid 
proposals, City management recommends awarding contracts for Proposal A 
and Proposal B, to the low total bidder Advanced Services of Sterling Heights as 
primary contractor and Kathy’s Lawn Maintenance of Saginaw as secondary 
contractor for an estimated total cost of $11,092.00 per season, at unit prices as 
contained on the attached bid tabulation.  Based on historical data, we anticipate 
four (4) call-outs for snow removal and salting per season.    
 
In addition, the awards are contingent upon contractors’ submission of properly 
executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements. 
 
SUMMARY 
The City expects to qualify approximately 80 residents. The successful bidder will 
clear snow from driveways, sidewalks, porches, and walkways and will salt as 
needed. The number of service calls is dependent on the weather. The successful 
contractor is called out to plow when at least 3” of snow has fallen, but may be 
called out to salt more frequently. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds for these services are reimbursed through the Oakland County Community 
Development Block Grant Program. 
 
 
99 Vendors notified on MITN System 
  2 Bid Responses Rec’d 
  1 No Bid: Company indicated job is too small. 
  1 Late Bid 
 
 
Prepared by: Vicki C. Richardson, Solid Waste Coordinator 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04b



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-34
Opening Date -- 8/10/05 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 1
Date Prepared -- 8/22/05 SNOW REMOVAL SERVICES/HOME CHORE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME: *

LOT $ SNOW REMOVAL/ $ SALTING/ $ SNOW REMOVAL/ $ SALTING/ $ SNOW REMOVAL/ $ SALTING/

EST NO. SIZE SERVICE CALL SERVICE CALL SERVICE CALL SERVICE CALL SERVICE CALL SERVICE CALL

PROPOSAL A: Snow Removal East of Rochester Road
15 60 - 85X125 23.90$        10.00$         21.00$       20.00$        
20 Over 85 X 125 28.90$        15.00$         25.00$       21.00$        

PROPOSAL B: Snow Removal West of Rochester Road
15 60 - 85X125 23.90$        10.00$         21.00$       20.00$        
20 Over 85 X 125 28.90$        15.00$         25.00$       21.00$        

TOTAL PER SERVICE CALL: 155.60$       174.00$       
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: * 11,092.00$  12,280.00$ 

DAYTIME PHONE # (586)268-0803 (989)777-7602
24- HR PHONE # (248)521-2456 (989)992-4169

EQUIPMENT: ATTACHED TO BID LISTED IN BID

EMPLOYEES: FULL-TIME 16 4
PART-TIME 20 2

TERMS: NET 30 BLANK

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: YES YES

NO BIDS: PROPOSAL - Seasonal Requirements of Snow Removal Services for the
 Troy Clogg Landscape Assoc Home Chore Program

* DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER
ATTEST:
 Charlene McComb
 Vicki Richardson
 Linda Bockstanz ________________________________

Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G:SnowRemovalHomeChoreProgram ITB-COT 05-34

ADVANCED KATHY'S LAWN

- PRIMARY - - SECONDARY -
SERVICES MAINTENANCE









                                                                                 
 
August 24, 2005 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
   
RE: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise 

Renewal Option – Volunteer Firefighter Uniforms –  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On September 22, 2003, City Council approved a two-year contract to purchase 
volunteer firefighter uniforms with an option to renew for two one (1)-year periods 
with the low bidders, Metropolitan Uniform and Allie Brothers Inc. {Corrected 
Resolution #2003-09-467-E4).  City management recommends exercising the 
option to renew for one (1)-year under the same prices, terms and conditions for 
an estimated cost of $12,000.00, to expire September 8, 2006. 
 
Both vendors have agreed to exercise the first one-year option to renew at unit 
prices contained in the attached bid tabulation dated 6/19/03. 
 
MARKET SURVEY 
The Purchasing Department has conducted a market survey and concurs with 
the recommendation to exercise the option to renew, as market conditions 
remain stable. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available for these purchases in the Fire Department Uniform Account,  
#340.7768. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Lt. Donald Mouch. Troy Fire Department 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04c



 
 

   August 23, 2005 
 
 

TO:      Jeanette Bennett 
      Purchasing Director 
 
FROM:    Linda N. Bockstanz 
     Associate Buyer 
 
 
RE:      MARKET SURVEY – FIRE UNIFORMS 
 
 
HARWOOD UNIFORM – Ron Clarke                                                  __   (248) 681-2300 
Ron has indicated the regular uniforms for the Fire Department that have been bought in 
the past will remain the same in price.  But some of the Unions, Cities and Townships 
are changing their specification on Fire uniforms to a uniform made with a new material 
called Fireware.   The cost increase of this new uniform will be 50% to 60% over the 
regular uniform, but safety is the key.  The material is fire retardant and will burn itself 
out, before the fire can even start. 
 
EXCELLENT POLICE EQUIPMENT – Stanley Muszynski Sr.                    (586) 254-1688  
According to Stanley, uniform prices are not expected to increase, but the manufacturer 
of the materials have increased their cost by .50 cents per pants, which is small.  As to 
any new fabric or materials, he is not aware of any at this time. 
  
Based upon the above comments, I respectfully recommend that the City accept the 
offer to renew the contract for Fire Uniforms to the current vendor based on the fact the 
market remains stable and no change in fabric specification is currently planned.  
 
 
CC: Susan Leirstien 
 









  August 13, 2003 
 
 
TO:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidders – 
  Volunteer Firefighter Uniforms 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
On June 19, 2003, bids were received from four (4) bidders to provide two-year 
requirements of uniforms for the volunteer firefighter staff with an option to renew 
for two-one year periods.  The Fire Department recommends a contract be 
awarded to the two lowest bidders, Metropolitan Uniform Co., Inc., 3144 W.  
12 Mile Road Berkley, MI 48072 and Allie Brothers, Inc., 20295 Middlebelt, 
Livonia, MI 48152 at an estimated total cost of $12,000.00 per year.  Unit prices 
are contained in the attached bid tabulation opened June 19, 2003.     
 
SUMMARY 
 
While Allie Brothers had the lowest total bid by $143.42 over the second low 
bidder, Metropolitan Uniform, cost was not the only criteria in recommending a 
dual award.  In addition, the evaluation committee determined the facilities 
needed to be conveniently located and adequately stock with merchandise. 
Offering more than one location would make purchasing easier for the volunteers 
and an efficient use of City resources. 
 
 
BUDGET 
 
Funds are available for these uniforms in the Fire Department Operating Account 
340.7768. 
 
 
 
49 Vendors Notified on the MITN System 
 4 Bid Responses Rec’d 
 4 No Bids:   (1) Company has no representative in our area 
  (3) Companies do not handle all products specified 
 
 

Prepared by:  Lt. Don Mouch, Fire Department 
 







CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 03-09
Opening Date -- 6-19-03 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 2
Date Prepared -- 6/24/03 FIRE UNIFORMS

VENDOR NAME: ** ALLIE METROPOLITAN EXCELLENT HARWOOD
BROTHERS UNIFORM POLICE EQUIP UNIFORMS

 
ITEM QTY (EA) DESCRIPTION PRICE/EA PRICE/EA PRICE/EA PRICE/EA

1. HATS - CLASS A
Pershing Cap - Fire Department

   A. 20 1) Firefighter - Navy 36.00$            27.50$            38.00$            45.00$           
   B. 0 2) Officer - White 45.00$            42.99$            BLANK 65.00$           
2. SHIRTS (White, Navy blue)

White - Class A
   A. 20 1) Long Sleeve MEN 39.95$            44.99$            44.95$            46.50$           

WOMEN 39.95$            44.99$            44.95$            46.50$           
Navy Blue - Class B

   B. 20 1) Long Sleeve MEN 34.95$            39.99$            39.95$            49.90$           
WOMEN 34.95$            39.99$            39.95$            49.90$           

   C. 20 2) Short Sleeve MEN 32.95$            35.99$            35.95$            45.50$           
WOMEN 32.95$            35.99$            35.95$            45.50$           

Quoting On: STATION WEAR 1276/1576 LION'S AS SPEC
Manufactured By: LION LION MFG BLANK LION

3. TIE, NORMAL KNOT
   A. 20 Normal Length 4.00$              3.50$              3.00$              4.00$             
   B. 0 Long Length 5.00$              3.50$              BLANK 4.00$             
   C. 0 Short Length 4.00$              3.50$              BLANK 4.00$             

4. JACKET - FIRE STAFF ASST.
3 Spiewak with removable liner 124.95$           109.99$           139.95$           125.00$          

BLAUER 6120
5. DRESS BLOUSE - CLASS A

10 Dress Blouse, Double breasted
Buttons included as spec.

MEN 199.95$           199.99$           199.95$           225.00$          
WOMEN 199.95$           199.99$           199.95$           225.00$          

Quoting On: 13754 13754/34892 13745 AS SPEC
Manufactured By: ELBECO ELBECO/ ELBECO ELBECO

FECH BROS
6. RANK INSIGNIA - STRIPES

   A. 0 Lieutenant Silver or Gold 10.00$            10.99/row BLANK 18.50$           
   B. 0 Captain Silver or Gold 15.00$            10.99/row BLANK 20.50$           
   C. 0 Assistant Chief Silver or Gold 15.00$            10.99/row BLANK 22.50$           

7. EMBROIDERED SERVICE STARS $1.99 SILVER
0 Silver or Gold on Navy background 2.00$              $3.00 GOLD 2.00$              3.00$             

8. TROUSERS - CLASS A
   A. 20 1) Fechhmeimer 32260 MEN 69.95$            86.50$            84.95$            89.90$           

2) Fechhmeimer 35260 WOMEN 69.95$            86.50$            84.95$            89.90$           
Quoting On: 1360 32260/35260 TROUSERS AS SPEC
Manufactured By: ELBECO fech bros FECH FECH

   B. 20 3) Fechhmeimer 34291 MEN 59.95$            59.99$            67.95$            75.00$           
4) Fechhmeimer 35291 WOMEN 59.95$            59.99$            67.95$            75.00$           
TROUSERS - CLASS B

   C. 50 Manufactured: Lyon or App. Alter.
Style #130  Color: Navy MEN 38.95$            36.00$            38.95$            52.50$           

WOMEN 38.95$            36.00$            38.95$            52.50$           



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 03-09
Opening Date -- 6-19-03 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 2
Date Prepared -- 6/24/03 FIRE UNIFORMS

VENDOR NAME: ** ALLIE METROPOLITAN EXCELLENT HARWOOD
BROTHERS UNIFORM POLICE EQUIP UNIFORMS

 
9. LEATHER GOODS

 BELTS MEN 19.95$            18.99$            34.95$            15.50$           
20 Garrison Belts WOMEN 19.95$            18.99$            34.95$            15.50$           

Quoting On: FIRE BELT SPEC FIRE BELTS FBW
Manufactured By: DUTY MAN BLANK PANDO PANDO

10. SHOES  
10 Manufacturer by: 74.95$            79.99$            65.00$            84.50$           

   Bates or App. Alter.  
Quoting On: 941 SPEC 834 6130 968
Manufactured By: BATES BATES THUROGOOD BATES

11. EXTRA TAILORING CHARGES
   A. 10 Shirt Tailoring (Side & Sleeve Seams) 8.00$              N/C 5.00$              4.50$             
   B. 5 Billy Pocket  (Sew-In) 6.00$              N/C 10.00$            7.50$             

 ESTIMATED TOTAL COST FOR ITEMS INCLUDED IN AWARD CALCULATION --  11,135.35$      11,278.77$      12,110.85$      13,603.50$     

FACILITY:
Inventory valued at: 120,000 500,000 10,000 100,000
Location: LIVONIA VARIOUS AREAS SHELBY TWP 908 W HURON
Miles from Troy City: 19 6 8 10

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Hours of Operation 9-5:30 M-F 9-6M-F 10-6 M-F 8:30-5 M-F
Emergency Phone # Y or N YES YES N/A YES

TERMS: NET 30 NET 30 NET 30 DAYS NET 30

WARRANTY: PER MFG BLANK MFG 100%

DELIVERY: As Specified As Specified As Specified As Specified

TOLL FREE ORDER # 800-352-5543 BLANK 586-254-1688 BLANK

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK BLANK BLANK

NO BIDS:
  Seneca Medical
  Douglas Safety Systems ** DENOTES DUAL AWARD TO LOWEST TOTAL BIDDERS 
  ATC Uniforms Inc
  Apollo Fire Equipment

ATTEST: _____________________________
  Richard Sinclair Jeanette Bennett
  MaryAnn Hays Purchasing Director
  Linda Bockstanz

G: Fire Uniforms ITB-COT 03-09







August 19, 2005 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award: 

Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications – Ramp and Stair 
Replacement at the Troy Historical Museum 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
On August 12, 2005, bids were opened for the replacement of the accessibility 
ramp and stairs at the main museum building.  City management recommends 
that an award be made to the lowest acceptable bidder, Poe Restoration and 
Waterproofing of Commerce, Michigan at an estimated total cost of $16,250.00.  
This is contingent upon vendor submission of proper contract and bid 
documents, including insurance certificates, bonds, and all specified 
requirements. 
 
In addition, we are requesting authorization to add work due to unforeseen 
circumstances, not to exceed 10% of the original project cost.   
 
EXPLANATION OF BID NOT MEETING SPECIFICATIONS 
McCarthy Construction Company submitted a bid without the required bid surety 
check of $4,000.00.  Instead, they submitted an unacceptable 5% bid bond.  The 
bid proposal document states the following on page 3 of 3 of the Instructions to 
Bidders: 
 

9) A cashier’s check, certified check, or money order in the amount of $4,000.00 must 
accompany the bid to insure the bid.  The two lowest unsuccessful bidders will have 
their bid surety returned after the bid award.  BID BONDS ARE NOT ACCEPTABLE.  
The bid surety will be returned to the successful bidder upon submission of the 
specified acceptable Performance, Labor and Material Payment Bonds, and an 
executed two (2) year maintenance Bond in accordance with specifications.   

 
The addendum issued on July 29, 2005, as a result of a non-mandatory pre-bid 
meeting reiterated the requirement to provide a bid surety check for $4,000.00; 
and bid bonds were not acceptable. 
 
SUMMARY 
At the front of the museum’s main building, the existing half wall adjacent to the 
accessibility ramp has become unstable because it is separating from the ramp.  
In addition, the concrete stairs at the front entrance have deteriorated to the point 
they have become a safety issue.  
 
Five companies submitted bids for the replacement of the accessibility ramp and 
stairs.  Poe Restoration and Waterproofing was the lowest acceptable bidder. 

 
1 of 2 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04d



 
August 19, 2005 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Bid Award – Ramp and Stair Replacement – Troy Museum 
 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
BUDGET   
Funds are available to complete this project in the Museum General Repairs 
Account #401804.7975.900. 
 
135 Vendors Notified via MITN System 
   5 Bid Responses Rec’d 
   1 Bid did not meet Specifications 
   1 No Bid: Contractor unionized, job was not prevailing wage. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager 
 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-18
Opening Date --  8/12/05 BID TABULATION Page 1 of  2
Date Prepared -- 8/19/05 RAMP & STAIRS - MUSEUM & HISTORICAL VILLAGE

VENDOR NAME: * POE Restoration Mando Construction Grunwell Cashero Western Waterproofing
& Waterproofing Company Company

Check # 101624352 298858256 345016232 967361655-6
Amount $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00

DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
REPLACE THE MUSEUM RAMP AND STAIRS INCLUDING MASONRY AT THE TROY MUSEUM AND HISTORICAL VILLAGE

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SPECIFICATIONS:

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: * $16,250.00 $16,425.00 $18,440.00 $23,000.00

ALTERNATE #1 - Provide/Install - Stone Caps $800.00 $100.00 $1,150.00 $1,200.00

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Hrs of Operations: 8:00 to 5:30 24 Hrs 8:00 to 5:00 8:00 to 5:00
24 Hr. Phone # 248-360-7788 586-531-4740 313-475-8799 810-560-9982

SITE INSPECTION: Y or N No Yes Yes Yes
Date - 7/28/2005 7/28/2005 7/28/2005

COMPLETION DATE:
Can meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot meet

BIDDERS QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

TERMS: Net 30 Net 30 Per Specifications Blank

WARRANTY: 2 Years 18 Months 2 years Blank

EXCEPTIONS: N/A Blank Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Yes or No Yes Yes Yes Yes

ADDENDUM #1              Yes or No No Yes Yes Yes

DMS: McCarthy Construction Co. - No Check - Bid Bond

ATTEST:
Loraine Campbell * DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDER
M. Aileen Bittner
Linda Bockstanz
Mark Stimac Jeanette Bennett

Purchasing Director

G:\ITB-COT 05-18 Ramps & Stair - Museum

October 15, 2005



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-18
Opening Date --  8/12/05 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 2
Date Prepared -- 8/19/05 RAMP & STAIRS - MUSEUM & HISTORICAL VILLAGE

VENDOR NAME: Commercial Contracting
Corporation

Check # 118580
Amount $4,000.00

DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
REPLACE THE MUSEUM RAMP AND STAIRS INCLUDING MASONRY AT THE TROY MUSEUM AND HISTORICAL VILLAGE, 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SPECIFICATIONS:

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: $35,500.00

ALTERNATE #1 - Provide/Install - Stone Caps $800.00

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX
Cannot Meet

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Hrs of Operations: 8:00 to 5:00
24 Hr. Phone # 248-866-3049

SITE INSPECTION: Y or N Yes
Date 7/28/2005

COMPLETION DATE:
Can meet XX
Cannot meet

BIDDERS QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N Partial

TERMS: Blank

WARRANTY: 2 Years

EXCEPTIONS: Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Yes or No Yes

ADDENDUM #1              Yes or No Yes

NO BIDS:
  All Star Construction, Inc

G:\ITB-COT 05-18 Ramps & Stair - Museum

October 15, 2005











 
 August 16, 2005  

 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
RE:  Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal 

Option – Pavement Seam and Fracture Sealing Program 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On October 18, 2004, the Troy City Council approved a contract to complete a 
Pavement Seam and Fracture Sealing Program with an option to renew for two (2) 
additional one-year periods, to the low bidder, Scodeller Construction, Inc. at an 
estimated total cost of $657,500.00, with authorization to change the quantity of work 
either additive or deductive in an amount not to exceed 25% {Resolution #2004-10-
546-E7}.  Scodeller Construction, Inc. has agreed to exercise the one-year option to 
renew under the same prices, terms, and conditions. 
  
The Public Works Department recommends exercising the option to renew for one-
year, which will expire June 30, 2006, at an estimated total cost of $500,000.00, at unit 
prices as contained in the attached bid tabulation opened 9/29/04.  In addition, staff 
requests authorization to change the quantity of work either additive or deductive at 
unit prices contained in the attached bid tabulation, not to exceed 25% of the total 
project cost and within budgetary limitations. 
 
BACKGROUND 

• Scodeller Construction, Inc. has been able to produce a quality product for the 
City. 

 
• Moving this work forward enhances the pavement’s useful life, improves the 

safety for all pedestrians and reduces the liability for the City. 
 
MARKET SURVEY 
The Purchasing Department has conducted a market survey and concurs with the 
recommendation to exercise the option to renew as fuel prices are expected to rise in 
the next year. 
 
BUDGET 
Funding for this program is available in the Capital Accounts for the Pavement Seam 
and Fracture Sealing Program - Major and Local Roads, Account #401479.7989.200 
($100,000.00) and #401499.7989.120 ($400,000.00) respectively. 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Marina Basta Farouk, Project Construction Manager 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04e



 
 

  August 16, 2005 
 

TO:      Jeanette Bennett 
      Purchasing Director 
 
FROM:    Linda N. Bockstanz 
      Associate Buyer 
 
RE:      MARKET SURVEY – PAVEMENT SEAM & FRACTURE SEALING  
 
 
 MICHIGAN JOINT SEALING, INC.– Jerry                                                     (248) 476-4120 
According to Jerry, all prices will be the same for materials for pavement and sealing.  
There maybe an increase of 10% in the next nine months, because of fuel, but as far as 
he’s concerned he believes prices will even out by next year.  As of new products 
coming out, he has not heard of any for this year.  
 
 
Based upon the above comment, I respectfully recommend that the City accept the offer 
to renew the contract for Pavement Seam & Fracture Sealing to the current vendor on 
the fact that costs will remain the same now, but will increase in the coming nine months 
based upon rising transportation and fuel costs.    
 
CC: Susan Leirstien 
 







 
 
  October 7, 2004 
  
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
  
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
   
RE:  Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award To Low 

Bidder – Pavement Seam and Fracture Sealing Program 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
On September 29, 2004, bids were received for the Pavement Seam and 
Fracture Sealing Program with an option to renew for two (2) additional one-year 
periods.  City management recommends awarding the contract to the low bidder, 
Scodeller Construction, Inc. P.O. Box 448, South Lyon MI 48178 for an estimated 
total cost of  $657,500.00, at unit prices contained in the attached bid tabulation. 
 
In addition, staff requests authorization to change the quantity of work either 
additive or deductive at unit prices contained in the attached bid tabulation, not to 
exceed 25% of the total project cost and within budgetary limitations. 
 
The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  The program was bid on a low total award basis due to 
bonding requirements and contract size.  Maintenance will be performed at the 
locations identified and is scheduled for completion by June 30, 2005.  
 
BUDGET 
 
Funds are available to complete this project in the Public Works Construction 
Capital Accounts for Crack and Joint Sealing Major and Local Roads, Account 
#401479.7989.200 and #401499.7989.120 respectfully. 
 
57 Vendors Notified on MITN System 
   1 Vendor Walk-In 
   2 Bid Responses Rec’d 
 
Prepared by:  Marina Basta-Farouk, Project Construction Manager 
 
 
 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-40
Opening Date -- 9-29-04 BID TABULATION
Date Prepared -- 10/7/04 PAVEMENT SEAM & FRACTURE SEALING

VENDOR NAME: *
 

Ck Number
Ck Amount

Proposal:  City of Troy Pavement Seam & Fracture Sealing Program with an Option to Renew for
Two (2) Additional One-Year Periods

Pavement Seam & Fracture Sealing 
for Material for Major
and Local Roads

4 Traffic Control Included ------ Included ------ Included
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL *  $  657,500.00  $  708,250.00 

INSURANCE:                        Can meet XX XX
                                               Cannot Meet

CONTACT INFORMATION:
                                         Hrs of Operation 7AM-7PM 7AM-4PM
                                         Contact Number (248)787-1139 (248)476-4120

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: Y or N

COMPLETION SCHEDULE:
                                               Can Meet XX XX
                                               Cannot Meet

TERMS: NET 30 NET 30

WARRANTY: 1 YEAR 1 YEAR

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N YES YES

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: Y or N YES YES

LEGAL STATUS OF BIDDER Y or N YES YES
NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT Y or N YES YES

ATTEST: * DENOTES LOW BIDDER
MaryAnn Hays
Marina Basta-Farouk Jeanette Bennett
Tom Rosewarne Purchasing Director
Linda Bockstanz

G:ITB-COT 04-40 Pavement Seam & Seal

$2,500.00

MICHIGAN JOINT SEALING
INC

233619886 649171894

UNIT 
PRICE

INC
SCODELLER CONSTRUCTION

Yes, Bi-Weekly

$2,500.00

EXTENSION UNIT 
PRICE

EXTENSION

1 Pavement Seam & Fracture Sealing 
for   Major Roads - Labor

350,000 
L.F.

 $    0.665 

ITEM DESCRIPTION Estimated 
Quantities

2 Pavement Seam & Fracture Sealing 
for   Local Roads - Labor

500,000 
L.F.

 $    0.635 

 $  232,750.00  $     0.67  $  234,500.00 

 $  317,500.00  $     0.70  $  350,000.00 

First Year by June 30, 2005

3 275,000 
LBS.

 $      0.39  $  107,250.00  $     0.45  $  123,750.00 

Upon Completion







 Page 1 

Memo 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 

From: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager / Services 

 Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 

 Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 

Date: 8/30/2005 

Re: Pavement Seam and Fracture Sealing Program Background 

Attached is an MDOT manual developed by Michigan Technological University providing the 
background as to the importance of pavement sealing programs. It also provides photos that illustrate 
cracks that are suitable for Sealing. 

Attached there is a collection of photos from the streets that are scheduled to be sealed in the 2005/06 
program and are identified as attachment “A”.  These streets are but a few of the locations and are as 
follows: 

Rockfield, Evanswood, Moringdale, Northampton. 

In attachment “B” we have provided some after photos from our most resent pavement sealing 
program. These streets are but a few of the locations and are as follows: 

Amberwood, Caswell, Fieldstone, and Harned. 

Attachment “C” provides photos of the actual seam and fracture operation.  

 

Prepared by Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 

  

Public Works 
Department 



























































A 

 



A 

 



A 

 



A 

 



B 

 



B 

 



B 

 



B 

 



C 

 



C 

 



C 

 



 
 
 
August 25, 2005 
 
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
Charles Craft, Chief of Police 

 
Subject:   Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend 

Budgeted Funds – Troy Community Coalition 
 
 
APPROVAL TO EXPEND FUNDS 
 
The Police Department requests approval to continue to provide funding to the TROY 
COMMUNITY COALITION in the amount of $100, 000.00 for the 2005/2006 fiscal year. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Troy Community Coalition will provide community services to prevent drug and 
alcohol abuse. 
 
Funding requirements were previously approved by the City Council on September 13, 
2004, resolution #2004-09-454, September 22, 2003, resolution #2003-09-474, July 22, 
2002, resolution #2002-07-427, September 10, 2001, resolution #2011-09-449 and 
August 21, 2000, resolution #2000-387-E-4. 
 
BUDGET 
 
The Police Department’s Police Administration Contractual Services – Troy Community 
Coalition, account #305.7802.109 has been designated for the funding of this program. 
 
 
Reviewed as to Form and Legality:  _____________________________     _________ 
            Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney     Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Terry Colussi, Office Coordinator 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04f











DATE:  September 1, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – Standard Purchasing Resolution 6: Grant 

Approval And Authorization to Expend City Funds – Radio 
Equipment 

 
Recommendation 
 
City management recommends that the Troy City Council approve the use of 
funds received from a U. S. Fire Administration Grant and authorizes the 
purchase of radio equipment under existing Oakland County contract, at an 
estimated cost of $131,000. 
 
Background 
 
The City of Troy has received a U.S. Fire Administration FIRE Act grant for 
$131,000 for the purchase of mobile and portable radios to operate with the new 
Oakland County 800 MHz digital trunked radio system.  The equipment top be 
purchased is covered under the existing Oakland County contract with M/A-Com 
Inc. the system provider. 
 
This is a 70% federally funded project with a 30% local match.  Oakland County 
has agreed to reimburse the 30% local match. 
 
 
Budget 
 
This resolution amends the Fire department capital budget to receive the grant 
funding and allows it to be expended on the designated items.  

campbellld
Text Box
E-04g

















September 6, 2005 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low  

Bidder – Slate Roof Repair and Replacement – Troy Historical 
Museum 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On August 17, 2005, bids were opened for the repair and replacement of the 
slate roof of the main museum building.  City management recommends that an 
award be made to the low total bidder, Butcher & Baeker Construction Co., Inc. 
of Rochester Hills, Michigan at an estimated total cost of $91,033.00.  This is 
contingent upon vendor submission of proper contract and bid documents, 
including insurance certificates, bonds, and all specified requirements. 
 
In addition, staff is requesting authorization to add work due to unforeseen 
circumstances, not to exceed 10% of the original project cost or $9,103.00. 
 
SUMMARY 
The roof of the main museum building, the original Troy Township Hall, is 
comprised of slate shingles.  Some of the shingles have slid out of place and 
some are broken or cracked.  In addition, extensive discoloring has occurred due 
to the rusted sheet metal flashing, gutters, and ridge caps. This project will 
replace damaged shingles, reinstall shingles that have fallen out of place, replace 
the flashing, counter flashing, closed valley pans, and vent stack flashing, and 
install ice and water shields. 
 
BUDGET  
Funds are available to complete this project in the Museum General Repairs 
Capital Account #401804.7975.900. 
 
35 Vendors Notified via MITN System 
43 JD Edwards Vendors mailed Notices 
  3 Vendor Walk-Ins 
  2 Bid Responses Rec’d 
  2 No Bids: Both companies not interested in bidding at this time. 
 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 05-06/AwardStandardPurchasingResolution 1 – Museum Slate roof.08.05.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04h



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-20
Opening Date -- 08-17-05 BID TABULATION
Date Prepared -- 9/6/05 SLATE ROOF REPAIR & REPLACEMENT - MUSEUM

VENDOR NAME: ** Butcher & Baecker Detroit Cornice and Butcher & Baecker
Construction Slate Company Construction

ALTERNATE BID

CHECK #: 792638040 906196556
CHECK AMOUNT: $9,000.00 $9,000.00

PROPOSAL: ROOF REPAIR & REPLACEMENT OF TROY MUSEUM, at 60 WATTLES ROAD, TROY
To repair and replace the Slate roof system in accordance with specifications, terms, and conditions.

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: $85,000.00 $99,000.00 92,500.00$            

ALTERNATE #! - Gutter Screens $1,700.00 $9,000.00

Additional Material Costs: UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
Wood Replacement-Trim, fascia, & Soffits

1' x 2' 40_QTY __4.50____  LF 40_QTY ____.50____  LF

1' x 6' 65_QTY __5.00  __  LF 65 QTY ___7.00  __  LF

1' x 10' 65_QTY __5.50  __  LF 65 QTY ___8.00      LF

1' x 12' 40_QTY __5.75____  LF 40_QTY __14.00___  LF

Rigid Extruded Alum. Soffit Vent 180 QTY _14.00  _ LF 180 QTY _    5.00  _ LF

Bead Board Soffit 60_QTY __12.00  _ LF 60_QTY ___5.00   _ LF

Slate Repairs  - over 10% ____QTY __25.00 _ SP ____QTY __35.00  _ SP

ESTIMATED TOTAL FOR MATERIALS 4,332.50$                    2,755.00$              

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL:    ** $91,032.50 $110,755.00
SCHEDULE OF VALUES:

Marked as: Upon Request Blank

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N XX XX
Date 7/28/2005 7/28/2005

COMPLETION DATE:
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet

BIDDER QUESTIONNAIRE:
Attached XX XX
Not Attached

TERMS: Net 30 30 Days

WARRANTY: 2 Yrs - Labor 2 Years

EXCEPTIONS: LISTED IN BID NONE Entire Roof Removal
and Replacement

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Y or N Yes Yes

ADDENDUM 1: Y or N Yes Yes

MICHIGAN HISTORIC NETWORK Yes No Info

ATTEST: NO BIDS:
Loraine Campbell Allen Brothers
Cheryl Stewart Bloomfield Construction Jeanette Bennett
Brian Stoutenburg Purchasing Director
Mark Stimac ** DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER
Linda Bockstanz
G:Slate Roof Repair & Replacement-Museum ITB-COT 05-20







August 15, 2005 
 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
   
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Request To Waive Parking Restrictions 
 
 
Smith Middle School requests that the parking restrictions be waived on 
Donaldson street from Square Lake Road to Cotswald street, so that they may 
host school activities on the following dates: 

• September 15, 2005, between the hours of 6:30 pm and 9:30 pm (Open 
House) 

• November 16 and 17, 2005, between the hours of 11:30 am and 9:00 pm 
(Parent Teacher Conferences) 

• March 2, 2006, between the hours of 11:30 am and 9:00 pm (Parent 
Teacher Conferences) 

• March 3, 2006, between the hours of 5:30 pm and 9:30 pm (Family Fun 
Friday) 

• June 14, 2006, between the hours of 9:00 am and 12:00 noon (8th Grade 
Promotion) 

 
Both sides of Donaldson are posted no parking areas and parking at Smith 
Middle School is limited.   
 
Smith Middle School makes these requests each year and city staff is supportive 
of them.  Therefore, it is recommended that parking restrictions on the non-
hydrant side of the street (the west side) be waived on the dates and times 
requested.  Waiving the restrictions on the non-hydrant side will provide 
additional parking while still allowing for the passage of emergency vehicles. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-05



campbellld
Text Box
E-06











campbellld
Text Box
E-07

































September 7, 2005 
 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Request to Waive Parking Restrictions 
 
 
The Congregation Shir Tikvah, 3900 Northfield Parkway, requests that the no 
parking restrictions on the east side of Northfield Parkway from the entrance to 
the synagogue parking lot to the entrance to Boulan Park be waived on the 
following dates and times: 

• October 3, 2005, (Monday) 7:00 pm – 11:00 pm 
• October 4, 2005, (Tuesday) 9:00 am – 5:00 pm 
• October 12, 2005, (Wednesday) 7:00 pm – 11:00 pm 
• October 13, 2005, (Thursday) 9:00 am – 9:00 pm 

 
This request is made to accommodate parking for attendees of the High Holidays 
observances on those dates.  Shir Tikvah has an agreement to utilize the parking 
lot of the Stonehaven Church (Wattles Road e/o Northfield Parkway) and desires 
to eliminate the need for attendees to park in adjacent sub-divisions.  Waiving the 
no parking restrictions will allow service attendees to park on the unpaved 
shoulder of the roadway.  Synagogue officials indicate they will ensure those 
parking there do not impede traffic. 
 
The police and fire departments process this request each year and are not 
opposed to it. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-08



campbellld
Text Box
E-09





WINTER MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 
 

Under 1951 PA 51, As Amended 
 
 
 This Agreement made this ___________day of _____________________, 2005, between the Board 
of County Road Commissioners of the County of Oakland, State of Michigan, a Public Body Corporate, 
hereinafter referred to as the “BOARD”, and the City of Troy, Oakland County Michigan, a Municipal 
Corporation hereinafter referred to as the “CITY”, witnesseth as follows to-wit: 
 
 Certain county primary and local roads more specifically set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto, are 
under the jurisdiction and control of the Board and are located within or adjacent to the City. 
  
 The City hereby agrees to be responsible for the winter maintenance of said roads under the terms of 
this Agreement and the Board agrees to participate in the cost thereof as provided in Section III of this 
Agreement. 
 
 The “Winter Maintenance” included in the terms of this Agreement shall be such as is defined in 
Section I of this Agreement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual convenants set forth herein as provided, it is 
hereby agreed as follows: 
 
 

I 
 

Winter Maintenance, as herein required to be performed by City, shall include the following 
minimum requirements: 
 
 SNOW AND ICE CONTROL:  Snow removal by blading, plowing and other methods necessary to 
make the roads reasonably safe for public travel.  Ice Control by salting, sanding, scraping and other methods 
necessary to make the roads reasonably safe for public travel. 
 
 

II 
 
 City agrees to hold harmless, represent, defend and indemnify the Board, its officials and employees 
from any and all suits arising out of the performance or non-performance of the activities, which are the 
subject matter of this Agreement only, specifically those activities set out in Section I. However, this hold 
harmless provision does not apply if any claim or suit is alleged to be or demonstrated to be the result of a 
defect in highway design or condition not related to the maintenance activities set out in Section I. Further, 
since the Board has the statutory responsibility for maintenance of the roads under this Agreement, its is the 
intent of the parties that the delegation by Agreement of those maintenance responsibilities to the City 
provide immunity to the City as an agent of the County. Therefore, the City falls within the governmental 
immunity protection of the County.  
 

Only during that part of the year that the City is providing snow removal or ice control under Section 
I, the City agrees to notify the Board within 30 days, should it become aware of defects or maintenance 
requirements in the roads set forth in Exhibit A, if said defects or maintenance requirements are not Winter 
Maintenance subject to this Agreement.  

 
  
  



III 
 
 In consideration of the assumption of Winter Maintenance by the City, the Board agrees to pay to the 
City the sum of  

$3,065.17 per mile, for roads having two lanes of through traffic 
$4,348.95 per mile, for roads having three lanes of through traffic 
$5,364.05 per mile, for roads having four or five lanes of through traffic 
$6,616.00 per mile, for roads having six or more lanes of through traffic, 

in accordance with the mileage set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof.  Such amounts 
are to be used by the City for Winter Maintenance.  Payments are to be made by the Board to the City as 
follows: 

 
35% in December 2005 

65% in March 2006 
 
 The making of said payments shall constitute the Board’s entire obligation in reference to Winter 
Maintenance. 
 

IV 
 
 The usual maintenance guidelines and standard practices utilized by the Board, including but not 
limited to, the Board adopted Winter Maintenance Guidelines, shall control.  Should any dispute arise as to 
the character or extent of Winter Maintenance or to City’s performance hereunder, the controversy may be 
referred to an arbitration board consisting of the Road Commission for Oakland County Director of Highway 
Maintenance, the Public Works Director and a third person to be chosen by them for settlement thereof. 
 

V 
 
 The City shall acquire and maintain, during the term of the Agreement, statutory Worker’s 
Compensation Insurance, automobile and comprehensive general liability insurance coverage as described in 
Exhibit C attached hereto covering the Board’s liability for any and all claims arising out of the City’s 
performance or non-performance of the activities which are the subject matter of this Agreement. 
 
 Certificates of insurance for each policy providing for 30 days notice of cancellation, termination or 
material change shall be provided to the Board, and are attached as Exhibit D. 
 

VI 
 
  

The City further agrees to comply with all relevant laws and regulations of the State of Michigan for 
safeguarding the air and waters of the State.  In particular, City facilities and operations must meet the 
provisions of Part 5 (Spillage of Oil and Polluting Materials) rules promulgated pursuant to Part 31, Water 
Resources Protection, of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as 
amended.  (Rules R324.2001 through R324.2009 address release prevention planning, secondary 
containment, surveillance, and release reporting requirements). 

 
VII 

 
In accordance with 1976 PA 453, as amended, and 1976 PA 220, as amended, the City covenants not 

to discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment with respect to hire, tenure, terms, 
conditions, or privileges of employment, or a matter directly or indirectly related to employment because of 
race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height, weight, marital status or because of a handicap that is 



unrelated to the individual’s ability to perform the duties of the particular job or position and to require a 
similar covenant on the part of any subcontractor employed in the performance of the Agreement. 

 
VIII 

 
 It is the intention of the parties hereto that this Agreement is not made for the benefit of any third 
party. 
 
 It is anticipated that subsequent agreements regarding Winter Maintenance activities will be executed 
annually by the Parties hereto. 
 
 The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall become effective on October 1, 2005, and shall 
continue in full force and effect until a subsequent Winter Maintenance agreement has been executed by the 
parties hereto or until this agreement is terminated, as set forth below. 
 
 In the event that a subsequent Winter Maintenance agreement has not been executed by the parties 
hereto on or before September 1, 2006, either party may terminate this Agreement by providing the other 
party hereto with written notice of intent to terminate, at least thirty days prior to the date of termination. 
 
 This Agreement is executed by the Board at its meeting of _________________________________, 
and by the City by authority of a resolution of its governing body, adopted ___________________________, 
(copy attached as Exhibit B). 
 
 
Witnesses:      CITY OF TROY 
       A Municipal Corporation 
 
 
________________________________________ By:________________________________________ 
 
 
       Its:________________________________________ 
 
 
________________________________________ By:________________________________________ 
 
 
       Its:________________________________________ 
 
 
Witnesses:      BOARD OF COUNTY ROAD COMMISSIONERS 
       OF THE COUNTY OF OAKLAND, 
       A Public Body Corporate 
 
 
________________________________________ By:_________________________________________ 
 
       Its:_________________________________________ 
 
 
________________________________________ By:_________________________________________ 
 
       Its:_________________________________________ 



 
WINTER MAINTENANCE 

2005-2006 
CITY OF TROY 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
 
Long Lake Road 
Extending from Adams to Dequindre 

1.54 miles at $3,065.17 per mile     $   4,720.36 
0.16 miles at $4,348.95 per mile     $      695.83         
3.47 miles at $5,364.05 per mile     $ 18,613.25  
0.86 miles at $6,616.00 per mile     $   5,689.76   
TOTAL        $ 29,719.20 

 
 
John R Road 
Extending from Fourteen Mile Road to South Boulevard 

1.15 miles at $3,065.17 per mile     $   3,524.95     
0.32 miles at $4,348.95 per mile     $   1,391.66 
4.37 miles at $5,364.05 per mile     $ 23,440.90  
0.38 miles at $6,616.00 per mile     $   2,514.08  
TOTAL        $ 30,871.59 

 
 
Big Beaver 
Extending from Adams to Dequindre 

3.40 miles at $5,364.05 per mile     $  18,237.77  
2.61 miles at $6,616.00 per mile     $  17,267.76 
TOTAL        $  35,505.53 

 
 
Crooks Road 
Extending from Maple Road to South Boulevard 

0.38 miles at $3,065.17 per mile     $    1,164.77  
0.26 miles at $4,348.95 per mile     $    1,130.73 
3.08 miles at $5,364.05 per mile     $  16,521.27  
1.40 miles at $6,616.00 per mile     $    9,262.40 
TOTAL        $  28,079.17 

 
 
Livernois Road 
Extending from Maple Road to South Boulevard 

1.31 miles at $3,065.17 per mile     $   4,015.37 
0.34 miles at $4,348.95 per mile     $   1,478.64 
3.05 miles at $5,364.05 per mile     $ 16,360.35  
0.43 miles at $6,616.00  per mile     $   2,844.88 

 TOTAL        $ 24,699.24  
 

 
 
 



 
WINTER MAINTENANCE 

2005-2006 
CITY OF TROY 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
Maple Road 
Extending from Dequindre to Coolidge 
 5.01 Miles at $5364.05 per mile     $  26,873.89 
 
 
South Boulevard 
Extending from Dequindre to Adams 
 5.96 Miles at $3,065.17 per mile     $  18,268.41 
 
Dequindre Road 
Extending from Fourteen Mile to South Boulevard 
 2.16 Miles at $3,065.17 per mile     $    6,620.77 
 3.98 Miles at $5,364.05 per mile     $  21,348.92 
 TOTAL        $  27,969.69 
 
 
Adams Road 
Extending from South Troy City Limits to South Boulevard 
 4.34 Miles at $ 3,065.17 per mile     $  13,302.84 
 
 
 

TOTAL        $235,289.55 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
EXHIBIT A 
(Continued) 
 
TWO LANES 
($3,065.17 per mile) 

    1.54 miles      $   4,720.31    
    1.15 miles      $   3,524.95 
    0.38 miles      $   1,164.77  
    1.31 miles      $   4,015.37 
    5.96 miles      $ 18,268.41 
    2.16 miles      $   6,620.77   
    4.34 miles      $ 13,302.84 

16.84 miles      $ 51,617.47  
 
 
THREE LANES 
($4,348.95 per mile) 

  0.16 miles      $     695.83     
  0.32 miles      $  1,391.66 
  0.26 miles      $  1,130.73  
  0.34 miles      $  1,478.64 
  1.08 miles      $  4,696.86   

 
 
FOUR OR FIVE LANES 
($5,364.05 per mile) 

 3.47 miles      $  18,613.25 
  4.37 miles      $  23,440.90 

 3.40 miles      $  18,237.77 
 3.08 miles      $  16,521.27 

   3.05 miles      $  16,360.35 
 5.01 miles      $  26,873.89 
 3.98 miles      $  21,348.92 
26.36 miles      $141,396.35 

 
 
SIX OR MORE LANES 
($6,616.00 per mile) 
   0.86 miles      $    5,689.76 
   0.38 miles      $    2,514.08 
   2.61 miles      $  17,267.76 
   1.40 miles      $    9,262.40 
   0.43 miles      $    2,844.88 
   5.68 miles      $  37,578.88 
 
. 
TOTAL   49.96 miles      $235,289.55 
 
 

35% in December, 2005  $  82,351.34 
65% in March, 2006   $152,938.21 

       $235,289.55 











campbellld
Text Box
F-02























August 16, 2005 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Charles Craft, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Sole Source– In Car Camera And Radar Equipment Parts 

And Service 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Police Department requests City Council approval to establish a contract to service 
and purchase parts in order to maintain our radar units and fleet of in-car video systems 
installed in Police Department Patrol vehicles from the manufacturer, Decatur 
Electronics of Decatur, Illinois at an estimated annual cost of $25,000.00 per year. All 
services received and parts purchased by the Troy Police Department from Decatur 
Electronics is at the same rates (dealer) they would charge any authorized service 
center. The hourly service rate is $65.00 per hour.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Troy Police Department has been using an in-car video system to record traffic 
stops, emergency and non-emergency calls for approximately eight years. When the 
system was purchased, it was done through a company called ID Control. Decatur 
Electronics then purchased ID Control shortly after the City purchased the camera 
systems. ID Control’s sole product was a 8mm in-car video system. Decatur Electronics 
has made several updates and improvements to this video system over the years and 
the Troy Police Department has updated the original system as much as possible using 
factory trained in-house personnel.  The video systems require a modified 8mm video 
recorder, which is only modified and serviced through Decatur Electronics. Due to the 
age of the systems and the fact that our systems cannot be updated to current 
standards, the systems sometimes require service that may only be performed at the 
factory.  The equipment was originally purchased as a sole source. 
 
The Troy Police Department also exclusively uses Decatur radar units for the 
enforcement of speed related laws. The Department has found these units to be reliable 
and cost effective. The Department has also found that dealing with one manufacturer 
of radar units helps eliminate questions regarding training on multiple units in court 
cases. Decatur Electronics also extends to us dealer pricing on repairs to these units, 
also at $65.00 per hour. 
 
BUDGET 
 
The Police Department has allocated funds for this project in Account #315.7802.070. 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Russell Weipert, Police Service Aide - Patrol Division 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03



campbellld
Text Box
F-04





DATE:  September 6, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
 
SUBJECT: Recommendation to Negotiate Purchase of Replacement Ladder Truck 
 
Recommendation 
The Fire and Purchasing Departments recommend that City staff negotiate a contract 
with Sutphen Corporation of Amlin, Ohio for the purchase of one aerial platform ladder 
truck. 
 
Background 
The fire department operates three aerial platform ladder trucks.  These trucks were 
purchased from the Sutphen Corporation of Amlin, Ohio over the past twenty years.  
While the newer Sutphen units have updated systems, all of the units are similar in 
operation and capability.  Staff has reviewed the various types of platform aerial 
apparatus available from the manufacturers and recommend that the replacement unit 
be purchased from the Sutphen Corporation for the following reasons:     
 

1. Firefighter training is simplified by using the same basic unit.  The complexity of 
setting up these units under emergency conditions requires a standardized 
approach to training. 

 
2. Maintenance is simplified by having platform units that have similar ladder, 

hydraulic, and stabilizing systems.  
 
The Sutphen Corporation has a number of municipalities that routinely negotiate the 
purchase of these units.  The process that other municipalities follow is: 
  

1. Sutphen develops a detailed proposal based on the municipality requirements. 
 

2. Sutphen provides comparable pricing for units recently sold to other 
municipalities. 

 
3. A price is negotiated based on the recent bids and specifications. 

 
Purchasing has recommended this process as opposed to sealed bidding with a 
specification that only one manufacturer can meet. If you have any questions or 
comments, please contact me. 

campbellld
Text Box
F-05



 1

DATE: August 31, 2005 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 

 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – FINAL SITE CONDOMINIUM REVIEW – Hidden Creek 

Site Condominium, east side of Ellenboro, South side of Vanderpool, 
Section 22 – R-1E 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
On July 7, 2003 City Council granted preliminary approval of the proposed 15-unit site 
condominium.  The petitioner reduced the number of units to 13, making them slightly 
larger and more marketable. 
 
The Engineering Department granted approval of the engineering plans based upon the 
City’s Development Standards; therefore, the development will not cause or exacerbate 
drainage problems on contiguous properties, due to surface run-off from the proposed 
development.  In addition, the petitioner executed a contract for installation of municipal 
improvements and provided the required escrow deposits and cash fees.  The proposed 
site condominium complies with all applicable ordinance requirements.  City 
Management recommends approval of the Final Plan for Hidden Creek Site 
Condominium. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
Gary Abitheira. 
 
Location of subject property: 
The property is located on the south side of Vanderpool and the east side of Ellenboro, 
between Hartland and Trombley, in Section 22. 
 
Size of subject parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 7.97 acres in area. 
 
Description of proposed development, including number and density of units: 
The applicant is proposing a 13-unit site condominium on 7.97 acres, which represents 
a density of 1.63 units per acre. 

campbellld
Text Box
F-06



 2

Current use of subject property: 
A single family residential structure currently sits on the property, just south of 
Vanderpool. 
 
Current use of adjacent parcels: 
North: Single family residential. 
South: Single family residential. 
East: Single family residential. 
West: Single family residential.  
 
Current zoning classification: 
The property is currently zoned R-1E One Family Residential. 
 
Zoning classification of adjacent parcels:  
North: R-1E One Family Residential. 
South: R-1E One Family Residential. 
East: R-1E One Family Residential. 
West: R-1E One Family Residential. 
 
Future Land Use Designation: 
The property is designated on the Future Land Use Plan as Low Density Residential. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Compliance with area and bulk requirements: 
Lot Area: 7,500 square feet.  
 
Lot Width: 60 feet. 
 
Height: 2 stories or 25 feet. 
 
Setbacks: Front: 25 feet. 
  Side (least one): 5 feet. 
  Side (total two): 15 feet.  
  Rear: 35 feet. 
 
Minimum Floor Area: 1,000 square feet. 
 
Maximum Lot Coverage: 30 %. 
 
The applicant meets the area and bulk requirements. 
 
Off-street parking and loading requirements:  
The applicant will be required to provide 2 off-street parking spaces per unit. 



 3

Environmental provisions, including Tree Preservation Plan: 
A Tree Preservation Plan was submitted as part of the application. 
 
Stormwater detention 
The applicant is proposing to provide on-site detention in the northwest corner of the 
development.  The detention pond will have a 1 on 6 slope and will be unfenced, and 
dedicated to the City.  
  
Natural features and floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates that there are wetlands, woodlands and two drains 
located on the property.  A Wetland Evaluation was conducted on the parcel by HRC at 
the request of the City of Troy.  The report indicates there are no wetlands on the 
parcel.  In addition there is floodway confined within the banks of the two drains and 
100-year floodplain located on the subject property.  
 
Subdivision Control Ordinance, Article IV Design Standards  
 

Blocks: Access to the site condominium will be provided by Vanderpool and 
Ellenboro, both paved public streets. 
 
Lots: All units meet the minimum area and bulk requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
Easements: The applicant proposes a 12-foot wide easement for public utilities 
and a 20 foot wide easement for sanitary sewer. 
 
Topographic Conditions: The applicant provided a Topographic Survey of the 
property. 
 
Streets: Access to units 1 through 11 will be provided by Mirage Drive, a 28 foot 
wide paved road located within a 60-foot wide right of way.   Access to units 12 
and 13 will be from Ellenboro.   

 
Sidewalks: The applicant is proposing to install 5-foot wide sidewalks along both 
sides of Mirage Drive. 

 
Utilities: The parcel is served by public water and sewer. 

 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Unplatted Residential Development Levels of Approval 
3. Comparison Between Site Condominiums and Plats 
4. City Council Minutes from July 7, 2003 
5. Contract for Installation of Municipal Services 

 
PREPARED BY RBS/MFM 
cc: Applicant 
 File/Hidden Creek Site Condominium 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Hidden Creek Site Condo Sec. 22\Final CC Approval Hidden Creek Site Condo 9 12 05.doc 



I-75

SOUTH

JO
H

N
 R

MAPLE

C
R

O
O

K
S

WATTLES

A
D

A
M

S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

BIG BEAVER

LIV
E

R
N

O
IS

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

SQUARE LAKE

FOURTEEN MILE

S
TE

P
H

E
N

S
O

N

M
A

IN

I-75



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

PROPOSED SITE CONDOMINIUM
HIDDEN CREEK





...\2003 hidden creek site condo.d  07/01/03 01:24:43 PM





UNPLATTED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT LEVELS OF APPROVAL 
 

Preliminary Plan Approval  
A sign is placed on the property informing the public of the proposed development. 
Adjacent property owners are notified by mail 
Public meeting held by Planning Commission for review and recommendation to City Council 
City Council reviews and approvals plan 
 
The following items are addressed at Preliminary Plan Approval: 

• Street Pattern, including potential stub streets for future development 
• Potential development pattern for adjacent properties 
• Fully dimensioned residential parcel layout, including proposed building configurations 

o Number of lots 
o Building setbacks 
o Lot dimensions 
o Locations of easements 

• Preliminary sanitary sewer, storm sewer, and water main layout 
• Environmental Impact Statement (if required) 
• Location(s) of wetlands on the property 
 

Final Plan Approval 
Notice sign is posted on site 
City Council review and approval of: 

• Final Plan 
• Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) 
 

The following items are addressed at Final Plan Approval: 
• Fully dimensioned plans of the total property proposed for development, prepared by 

registered Civil Engineer or Land Surveyor 
• Corners of all proposed residential parcels and other points as necessary to determine 

that the potential parcels and building configurations will conform with ordinance 
requirements 

• Warranty Deeds and Easement documents, in recordable form for all ROW. and 
easements which are to be conveyed to the public 

• Construction plans for all utilities and street improvements, prepared in accordance 
with City Engineering Design Standards: 

o Sanitary and Storm sewer 
o Water mains 
o Detention / Retention basins 
o Grading and rear yard drainage 
o Paving and widening lanes 
o Sidewalk and driveway approaches 

• Approval from other government agencies involved with the development 
• Verification of wetlands and M.D.E.Q. permit if necessary 
• Financial guarantees to insure the construction of required improvements and the 

placement of proper property and parcel monuments and markers shall be furnished 
by the petitioner prior to submittal of the Final Plan to the City Council for review and 
approval 

• Floor Plans and Elevations of the proposed residential units 



PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

 
01-15-03 

 
COMPARISON BETWEEN SITE CONDOMINIUMS AND PLATS   

 
The site condominium is a form of development that closely resembles the more 
traditional form of land subdivision known as a “subdivision” or a “plat”.  Although both 
types of development have the same basic characteristics, site condominiums are a 
newer form of development and are not, therefore, as familiar to homebuyers and 
neighbors as the more customary plats.  An important concept related to any type of 
condominium development is that condominiums are a form of OWNERSHIP, not a type 
of physical development. 
 
The following summary is intended to compare and contrast the two types of 
development. 
 

1. Comparisons between site condominiums and plats. 
 

a. Statutory Basis – Site condominium subdivisions first became possible 
under the Michigan Condominium Act, which was adopted by the Michigan 
Legislature in 1978.  Plats are created under the Michigan Land Division 
Act, formerly the Michigan Subdivision Control Act of 1967. 

 
b. Nature and Extent of Property Ownership – An individual homesite 

building in a platted subdivision is called a “lot”.  In a site condominium, 
each separate building site or homesite is referred to by the Condominium 
Act as a “unit”.  Each unit is surrounded by “limited common area”, which is 
defined as common elements reserved in the master deed for the exclusive 
use of less than all of the co-owners”.  The remaining area in the site 
condominium is “general common area”, defined as the common elements 
reserved in the master deed for the use of all of the co-owners.  The nature 
and extent of ownership of a platted lot and a condominium unit, with the 
associated limited common area, are essentially equivalent from both a 
practical and legal standpoint. 

 
c. Compliance with Zoning Ordinance – Both site condominiums and 

subdivisions are required to comply with the minimum requirements of the 
City of Troy Zoning Ordinance for area and bulk, including minimum lot 
size, lot width, setbacks and building height.  Essentially, site 
condominiums and subdivisions in Troy must “look” similar.   

 
d. Creation/Legal Document – A site condominium is established by 

recording in the records of the county in which the land is located a master 
deed, bylaws and condominium subdivision plan (“plan”).  A platted 
subdivision is created by the recording of a subdivision plat (“plat”), usually 
coupled with a declaration of easements, covenants, conditions and 
restrictions   The plan depicts the condominium units and limited and 
general common areas, while the plat defines the lots.  Both have 



PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

 
01-15-03 

substantially the same geometrical appearance and characteristics.  The 
master deed and bylaws on the one hand and the declaration on the other 
have essentially the same functions with respect to the site condominium or 
platted subdivision, namely, establishment of:  (i) building and use 
restrictions; (ii) rights of homeowners to use common areas; (iii) financial 
obligations of owners; and, (iv) procedures for operation of the subdivision. 

 
e. Home Maintenance and Real Estate Taxes – Each unit and lot, as 

respectively depicted on a condominium plan or subdivision plat, together 
with any home located thereon, are required to be individually maintained 
by the owner.  Likewise, separate real estate taxes are assessed on each 
condominium unit or platted lot and paid individually by each homeowner. 

 
f. Roads and Utilities – In most plats, roads are dedicated to the public and 

maintained by the county road commission or the municipality in which the 
subdivision is located.  Site condominium roads can be either public or 
private.  Sanitary sewer and water supply are public in both.  Storm water 
detention can vary between public and private dedication in both platted 
and condominium subdivisions.   

 
g. Common Areas – In a site condominium, general common areas, such as 

open space, entrance areas and storm drainage system, are owned by 
condominium unit owners in common as an incident of ownership of each 
unit.  In a platted subdivision, legal title to common areas is owned by a 
homeowners association.  In both forms of development, a homeowners 
association administers the common areas for the benefit of all 
homeowners equally. 

 
h. Homeowners Association – It is important in both types of development 

to incorporate a homeowners association comprised of all lot owners or unit 
owners, as the case may be, to maintain common areas, enforce 
restrictions and regulations, collect assessments and otherwise administer 
the common affairs of the development.  Because the Condominium Act 
confers special enforcement powers upon homeowner associations, which 
are not characteristic of platted subdivision associations, it is generally 
thought that the condominium form is superior from the standpoint of 
enforcing rules and regulations of the private community. 

 
i. Financial Obligations of Homeowners – In both types of development, 

the homeowners association is given the power to assess property owners 
to pay for maintenance of all common areas and other expenses of 
administration.  Failure to pay give rise to a lien on the defaulting owner’s 
homesite thus providing financial security that the common areas will be 
properly maintained for the benefit of all homeowners. 

 



PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

 
01-15-03 

j. Public Relations – The same types of public health, safety and welfare 
regulations apply to both forms of development.  Procedurally, the methods 
of applying for and obtaining plat or condominium plan approval are similar 
at the municipal level. 

 
k. Unique Characteristics of Condominium Unit Purchase – The 

Condominium Act provides special benefits for site condominium unit 
purchasers:  (i) a 9-day period after signing a purchase agreement within 
which a purchaser may withdraw without penalty; and (ii) a requirement that 
all condominium documents, supplemented by an explanatory disclosure 
statement, be furnished to all purchasers at the time of entry into a 
purchase agreement.  There are no similar benefits to purchasers provided 
under the Land Division Act. 

 
l. Local and State Review – Both development types require City Council 

approval, following a recommendation by the Planning Commission.  Unlike 
subdivisions, site condominiums do not require the review and approval of 
the Michigan Department of Consumer and Industry Services. For this 
reason it can sometimes take a substantially shorter period of time to obtain 
necessary public approvals of site condominiums than platted subdivisions.   

 
2. Reason for choosing one form versus another. 

 
Developers and municipalities often prefer the site condominium approach 
because of better control of market timing.  It should be emphasized that the 
site condominium choice never sacrifices any public protections that would 
otherwise be present in the case of a platted subdivision under similar 
circumstances. 

 
3. Conclusion. 

 
The platted subdivision approach and the newer site condominium technique 
are two different statutory methods of reaching essentially the same practical 
and legal result of dividing real estate into separate residential building sites.  
Both methods are required to meet substantially the same public health, safety 
and welfare requirements.  The site condominium is sometimes chosen over 
the platted subdivisions because of perceived benefits to purchasers, 
homeowners, and developers. 

 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Comparison of Site Condos and Plats.doc 













  September 7, 2005  
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – Amendment #1 - SLC Meter Service Inc.  

Automatic Meter Reading System 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
On February 7, 2005, the City of Troy Council approved a contract SLC Meter Service Inc., to provide 
automatic meter reading (AMR) system software, equipment, and services for a period of five (5) years to 
the highest rated bidder as a result of a best value process, , at an estimated net total cost of $78,350.00 
(Resolution #2005-02-057).  This initial program included the conversion of 1,000 industrial meters to an 
automatic meter reading system over a two-year period.  The program did extremely well and about 994 
meters have already been converted with the remaining 6 meters to be completed shortly.   
 
City management recommends that City Council approve a negotiation process to amend the contract to 
expand the scope of the original program to include the conversion of an estimated 26,000 residential 
meters over a four (4) year period at an estimated cost of $347,035.00 per year.  Due to the number of 
residential meters, staff believes that volume discounts may be available and accessed through 
negotiations with SLC Meter Service, Inc.  The RFP process selected the best value “system”, and the 
inclusion of residential meters would further expand its use.  
 
REASONS TO EXPAND THE AMR PROGRAM TO RESIDENTIAL METERS 
 

1. The software, digital encoder, and collection units are already purchased.  Since DPW staff does 
the installation, the cost to extend the program is limited to the Meter Interface Units (MIU) which 
were substantially lower in cost than the other participant in the AMR Request for Proposal 
process ($53.39 each Vs. $87.00 each) 

2. The installation of the MIU devices by City staff for industrial meters has gone better than 
estimated.  It was anticipated that 500 units would be installed in the first year of the program and 
a second 500 units would be installed in the second year of the roll-out.  Since the award date of 
February 7, 2005, 994 units have been installed.  The program was instituted to solve the 
industrial meter reading issues, but also to provide a real-life feasibility study for MIU use to 
streamline the residential reading process. 

3. During the demonstration phase of the RFP process, the committee noted the following problems 
with the other equipment demonstrated by Datamatic (the other bidder):  1) battery failures 
resulted in complete replacement of the MIU device resulting in greater maintenance costs over 
time; 2) grease and epoxy pods to waterproof connections were necessary; 3) wires were left 
exposed after the installation; final installation was aesthetically problematic since wires, grease 
pods, and a larger MIU unit was unsightly, and due to size, the installation location could be 
limited; 4) mounting hardware costs were not included in their proposal; 5) the system could not 
handle a mixed environment of manual and automatic reads easily.  The manual and automatic 
reads were tracked in two different software applications and then required entry into Datamatic 
handhelds; the meter serial number and MIU number were both programmed into the system 
requiring MIU reprogramming of the meter serial number if the meter required swapping out. 

 
BACKGROUND 
Under the specifications of the approved contract, the City purchased the AMR system, which included 
the purchase of 1000 MIU units installed by City staff for the conversion of commercial and industrial 
water meters that are the most difficult to access.  The method used to read these meters required an 
appointment and costs the City approximately $25 per meter read. The Automatic Meter Read (AMR) 

campbellld
Text Box
F-07



system eliminates the need for appointments and reduces the meter read cost per meter to under $1.00 
(one dollar). 
 
Because of the simplistic and expedient manner in which the MIU’s were converted, and the time and 
cost savings gained, staff believes that it is in City’s best interest to move forward with a total system 
implementation.  Attachment 1 details the cost analysis between the City’s current read system, 
Consumer Power’s 3rd Party Meter Reading Proposal (Attachment 2), and the AMR Radio Read System.   
 
By expanding the AMR system to include residential meters, City staff can be redirected to other 
necessary maintenance areas and offset additional labor hours incurred due to staff shortages. In 
addition, manpower can be redirected to other areas requiring water service improvements and 
maintenance, such as, large volume water meter testing, televising of sanitary sewers, and repairs to 
pump stations and pressure valves, therefore, improving the City’s infrastructure. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available from the Operating Budget of the Water department for Meter Maintenance, account 
#543.7740.010. 



 Page 1 

Memo 
To: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager / Services 

 John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager / Finance and Administration 

From: Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 

 Emily Frontera, Public Works / Administrative Aide 

CC: Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 

Date: 9/7/2005 

Re: Meter Reading - 20 Year Cost Projection and Analysis of Various Methods 

CONSTANTS AND ASSUMPTIONS: 
 20 Year Projection 
 3% Inflation Factor based on the Consumer Price Index Calculator for the last few years 
 Based on 27,000 meter reads – the CMS proposal has been normalized to 27,000 reads 

 
CURRENT ARB METER SYSTEM 
 
TYPE 

# of 
READERS 

ANNUAL 
HOURS / 
COST 

COST/  
READ 

20 YEAR 
READ COST 
3% Inflation 

20 YEAR 
TOTAL 
READ COST 

REPAIRS @ 
ANNUAL COST 

Manual plug 
touch system  

4 3,300* / 
$110,550 

$1.02 $1.79 $2,970,519.90 600 repairs @ 
$14,400* 

*Current Labor Cost:  $110,550 (3,300 x $33.50); Repairs:  [600 x ($11 labor + $13 parts)] 
CMS PROPOSAL:   
 
TYPE 

# of 
READERS 

ANNUAL 
HOURS 

COST/  
READ 

20 YEAR 
READ COST 
6% Inflation 

20 YEAR 
TOTAL 
READ COST 

REPAIRS @ 
ANNUAL COST 

   $.75** $2.27 $2,994,632.89 600 repairs @ 
$14,400* 

**$10,000 to $15,000 Start-up Costs – 6% Annual escalation factor included in the CMS proposal 
CONVERSION TO AMR RADIO READ SYSTEM 
 
TYPE 

# of 
READERS 

ANNUAL 
HOURS 

COST/  
READ 

20 YEAR  
READ COST 
3% Inflation 

20 YEAR 
TOTAL 
READ COST 

REPAIRS @ 
ANNUAL COST 

 1 500*** / 
$16,750 

$.16 $.27 $2,178,078.77  

***Annual Labor: $16,750 (500 x $33.50); 20 Year Labor Cost = $450,078.77; Conversion cost = $1,728,000  
    (labor + material)   
 

Department of 
Public Works 



 Page 2 

Radio Reads 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Net Benefit of Radio Read System 
 
Total net benefit of Radio Read system vs. ARB system is $792,441.13.   
 
Total net benefit of Radio Read system vs. CMS Proposal is $816,554.12. 
  
 
Resulting Redirection of Staff 
 
By implementing the Radio Read system, staff and labor savings shall:  
 

1. Be directed to other necessary maintenance areas.   
 
2. Offset additional labor hours incurred due to staff shortages  

 
3. Will allow the water department to redirect manpower to other areas requiring water service 

improvements and maintenance.  
 

a. Increased testing of large volume water meters to effectively control water loss due to 
inaccurate meters  

 
b. Increased televising of sanitary sewer preventing long-term expensive repairs and 

litigation do to failures. 
 

c. Increased maintenance and repairs to sewer pump stations preventing sewer 
backups.  

 
d. Increased maintenance and repairs to pressure reducing valves maintaining a 

constant steady level of water pressure. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





 

 Page 1 

GP changes 12.17.04; EF changes 12.16.04 

DATE:  December 14, 2004 

TO:  RFP Committee 
  Information Technology 
FROM:  Purchasing Department 
RE:  Demonstration Notes – Datamatic conducted on Friday, December 10, 2004 
 
Note:  Due to consolidation of certain information, discussion notes may be out of sequence. 

 
COMPANY HISTORY 

• Company provided EMR to utilities during the 70’s and then moved to AMR  
 
• They can capture 74 days of reads which can be used at the discretion of the user on an hourly, 

daily, weekly or monthly basis 
 
ADVANTAGES OF SYSTEM 

• System is totally sealed and waterproof (waterproofing has not been an issue in past); Wagonwheel 
eliminates wick effect (freezing within unit causing misreads) 

 
• Meter Independent:  Each register requires a different wire (Datamatic can read any meter although 

actual wire configuration is messy).  3 types of MIUs available: Wire-End, Optical Sensor for registers 
that are not encoded and Logical Switch for “high glass” or Master Meter brand meters. 

 
• Programmable:  Can reuse meter box (may not be advisable per GP/IT Director) 

 
• MIU reads the register hourly and sends a signal out every 3 seconds.  Unit can be programmed to 

read meter and send signal differently if needed. 
 

• Memory can be boosted in handhelds; standard is 2 megabytes but can be boosted by 2 mb up to a 
total of 16 megabytes with 2,000 reads per each 2 mb.  Handheld can display warnings, messages 
and specific account information   

 
• Backflow on meter reads:  Engineered to record a read every 10 seconds; if needle sweeps more in a 

10 second timeframe, doesn’t count the read 
 

• Sensors can be easily installed on top of the Rockwell meters, or any type of meter that does not 
currently have electronics built in.  Datamatic owns this equipment.  Optic Sensor was not included in 
bid and costs approximately 10.00 each.  Must be verified at least once a year by reading the meter 
at the register. 

 

Purchasing 
Department 



 Page 2 

 
Datamatic Demonstration 
Page 2 of 3 

 
DISADVANTAGES OF SYSTEM 
• If battery fails, the MIU has to be replaced; 15 year battery is guaranteed for 5 full years with 5 years 

pro-rated; cost consideration for replacement upon battery failure 
 
• Wire(s) are left after installation with no place to tuck wires; Vendor mentioned that their staff will 

work with City staff to find an acceptable final installation configuration 
 
• Aesthetic problems with units (large); mounting hardware not included but a bracket to allow wire 

tucking needed; drilling a hole required; grease or epoxy pods (for waterproofing) are cumbersome to 
hide.  Only comes in black. 

 
• Grease and epoxy pods, and gel caps are required to waterproof connections, but are not part of the 

equipment or mounting hardware and come at an additional cost.  Rep did not know what the price 
for each item was when asked at the demo. 

 
• Final installation with wires, grease pods, large MIU was unattractive and could be restrictive 

depending on location available to install.  
 

• Appointments will need to be made to install Optical Sensor equipment on all Rockwell meters and for 
annual maintenance due to glass structural changes. 

 
• Does not accommodate a mixed environment of manual and automatic reads very well (until 

complete system is switched – must use both a gun and handheld device). Manual and automatic 
reads must be either tracked in two different software applications or read manually and then entered 
into the Datamatic handhelds.   

 
• Programmable MIU includes both the meter serial number and the MIU number.  When meters are 

swapped out the MIU will need to be reprogrammed with new meter serial number. 
 
Other Considerations – Datamatic 

 
• Disputes:  A Consumption Record can be provided which graphs usage of an account down to an 

hourly basis which can be used to assist with discussing leak problems and encourages leak 
prevention – pull profile not meter. 

 
• Usage can be shown graphically and insure right size metering.  (“Right sized” metering is an 

Engineering function not a meter/water department function.) 
 
• Sensors:  Sensors can be used to do direct reads and adjusts to any meter. 

 
• Seven (7) sweeps enables meters to be programmed; System knocks out 3 reads (first / high/ low) 

and saves remaining 4 reads.  A black cover is placed and must remain on top of the register to 
blacken out the head to prevent light interference and allow the eye sensor to read the swings.  This 
will make homeowner/business owner readings more difficult. 

 
• Types of sensors:  logical end; sensor end; wire end 

 
• Firmware 211:  every hour for 74 days – history is electronically saved (additional cost) 

 



 Page 3 

 
Datamatic Demonstration 
Page 3 of 3 
 
Other Considerations – continued 

• Sensors on Rockwell meters should be checked for accuracy at least one time per year. The sensors 
ability to read the Rockwell meter accurately depends upon the condition of the meter glass. Any 
scratches or dirt may prevent the read. 

 
• Company will develop an installation manual with pictures that is mutually agreeable to both parties 

 
• Gunners is the local Dealer; Corporate will definitely deal with and solve any problems that Troy may 

have; issues are resolved on a 24 hour support line; 20 minute response time; normal hours are 8am 
to 7pm; phone help first then escalates up the chain; Gunners will be called in if immediate on-site 
support is required. 

 
• Website available to download software (fixes) 

 
• Datamatic has installations with Hanson but we must pay for a bridge [(costly and not to be 

completed until after approval (if we go forward)] 
 

• The system pings every three (3) seconds; reads can be obtained every hour; downloads lost reads 
but can look at the report to get a reading 

 
• Handheld has a 5-year batter life. 

 
• Meter reads were taken from inside the DPW facility and parking lot area, but could not pick a read 

signal from Rochester Rd. 
 

• Meter reads were captured from 2 out of the 3 areas at Oakland Mall, inside the mall and just outside 
the mall.  Could not pick up a read signal from surrounding streets. 

 
MISC. 
Equipment Setup Thursday 12-9-04 

• After installing the first MIU, Datamatic had difficulty retrieving data to the hand held.  It was then realized 
that the meter register was Schlumberger and not Neptune.  The handheld software is “register” sensitive 
and must be programmed accordingly.  Troy has a mixture of Neptune and Schlumberger registers 
installed throughout the city, which are not identified, but may become an issue during setup and 
programming. 

 
 







 
January 20, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value 

Process Award – Automatic Meter Reading System 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On October 15, 2004, Request for Proposals were received to provide automatic 
meter reading system software, equipment, and services for the Department of 
Public Works Water Division for a period of five (5) years.  City management 
recommends a contract be awarded to SLC Meter Service Inc. of Davisburg, MI, 
the lowest, most qualified bidder as a result of a best value process, for an 
estimated net total cost of $78,350.00, as outlined in the attached bid tabulation.  
The award is contingent upon vendor submission of proper contract and proposal 
documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
BACKGROUND AND FINDINGS 
Meter reading technology has advanced to a level that can provide added value, 
savings in manpower and reduced operational costs.  A radio frequency system 
sends out signals and captures meter reads with a hand-held computer.  Using 
this technology, the Water Department can easily read commercial and industrial 
water meters by driving past their locations.  Currently, these reads are done by 
appointment. The cost to perform a read for a commercial/industrial meter is $25 
per read.  The new system can reduce this cost to under a dollar. 
 
The first objective is to replace all commercial and industrial water meters and 
then eventually move on to residential meters. 
 
Cost analysis and discussions for a 3rd Party Meter Reading contract were 
conducted with other municipalities.  At this time, the utility companies are 
reluctant to establish new partnerships with communities who do not have 
existing contracts. 
 
SELECTION PROCESS 
The award recommendation is based upon the vendor offering the best 
combination of a variety of factors, which included pass / fail criteria, a successful 
demonstration and system pricing. 
 
To be considered, the bidders were required to meet the following minimum 
requirements: 
 
 
 

1 of 2 



January 20, 2005 
 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Best Value Award – Automatic Meter Reading System 
Page 2 of 2 
 
SELECTION PROCESS – Continued - 

• Five (5) years in business 
• System software in place at least five (5) years  
• Acceptable service and support 
• Recovery of backup data 
• Review of other charges 
• Warranty claim procedures 
• Routine maintenance / Repair procedures 
• Positive references 
• Skilled trainers 
• Software revision levels and dates 
• List of problems / complaints with overall system 
• Compliance with insurance requirements 

 
The City committee required a demonstration of the software and equipment to 
ensure that the proposed system could work in the City’s environment. 
 
SUMMARY 
Even though both systems met the minimum requirements and passed the 
demonstration phase, the transition to a radio frequency system will be seamless 
with the Neptune Route Management Software and the most economical to 
implement.  However, in order to read approximately hundred (100) existing 
compound meters with the new system, they will need to be outfitted with digital 
encoders.  The encoders will be purchased as needed, following standard 
purchasing procedures.  But, if a meter has exceeded its useful service life, it will 
be exchanged instead with a new meter. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available from the Operating Budget of the Water department for 
Meter Maintenance, account # 543.7740.010. 
 
40 Notices mailed to prospective vendors 
73 Vendors notified via the MITN system 
  4 Request for proposals rec’d 
  2 Proposals did not meet minimum criteria 
  1 Late bid 
  5 No Bids:       (4) Companies unable to quote product as specified or provide an approved 

alternate. 
(1) Company indicated they could not be competitive, as their partner bid direct.    

 
 
Prepared by: Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Systems Administrator 
 
S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda 02.07.05 Std Rsl 8 Award AMR  



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
AUTOMATIC METER READING SYSTEM 

 
STATISTICS: 
 

��Forty (40) Proposal notices were sent to prospective 
bidders  

 
��Seventy- three (73) Vendors notified on the MITN System  
 
��Four (4) firms responded to the proposal 

 
��Two (2) firms met the pass / fail criteria 

 
��SLC Meter Service, Inc is the recommended vendor as a 

result of a best value process 
 
 
Selection Process: 
 

1. Firms were evaluated on Pass / Fail Criteria 
 
2. Firms demonstrated ability of system to work in the City 

environment (Pass / Fail) 
 

3. Lowest bidder who passes Phase 1 and 2 will be 
recommended for award 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

G://Bid Award 05-06/Best Value SR8 – RFP - AMR ExecutiveSummary01.05.doc 

 
 



APPENDIX 1 
 

AUTOMATIC METER READING SYSTEM                                          RFP-COT 04-35 
BIDDERS FAILING MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS 
 
 
List of Bidders Not Meeting Evaluation Criteria 
 
COMPANY NAME: REASON FOR DISQUALIFICATION 
Floyd S. Salser, Jr & Associates Inc New system, Troy would be a beta test site. 

 
Arkion Systems Company and system need to be established for 

five (5) years.  Company has been in business four 
(4) years and the system only one (1) year.  It was 
impossible to determine if there is adequate support 
or service, and what problems may arise after the 
warranty has expired.   
 

 
The Request for Proposal will provide Automatic Meter Reading System Software, Equipment, 
and Services for the Department of Public Works Water Division for a Period of Five (5) Years.   
 
A City committee comprised of three (3) members reviewed the proposals.  The City of Troy 
reserves the right to award this proposal to the company considered the most qualified based 
upon a combination of factors including but not limited to the following: 
 

A) Compliance with qualifications criteria 
B) Completeness of the proposal 
C) Correlation of the proposal submitted to the needs of the City of Troy 
D) Any other factors which may be deemed to be in the City’s best interest 
E) Evaluation process and demonstration phase 

 



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 04-35
Opening Date: 10/15/04 TABULATION OF PROPOSALS Pg 1 of 2
Date Prepared: 1/10/05 METER READING SYSTEM

VENDOR NAME: SLC Meter Datamatic Ltd
Service, Inc

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL:  TO PROVIDE AUTOMATIC METER READING SYSTEM SOFTWARE, EQUIPMENT, AND
SERVICES FOR THE DPW WATER DIVISION FOR A PERIOD OF FIVE (5) YEARS, IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS.

SOFTWARE: NEPTUNE ROUTESTAR

Item #1 AMR System Software 4,000.00$            
Training (On Site)
   Complete for the Sum of: 1,000.00$           12,750.00$          
   1/2 Day Session 500.00$               -$                     
   Estimated # of Add. Hrs: (8hrs)   $125.00/man-hr -$                            

HARDWARE:
Item #2 Meter Interface Units (MIU's)

   Year 1        500 units each 53.39$                87.00$                 
   Year 2        500 units each 53.39$                87.00$                 
   Discount - or + Price List 10/12/04 10/12/04

Discount % 66.5% In Appendix A Section 9

Item #3 Mobile Collection System
  Handhelds     6 ea each 915.00$              4,200.00$           

Item #4 Additional Hardware
   MIU Conversision Device n/a -$                     
   Radio Frequency Receiver each 300.00$               -$                     
   Handheld Meter Units each 615.00$              -$                     
   Other: FIELD PROGRAMMER each 2,000.00$           3,066.00$            In Appendix A Section 9

   Discount - or + Price List 10/12/04 10/12/04
Discount % Attached to Bid In Appendix A Section 9

MAINTENANCE/SUPPORT
Item #5 Ongoing Maintenance/Support - 4 Yrs

Handhelds Units   6 each per year 5,490.00$           6,156.54$            

Trade-In Psion System (5,490.00)$          
System Discount (33,000.00)$         

ESTIMATED NET TOTAL AWARD: $78,350.00

Digital Encoder (For analysis purposes only) 17,600.00$          
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: $95,950.00 123,642.16$       

OPTIONAL:
Item #6 Mobile Collection Vehicle 

One Vehicle Based System 5,000.49$            22,995.00$          
   Discount - or + Price List 10/12/04 10/12/04

Discount % 26.84% In Appendix A Section 9

Item #7 Mobile Collection Vehicle
 Annually Warranty Period 1,367.00$            3,749.28$            

COST BREAKDOWN - MOBILE COLLECTION RADIO
MARKED AS: "MCR" Appendix A

TECHNICAL DATA & DESCRIPTIVE MATERIALS
MARKED AS: "CB"   "TD" Appendix A

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE:   Y or N Yes Yes

CONTACT INFORMATION:   NAME William Traynor Fred Quintero
    PHONE # (248)625-0667 (972)234-5000

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet

TERMS Net 30 Days Blank
WARRANTY Standard Blank



CITY OF TROY
Opening Date: 10/15/04 TABULATION OF PROPOSALS RFP-COT 04-35
Date Prepared: 1/10/05 METER READING SYSTEM Pg 2 of 2

VENDOR NAME: SLC Meter Datamatic Ltd
Service, Inc

DELIVERY: Blank Blank

EXCEPTIONS Trade-In Value on Psion Warranty Work or
Based 6 Unit System Equipment covered
Compkete w/Logicon Probe by a Maintenance

$5,490.00 Agreement
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Y or N Yes Yes

DMS:
 Floyd S. Salser, Jr & Associates Inc - Reason: New System, Troy would be a beta test site -
 Arkion Systems - Reason: Company and system need to be established for five (5) years. Company has been

in business four (4) years and the system only one (1) year -
NO BIDS:
  AMCO
  National Water Works BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES BEST VALUE PROPOSAL
  Etna Supply Co
  Badger Meter Co
  Gunners Meters & Parts

ATTEST:
MaryAnn Hays
Emily Frontera
Michael Karloff _____________________________
Linda Bockstanz Jeanette Bennett

Purchasing Director

G: RFP-COT 04-35 Meter Reading System









September 8, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  John Lamerato, Assistant city Manager/Finance 
  Doug Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 

Gert Paraskevin, Information Technology Director 
   
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Resolution Opposing Senate Bill 528 
 
Attached please find a proposed resolution asking our state legislature to oppose 
Senate Bill 528.  Senate Bill 528, sponsored by Senator Johnson (R-Royal Oak), 
and House Bill 4600, sponsored by Representative Drolet, combined create the 
“Communication Act.”  The bills were developed to replace the existing 
“Telecommunications Act,” which sunsets on December 31st. 
 
In summary, the bills do the following: 

• Prohibit the Public Service Commission (PSC) from regulating the rates, 
charges, terms, or conditions for, or entry into or exit from, the provision of 
any communications service.  

• A governmental entity shall not provide a communications service except 
for the use of the entity itself.  

• Require a person to register with the PSC, and pay an annual $100 
registration fee, to provide a communications service in Michigan.  

• Specify that, in administering the proposed Act, the PSC would be limited 
to the express powers and duties prescribed by the Act.  

• Authorize the PSC to administer all Federal telecommunications laws, 
rules, orders, and regulations delegated to the State.  

• Authorize the PSC to promulgate rules to administer the proposed Act.  
• Require the PSC, upon receiving an application or complaint, to conduct 

an investigation, hold hearings, and issue its findings and orders in 
accordance with the Administrative Procedures Act (APA).  

• Allow a complainant to request an emergency relief order, and allow the 
PSC to grant the order if it found that certain conditions existed.  

 
While some of the outcomes have merit, there is concern that the bill, in its 
current form, impinges on local government control and prohibits municipalities 
from providing, or partnering in providing, any telecommunication services to our 
citizens.  The partnership between the City of Troy and Oakland County and the 
private sector currently underway to develop a multi-tiered wireless broadband 
service are compromised with the passage of Senate Bill 528. 
 
 
BPM\my documents\agenda items\2005\09.12.05 – Resolution Opposing Senate Bill 528 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-08



































campbellld
Text Box
F-09









 
 
DATE:   August 23, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Announcement of Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   2256 Garry 
 
 
 
 
On August 10, 2005, contact was made with Rosita Bosco identifying restrictions related 
to a commercial vehicle located on residential property.  As part of that information, she 
was advised that the Ford dump truck parked on the property did not comply with the 
exceptions found in Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00.  She was given the option to remove 
the vehicle or appeal to City Council for relief of the Ordinance. 
 
In response to our letters, Ms. Bosco has filed an appeal.  The appeal requests that a 
public hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing has 
been scheduled for your meeting of September 19, 2005. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a



 



 



 





 



 



 
 
DATE:   August 23, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Announcement of Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   2002 Atlas 
 
 
 
 
On July 26, 2005, information was sent to John Scislowicz that identified restrictions 
related to a commercial vehicle located on residential property.  As part of that 
information, he was advised that the GMC truck parked on the property did not comply 
with the exceptions found in Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00.  He was given the option to 
remove the vehicle or appeal to City Council for relief of the Ordinance. 
 
In response to our letters, Mr. Scislowicz has filed an appeal.  The appeal requests that 
a public hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing has 
been scheduled for your meeting of September 19, 2005. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01b



 





 



 



 



 
 
DATE:   September 2, 2005 

  
 

 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Announcement of Public Hearing 
   Request for Parking Variance 
   UnaSource Health, LLC  
   4550 Investment Drive  
 

 
 

 
We have received a building permit application from Debra Axelrood of the architectural 
firm of Harley Ellis to alter the medical office building at 4550 Investment Drive.  The 
alteration includes the conversion of approximately 9,000 square feet of the current 
basement storage area to usable floor space for clinic space.  The current facilities that 
are on the site have a parking requirement if 1,134 parking spaces.  If constructed, this 
additional building area would result in a revised total parking of 1,224 parking spaces 
for the development.  The existing parking lot has only 706 parking spaces and an 
additional 100 parking spaces can be provided in the area of the existing detention pond 
if the pond were to be reconstructed as an underground structure.  This results in a total 
potential of 806 parking spaces available on the site.  In February of 2001, City Council 
approved a variance to reduce the required parking by 336 spaces.  This still leaves a 
deficiency of 82 spaces for the current scope of work.  Because of the deficiency of the 
additional 82 spaces the building permit application has been denied.  The petitioner 
has filed an application for variance for the additional 82 spaces. 
 
A public Hearing has been scheduled for September 19, 2005, regarding this matter.  If 
you would like any additional information regarding this appeal, kindly advise. 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01c



 



 



 



 



 





 



 1

DATE:  September 6, 2005 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING 

(SEPTEMBER 19, 2005) – REZONING APPLICATION – From R-
1C to O-1 and E-P, Cambridge Square Office Buildings, West side 
of Dequindre, North of Long Lake, Section 12 (Z 707) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The application is compatible with surrounding land uses and zoning districts.  
Further, the request is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan which was 
amended in 1982.  The proposed 40-foot wide E-P zone is an appropriate 
transition between the O-1 district and the R-1C district to the north.  This E-P 
zone will define the upper limit of the Community Service Area.  The Planning 
Commission recommended approval of this item at the July 12, 2005 Regular 
Meeting.  
 
City Management agrees with the Planning Commission and recommends 
approval of the rezoning request. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is Frank D’Anna, PDI Enterprise, L.L.C. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the west side of Dequindre Rd., north of Long Lake 
Rd., in section 12. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant’s entire parcel is approximately 1.12 acres in size. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The property is currently vacant. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
The property is zoned R-1C One Family Residential. 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01d



 2

Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing to rezone the northern 40 ft. of the property to the E-P 
(Environmental Protection) zoning district and the southern 40 ft. of the property 
to the O-1 (Low Rise Office) zoning district    
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The application indicates that the applicant is proposing to combine this parcel 
with the parcel to the south creating a 3.46 acre parcel.  The applicant intends to 
develop a new bank building on the east end of the property, a 1-story office 
building on the west end and provide a 40 ft. landscape buffer along the northern 
property line.  
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Single family residential. 
South: Office. 
East: Retail Center (Sterling Heights). 
West: Single family residential neighborhood. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1C One Family Residential.   
South: O-1 Low Rise Office. 
East: C-2 Planned Comparison Business (Sterling Heights).   
West: R-1C One Family Residential.   
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in Proposed O-1 Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 
PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 

Office Buildings for any of the following occupations: executive, 
administrative; professional; accounting; writing; clerical stenographic; 
drafting; and sales. 

 
 Medical office, including clinics. 
 

Banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, and similar uses. 
Such uses may include drive-in facilities only as an accessory use. 

 
 Publicly owned buildings, exchanges, and public utility offices. 
 
 Other uses similar to the above uses. 



 3

USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 
 Uses customarily supporting or serving the Principal Uses permitted in this 

District, such as pharmacies or drug stores, optical services, copy services, 
office supplies, book stores, art galleries, or restaurants; provided that these 
uses are within the building housing the Principal Uses which they support, 
and provided that there is no direct outside entrance for these uses separate 
from the entrance serving the Principal Uses.   

 
 Data processing and computer centers, including sales support, service and 

maintenance of electronic data processing equipment.  The sales support, 
service and maintenance functions, shall be accessory or secondary to the 
Principal Uses permitted in this District, and thus shall not be operated as 
independent businesses. 

 
Technical training uses, when such are accessory or secondary to the 
Principal Uses permitted in this District, and thus not operated as 
independent businesses. 

 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 
 
 Mortuary establishments. 
 
 Private service clubs fraternal organizations and lodge halls, including 

accessory structures and uses customarily incidental to such uses, racquet 
and athletic clubs.  

 
 Private ambulance facilities.  
 
 Utility sub-stations, transformer stations or gas regulator stations 

(without storage yards). 
   

Mechanical or laboratory research involving testing and evaluation of 
products, or prototype or experimental product or process development. 

 
Child care centers, nursery schools, or day nurseries (not including 
dormitories). 

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
Access to the parcel will be provided from Dequindre Road, a major 
thoroughfare. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The proposed method of storm water detention is not shown on the site plan.  
The applicant will be required to adequately dispose of storm water on the 
property. 



 4

Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map does not indicate any significant natural features 
located on the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The property is located in the area of transition between Community Service 
Area and Low Density Residential on the Future Land Use Plan.  This was 
amended to include Community Service Area in 1982.  The Community Service 
Area designation correlates with B-2 (primary correlation) and B-3, B-1 and O-1 
(secondary correlation) in the Future Land Use Plan.  The proposed rezoning will 
extend the northern limits of O-1 approximately 40 feet to the north, however the 
E-P zone will define the upper limit of the Community Service Area.  The 40-foot 
wide E-P zone is an appropriate transition between the O-1 district and the R-1C 
district to the north.   
 
The application is in compliance with the Future Land Use Plan. 
 
 
 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ Z 707 
 
PREPARED BY RBS/MFM 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-707 Cambridge Square Sec 25\Announcement of CC Public Hearing Z-707 09 19 05.doc 
 
 



JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

K
S

WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

BIG BEAVER

LIV
E

R
N

O
IS

SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE LAKE

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ST
E

PH
E

N
S

O
N

M
A

IN R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

I75

MAPLE



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1C TO O-1 & E-P



B
LA

IR

E LONG LAKE

DUKE

R
EN

SH
AW

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

FED
O

R
A

D
AY

TO
N

JU
LIA

N

KNIGHT

W
IN

D
M

ILL

NILO

S
P

R
IN

G
 M

E
A

D
O

W
S

ERIKSON

H
Y

D
E

 PA
R

K

BU
TLER ±0 100 200 300 40050

Feet

REZONING REQUEST
PROP. CAMBRIDGE SQUARE OFFICE BLDGS.
FROM R-1C TO O-1 & E-P
NORTH OF LONG LAKE, WEST SIDE OF DEQUINDRE
SEC.  12  (Z-707)

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1C TO E-P

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1C TO O-1











brattopp
Text Box
APPLICANT'S STATEMENT



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 12, 2005 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 707) – Proposed Cambridge Square 
Office Development, West side of Dequindre, North of Long Lake, Section 12, - From R-
1C to O-1 and E-P 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
rezoning.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the rezoning request. 
 
The petitioner, Frank D’Anna of PDI Enterprise LLC, 42500 Hayes, Clinton Township, 
was present.  Mr. D’Anna said the subject property is the remaining vacant lot abutting 
the commercial zoning, and the property would be least desirable for a single family 
home with respect to transition between commercial and single family.  He said the 
proposed landscaped buffer would retain the value of the existing neighboring homes.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Pam Prewitt of 41203 Dequindre, Troy, was present.  Ms. Prewitt’s home is directly next to 
the proposed development.  She spoke in favor of the proposed rezoning and 
development.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Chair Strat stated the proposed site plan submitted with the rezoning request would not 
be a consideration in the Commission’s recommendation of the rezoning request.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-115 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the R-1C to O-1 and E-P rezoning request, located on the west side of Dequindre, 
north of Long Lake, within Section 12, being approximately 1.12 acres in size, be 
granted, for the following reason:  
 

1. The E-P zoning on the north side of the property will allow for proper transition 
into the residential to the north. 

 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Schultz said at the time that the site plan is considered, he would like to see the 
petitioner continue the E-P zoning for the homes to the west.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



 
 

September 7, 2005 
 
 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Child Daycare Group Homes Having Seven to Twelve Children in Single Family 

Residential Zoning 
 
Background 
 
We currently have twenty child daycare group homes licensed by the State of Michigan to operate in 
Troy.  However, our current ordinance does not allow for daycare group homes in the R-1A through 
R-1E districts, and the State of Michigan has failed to notify the City of Troy prior to the issuance of 
these licenses.  On July 6, 2005 I advised City Council that the City will not take enforcement action 
against licensed daycare group homes because the Planning Commission is considering making a 
recommendation to Council which may make these facilities allowable in residential districts.  
Subsequently, the Planning Commission recommended that this matter be deferred until such time as 
the State of Michigan takes action on this issue. 
 
On August 24, 2005 I was advised by Mr. Arnold Weinfeld, State and Federal Affairs Director for the 
Michigan Municipal League, that House Bill 4398, Zoning Consolidation, is going to the Senate 
Committee having no change to the current daycare group home legislation in terms of local 
regulation.  This means that local units will continue to control approval/non-approval of such uses as 
they see fit. 
 
Current Status 
 
Staff has scheduled a Planning Commission public hearing on this matter for September 27, 2005.  
As such, no addition enforcement action will be taken at this time.  However, I cannot take a non-
enforcement stance indefinitely, and therefore it is important for the Planning Commission to make a 
recommendation to the governing body on the daycare group home issue. 
 
Councilwoman Broomfield spoke to me and stated that since the Michigan Legislature is going to 
leave approval/non-approval of daycare group homes under local jurisdiction, it is time for the 
Planning Commission to make a recommendation so that City Council can determine policy on this 
matter.  As such, Ms. Broomfield has requested a resolution advising the Planning Commission to 
make a recommendation to City Council relative to daycare group homes after conclusion of their 
public hearing on September 27, 2005.   
 
As a point of information, attached is a listing of Planning Commission activities on ZOTA 214, 
daycare group homes in the R-1 residential zoning districts.   
 
JS/bt\my documents\agenda items\2005\09.12.05 – Child Daycare Group Homes 
 

c:  Lori G. Bluhm, City Attorney 
 Mark Miller, Planning Director 
 Doug Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 Planning Commission 

campbellld
Text Box
H-01



Planning Commission Actions on 
ZOTA 214 Group Daycare Homes 

in the R-1 Residential Zoning Districts 
MEETING DATE TYPE OF MEETING ACTION 

April 27, 2004 Study Meeting Potential Ordinance Revision Discussion and 
Presentation by Ms. Schafer  

May 4, 2004 Study Meeting Potential Ordinance Revision Discussion followed 
by Resolution #PC-2004-05-052 - Request for 
written confirmation that the Building Dept. 
violation at 5593 Mandale be held in abeyance 
while PC attempts to move forward with ZOTA, 
MOTION APPROVED 

July 27, 2004 Study Meeting Potential Ordinance Revision Discussion  
Sept. 28, 2004 Study Meeting Potential Ordinance Revision Discussion 
March 1, 2005 Study Meeting Brief Discussion after Planning & Zoning Report 
June 7, 2005 Study Meeting Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment Discussion 

followed by Resolution #PC-2005-06-094, directing 
the Planning Dept. not to extend any more effort 
on ZOTA 214, and to look into applicability of the 
State Building Code for family daycare homes to 
see if anything should be done in the City 
Ordinances to clear up potential legalities, 
MOTION FAILED 

June 28, 2005 Study Meeting Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment Discussion 
followed by Resolution #PC-2005-06-108, that a 
Public Hearing on ZOTA 214 be scheduled for 
August 9, 2005 and notices be sent to residents 
within 300 ft. of the existing 19 group daycare 
homes and that City Management provide a memo 
outlining pros and cons on the matter and that 
additional Special Use criteria be developed, 
MOTION APPROVED 

July 12, 2005 Regular Meeting During Good of the Order comments, Mr. Motzney 
provided an explanation to his memo addressing 
the Public Hearing for ZOTA 214 

August 2, 2005 Study Meeting Discussion of House Bill 4398 including Sec. 206 
(4) the requirement to permit conditionally group 
day care homes in residential districts 

August 9, 2005 Regular Meeting Public Hearing, followed by Resolution #PC-2005-
08-131, Planning Commission shall take no further 
action related to group day care homes until State 
Legislature and Governor have taken final action 
on House Bill 4398, MOTION APPROVED 

August 23, 2005 Study Meeting During Good of the Order comments, Chair Strat 
notified members that the State legislature is not 
going forward with modifications regarding group 
day care homes in House Bill 4398 and that City 
Management requested they resume action on 
ZOTA 214 

09-06-2005 



TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 

John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration  
Doug Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development  
Nino Licari, City Assessor 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

DATE: September 8, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: Statutory Requirements for Amending a DDA District    
 

 
 

 Councilmember Howrylak has requested a resolution setting a public hearing for amendment 
to the DDA District for the September 12, 2005 City Council meeting.  City Administration has not 
had an opportunity to fully research the potential impacts of amending the DDA district, which will 
require the hiring of financial and legal experts.  However, the following statutory time frames may 
be helpful to City Council.   
 
 According to MCL 125.1653 (5), “The governing body may alter or amend the boundaries of 
the downtown district to include or exclude lands from the downtown district pursuant to the same 
requirements for adopting the ordinance creating the authority.”  The statutory procedure for creating 
an authority is found in MCL 125.1653.  It initially requires the governing body to make a 
determination that an amendment to the district is in the best interest of the public.  In order to 
acquire the objective information required for this complex determination, input is required from both 
legal and financial experts.  This is especially true, since the impact of any change to the DDA 
boundaries may impact the outstanding DDA bonds.  Input from the DDA may also be advisable 
prior to the public interest determination.  The public hearing cannot be set prior to the City Council 
determination of public interest.     
 

If and when the City Council determines that an amendment of the DDA boundaries is in the 
best interest of the community, then this resolution can be accompanied by a resolution setting the 
public hearing date for a proposed amendment to the boundaries of the DDA. This public hearing 
would be at least 20 days after publication in the newspapers and mailing to all property owners in 
the district.  Even if Council were able to make the initial resolution at the September 12, 2005 
meeting, the earliest possible date for the public hearing would be October 24, 2005.   Council would 
then need to wait at least 60 days after the public hearing to pass an ordinance amendment that 
amends the boundaries of the DDA district.  Assuming that October 24, 2005 is a viable public 
hearing date, then any action taken towards amending the DDA district would not occur until early 
2006.    

 
 We are available to answer any questions concerning this matter.    
 
 
CC:  Downtown Development Authority  

campbellld
Text Box
H-02



1

Mary F Redden

From: mfhowryl@umich.edu
Sent: Wednesday, September 07, 2005 11:47 PM
To: John Szerlag; Lori G Bluhm
Subject: an item for Monday's agenda

Good evening!

Please add the following item to Monday's agenda:

   "Modifications to Downtown Development Authority area".

This relates to the Monarch development.  Please include a draft resolution
necessary to set the requisite public hearing date, as well as pertinent
background information.  Please include sections of the State statute related
to modification of DDA area, as well as information regarding how this would be
accomplished in this instance.

Please feel free to call me if you have any comments or questions.  Thank you.

Martin F. Howrylak
Councilman, City of Troy
248.643.6653 home
248.649.5814 fax
248.882.4599 cell



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   May 18, 2005 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on May 18, 2005 at 7:30 PM at City Hall 
in the Council Board Room, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  Nicole Vitale and Jessica Kraft called 
the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski 

Juliana D’Amico 
Catherine Herzog  
Maniesh Joshi  
Rishi Joshi  
Jessica Kraft (co-chair) 
Andrew Kalinowski  
Manessa Shaw  
Nicole Vitale (co-chair) 
YuJing Wang  
 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Min Chong 
Monika Raj  
Karen Wullaert (excused) 
 
 

ALSO PRESENT:  Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 
 

                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 
 

Resolution # TY-2005-05-15 
 Moved by D’Amico 
 Seconded by Herzog 

 RESOLVED, That the minutes of 4/27/05 be approved. 
 Yes: All - 10 
           No:      None  
 Absent: 3 – Chong, Raj, Wullaert 

 MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. Attendance Report: To note and file 
4. Re-cap of National League of Cities Audio Conference: Catherine Herzog 
5. Messages from TYC Alumni: 

 Visitor: Fred Wong, Former TYC Member and Former Student Member on the 
Troy Downtown Development Authority 

 Email Message from Lusi Fang, Harvard Student and Founder of the TYC  
6. Troy Daze Festival Update 

 Awaiting direction from event co-chairs; TYC members are interested in helping out 
and Fitzpatrick has conveyed that to the co-chairs 

 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   May 18, 2005 
 
 

 2

 
7. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provided Advance Notification  
  
 Resolution # TY-2005-05-16 

 Moved by Shaw 
 Seconded by Wang 

RESOLVED that Karen Wullaert is excused. 
 Yes: All - 10 
           No:      None  
 Absent: 3 – Chong, Raj, Wullaert 

 MOTION CARRIED 
 

8. Youth Council Comments 
9. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
 

 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:47 P.M. 
 
_______________________________ 
Nicole Vitale, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Laura A. Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 
 
 
 

Following adjournment - distributed certificates and took photos. 
 

Reminder Next Meeting: AUG 24th at 7:00 P.M. @ CITY HALL 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT – JUNE 1, 2005 

 1

 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, June 1, 2005, at the lower level conference room at City Hall.  
Leonard Bertin called the Meeting to order at 7:13 P.M. 
 
Present:  L Bertin, member  C. Buchanan, member 
   A. Done, member  A. Fuhrman, alternate 
   T. House, member  P. Manetta, member  
   D. Pietron, member  M. Pritzlaff, alternate  
   S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
   K. Jearls, staff 
 
Absent: S. Burt, member, EA K Gauri, member, EA 
   N. Johnson, alternate, UA A. Wiqar, student, UA 
    
ITEM B – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF May 4, 2005 
Werpetinski made a motion that the minutes of May 4, 2005 be approved as amended.  
Supported by Pietron.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM C – VISITORS, DELEGATIONS AND GENERAL PUBLIC 
Jean Richart and her son Dan and Jo Rexin attended the meeting to inquire about 
Steve Vinson’s termination from the Parks & Rec Dept.  They expressed their 
disappointment with the City’s decision.  Steve did an outstanding job working with kids 
with special needs.  They feel it is extremely important that the City fill this position with 
someone who has shown their abilities in working with children, especially those with 
special needs.  The Committee suggested their concerns should be presented to the 
Human Resource and Parks & Recreation Departments. 
 
ITEM D – NEW BUSINESS 
The appointment of a new Chair for the Committee was tabled until the August meeting. 
 
Our current student representative has never shown an interest and no longer attends 
meetings.  We will ask Cindy Stewart for her help on getting a new student appointed to 
our committee. 
 
Several members of the Committee will try to contact and determine whether or not 
Nancy Johnson will be returning as a member of this Committee. 
 
 
ITEM E – REGULAR BUSINESS 
Buchanan will attend the City Council meeting on 6/6/05 and Pritzlaff on 6/20/05.  Done 
and Manetta will attend on 7/11/05 and House and Werpetinski will attend on 7/18/05.  
Fuhrman will attend on 8/1/05. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT – JUNE 1, 2005 

 2

 
ITEM F – OLD BUSINESS 
Our Committee offered assistance in planning for future Senior Expo events.  Carla 
Vaughn said our attendance is not necessary since all planning is done by Parks & Rec 
City Staff.  We will offer a possible list of vendors available from Troy Daze for their 
consideration at future Senior Expo events. 
 
ITEM G - INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
Werpetinski will discuss with Cindy Stewart accessibility concerns at the City of Troy’s 
50th birthday party which will be held 6/19/05 in Boulan Park. 
 
We want to thank Susan Werpetinski for her follow through on the raised garden bed 
project.  This Committee gratefully acknowledges the extraordinary effort put forth by 
the Parks & Rec Dept. personnel responsible for producing the accessible elements of 
raised planted beds at Troy Farms Senior Citizen Garden. 
 
  
ITEM H – ADJOURN 
Done made a motion to adjourn at 8:20 which was seconded by House. 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                         _______________________________ 
                         Leonard Bertin, Chairperson 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL – JUNE 1, 2005 

 1

 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, June 1, 2005, at the lower level conference room at City Hall.  
Leonard Bertin called the Meeting to order at 7:13 P.M. 
 
Present:  L Bertin, member  C. Buchanan, member 
   A. Done, member  A. Fuhrman, alternate 
   T. House, member  P. Manetta, member  
   D. Pietron, member  M. Pritzlaff, alternate  
   S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
   K. Jearls, staff 
 
Absent: S. Burt, member, EA K Gauri, member, EA 
   N. Johnson, alternate, UA A. Wiqar, student, UA 
    
ITEM B – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF May 4, 2005 
Werpetinski made a motion that the minutes of May 4, 2005 be approved as amended.  
Supported by Pietron.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM C – VISITORS, DELEGATIONS AND GENERAL PUBLIC 
Jean Richart and her son Dan and Jo Rexin attended the meeting to inquire about 
Steve Vinson’s termination from the Parks & Rec Dept.  They expressed their 
disappointment with the City’s decision.  Steve did an outstanding job working with kids 
with special needs.  They feel it is extremely important that the City fill this position with 
someone who has shown their abilities in working with children, especially those with 
special needs.  The Committee suggested their concerns should be presented to the 
Human Resource and Parks & Recreation Departments. 
 
ITEM D – NEW BUSINESS 
The appointment of a new Chair for the Committee was tabled until the August meeting. 
 
Our current student representative has never shown an interest and no longer attends 
meetings.  We will ask Cindy Stewart for her help on getting a new student appointed to 
our committee. 
 
Several members of the Committee will try to contact and determine whether or not 
Nancy Johnson will be returning as a member of this Committee. 
 
 
ITEM E – REGULAR BUSINESS 
Buchanan will attend the City Council meeting on 6/6/05 and Pritzlaff on 6/20/05.  Done 
and Manetta will attend on 7/11/05 and House and Werpetinski will attend on 7/18/05.  
Fuhrman will attend on 8/1/05. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL – JUNE 1, 2005 

 2

 
ITEM F – OLD BUSINESS 
Our Committee offered assistance in planning for future Senior Expo events.  Carla 
Vaughn said our attendance is not necessary since all planning is done by Parks & Rec 
City Staff.  We will offer a possible list of vendors available from Troy Daze for their 
consideration at future Senior Expo events. 
 
ITEM G - INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
Werpetinski will discuss with Cindy Stewart accessibility concerns at the City of Troy’s 
50th birthday party which will be held 6/19/05 in Boulan Park. 
 
We want to thank Susan Werpetinski for her follow through on the raised garden bed 
project.  This Committee gratefully acknowledges the extraordinary effort put forth by 
the Parks & Rec Dept. personnel responsible for producing the accessible elements of 
raised planted beds at Troy Farms Senior Citizen Garden. 
 
  
ITEM H – ADJOURN 
Done made a motion to adjourn at 8:20 which was seconded by House. 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                         _______________________________ 
                         Leonard Bertin, Chairperson 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 7:30 p.m. on July 12, 2005, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Mark J. Vleck 
Lynn Drake-Batts David T. Waller 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Christopher Kulesza, Student Representative 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-109 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Vleck and Waller are excused from attendance at this 
meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Christopher Kulesza was introduced and welcomed as the new student 
representative.  Mr. Kulesza is a student at Notre Dame Prep School in Pontiac. 
 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
Chair Strat asked that the June 14, 2005 Regular Meeting minutes reflect the following 
change:  Agenda Item #4, ZOTA 215-A, page 4, 2nd paragraph -- The sentence should 
read “…and a so-called monster garage still could be built under either scenario in 
terms of the massing and size of the door.”   

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-07-110 
Moved by:  Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the June 14, 2005 Regular Meeting minutes as amended. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Strat asked that the June 28, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes reflect the 
following change:  Agenda Item #7, ZOTA 214, page 4, 2nd paragraph -- The last 
sentence should read:  “Chair Strat said that the seniors and disability residents 
seeking home care are not doing it for profit from their caregivers commencing in their 
homes.” 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-111 
Moved by:  Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the June 28, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes as 
amended. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat 
No: None 
Abstain: Wright 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Strat announced that five (5) affirmative votes are required for approval of 
agenda items, and the petitioner has the option to postpone his/her agenda item prior 
to the Planning Commission’s proceedings on that particular item.  Chair Strat noted 
agenda items postponed at tonight’s meeting would not be considered until the 
September Regular Meeting because the August Regular Meeting agenda is full. 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

TABLED AND POSTPONED ITEM 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 1) – Proposed 

Amendment to Woodside Bible Church/Northwyck Condominium P.U.D., East side 
of Rochester and South of South Blvd., Section 2 – PUD 1 
 
Mr. Miller presented a review of the requested amendments to PUD 1.  Mr. Miller 
confirmed that the petitioner provided the required screening for the rooftop 
mechanical equipment on top of the church.  He noted the EVA (Emergency Vehicle 
Access) connecting the church and the condominiums was constructed.  He said 
the City’s Fire Chief informed him that this is the City’s first EVA.  The Planning 
Department met with the petitioner to discuss the signage and proposed 
landscaping, but to date no plans have been received.  Mr. Miller reported the 
petitioner requested a postponement of the matter to the August 9, 2005 Regular 
Meeting.   
 
The members discussed the length of time [approximately six months] the petitioner 
has taken to submit the appropriate documentation to the Planning Department and 
the number of postponements requested by the petitioner.   
 
Wayne Chubb, project architect from of Hobbs & Black, 100 N. State Street, Ann 
Arbor, was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Chubb said they have 
continuously discussed the matter and met three or four times with the Planning 
Department since the inception of the proposed amendments.  He said an 
appropriate resolution to the matter would most likely be ready for the August 
Regular Meeting, and preliminary thoughts have been shared with the Planning 
Department.   
 
The Public Hearing was not opened.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-112 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
WHEREAS, The Final Plan and Agreement for a Planned Unit Development, 
pursuant to Section 35.60.01 and Section 35.80.00, for the Woodside Bible 
Church/Northwyck Planned Unit Development, known as PUD-1, located on the 
east side of Rochester Road and south of South Boulevard, located in Section 2, 
within the R-1D zoning district, being 89.83 acres in size, be postponed to the 
October 11, 2005 Regular Meeting.   
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Schultz, Strat 
No: Littman, Wright 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Wright said the petitioner has had plenty of time to bring the matter to 
resolution.  He is tired of postponing the item and would recommend denial of the 
proposed amendments at this time.   
 
Mr. Littman said it seems the petitioner is having trouble producing the drawings for 
the sign, and it might be advantageous to the petitioner to resubmit the request 
when the drawings are complete.  Mr. Littman said it is very hard to believe there is 
some technical reason that the drawings could not be completed by now, and it 
would be his recommendation to deny the proposed amendments at this time. 
 
 

REZONING REQUESTS 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 706) – Proposed Village of 
Tuscany Cluster Development, South side of Long Lake, West of Calvert, Section 
14 – Section R-1C to CR-1 
 
Mr. Chamberlain announced that he lives next to the property that is proposed for 
rezoning.  He asked the Assistant City Attorney if it would be appropriate for him to 
abstain from discussion and voting on the request.   
 
Mr. Motzny said it appears Mr. Chamberlain’s participation in the discussion and 
voting process would not be appropriate because there is a possibility that the 
proposed rezoning could have an affect on his personal interest that could result in 
financial implications.  He recommended consideration of a motion to allow Mr. 
Chamberlain to abstain from voting on the matter.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain asked to be excused.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-113 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To allow Mr. Chamberlain to abstain from voting on Agenda Item #5, 
at his request, because of the proximity of his residential property to the 
development.   
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Chamberlain 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
(Mr. Chamberlain exited the meeting.) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
rezoning.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the rezoning request.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Joseph Vaglica of GES Engineering, 8155 Annsbury, Shelby Township, was 
present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Vaglica provided an explanation for the 
discrepancy in the cluster density in relation to the 60-foot easement that was 
recently sold to the City of Troy.  Mr. Vaglica said the proposed development would 
be a better fit for the property and more suitable to its environment. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-114 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to CR-1 rezoning request, located on the south side of Long 
Lake Road, west of Calvert, within Section 14, being approximately 3.07 acres in 
size, be granted.   
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Chamberlain (per Resolution #PC-2005-07-113) 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
(Mr. Chamberlain returned to the meeting.) 
 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 707) – Proposed Cambridge 
Square Office Development, West side of Dequindre, North of Long Lake, Section 
12, - From R-1C to O-1 and E-P 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
rezoning.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the rezoning request. 
 
The petitioner, Frank D’Anna of PDI Enterprise LLC, 42500 Hayes, Clinton 
Township, was present.  Mr. D’Anna said the subject property is the remaining 
vacant lot abutting the commercial zoning, and the property would be least 
desirable for a single family home with respect to transition between commercial 
and single family.  He said the proposed landscaped buffer would retain the value of 
the existing neighboring homes.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Pam Prewitt of 41203 Dequindre, Troy, was present.  Ms. Prewitt’s home is directly 
next to the proposed development.  She spoke in favor of the proposed rezoning and 
development.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Chair Strat stated the proposed site plan submitted with the rezoning request would 
not be a consideration in the Commission’s recommendation of the rezoning 
request.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-115 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to O-1 and E-P rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Dequindre, north of Long Lake, within Section 12, being approximately 1.12 acres in 
size, be granted, for the following reason:  
 
1. The E-P zoning on the north side of the property will allow for proper 

transition into the residential to the north. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Schultz said at the time that the site plan is considered, he would like to see the 
petitioner continue the E-P zoning for the homes to the west.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUESTS 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 110-B) – Existing 
Bharatiya Temple Addition, East side of Adams, South side of South Blvd., Section 
6, Zoned R-1A (One Family Residential) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
special use and site plan.  He confirmed the site plan is inclusive of the required 8-
foot sidewalks on both major roads, and that the landbanked parking spaces are by 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

right and are shown on the site plan.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the 
recommendation of the Planning Department to approve the special use request 
and site plan as submitted.   
 
Ramarao Cherukuri of 5448 Crispinway, West Bloomfield, was present to represent 
the Bharatiya Temple.  Mr. Cherukuri provided a history of the Temple, the reason 
for the expansion request, and a description of the architectural design, a first of its 
kind in Michigan.  He informed the members that an open house was held for 
neighbors to share the expansion plan, and extended an invitation to everyone to 
visit the Temple.   
 
Doug Necci, project architect from Metco Services, 23917 Cass, Farmington, was 
present.  Mr. Necci addressed the plan’s special environmental features, wetlands, 
and comments received at the open house.  A brief PowerPoint presentation 
displayed the plan’s rendering, elevations, site amenities and architectural design.  
 
Mr. Chamberlain questioned how the 8-foot sidewalks would be installed around the 
lake / wetlands.   
 
Mr. Necci said it is his understanding that the sidewalk variances obtained with the 
original site plan would be continued for the expansion request.  He said he would 
be more than happy to build sidewalks where it is possible. 
 
Mr. Miller stated the authoritative body to grant sidewalk waivers is the Traffic 
Committee.  Mr. Miller reminded the members that they have discretion in the 
Special Use approval process. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain said his preference is sidewalks on the development but should 
that not be possible, a bridge made of timber could be constructed and it should be 
made a part of the special use approval.   
 
Mr. Littman asked if acceleration/deceleration lanes are planned for the two major 
roads.   
 
George Ferraro, project civil engineer from Metco Services, Inc., 23917 Cass, 
Farmington, provided information with respect to acceleration/deceleration lanes.  
He said there is a deceleration lane for the entrance off of Adams, the site’s 
secondary entrance.  The main entrance off of South Boulevard is planned to have 
a bypass and deceleration lane that would connect to the 3-lane portion east of the 
site.  Mr. Ferraro said there have been discussions with the Oakland County Road 
Commission.  It is understood that plans would have to be re-submitted as detailed 
engineering plans approach.  Mr. Ferraro indicated he would be willing to work with 
the City’s Environmental Specialist during the design phase with respect to 
stormwater management.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-05-116 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Special Use Approval and Site Plan Approval, pursuant to 
Section 10.30.04 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Bharatiya 
Temple Addition, located on the east side of Adams Road, south of South 
Boulevard, Section 6, within the R-1A Zoning District, be granted, subject to the site 
plan.   
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Khan confirmed the motion is to approve the site plan as submitted to the 
Planning Department with the 8-foot sidewalks as shown on the site plan. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain asked that the 8-foot sidewalks as noted on the plan be approved 
as part of the special use approval, not the site plan approval.  He indicated he 
would compromise with 5-foot sidewalks.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said the subdivision behind the subject property does not have 
sidewalks because it is an area that would prefer to not have sidewalks.  She said 
constructing a bridge would increase the cost of the project.  Ms. Drake-Batts said 
she does not see a need to put in sidewalks based on the composition of the 
adjoining neighborhood.   
 
Mr. Necci suggested an alternate sidewalk layout that would bypass the wetlands 
and any problem areas and extend onto the subject property.   
 
Mr. Littman said there is not one foot of sidewalk in the approximate mile area from 
Square Lake to South Boulevard.  He addressed the cost factor.   
 
Mr. Miller said the petitioner could offer the use of their property through an 
easement that would allow people to walk through the property. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain said a resident would not know that is a public easement and he 
would not agree to an internal sidewalk.   
 
Mr. Cherukuri noted a sidewalk could not be placed at the corner of South 
Boulevard and Adams where the historical home is located.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

Mr. Kulesza commented on the cost factor of sidewalks or bridges.  
 
There were comments on the beauty and preservation of the wetlands.   
 
Mr. Wright said there is no way a sidewalk could go around the historical house on 
the corner.  He does not see a need to impose on the petitioner the requirement to 
construct a sidewalk or bridge the wetlands area.   
 
Mr. Schultz said he would not insist that the petitioner bridge the wetlands, but there 
should be sidewalks where they can be installed.  Mr. Schultz expressed concern 
for the safety of pedestrians attending functions at the Temple.  He said functions at 
the Temple could attract up to 500 people who would be parked along South 
Boulevard and Adams Road.   
 
Mr. Khan confirmed the motion is for approval of the site plan and special use 
approval as submitted, and that a sidewalk waiver could be requested by the 
petitioner should he so desire.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: Chamberlain 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Chamberlain said he wanted the requirement for sidewalks to be approved as 
part of a special use approval because he thinks the Traffic Committee would not 
have authority to change the special use approval verbiage.   
 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:45 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 8:50 p.m. 

___________ 
 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 328) – Existing 
Clark Station, Northeast corner of Maple and Livernois, Section 27, Zoned H-S 
(Highway Service) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
special use request.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of the 
Planning Department to approve the special use request and site plan as submitted.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

Mr. Chamberlain addressed the comments of the City’s Environmental Specialist 
with respect to the release of gasoline in 1993.  He said it appears that action 
should not be taken on the request until a remedy has been filed with the State.   
 
Mr. Miller said the Planning Commission has the discretionary authority to place a 
condition on the special use approval.   
 
The petitioner, Michael Kozlowski of Caeruleum Environmental Design, 5603 S. 
Telegraph, Dearborn Heights, was present.  Mr. Kozlowski said he would find the 
on-site remediation activity and report his findings to the Planning Department.  He 
assumes there is ongoing remediation.  Mr. Kozlowski requested consideration to 
approve the site plan and special use request with the condition of remediation filed 
with the MDEQ.   
 
Mr. Littman addressed the comments of the City’s Environmental Specialist related 
to the proposed tanks appearing to be in the middle of the future right-of-way.   
 
Mr. Kozlowski assured the members that there would be no tanks in the future right 
of way. 
 
Mr. Miller said it is his opinion that the Environmental Specialist’s comments are 
inaccurate. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-05-    
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Special Use Approval and Site Plan Approval, pursuant to 
Section 22.30.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Clark 
Station improvements, located on the northeast corner of Maple and Livernois, 
Section 27, within the H-S Zoning District, be tabled until such time as the petitioner 
comes forward with remediation plans on the environmental problems that started in 
1993.   
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said the remediation could be the continuous monitoring of the tank 
and might never be resolved.  She said, as the motion reads, the petitioner might be 
restricted from ever renovating the gas station. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

Mr. Schultz said it would be prudent to get the remediation documentation as part of 
the site plan and special use approval.   
 
Mr. Littman suggested the tabling motion stipulate a specific date.  He indicated he 
would like finalization on the location of the tanks.  
 
Resolution # PC-2005-05-117 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Special Use Approval and Site Plan Approval, pursuant to 
Section 22.30.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Clark 
Station improvements, located on the northeast corner of Maple and Livernois, 
Section 27, within the H-S Zoning District, be tabled to the September 13, 2005 
Regular Meeting.  
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said it is most likely the gasoline leak has been taken care of and the 
petitioner is coming back for no reason.   
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

9. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 917) – Proposed Fifth Third Bank, East side of Rochester 
Road, North side of Bishop, Section 23, Zoned B-3 (General Business) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
Fifth Third Bank.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of the Planning 
Department to approve the site plan as submitted.   
 
Mr. Schultz addressed the existing fence that would be replaced with a screen wall.  
He asked if the existing fence surrounds the backyard of a neighboring home and if 
contact has been made with the homeowner. 
 
Mr. Miller responded that the fence might have been put up in the wrong location, 
which is a common occurrence.  Mr. Miller said the matter would be reviewed. 
 
The petitioner, Marcos Makohon of KR Architecture, LLC, 26899 Northwestern Hwy, 
Southfield, was present.  Mr. Makohon said the neighbor has not been contacted.  
Upon their review, it was found that the existing fence follows a fence line of many 
years ago and the property was not surveyed.  Mr. Makohon said a vacant 
commercial building, a former Robert Hall store and real estate firm, is being 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

removed to erect what they hope to be an extremely active banking center.  He 
stated that the impact to the neighbors was minimized, and noted that it is an 
ordinance requirement to put up a masonry wall.  Mr. Makohon said it would be in 
their best interest to contact the neighbor.   
 
 
Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-118 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz  
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the Proposed 
Fifth Third Bank, located on the east side of Rochester Road, north of Bishop, 
located in Section 23, on approximately 1.71 acres, within the B-3 zoning district, is 
hereby granted.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

10. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 918) – Proposed Addition Motion Industries, Northeast 
corner of Brinston and Bellingham, Section 26, Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District  
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
building addition to Motion Industries.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the 
recommendation of the Planning Department to approve the site plan as submitted.   
 
The petitioner, Bob Paciocco of The Paciocco Companies, 1330 Goldsmith, 
Plymouth, was present.  Mr. Paciocco said Motion Industries has been an excellent, 
long-term tenant who is requesting additional warehouse space.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-05-119 
Moved by: Schultz  
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the 
total number of required parking spaces to thirty-six (36) when a total of forty-three 
(43) spaces are required on the site based on the off-street parking space 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

requirements for general industrial, as per Article XL in the event of a change of use 
in the future as required by Section 40.21.82 of the Zoning Ordinance.  
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the 
Proposed Motion Industries Addition, located on the northeast corner of Brinston and 
Bellingham, located in Section 26, on approximately 1.35 acres, within the M-1 
zoning district, is hereby granted.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

11. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 919) – Proposed Buscemi Party Shoppe, North of 
Hartland, East of Rochester, Section 23 – Zoned B-1 (Local Business) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
Buscemi Party Shoppe.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of the 
Planning Department to approve the site plan as submitted with the condition that 
the sidewalks be extended across the entry drives on both Rochester and Hartland.   
 
Patrick Westerlund of Design Group Architects, 637 E. Big Beaver, Troy, was 
present to represent the owner and petitioner. 
 
The petitioner, Paul Buscemi of 3296 Rochester Road, Troy, was also present.   
 
Mr. Westerlund said Buscemi Party Shoppe is relocating from their current tenant 
space to this location.  Mr. Westerlund said he and the Planning Department staff 
worked on the site plan.  He indicated the new location would be a great asset for 
the Buscemi family and Buscemi customers. 
 
Mr. Schultz said he hopes the petitioner works closely with the property owner to 
the east so that the screen wall is of an attractive appearance and color, since the 
development is directly on the property line and next to the neighbor’s home.   
 
Chair Strat commended the Planning Department staff in their involvement in 
getting the cross access easement.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-120 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed 
Buscemi Party Shoppe, located on the east side of Rochester Road, north of 
Hartland, located in Section 23, on approximately 16,505 square feet, within the B-1 
zoning district, is hereby granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Extend the sidewalks across the entry drives on both Rochester and Hartland.   
2. Register the proposed cross access easement with the County. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts is not in favor of the development because it intrudes into 
neighborhood behind it.   
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 
 

12. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 201) – 
Article 28.30.00  Arts and Dance Schools (Commercial Recreation) in Light 
Industrial Zoning Districts 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
relating to arts and dance schools in the light industrial zoning districts.  Mr. Miller 
reported that City Management recommends approval of ZOTA 201 as printed on 
the draft ZOTA dated June 24, 2005.   
 
There was a brief discussion relating to commercial recreation in the RC zoning 
districts.  It was determined to discuss this at a future study meeting.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-121 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 28.30.09, pertaining to indoor commercial recreation facilities in 
the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District, and related additional definitions, be 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 15 - 
 

amended as printed on the Proposed Planning Commission Public Hearing Draft 
Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

13. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 216) – 
Article 28.00.00 Additional Retail Along Major Thoroughfares in the M-1 (Light 
Industrial) Zoning District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
relating to additional retail along major thoroughfares in the M-1 zoning district.  Mr. 
Miller reported that City Management recommends approval of ZOTA 216 as 
printed on the draft ZOTA dated June 27, 2005.   
 
Mr. Wright pointed out a typographical error in Section 28.30.09 (A).  The word “is” 
should be deleted.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Arie Leibovitz of Ari-El Enterprises, 29548 Southfield Road, Southfield, was present.  
Mr. Leibovitz identified himself as the interested party who brought the matter to the 
attention of the City as a desire and need to accommodate flexibility in properties 
along the major arteries.  Mr. Leibovitz, owner of numerous buildings along the Maple 
Road corridor, encouraged the members to support the text amendment that would 
revitalize some of the buildings that are becoming dysfunctional for the industrial use 
along the corridor.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-122 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 28.30.09, pertaining to additional retail uses along major 
thoroughfares in the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District, be amended as printed on 
the Proposed Planning Commission Public Hearing Draft Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment, subject to the correction of one typographical error in item A of the 
proposed text. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 16 - 
 

Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said the proposed amendment is too restrictive and should not be 
limited to major thoroughfares.   
 
 

14. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Schultz addressed the recent Supreme Court decision with respect to the taking of 
land as relates to its impact in the long-term.   
 
Mr. Littman addressed the proposed PUD in Rochester Hills [Historic Lorna Stone Village].  
He suggested it might be helpful if Troy and Rochester Hills worked together with respect 
to the Bharatiya Temple Addition with respect to curb cuts, acceleration/deceleration lanes, 
etc.   
 
Mr. Wright complimented the Chair on dispensing a cumbersome agenda in a relatively 
short period of time.   
 
Mr. Kulesza said tonight was fun and he was looking forward to working with the members.   
 
Mr. Motzny provided an explanation to his memorandum that addresses the public hearing 
for the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment relating to group daycare in residential 
districts.   
 
Mr. Miller announced he would not be at the July 26, 2005 Study/Special Meeting.   
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 17 - 
 

 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 9:38 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Final\07-12-05 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 
 



campbellld
Text Box
J-01e







BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 19, 2005 

Matthew Kovacs, Vice-Chairman, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:33 P.M., in Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall on Tuesday, July 19, 2005. 
 
PRESENT:  Kenneth Courtney 
   Marcia Gies 
   Michael Hutson 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Wayne Wright 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ABSENT:  Christopher Fejes 
 
Motion by Gies 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Fejes from this meeting as he is out of town. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. FEJES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JUNE 21, 2005 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of June 21, 2005 as written. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Gies, Hutson, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney 
Abstain: 1 – Kovacs 
Absent: 1 – Fejes 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – APPROVAL OF ITEMS #3 THROUGH ITEM #5 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve renewal of Item #3 for a period of three (3) years as suggested in the 
Agenda Explanation and to schedule a Public Hearing for Item #4 and Item #5 in order to 
consider permanent variances for these items. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE ITEM #3 FOR A THREE (3) YEAR RENEWAL AND TO 
POSTPONE ITEM #4 AND ITEM #5 UNTIL THE MEETING OF AUGUST 16, 2005 TO 
ALLOW FOR A NEW PUBLIC HEARING ON THESE ITEMS CARRIED. 
 
ITEM #3 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  MR. & MRS. AL KING, ATLAS VENEER 
FIREPLACE, 2212 LIVERNOIS, for relief of the Ordinance to maintain a metal fence in lieu 
of the 6’ high masonry screening wall required along the east property line where this 
commercial property abuts residentially zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief to maintain a metal 
fence in lieu of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the east property line 
where this commercial property abuts residentially zoned property.  This Board originally 
this relief in 1983, primarily due to the fact that the petitioner owns the property to the east, 
which is undeveloped.  This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of July 
2002 and was granted a three (3) year renewal.  Conditions remain the same and we have 
no complaints or objections on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant Mr. & Mrs. Al King, Atlas Veneer Fireplace, 2212 Livernois a three (3) 
year renewal of relief to maintain a metal fence in lieu of the 6’ high masonry screening wall 
required along the east property line where this commercial property abuts residentially 
zoned property. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• We have no complaints or objections on file. 

 
ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  INDEPENDENT BANK, 5950 ROCHESTER ROAD, 
for relief of the 6’ high masonry screening wall required along the south and east property 
lines. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief of the 6’ high 
masonry-screening wall required along the south and east property lines where it abuts 
residentially zoned property.  These property lines abut multiple-family residential zoning 
and relief was originally granted in 1977 based on the fact that a drain surrounded the area 
and there was a substantial brush growth that adequately screens the abutting residential 
land.  This item last appeared before this Board in July 2002 and was granted a three (3) 
year renewal at that time.  Conditions remain the same and we have no complaints or 
objections on file. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief of the 6’ high 
masonry-screening wall required along the south and east property lines where it abuts 
residentially zoned property.  These property lines abut multiple-family residential zoning 
and relief was originally granted in 1977 based on the fact that a drain surrounded the area 
and there was a substantial brush growth that adequately screens the abutting residential  
land.  This item last appeared before this Board in July 2002 and was granted a three (3) 
year renewal at that time.  Conditions remain the same and we have no complaints or 
objections on file. 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Independent Bank, 5950 Rochester, for relief of the 6’ 
high masonry screening wall required along the south and east property lines where it abuts 
residentially zoned property until the meeting of August 16, 2005. 
 

• To allow the Building Department the time necessary to publish a Public Hearing in 
order to consider a permanent variance. 

 
ITEM #5 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  OSPREY, LTD, 2701 TROY CENTER, for relief of 
the 6’ high masonry wall required along the north property line. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief of the 6’ high 
masonry-screening wall required along the north property line where it abuts residentially 
zoned property.  This variance was originally granted based on the fact that the petitioner 
would install 280’ of decorative metal fencing and landscaping along this north property line 
that abuts a residential apartment complex.  This item last appeared before this Board in 
July 2002 and was granted a three (3) year renewal.  Conditions remain the same and we 
have no objections or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Osprey, LTD, 2701 Troy Center for relief of the 6’ high 
masonry wall required along the north property line where it abuts residentially zoned 
property until the meeting of August 16, 2005. 
 

• To allow the Building Department the time necessary to publish a Public Hearing in 
order to consider a permanent variance. 

 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  DAVID DONNELLON, OF THE CHOICE GROUP, 
4254 BEACH ROAD, for relief of the Ordinance to split an existing parcel of land from its 
Beach Road frontage.  This split would result in a street frontage for this property of only 55 
feet where Section 30.10.02 of the Ordinance requires that properties in the R-1B Zoning 
District have a minimum of 100’ of frontage on a public street. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to split an 
existing parcel from its Beach Road frontage.  The site plan submitted indicates a split of 
this property from its Beach Road frontage and creating access to the property from  
the western end of the stub street Prestwick.  This would result in the only street frontage 
for this property being the 55 feet at the end of Prestwick Drive.  Section 30.10.02 requires 
that properties in the R-1B Zoning District have a minimum of 100’ of frontage on a public 
street. 
 
The petitioner was not present.  Mr. Kovacs moved this Item to the end of the agenda, Item 
#11 to allow the petitioner the opportunity to be present. 
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  TIMOTHY BUNKER, 2861 DASHWOOD, for relief 
of the Ordinance to construction a family room addition.  This proposed addition would 
move the rear line 24’ to the south resulting in approximately 10’ of the existing pool in a  
 

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
side yard location.  Section 40.57.03 prohibits the placement of accessory buildings or 
structures in any yard except a rear yard. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct a 
family room addition.  This property has an above ground swimming pool located in the rear 
yard.  The construction of the family room addition on the rear of the home would shift the 
rear yard line 24’ to the south resulting in approximately 10’ of the existing pool being 
located in a side yard location.  Section 40.57.03 prohibits the placement of accessory 
buildings or structures in any yard except a rear yard. 
 
Mr. Bunker was present and stated that his family needs the room this family room addition 
would provide and when this pool is taken down and another pool  put up, it will be moved 
to the back of his property.  This property is also in a flood plain and Mr. Bunker does not 
believe he could put another pool in this area. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked approximately what the distance would be between the pool and the 
proposed addition.  Mr. Bunker stated that it is about 16 to18 feet. 
 
Mr. Kovacs opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public Hearing 
was closed. 
 
There are eight (8) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if a variance could be granted for a term of years.  Ms. Lancaster said 
that she did not believe a stipulation could be placed on this request with a time limit, 
however, she did state that it would be possible to place the condition that if and when the 
pool was replaced it would need to be moved to a location that is conforming to the 
Ordinance.   
 
Mr. Kovacs advised the petitioner that if he changed his mind in 10 or 12 years and decided 
he would like to replace the pool and leave the pool in the same location, he could come 
back to this Board and request a variance.  Mr. Bunker stated that he had a very large lot 
and would not have a problem with complying with the Ordinance. 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to grant Timothy Bunker, 2861 Dashwood, relief of the Ordinance to construct a 
family room addition, which would move the rear line 24’ to the south resulting in 
approximately 10’ of the existing pool in a side yard location.   
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• If pool is replaced it would be moved to a conforming location. 
• Variance request applies only to the existing pool. 
• Variance applies only to the property in this application. 

 

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Courtney told Mr. Bunker that he thought the present location of the pool was fine, and 
in the future if the pool was replaced, the petitioner would have the option to ask for a 
variance from this Board. 
 
ITEM #8 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  H. W. CARTER, 1751 EASTPORT, for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct a covered front porch that would result in a 21’ front yard setback.  
Section 30.10.06 requires a 25’ minimum front yard setback in R-1E Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct a 
covered front porch.  The site plan submitted indicates constructing a roof over an existing 
uncovered front porch resulting in a proposed 21’ front yard setback.  Section 30.10.06 
requires a 25’ minimum front yard setback in R-1E Zoning Districts. 
 
John Swanson from Oakland Building Company was present and stated that there is a 
disabled person residing at this address and the covered porch would help to protect him 
from the elements and allow access to the front of the house. 
 
Mr. Kovacs opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public Hearing 
was closed. 
 
There are six (6) written approvals on file.  There is one (1) written objection on file. 
 
Motion by Hutson 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant H.W. Carter, 1751 Eastport, relief of the Ordinance to construct a covered 
front porch that would result in a 21’ front yard setback, where Section 30.10.06 requires a 
25’ minimum front yard setback in R-1E Zoning Districts. 
 

• Variance will not cause an adverse effect to the surrounding property. 
• Variance would not be contrary to public interest. 
• Variance does not establish a prohibited use in a Zoning District. 
• Without a variance, public health, safety and welfare could be negatively affected. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
 
 
 

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #9 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  WESLEY MUELLER, 41 BILTMORE, for relief of 
the Ordinance to construct a second floor addition on his home.  This home was 
constructed with a covered front porch, which has an 11’-3” front yard setback and is 
considered a legal non-conforming structure.  The proposed second floor addition would 
continue this 11’-3” setback.  Section 40.50.04 of the Ordinance prohibits expansions on 
non-conforming structures in a way that increases the non-conformity. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Zoning Ordinance to 
construct a second floor addition on his home.  Section 30.10.06 requires a 25’ minimum 
front yard setback for a single family home constructed in the R-2 (Duplex) Zoning District.  
The plot plan submitted indicates the existing house has a covered front porch with an 11’-
3” front yard setback and is a legal non-conforming structure.  The site plan submitted 
indicates expanding the second floor over this porch continuing the 11’-3” front setback.  
Section 40.50.04 prohibits expansions of non-conforming structures in any way that 
increases the non-conformity. 
 
Mr. Wesley Mueller was present and stated that the wished to add this addition in order to 
make the second floor into habitable space.  They wish to put in three bedrooms and two 
baths upstairs. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the front porch would remain a porch and Mr. Mueller stated at this time 
they plan to leave this space as a front porch. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked what the square footage of this home was and Mr. Mueller stated it is 
approximately 871 square feet and with the addition the square footage would be increased 
to just about 2000 square feet.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what the second floor is used for now and Mr. Mueller stated that 
basically it is an attic and they use it for storage.  
 
Mr. Kovacs opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public Hearing 
was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Wesley Mueller, 41 Biltmore, relief of the Ordinance to construct a second 
floor addition on his home that will result in a 11’-3” front yard setback. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance would increase the area of the  non-conformity of this home, but the 

setback would not be changed. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #10 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  LISA HIGH OF CDPA ARCHITECTS, 1639 E. BIG 
BEAVER (PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new building 
for the Suma Medical Center.  The site plan submitted indicates that 9,176 square feet of 
landscaping is provided.  Section 39.70.02 and Section 39.70.04 requires that 14,738 
square feet of landscaping be provided for a building of this size. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct a 
new building for the Suma Medical Center.  Section 39.70.04 requires that ten (10) percent 
of the net site area be developed as landscaped open space.  This landscaping must be 
located in the front or side yard and must be in addition to the 10’ green belt required by 
Section 39.70.02.  The required landscaping for a site this size is 14,738 square feet.  The 
site plan submitted indicates that only 9,176 square feet of landscaping is provided, making 
the site deficient 5, 562 square feet.  Mr. Stimac also explained that this piece of property is 
zoned as O-1, P-1, E-P and R-1E.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked for an explanation of the E-P (Environmentally Protected) Zoning 
Classification.  Mr. Stimac stated that basically the E-P Zoning District is in place for two 
reasons:  one is to preserve environmentally sensitive areas such as wetlands, nature 
preserves and the second reason is to use it as a buffer between different zoning 
classifications where an area of a certain width and size is provided between an office 
development and a residential area.  Mr. Kovacs asked if this area was allowed in the 
calculation regarding the landscape requirement and Mr. Stimac said that the only 
landscaping that can be counted is in the front and side of the proposed building.   
 
Mr. Wright stated that one of the reasons for the E-P Zoning is to increase the line between 
the different properties because there is either an oil or gas line on this section of the 
property and therefore could not be developed.  This item had appeared before the 
Planning Commission and they recommended this Zoning Classification to City Council 
because of this condition. 
 
Lisa High was present and stated that because this property is long and narrow it is very 
difficult to make use of this site and create parking at the same time.  In order to achieve the 
landscaping requirement they would have to move the building back 56’, which would 
eliminate eighteen (18) parking spaces and would also place the front of this building 64’ 
behind the building next door. This would reduce visibility from the west and also 
compromise the existing streetscape.  They have provided several trees and a landscaped 
walk at the rear of the building. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if it wouldn’t make more sense to move the building farther back and 
place landscaping up front.  Ms. High stated that they were trying to maintain the building in 
line with the building next door and if they have to move it farther back it would decrease 
visibility.   They are trying to maintain the building with the edge of the building next door. 
 
 
 

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked how large this lot was.  Ms. High said that it is 1,305.8 ft. in length and 
they are proposing to develop an area of 883’-9” .  Mr. Maxwell asked how wide the 
property was and Ms. High stated that the width of the property is 166.92’. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if there was a possibility of either adding a structure for parking or 
creating underground parking for this building.  Ms. High said that they had not considered it 
because it was cost prohibitive and they were planning to use the basement for storage. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what the square footage of the E-P zoning was.  Ms. High said that she 
did not break it out individually however the square footage was indicated on the drawing 
they submitted.   Ms. High said that is was roughly about 30,000 square feet.  Mr. Stimac 
said that he calculated the E-P zoning to be 28,713 square feet. 
 
Mr. Hutson said that if the size of the building was reduced, it could be moved farther back 
and they would not have a parking deficit of eighteen (18) spaces.  Ms. High indicated that 
was probably correct.  Mr. Hutson said that he thought this was a very narrow lot and they 
were attempting to overbuild this lot.  Mr. Hutson went on to say that he was very concerned 
and did not want to see Troy turned into a miniature Southfield, where all you see along the 
road are office buildings and the 10% landscaping requirement would help to soften this 
look.  Ms. High said that they are providing landscaping in the front of the building and the 
look would be softened.  They have provided parking in the front of this building. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that if they moved the building further back they would have a lot of 
parking and also plenty of landscaping.  Ms. High said that if the building were placed 
farther back the visibility would be decreased.  Mr. Courtney stated that this would not be 
the only building that was set back farther from the road. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the E-P Zoning could be counted toward the landscape requirement 
and Mr. Stimac explained that if it was at the front yard or side yard of the property it would 
be countable.  Mr. Stimac also stated that the total landscaping on this site significantly 
exceeds 10% of this area, but in addition to a requirement of the percentage required there 
is also a stipulation that the landscaping must be in the front and side yards of the property. 
 
Mr. Kovacs opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public Hearing 
was closed. 
 
There are three (3) written objections on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that he would like more information as to why the petitioner wants this 
building in this location as he has not heard a strong enough case as to why they want it 
this close to Big Beaver.  Ms. High stated that they wished to maintain visibility and would 
like people to be able to find it easily.  Mr. Maxwell asked if there were any other reasons 
and Ms. High said that they just wish to make it easier for people to find this building.  Mr. 
Maxwell also stated that this is a very narrow property. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Lisa High of CDPA Architects, 1639 E. Big Beaver 
(proposed address), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new building for the Suma 
Medical Center that will result in 9,176 square feet of landscaping where Section 39.70.02 
and Section 39.70.04 requires that 14,738 square feet of landscaping be provided for a 
building of this size.   
 

• Petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship that runs with the land. 
• Petitioner is attempting to over-build this site. 

 
Mr. Kovacs said that he does not agree that this property would be over-built and asked if 
Mr. Courtney just wanted to see this building placed farther back on the property.  Mr. 
Courtney stated that they could move the building farther back and therefore meet the 
landscaping requirement and he did not feel that the petitioner had met the hardship 
requirement regarding a variance.  Mr. Kovacs asked if Mr. Courtney felt that the width of 
the lot created a hardship and Mr. Courtney said that he feels the placement of the building 
is the only hardship because they want drive by traffic. 
 
Ms. High stated that they are concerned because if they move the building back it would not 
meet the setback line established by the building next door.  This lot is narrow compared to 
the lot next door, which enabled them to meet the landscaping requirement.  Also, this 
building is a medical office building, has very strict parking requirements, and requires one 
parking spot for each 100 square feet.  They are hoping to be able to land bank parking 
spaces when this project is completed.  They have done everything they can to screen and 
soften the front of this building.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked how far back this building would have to be moved to meet the 
landscaping requirements.  Ms. High stated that it would have to be moved back 56’ and 
that would put the front of the building 64’ behind the building next door, which would limit 
visibility.   Mr. Courtney also said that the could eliminate some of the parking in the front of 
the building by making the building smaller.  If they eliminate the parking now, it would not 
meet the parking requirement because of the size of the building, however, if the building 
was made smaller they could eliminate some of the parking and meet the requirements by 
putting landscaping in front. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he thought there was a lot of parking provided.  Mr. Stimac said that 
the parking requirements for medical office uses compared to other office uses are in fact 
more than double.  Mr. Kovacs said that this is a very thin lot and he sees a lot of parking 
and he does not feel that they should have to move the building back.  Mr. Courtney said 
that if they took the parking out of the front, they would have to eliminate a couple of 
hundred feet of the building, but they could meet the landscape requirement and in his 
opinion the proposed plan is over-building. 
 
Mr. Wright stated that he agrees somewhat with Mr. Courtney, but if part of this parcel was 
not zoned E-P, there is enough room on that site to build an even larger building.  This is a 
difficult site because of the pipeline running through it and the petitioner has tried to  
 

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
mitigate the impact this development would have to the residentially zoned property to the 
north with the E-P zoning.   
 
Mr. Courtney said that this parcel is also zoned R-1E and he does not think this should be 
added in the total area of the site any more than the E-P zoning area should be included.  
Mr. Courtney also said this is a multi-zoned property and they could back later and develop 
the R-1E Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he did not understand because he is seeing 20,713 square feet of 
undeveloped E-P, and really does not think this building seems too large for the site.  Mr. 
Kovacs said that there are a lot of issues with this site. 
 
Mr. Hutson said this is not the only use that this land can be put to use for.  They could use 
it for something else and would not require a landscaping variance.  Mr. Kovacs said that if 
they used it for an office building that is something that would not be needed.   
 
Mr. Hutson said this was beside the point as this site could be used for something else and 
a variance would not be required. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that officially the E-P zoned property is considered to be part of their 
development and goes into their landscape required.  The site area that the landscape 
calculations are done from does include the E-P zoned property and therefore another 
2,800 square feet of landscaping is required. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he would like to see this building as far away from future residential 
development as possible.  This is a unique property in that there is a chunk of land that 
could not be developed, and he agrees with the petitioner in the location of this building.  
Mr. Maxwell does not think this property is being over-built at all. 
 
Mr. Kovacs called for a vote on the motion made by Mr. Courtney to deny this request. 
 
Yeas:  3 – Courtney, Gies, Hutson 
Nays:  3 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright 
 
MOTION TO DENY FAILS 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Wright 
 
Moved to postpone the request of Lisa High of CDPA Architects, 1639 E. Big Beaver 
(proposed address), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new building for the Suma 
Medical Center that will result in 9,176 square feet of landscaping where Section 39.70.02 
and Section 39.70.04 requires that 14,738 square feet of landscaping be provided for a 
building of this size until the next scheduled meeting of August 16, 2005. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity of a full Board. 

 10



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL AUGUST 16, 2005 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #11 (ITEM #6) – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  DAVID DONNELLON, OF THE 
CHOICE GROUP, 4254 BEACH ROAD, for relief of the Ordinance to split an existing 
parcel of land from its Beach Road frontage.  This split would result in a street frontage for 
this property of only 55 feet where Section 30.10.02 of the Ordinance requires that 
properties in the R-1B Zoning District have a minimum of 100’ of frontage on a public street. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to split an 
existing parcel from its Beach Road frontage.  The site plan submitted indicates a split of 
this property from its Beach Road frontage and creating access to the property from  
the western end of the stub street Prestwick.  This would result in the only street frontage 
for this property being the 55 feet at the end of Prestwick Drive.  Section 30.10.02 requires 
that properties in the R-1B Zoning District have a minimum of 100’ of frontage on a public 
street. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if other subdivisions in the R-1B Zoning Districts that are on cul-de-sacs 
that have 100’ of frontage.  Mr. Stimac explained that the required width has to be 
measured as a straight line between the side lot lines at the front yard setback.  Mr. Stimac 
explained how this process works with a map of the area on the overhead screen.  In doing 
a subdivision, there is also something called “lot averaging” and you can do a reduction of 
lot width of up to 10%, therefore in the development of a new subdivision under the 
Subdivision Control Ordinance, that 100’ wide minimum parcel can be reduced to 90’.  This 
is not a subdivision and these provisions are not applicable in this case.  Mr. Kovacs asked 
if they could put a round stub at the end of this street.  Mr. Stimac said that the petitioner 
would have to dedicate right of way for the extension of Prestwick and in Mr. Stimac’s 
opinion, he would no longer meet the setback requirements.   Mr. Kovacs then asked what 
the average width of a driveway was and Mr. Stimac said that depending on whether it is 
one or two cars, it would be between 12’ and 16’. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if a variance would be required if the owner owns both parcels and 
wishes to split it.  Mr. Stimac said that each parcel used for single-family residential, one 
and two-family development have frontage on a public street meeting the minimum width 
requirement.  If the petitioner wished to split the lot, he could request a piece with 50’ of 
frontage to Beach Road.   
 
Mr. Wright stated that right now, these two parcels are recorded as one parcel.  Mr. Stimac 
said that there are two different legal descriptions however, are owned by the same person.  
Contiguous parcels owned by the same entity are considered to be an undivided parcel.  
Even though it is made of two different descriptions and has two separate tax bills, it is still 
considered to be one parcel. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked for clarification regarding the statement that the petitioner could request 
50’ of frontage to Beach Road.  Mr. Stimac said that the petitioner could have requested a 
variance to have 50’ on Beach Road for parcel in the back and then the parcel described as  

 11



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
parcel #1 would be conforming.  Because of the configuration of the lot in the back it would 
be larger than the front parcel. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if they would need a variance to have 50’ of frontage on Beach and Mr. 
Stimac said that they would.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the other properties along Beach Road would be inclined to split their 
property  if the Board was inclined to grant this variance.  Mr. Stimac stated that it  
was a possibility, however a hardship running with the land would have to found in order to 
split these other properties.  
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what the purpose of the stub street Prestwick was.  Mr. Stimac explained 
that this stub street is the same as other stub streets in Troy, and that they are put in place 
so that the subdivision could be developed farther.  These streets act as an interconnection 
of properties to other streets in the subdivision.   
 
Mr. Donnellon, representing Choice Development was present.  Mr. Donnellon stated that 
he wished to clarify an issue in that he believes the Ordinance deals with two adjacent 
parcels owned by the same person that do not comply with the Ordinance are considered to 
be one parcel, however, these properties do comply and each one can be built on 
separately.  The smaller lot has not built on as of this date.  When this property was 
purchased they were in the form of a flag lot and the other lot facing Beach and he believes 
that this has been that way for the past thirty-(30) years.  In reality, the house and driveway 
coming in off of Beach, could be considered a double front corner lot.  Mr. Donnellon also 
said that the front yard is 55’ off of Prestwick and he believes this variance will allow them to 
create a better lot.  The house at 4254 Beach would be more secluded and the petitioner 
plans to do a great deal of remodeling to it.  It makes mores sense to create two (2) nice 
lots, less non-conforming.  In this case the property facing  Beach would be 150’ wide and 
the property in the back of Beach would be more secluded and would be a higher quality lot. 
 
Mr. Wright asked if the petitioner was planning on leaving that house and Mr. Donnellon 
said that was their plan.  Mr. Wright said this is a wonderful location and would love to have 
that location as you can barely see the house from Prestwick.  Mr. Wright also asked if Mr. 
Donnellon was planning to leave the existing vegetation.  Mr. Donnellon said that they also 
wish to add additional landscaping as the subdivision under construction now had removed 
a large number of the trees.  If Prestwick went through and connected to Beach the two 
parcels would be non-compliant.  The parcels are too small for a developer to put in a 
through road.  The petitioner does not intend to multiply the parcels or make them bigger, 
they just wish to rearrange the existing square footage.  Mr. Wright asked if they had gotten 
any input from the people on the north side of Prestwick.  Mr. Donnellon stated that they 
have not talked to them in terms of this application. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if the petitioner owned the property to the north of this parcel.  Mr. 
Donnellon indicated that they did not own either 4298 or 4342 Beach Road.  Mr. Maxwell 
then asked if they owned property to the north of that.  Mr. Donnellon stated that he wanted  
 
 

 12



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
to point out that there was a heavy wetland running through 4298 Beach and also 4392 
Beach.  The access driveway for 4342 is 20’ wide not 55’ wide. Mr. Maxwell asked if he had 
been involved in negotiations regarding the property at 4342 Beach and Mr. Donnellon said 
that he had not.  Mr. Maxwell said that this property has been for sale for quite a long time.  
Mr. Donnellon said that even if you get 20 more feet, the depth of the parcel on beach 
would not be large enough to build on.  Previous decisions have created a problem and 
they are attempting to make two nice lots out of this property and build two quality homes.  
Mr. Maxwell also said that the configuration could change dramatically as they have seen 
with the development to the south.   
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that there is nothing on parcel 1 and Mr. Donnellon stated that was 
correct.   
 
Mr. Courtney stated that the petitioner intended to remodel the existing house and have it 
addressed on Prestwick and asked if the house would then face Prestwick.  Mr. Donnellon 
said that they were planning on putting the numbers there and in the process of remodeling, 
they were going to re-landscape  along the driveway to improve the look of the property.  
The north side of the property is much nicer and the whole south line of the property needs 
to have trees added.   
   
Mr. Kovacs opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Terry Farnell, 4298 Beach was present and stated that he has lived in this location since the 
late 1970’s.  The property at 4342 Beach runs 150’ north of his home.  The developer 
owned the stub street on Prestwick and the City required him to buy it as an access road to 
Beach Road.  Mr. Farnell believes at this time the property owner of 4254 Beach was able 
to purchase 50’ of this stub street, which resulted in a lot size of 150’ x 420’.  When they 
moved on Beach Road, there was a sign indicating that this was a scenic road but it was 
taken down when the developers moved in.  They have lost a large number of trees up and 
down the road, and Mr. Farnell is concerned about a string of birch trees planted about 
1900 being removed as this property is developed.  The petitioner has the opportunity to 
take this large lot and build one beautiful home on this property.  Mr. Farnell said that when 
they moved in they talked to the City Assessor and was informed that R-1B Zoning required 
at least 100’ of frontage if there was a sewer available and 150’ of frontage if there was a 
septic field.  Mr. Farnell also said that the existing structure could be dressed up and it 
would be worth at least a million or one and a half million dollars.  Mr. Farnell said that the 
petitioner had not demonstrated a hardship other than financial and he is very opposed to 
this request. 
 
Kyle Jones, 4280 Wentworth was present and stated that he extremely opposed to this 
petition.  In the preamble read at the beginning of this meeting it states that the petitioner 
has to demonstrate a hardship to justify breaking the law, and this petitioner does not have 
a hardship just an accommodation.  The petitioner is asking to double the amount of 
development on this property and in so doing impose their will on the adjacent subdivision.  
The character of this area is already set.  There are a certain number of homes, with 
basically the same size lots and square footage of the homes and the 100’ required 
frontage is in place for a reason.  Mr. Jones said that they want to  

 13



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
take the axial of the street and call it frontage.  His opinion is that it is up to the Board to 
uphold the Ordinance and he does not feel this would be accomplished by opening up the 
stub street.  Mr. Jones also feels that opening this stub street will have a domino effect in 
that traffic will begin using Wentworth and Prestwick as a shortcut to Beach.  Mr. Jones said 
that the address in question has a temporary license as a group home and developmentally 
or injured people.  All they are asking is to make this house part of the Greentree 
Subdivision and impose the negative property value and consequences to this Subdivision.  
Mr. Jones further stated that he believes all this petitioner wants to do is create two lots out 
of one and there are a great deal of negatives that would impact this area if this variance is 
granted and strongly urged the Board to deny this variance.  There is no authority under the 
Ordinance or with the power of this Board to grant this variance as there is no hardship. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that someone had stated that this stub street was never intended to go to 
Beach and asked Mr. Jones what he thought the purpose of this stub street was.  Mr. Jones 
stated that he didn’t know.   Mr. Kovacs went on to say that if there was never meant for 
traffic to flow in this direction, they would not have put the stub in.  Mr. Kovacs also said that 
he did not see any purpose to put this street  and asked who would use this road to cut 
through beside the residents of the Greentree Sub.  Mr. Jones stated that anyone that did 
not want to wait for traffic to clear westbound on Wattles could use that street as a shortcut.  
Mr. Jones said that he does not how this property is going to be developed, and all they see 
is an intentional detachment from the easterly parcel that was intended to front on Beach.  
Mr. Kovacs asked if the 55’ of frontage on the axial wasn’t more than some of the other 
homes in the sub that front on cul-de-sacs. If there was a slight angle in this road, Mr. 
Kovacs believes the petitioner would meet the requirements of the Ordinance.  Mr. Jones 
said that his property is on one of these cul-de-sacs and thinks Mr. Kovacs has to look at 
the area and will see a tremendous number of cul-de-sacs that creates a circle of homes 
that is very attractive.  Mr. Jones stated that he did not believe that it was not up to this 
Board to make suggestions to the developer as to how he could meet the requirements of 
the Ordinance.  If they are going to remodel this house, all they are going to do is attach the 
driveway to the stub end of Prestwick and call it frontage.  Mr. Kovacs then asked if Mr. 
Jones thought cul-de-sacs were created for aesthetic purposes.  Mr. Kovacs also said that 
this Board does have the power to make this type of decision.  Mr. Jones said that he 
believes it is up to the Board to make a decision based on a hardship and not as an 
accommodation.  Mr. Kovacs asked if he would rather see this petitioner improve these lots, 
or would he rather see this property sold to a developer and create a number of homes in 
this area.   
 
Mr. Wright said that in looking at this area, the best way to make certain that Prestwick was 
never extended to Beach, would be to allow the petitioner to connect to Prestwick.  
Mr. Wright said that he does not see why the petitioner objects to this variance.  Mr. Jones 
stated that he is concerned because this property has a temporary license to be a group 
home and does not want to see it attached to the Greentree Subdivision.   
 
Ms. Lancaster addressed the Board and stated that the City of Troy does not regulate group 
homes the State regulates group homes.  Furthermore, the City of Troy does not have the 
authority to deny group homes. Furthermore, if this Board uses the fact that this is a group 
home as part of their decision regarding this variance, the City will be sued.   The City has  

 14



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
no control over group homes.  The State licenses group homes and are considered as 
residential use. 
 
Mr. Jones said that they do not object to group homes, they object to the fact that it will be 
connected to their subdivision, and since it is already connected to Beach Road that is 
where they should leave it.  Mr. Kovacs stated that he understands that Mr. Jones is 
objecting to the traffic generated by the group home, however that cannot be a reason that 
the Board uses to deny this variance request.  Mr. Kovacs said that they have to consider 
this a R-1B residential property.            
 
Mr. Jones said that the City cannot consider the placement of the home, but asked if they 
could consider traffic or consequences of its existence.  Mr. Stimac said that the City and 
Village Zoning Act specifically say that a duly licensed residential facility, foster care facility 
is to be considered a single-family use.  If the use of that property is going to have a 
negative impact regarding traffic that is the statement that has to be made. 
 
Mr. Jones said that he does not want the decision of this Board to be unfairly swayed by 
any negative or emotional comment that he may have made.  In his opinion there is no 
need to do what the petitioner is asking there is no hardship pertaining to this piece of 
property other than build two homes. 
 
Leroy Barnes, 2296 Prestwick, was present and stated that he against this variance.  Mr. 
Barnes stated that he did not understand why they would land lock a piece of property and 
then come in and ask for a variance in order to gain access when there is enough frontage 
available on Beach Road to make the split.  Mr. Kovacs asked if he rather see a double 
frontage on Beach Road rather than one frontage on Prestwick.  Mr. Barnes said it is his 
understanding that there is 150’ of frontage on Beach Road and believes there is more than 
enough for a driveway.  Mr. Barnes stated that he thinks this is a very poor use of this 
Board’s time and attention to come in and ask for this waiver. 
 
Mr. Farnell came back and asked the Board how this property could be split when there was 
only 150’ of frontage on Beach Road.  Mr. Stimac explained that the Board did not say this 
property could be split Mr. Barnes did.  Mr. Stimac also said that although there are two 
separate descriptions, owned by the same person and according to the Zoning Ordinance 
they are considered to be a single parcel undivided.  A second house could not be built on 
this property. 
 
Oakie Meyers, 4257 Wentworth was present and stated that he objects to this variance 
request as he believes this will create a problem with snow plowing and garbage pickup.  
Mr. Meyers stated that he does not see a hardship with this property other than a financial 
one.  Mr. Meyers also said that this is not a cul-de-sac and he believes all that would 
happen if this was opened up is that it would create an alley.   
 
David Boyer, 4301 Wentworth stated that he also objects to this request.  Mr. Boyer stated 
that in his opinion a cul-de-sac is designed for a turning radius for ambulances and school 
buses.  With the stub on Prestwick being opened up he believes this would create a 
problem not only for emergency vehicles and snowplows as well as for the property owner  

 15



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
at 4293 Prestwick whose driveway is connected to Prestwick.  Currently the petitioner has 
two lots and would like to get $400,000 for each house.  This house would be far less than 
the million dollar homes that are being built to the south of this property.  The petitioner also 
has the opportunity to purchase the land to the north of this site and develop that .  Mr. 
Boyer feels that we should get away from building very large homes on very small lots.  Mr. 
Boyer said that he is concerned about the traffic, emergency vehicles and does not see any 
type of hardship other than financial.  This is a non-conforming lot now and access to 
Prestwick will continue the non-conformance.   
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that if this lot was divided the way the petitioner was requesting it would 
be the best chance to avoid another subdivision going in.  Mr. Boyer did not agree with Mr. 
Kovacs and said that the petitioner could tear down the existing house, purchase the 
property to the north and put in another subdivision.  They have already done that and they 
could connect right to Beach Road.  Mr. Kovacs said that the Board could not stop them 
from building a subdivision if they acquire the property.  Mr. Boyer said he agrees and 
granting access to Prestwick would encourage this.  Mr. Boyer also said that he believes 
this is exactly what this developer is trying to do. 
 
Larry Walatkiewicz, 4285 Wentworth was present and stated that his home is located four 
houses north of the stub street.   Mr. Walatkiewicz asked the Board if they had read every 
letter they had received.  The Board stated that they had.  Mr. Walatkiewicz asked if these 
conditions existed or if there had been any type of change to this property since the Choice 
Group had purchased this property.  Mr. Stimac said that he did not know when the Choice 
Group bought the property and was unable to give any information as to what they knew 
and didn’t know.  Mr. Walatkiewicz said that in his opinion this property was purchased as 
an investment and now that investment has diminished, which brings him here to ask for a 
variance.  No one knows what the decision was when the stub road was put in.  Mr. 
Walatkiewicz said that he also wants to check further with the City regarding the policy of 
the City and rental homes.  Mr. Stimac said that the Zoning Ordinance as well as the 
Building Codes require and regulate the use of a property and the use of this property is 
designated as a single-family residential dwelling.  It does not stipulate whether or not that 
has to be owner occupied or whether that can be rental.  There is neither requirement for 
the registration or inspection nor certification for a single-family home that is not owner 
occupied. 
 
Mr. Walatkiewicz said that the City Services will be negative affected by this variance and it 
would be a terrible situation with the School Bus services.  Basically those are Mr. 
Walatkiewicz’s concerns and he personally contacted the Choice Group and asked them to 
withdraw this request.  
 
Joe Cracchiolo, 4881 Riverchase was present and stated that he is the owner of the 
property to the south.  Mr. Cracchiolo said that he does not feel there is a hardship that runs 
with the land, but merely a financial hardship for the petitioner.  His property is R-1B Zoning 
and he has to have lots that conform to the requirements of this Zoning District.  The trees 
that were removed were dead and he has just spent $75,000 to landscape the back of his 
lots and another $75,000 for additional landscaping on Beach Road.  Every house that is 
built there is landscaped.  His other concern would be fire.  Fire trucks going down  

 16



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
Prestwick to the existing house could create a problem.  Mr. Kovacs asked if he would 
rather have the house front Beach.  Mr. Cracchiolo said that the Ordinance states that a 
house has to front a public street and this house does not front a public street.  In the 
current condition the house does front on Beach Road, but if accessed to Prestwick the 
garage would become the front of the house.  The homes that are being built south of this 
property are in the million-dollar range and he is concerned about the type of houses the 
Choice Group would plan to construct.  Mr. Cracchiolo went on to say that he had to do a 
floodplain study and a wetland study and did not believe this petitioner has done that.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if Mr. Cracchiolo had attempted to purchase this property and Mr. 
Cracchiolo said he did not.  Mr. Stimac said that the Ordinance says that the property has to 
have frontage on a public street the width of which has to meet the minimum requirements 
of the Ordinance, however, it does not state which way the house has to face. 
 
Mr. Walatkiewicz came forward and said that theoretically you could build a house 
backwards.  Mr. Stimac said there is nothing in the Ordinance that states you have to have 
a front door, or that the house has to face a certain way.  The Ordinance states that it has to 
comply with the setbacks. 
 
Mr. Cracchiolo came back up and asked who would buy a house that fronts on Beach Road 
but has a Prestwick address.  Mr. Kovacs asked what his concern was and Mr. Cracchiolo 
said that he thought the property values would drop because of the address change.  Mr. 
Cracchiolo also said that in the last month the Choice Group had removed all the trees on 
this property.  Mr. Kovacs said that this was not something that the Board was concerned 
with and felt that during the remodeling process the house could be changed to look like it 
was facing Prestwick. 
 
Oakie Myers said that if a developer came to the Board with a new development showing a 
street with houses on both sides and asked for a 55’ foot variance for an  
additional house, it would not be approved and he did not think this request should be 
approved either. 
 
Najib Bahura, 4245 Wentworth was present and stated that when he purchased this 
property in 1972 he was assured that Prestwick would never be opened or extended.  This 
was the main reason he bought this property.  Mr. Bahura said that he believes it is in the 
records that Prestwick would not be opened either as a street or a driveway.  Mr. Kovacs 
said that the reason a stub street is put in is for a future extension and did not believe that it 
would be written that the street would never be extended.   Mr. Bahura said that the reason 
the stub street was put in was for a fire hydrant and this was a part of the City record that 
this street would not be extended.  Mr. Kovacs said that he could assure Mr. Bahura that 
there would not be a record that this street would never be extended as the main purpose of 
a stub street is for future expansion.  Mr. Bahura also said that the reason this home was 
constructed at the back of this property was because of a high water table.  He does not 
believe the front lot would ever be buildable and asking to put in a road.  Mr. Kovacs said 
they are not putting in another road, they are asking to put a driveway in off of the stub 
street Prestwick.  Mr. Bahura said that he should not be able to do this as he does not own 
the property.  Mr. Stimac said that officially the public owns the property so everyone owns  

 17



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
the property.  Mr. Bahura said that he does not believe he has a right to have a driveway 
here.  Mr. Kovacs explained that all the petitioner is asking for is a driveway to this property. 
 
Mr. Bahura said that he objects because he thinks lots of other developers are going to 
come in and create more lots.  Mr. Kovacs said that was correct in that other developers 
could come in buy the property to the north and put in a street.  Mr. Kovacs explained that 
this was not the reason this petitioner was there.  This petitioner only wanted a variance to 
be able to put in a driveway off of Prestwick.  Mr. Kovacs also said that there is no 
guarantee that in the future someone does not come in, buy all this property, and put in 
another subdivision. 
 
Mr. Wright stated that he had served on the Planning Commission for twenty-five years and 
when stub streets are approved, they are always there for future connectivity to a future 
subdivision.  They do not put in stub streets so that there are dead ends, they are always 
put in for future expansion. 
 
Mr. Bahura asked about the setback and Mr. Kovacs said that he meets all the setback 
requirements, he does not meet the 100’ of frontage and that is the reason he is asking for 
a variance.  Mr. Bahura said the subdivision is already created and opening this street 
would be changing the original subdivision.  Mr. Bahura asked if he could guarantee that 
this is the only thing he is going to do and Mr. Kovacs said that he does not have to 
guarantee anything. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that this stub was built in 1972 and just because there is a stub there does 
not automatically guarantee that there will be another subdivision there.   
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are five (5) written objections on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he thinks this should be a development taking in the lots to the north, 
and granting a variance at this point would be to place an impediment to the development of 
the property to the north and because of that he is opposed to this variance.  Mr. Kovacs 
said that he did not understand Mr. Courtney’s objection and the variance is based on the 
frontage of the road.  Mr. Courtney said that the more buildings you put up the harder it is to 
consolidate and if this variance is granted there would be two buildings instead of one and it 
would be harder to consolidate them with building to the north.  Mr. Courtney said that he 
did not believe this Board should grant a variance that would allow for financial assistance 
to a developer as it will allow for twice as much property and twice as much development.  
There is no hardship that runs with the land, the only hardship is financial. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Hutson 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of David Donnellon, of the Choice Group to split an existing 
parcel of land,4254 Beach, from its Beach Road frontage, which would result in a street 
frontage for the property of only 55 feet where Section 30.10.02 of the Ordinance requires  

 18



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
that properties in the R-1B Zoning District have a minimum of 100’ of frontage on a public 
street. 
 

• Petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship that runs with the land. 
• Variance would be contrary to public interest. 
• Variance would have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Mr. Hutson said that he does not believe there is a practical difficulty that would allow for 
this variance to be granted.  Mr. Hutson also said that the petitioner had the ability to put 
another house on this property without a variance. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that parcel #1 is not buildable.  Mr. Stimac said that this property legally 
has 150’ frontage on Beach Road, it is two different parcels owned by the same person.  
Section 40.50.02 of the Ordinance says “ …. If two or more lots or combination of lots and 
portions of lots with contiguous frontage in single ownership of record at the time of 
passage of amendments to this Chapter  and if all or part of the lots do not meet the 
requirements of lot width or area as established by this Chapter, the lands involved shall be 
considered to be an undivided parcel for the purposes of this Chapter and no portion of said 
land shall be used or occupied that does not meet the lot width and area requirements 
established by this Chapter nor shall any division of the parcel be made which leaves 
remaining any lot with a width or area below the requirements as stated in this Chapter”.  In 
effect, this is considered to be one parcel of land with 150’ of frontage and can only support 
one house.  Mr. Hutson said that even though they cannot build a second house on this 
property, he still does see a practical difficulty that runs with the land. 
 
Mr. Wright asked for clarification regarding the sale of Parcel #1.  Mr. Stimac said that 
technically they could sell Parcel #1, however the Building Department would not allow 
them to build a house on this parcel.. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he would like to see another alternative as he did not think that 
opening up this property to Prestwick is the best solution. 
 
Mr. Kovacs called for a vote on Mr. Courtney’s motion to deny this request. 
 
Yeas:  3 – Hutson, Maxwell, Courtney 
Nays:  3 – Gies, Kovacs, Wright 
 
MOTION TO DENY FAILS 
 
Mr. Donnellon asked that this request be postponed until the next scheduled meeting to 
allow him to do more research and consult with his client. 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Gies 
 
 

 19



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of David Donnellon, the Choice Group, 4254 Beach Road, 
for relief of the Ordinance to split an existing parcel of land from its Beach Road frontage.  
This split would result in a street frontage for this property of only 55 feet where Section 
30.10.02 of the Ordinance requires that properties in the R-1B Zoning District have a 
minimum of 100’ of frontage on a public street until the meeting of August 16, 2005. 
  

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to develop an alternative plan. 
 
Yeas:  All - 6  
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF AUGUST 16, 2005 
CARRIED 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 10:03 P.M. 
 
 
 
             
      Matthew Kovacs, Vice Chairman 
 
       
             
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 

 20



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                                    JULY 19, 2005 

Matthew Kovacs, Vice-Chairman, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:33 P.M., in Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall on Tuesday, July 19, 
2005. 
 
PRESENT:  Kenneth Courtney 
   Marcia Gies 
   Michael Hutson 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Wayne Wright 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ABSENT:  Christopher Fejes 
 
Motion by Gies 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Fejes from this meeting as he is out of town. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. FEJES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JUNE 21, 2005 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of June 21, 2005 as written. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Gies, Hutson, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney 
Abstain: 1 – Kovacs 
Absent: 1 – Fejes 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – APPROVAL OF ITEMS #3 THROUGH ITEM #5 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
 
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                                    JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to approve renewal of Item #3 for a period of three (3) years as suggested in 
the Agenda Explanation and to schedule a Public Hearing for Item #4 and Item #5 in 
order to consider permanent variances for these items. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE ITEM #3 FOR A THREE (3) YEAR RENEWAL AND TO 
POSTPONE ITEM #4 AND ITEM #5 UNTIL THE MEETING OF AUGUST 16, 2005 TO 
ALLOW FOR A NEW PUBLIC HEARING ON THESE ITEMS CARRIED. 
 
ITEM #3 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  MR. & MRS. AL KING, ATLAS VENEER 
FIREPLACE, 2212 LIVERNOIS, for relief of the Ordinance to maintain a metal fence in 
lieu of the 6’ high masonry screening wall required along the east property line where 
this commercial property abuts residentially zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief to maintain a 
metal fence in lieu of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the east 
property line where this commercial property abuts residentially zoned property.  This 
Board originally this relief in 1983, primarily due to the fact that the petitioner owns the 
property to the east, which is undeveloped.  This item last appeared before this Board at 
the meeting of July 2002 and was granted a three (3) year renewal.  Conditions remain 
the same and we have no complaints or objections on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant Mr. & Mrs. Al King, Atlas Veneer Fireplace, 2212 Livernois a three (3) 
year renewal of relief to maintain a metal fence in lieu of the 6’ high masonry screening 
wall required along the east property line where this commercial property abuts 
residentially zoned property. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• We have no complaints or objections on file. 

 
ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  INDEPENDENT BANK, 5950 ROCHESTER 
ROAD, for relief of the 6’ high masonry screening wall required along the south and 
east property lines. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief of the 6’ high 
masonry-screening wall required along the south and east property lines where it abuts 
residentially zoned property.  These property lines abut multiple-family residential 
zoning and relief was originally granted in 1977 based on the fact that a drain 
surrounded the area and there was a substantial brush growth that adequately screens 
the abutting residential land.  This item last appeared before this Board in July 2002 and 
was granted a three (3) year renewal at that time.  Conditions remain the same and we 
have no complaints or objections on file. 
 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                                    JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Independent Bank, 5950 Rochester, for relief of the 
6’ high masonry screening wall required along the south and east property lines where it 
abuts residentially zoned property until the meeting of August 16, 2005. 
 

• To allow the Building Department the time necessary to publish a Public Hearing 
in order to consider a permanent variance. 

 
ITEM #5 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  OSPREY, LTD, 2701 TROY CENTER, for relief 
of the 6’ high masonry wall required along the north property line. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief of the 6’ high 
masonry-screening wall required along the north property line where it abuts 
residentially zoned property.  This variance was originally granted based on the fact that 
the petitioner would install 280’ of decorative metal fencing and landscaping along this 
north property line that abuts a residential apartment complex.  This item last appeared 
before this Board in July 2002 and was granted a three (3) year renewal.  Conditions 
remain the same and we have no objections or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Osprey, LTD, 2701 Troy Center for relief of the 6’ 
high masonry wall required along the north property line where it abuts residentially 
zoned property until the meeting of August 16, 2005. 
 

• To allow the Building Department the time necessary to publish a Public Hearing 
in order to consider a permanent variance. 

 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  DAVID DONNELLON, OF THE CHOICE 
GROUP, 4254 BEACH ROAD, for relief of the Ordinance to split an existing parcel of 
land from its Beach Road frontage.  This split would result in a street frontage for this 
property of only 55 feet where Section 30.10.02 of the Ordinance requires that 
properties in the R-1B Zoning District have a minimum of 100’ of frontage on a public 
street. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to split an 
existing parcel from its Beach Road frontage.  The site plan submitted indicates a split 
of this property from its Beach Road frontage and creating access to the property from  
the western end of the stub street Prestwick.  This would result in the only street 
frontage for this property being the 55 feet at the end of Prestwick Drive.  Section 
30.10.02 requires that properties in the R-1B Zoning District have a minimum of 100’ of 
frontage on a public street. 
 
The petitioner was not present.  Mr. Kovacs moved this Item to the end of the agenda, 
Item #11 to allow the petitioner the opportunity to be present. 
 

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                                    JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  TIMOTHY BUNKER, 2861 DASHWOOD, for 
relief of the Ordinance to construction a family room addition.  This proposed addition 
would move the rear line 24’ to the south resulting in approximately 10’ of the existing 
pool in a side yard location.  Section 40.57.03 prohibits the placement of accessory 
buildings or structures in any yard except a rear yard. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a family room addition.  This property has an above ground swimming pool located in 
the rear yard.  The construction of the family room addition on the rear of the home 
would shift the rear yard line 24’ to the south resulting in approximately 10’ of the 
existing pool being located in a side yard location.  Section 40.57.03 prohibits the 
placement of accessory buildings or structures in any yard except a rear yard. 
 
Mr. Bunker was present and stated that his family needs the room this family room 
addition would provide and when this pool is taken down and another pool  put up, it will 
be moved to the back of his property.  This property is also in a flood plain and Mr. 
Bunker does not believe he could put another pool in this area. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked approximately what the distance would be between the pool and the 
proposed addition.  Mr. Bunker stated that it is about 16 to18 feet. 
 
Mr. Kovacs opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are eight (8) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if a variance could be granted for a term of years.  Ms. Lancaster said 
that she did not believe a stipulation could be placed on this request with a time limit, 
however, she did state that it would be possible to place the condition that if and when 
the pool was replaced it would need to be moved to a location that is conforming to the 
Ordinance.   
 
Mr. Kovacs advised the petitioner that if he changed his mind in 10 or 12 years and 
decided he would like to replace the pool and leave the pool in the same location, he 
could come back to this Board and request a variance.  Mr. Bunker stated that he had a 
very large lot and would not have a problem with complying with the Ordinance. 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Courtney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                                    JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Timothy Bunker, 2861 Dashwood, relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a family room addition, which would move the rear line 24’ to the south resulting in 
approximately 10’ of the existing pool in a side yard location.   
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• If pool is replaced it would be moved to a conforming location. 
• Variance request applies only to the existing pool. 
• Variance applies only to the property in this application. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Courtney told Mr. Bunker that he thought the present location of the pool was fine, 
and in the future if the pool was replaced, the petitioner would have the option to ask for 
a variance from this Board. 
 
ITEM #8 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  H. W. CARTER, 1751 EASTPORT, for relief of 
the Ordinance to construct a covered front porch that would result in a 21’ front yard 
setback.  Section 30.10.06 requires a 25’ minimum front yard setback in R-1E Zoning 
Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a covered front porch.  The site plan submitted indicates constructing a roof over an 
existing uncovered front porch resulting in a proposed 21’ front yard setback.  Section 
30.10.06 requires a 25’ minimum front yard setback in R-1E Zoning Districts. 
 
John Swanson from Oakland Building Company was present and stated that there is a 
disabled person residing at this address and the covered porch would help to protect 
him from the elements and allow access to the front of the house. 
 
Mr. Kovacs opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are six (6) written approvals on file.  There is one (1) written objection on file. 
 
Motion by Hutson 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant H.W. Carter, 1751 Eastport, relief of the Ordinance to construct a 
covered front porch that would result in a 21’ front yard setback, where Section 30.10.06 
requires a 25’ minimum front yard setback in R-1E Zoning Districts. 
 

• Variance will not cause an adverse effect to the surrounding property. 

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                                    JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 

• Variance would not be contrary to public interest. 
• Variance does not establish a prohibited use in a Zoning District. 
• Without a variance, public health, safety and welfare could be negatively 

affected. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #9 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  WESLEY MUELLER, 41 BILTMORE, for relief 
of the Ordinance to construct a second floor addition on his home.  This home was 
constructed with a covered front porch, which has an 11’-3” front yard setback and is 
considered a legal non-conforming structure.  The proposed second floor addition would 
continue this 11’-3” setback.  Section 40.50.04 of the Ordinance prohibits expansions on 
non-conforming structures in a way that increases the non-conformity. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Zoning Ordinance to 
construct a second floor addition on his home.  Section 30.10.06 requires a 25’ 
minimum front yard setback for a single family home constructed in the R-2 (Duplex) 
Zoning District.  The plot plan submitted indicates the existing house has a covered 
front porch with an 11’-3” front yard setback and is a legal non-conforming structure.  
The site plan submitted indicates expanding the second floor over this porch continuing 
the 11’-3” front setback.  Section 40.50.04 prohibits expansions of non-conforming 
structures in any way that increases the non-conformity. 
 
Mr. Wesley Mueller was present and stated that the wished to add this addition in order 
to make the second floor into habitable space.  They wish to put in three bedrooms and 
two baths upstairs. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the front porch would remain a porch and Mr. Mueller stated at this 
time they plan to leave this space as a front porch. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked what the square footage of this home was and Mr. Mueller stated it 
is approximately 871 square feet and with the addition the square footage would be 
increased to just about 2000 square feet.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what the second floor is used for now and Mr. Mueller stated that 
basically it is an attic and they use it for storage.  
 
Mr. Kovacs opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                                    JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Wesley Mueller, 41 Biltmore, relief of the Ordinance to construct a 
second floor addition on his home that will result in a 11’-3” front yard setback. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance would increase the area of the  non-conformity of this home, but the 

setback would not be changed. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #10 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  LISA HIGH OF CDPA ARCHITECTS, 1639 E. 
BIG BEAVER (PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new 
building for the Suma Medical Center.  The site plan submitted indicates that 9,176 
square feet of landscaping is provided.  Section 39.70.02 and Section 39.70.04 requires 
that 14,738 square feet of landscaping be provided for a building of this size. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new building for the Suma Medical Center.  Section 39.70.04 requires that ten (10) 
percent of the net site area be developed as landscaped open space.  This landscaping 
must be located in the front or side yard and must be in addition to the 10’ green belt 
required by Section 39.70.02.  The required landscaping for a site this size is 14,738 
square feet.  The site plan submitted indicates that only 9,176 square feet of 
landscaping is provided, making the site deficient 5, 562 square feet.  Mr. Stimac also 
explained that this piece of property is zoned as O-1, P-1, E-P and R-1E.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked for an explanation of the E-P (Environmentally Protected) Zoning 
Classification.  Mr. Stimac stated that basically the E-P Zoning District is in place for two 
reasons:  one is to preserve environmentally sensitive areas such as wetlands, nature 
preserves and the second reason is to use it as a buffer between different zoning 
classifications where an area of a certain width and size is provided between an office 
development and a residential area.  Mr. Kovacs asked if this area was allowed in the 
calculation regarding the landscape requirement and Mr. Stimac said that the only 
landscaping that can be counted is in the front and side of the proposed building.   
 
Mr. Wright stated that one of the reasons for the E-P Zoning is to increase the line 
between the different properties because there is either an oil or gas line on this section 
of the property and therefore could not be developed.  This item had appeared before 
the Planning Commission and they recommended this Zoning Classification to City 
Council because of this condition. 

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                                    JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
Lisa High was present and stated that because this property is long and narrow it is very 
difficult to make use of this site and create parking at the same time.  In order to achieve 
the landscaping requirement they would have to move the building back 56’, which 
would eliminate eighteen (18) parking spaces and would also place the front of this 
building 64’ behind the building next door. This would reduce visibility from the west and 
also compromise the existing streetscape.  They have provided several trees and a 
landscaped walk at the rear of the building. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if it wouldn’t make more sense to move the building farther back 
and place landscaping up front.  Ms. High stated that they were trying to maintain the 
building in line with the building next door and if they have to move it farther back it 
would decrease visibility.   They are trying to maintain the building with the edge of the 
building next door. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked how large this lot was.  Ms. High said that it is 1,305.8 ft. in length 
and they are proposing to develop an area of 883’-9” .  Mr. Maxwell asked how wide the 
property was and Ms. High stated that the width of the property is 166.92’. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if there was a possibility of either adding a structure for parking or 
creating underground parking for this building.  Ms. High said that they had not 
considered it because it was cost prohibitive and they were planning to use the 
basement for storage. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what the square footage of the E-P zoning was.  Ms. High said that 
she did not break it out individually however the square footage was indicated on the 
drawing they submitted.   Ms. High said that is was roughly about 30,000 square feet.  
Mr. Stimac said that he calculated the E-P zoning to be 28,713 square feet. 
 
Mr. Hutson said that if the size of the building was reduced, it could be moved farther 
back and they would not have a parking deficit of eighteen (18) spaces.  Ms. High 
indicated that was probably correct.  Mr. Hutson said that he thought this was a very 
narrow lot and they were attempting to overbuild this lot.  Mr. Hutson went on to say that 
he was very concerned and did not want to see Troy turned into a miniature Southfield, 
where all you see along the road are office buildings and the 10% landscaping 
requirement would help to soften this look.  Ms. High said that they are providing 
landscaping in the front of the building and the look would be softened.  They have 
provided parking in the front of this building. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that if they moved the building further back they would have a lot of 
parking and also plenty of landscaping.  Ms. High said that if the building were placed 
farther back the visibility would be decreased.  Mr. Courtney stated that this would not 
be the only building that was set back farther from the road. 
 
 

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                                    JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the E-P Zoning could be counted toward the landscape requirement 
and Mr. Stimac explained that if it was at the front yard or side yard of the property it 
would be countable.  Mr. Stimac also stated that the total landscaping on this site 
significantly exceeds 10% of this area, but in addition to a requirement of the 
percentage required there is also a stipulation that the landscaping must be in the front 
and side yards of the property. 
 
Mr. Kovacs opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are three (3) written objections on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that he would like more information as to why the petitioner wants 
this building in this location as he has not heard a strong enough case as to why they 
want it this close to Big Beaver.  Ms. High stated that they wished to maintain visibility 
and would like people to be able to find it easily.  Mr. Maxwell asked if there were any 
other reasons and Ms. High said that they just wish to make it easier for people to find 
this building.  Mr. Maxwell also stated that this is a very narrow property. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Lisa High of CDPA Architects, 1639 E. Big Beaver 
(proposed address), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new building for the Suma 
Medical Center that will result in 9,176 square feet of landscaping where Section 
39.70.02 and Section 39.70.04 requires that 14,738 square feet of landscaping be 
provided for a building of this size.   
 

• Petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship that runs with the land. 
• Petitioner is attempting to over-build this site. 

 
Mr. Kovacs said that he does not agree that this property would be over-built and asked 
if Mr. Courtney just wanted to see this building placed farther back on the property.  Mr. 
Courtney stated that they could move the building farther back and therefore meet the 
landscaping requirement and he did not feel that the petitioner had met the hardship 
requirement regarding a variance.  Mr. Kovacs asked if Mr. Courtney felt that the width 
of the lot created a hardship and Mr. Courtney said that he feels the placement of the 
building is the only hardship because they want drive by traffic. 
 
Ms. High stated that they are concerned because if they move the building back it would 
not meet the setback line established by the building next door.  This lot is narrow 
compared to the lot next door, which enabled them to meet the landscaping 
requirement.  Also, this building is a medical office building, has very strict parking 
requirements, and requires one parking spot for each 100 square feet.  They are hoping  

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                                    JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
to be able to land bank parking spaces when this project is completed.  They have done 
everything they can to screen and soften the front of this building.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked how far back this building would have to be moved to meet the 
landscaping requirements.  Ms. High stated that it would have to be moved back 56’ 
and that would put the front of the building 64’ behind the building next door, which 
would limit visibility.   Mr. Courtney also said that the could eliminate some of the 
parking in the front of the building by making the building smaller.  If they eliminate the 
parking now, it would not meet the parking requirement because of the size of the 
building, however, if the building was made smaller they could eliminate some of the 
parking and meet the requirements by putting landscaping in front. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he thought there was a lot of parking provided.  Mr. Stimac said 
that the parking requirements for medical office uses compared to other office uses are 
in fact more than double.  Mr. Kovacs said that this is a very thin lot and he sees a lot of 
parking and he does not feel that they should have to move the building back.  Mr. 
Courtney said that if they took the parking out of the front, they would have to eliminate 
a couple of hundred feet of the building, but they could meet the landscape requirement 
and in his opinion the proposed plan is over-building. 
 
Mr. Wright stated that he agrees somewhat with Mr. Courtney, but if part of this parcel 
was not zoned E-P, there is enough room on that site to build an even larger building.  
This is a difficult site because of the pipeline running through it and the petitioner has 
tried to mitigate the impact this development would have to the residentially zoned 
property to the north with the E-P zoning.   
 
Mr. Courtney said that this parcel is also zoned R-1E and he does not think this should 
be added in the total area of the site any more than the E-P zoning area should be 
included.  Mr. Courtney also said this is a multi-zoned property and they could back 
later and develop the R-1E Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he did not understand because he is seeing 20,713 square feet of 
undeveloped E-P, and really does not think this building seems too large for the site.  
Mr. Kovacs said that there are a lot of issues with this site. 
 
Mr. Hutson said this is not the only use that this land can be put to use for.  They could 
use it for something else and would not require a landscaping variance.  Mr. Kovacs 
said that if they used it for an office building that is something that would not be needed.   
 
Mr. Hutson said this was beside the point as this site could be used for something else 
and a variance would not be required. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that officially the E-P zoned property is considered to be part of their 
development and goes into their landscape required.  The site area that the landscape  

 10



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                                    JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
calculations are done from does include the E-P zoned property and therefore another 
2,800 square feet of landscaping is required. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he would like to see this building as far away from future 
residential development as possible.  This is a unique property in that there is a chunk 
of land that could not be developed, and he agrees with the petitioner in the location of 
this building.  Mr. Maxwell does not think this property is being over-built at all. 
 
Mr. Kovacs called for a vote on the motion made by Mr. Courtney to deny this request. 
 
Yeas:  3 – Courtney, Gies, Hutson 
Nays:  3 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright 
 
MOTION TO DENY FAILS 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Wright 
 
Moved to postpone the request of Lisa High of CDPA Architects, 1639 E. Big Beaver 
(proposed address), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new building for the Suma 
Medical Center that will result in 9,176 square feet of landscaping where Section 
39.70.02 and Section 39.70.04 requires that 14,738 square feet of landscaping be 
provided for a building of this size until the next scheduled meeting of August 16, 2005. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity of a full Board. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL AUGUST 16, 2005 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #11 (ITEM #6) – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  DAVID DONNELLON, OF THE 
CHOICE GROUP, 4254 BEACH ROAD, for relief of the Ordinance to split an existing 
parcel of land from its Beach Road frontage.  This split would result in a street frontage 
for this property of only 55 feet where Section 30.10.02 of the Ordinance requires that 
properties in the R-1B Zoning District have a minimum of 100’ of frontage on a public 
street. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to split an 
existing parcel from its Beach Road frontage.  The site plan submitted indicates a split 
of this property from its Beach Road frontage and creating access to the property from  
the western end of the stub street Prestwick.  This would result in the only street 
frontage for this property being the 55 feet at the end of Prestwick Drive.  Section 
30.10.02 requires that properties in the R-1B Zoning District have a minimum of 100’ of 
frontage on a public street. 

 11



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                                    JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if other subdivisions in the R-1B Zoning Districts that are on cul-de-
sacs that have 100’ of frontage.  Mr. Stimac explained that the required width has to be 
measured as a straight line between the side lot lines at the front yard setback.  Mr. 
Stimac explained how this process works with a map of the area on the overhead 
screen.  In doing a subdivision, there is also something called “lot averaging” and you 
can do a reduction of lot width of up to 10%, therefore in the development of a new 
subdivision under the Subdivision Control Ordinance, that 100’ wide minimum parcel 
can be reduced to 90’.  This is not a subdivision and these provisions are not applicable 
in this case.  Mr. Kovacs asked if they could put a round stub at the end of this street.  
Mr. Stimac said that the petitioner would have to dedicate right of way for the extension 
of Prestwick and in Mr. Stimac’s opinion, he would no longer meet the setback 
requirements.   Mr. Kovacs then asked what the average width of a driveway was and 
Mr. Stimac said that depending on whether it is one or two cars, it would be between 12’ 
and 16’. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if a variance would be required if the owner owns both parcels and 
wishes to split it.  Mr. Stimac said that each parcel used for single-family residential, one 
and two-family development have frontage on a public street meeting the minimum 
width requirement.  If the petitioner wished to split the lot, he could request a piece with 
50’ of frontage to Beach Road.   
 
Mr. Wright stated that right now, these two parcels are recorded as one parcel.  Mr. 
Stimac said that there are two different legal descriptions however, are owned by the 
same person.  Contiguous parcels owned by the same entity are considered to be an 
undivided parcel.  Even though it is made of two different descriptions and has two 
separate tax bills, it is still considered to be one parcel. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked for clarification regarding the statement that the petitioner could 
request 50’ of frontage to Beach Road.  Mr. Stimac said that the petitioner could have 
requested a variance to have 50’ on Beach Road for parcel in the back and then the 
parcel described as parcel #1 would be conforming.  Because of the configuration of the 
lot in the back it would be larger than the front parcel. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if they would need a variance to have 50’ of frontage on Beach and 
Mr. Stimac said that they would.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the other properties along Beach Road would be inclined to split 
their property if the Board was inclined to grant this variance.  Mr. Stimac stated that it  
was a possibility, however a hardship running with the land would have to found in order 
to split these other properties.  
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what the purpose of the stub street Prestwick was.  Mr. Stimac 
explained that this stub street is the same as other stub streets in Troy, and that they  
 

 12



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                                    JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
are put in place so that the subdivision could be developed farther.  These streets act as 
an interconnection of properties to other streets in the subdivision.   
 
Mr. Donnellon, representing Choice Development was present.  Mr. Donnellon stated 
that he wished to clarify an issue in that he believes the Ordinance deals with two 
adjacent parcels owned by the same person that do not comply with the Ordinance are 
considered to be one parcel, however, these properties do comply and each one can be 
built on separately.  The smaller lot has not built on as of this date.  When this property 
was purchased they were in the form of a flag lot and the other lot facing Beach and he 
believes that this has been that way for the past thirty-(30) years.  In reality, the house 
and driveway coming in off of Beach, could be considered a double front corner lot.  Mr. 
Donnellon also said that the front yard is 55’ off of Prestwick and he believes this 
variance will allow them to create a better lot.  The house at 4254 Beach would be more 
secluded and the petitioner plans to do a great deal of remodeling to it.  It makes mores 
sense to create two (2) nice lots, less non-conforming.  In this case the property facing  
Beach would be 150’ wide and the property in the back of Beach would be more 
secluded and would be a higher quality lot. 
 
Mr. Wright asked if the petitioner was planning on leaving that house and Mr. Donnellon 
said that was their plan.  Mr. Wright said this is a wonderful location and would love to 
have that location as you can barely see the house from Prestwick.  Mr. Wright also 
asked if Mr. Donnellon was planning to leave the existing vegetation.  Mr. Donnellon 
said that they also wish to add additional landscaping as the subdivision under 
construction now had removed a large number of the trees.  If Prestwick went through 
and connected to Beach the two parcels would be non-compliant.  The parcels are too 
small for a developer to put in a through road.  The petitioner does not intend to multiply 
the parcels or make them bigger, they just wish to rearrange the existing square 
footage.  Mr. Wright asked if they had gotten any input from the people on the north side 
of Prestwick.  Mr. Donnellon stated that they have not talked to them in terms of this 
application. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if the petitioner owned the property to the north of this parcel.  Mr. 
Donnellon indicated that they did not own either 4298 or 4342 Beach Road.  Mr. 
Maxwell then asked if they owned property to the north of that.  Mr. Donnellon stated 
that he wanted to point out that there was a heavy wetland running through 4298 Beach 
and also 4342 Beach.  The access driveway for 4342 is 20’ wide not 55’ wide. Mr. 
Maxwell asked if he had been involved in negotiations regarding the property at 4342 
Beach and Mr. Donnellon said that he had not.  Mr. Maxwell said that this property has 
been for sale for quite a long time.  Mr. Donnellon said that even if you get 20 more feet, 
the depth of the parcel on beach would not be large enough to build on.  Previous 
decisions have created a problem and they are attempting to make two nice lots out of 
this property and build two quality homes.  Mr. Maxwell also said that the configuration 
could change dramatically as they have seen with the development to the south.   
 

 13



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                                    JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that there is nothing on parcel 1 and Mr. Donnellon stated that was 
correct.   
 
Mr. Courtney stated that the petitioner intended to remodel the existing house and have 
it addressed on Prestwick and asked if the house would then face Prestwick.  Mr. 
Donnellon said that they were planning on putting the numbers there and in the process 
of remodeling, they were going to re-landscape along the driveway to improve the look 
of the property.  The north side of the property is much nicer and the whole south line of 
the property needs to have trees added.   
   
Mr. Kovacs opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Terry Farnell, 4298 Beach was present and stated that he has lived in this location since 
the late 1970’s.  The property at 4342 Beach runs 150’ north of his home.  The 
developer owned the stub street on Prestwick and the City required him to buy it as an 
access road to Beach Road.  Mr. Farnell believes at this time the property owner of 
4254 Beach was able to purchase 50’ of this stub street, which resulted in a lot size of 
150’ x 420’.  When they moved on Beach Road, there was a sign indicating that this 
was a scenic road but it was taken down when the developers moved in.  They have 
lost a large number of trees up and down the road, and Mr. Farnell is concerned about a 
string of birch trees planted about 1900 being removed as this property is developed.  
The petitioner has the opportunity to take this large lot and build one beautiful home on 
this property.  Mr. Farnell said that when they moved in they talked to the City Assessor 
and was informed that R-1B Zoning required at least 100’ of frontage if there was a 
sewer available and 150’ of frontage if there was a septic field.  Mr. Farnell also said 
that the existing structure could be dressed up and it would be worth at least a million or 
one and a half million dollars.  Mr. Farnell said that the petitioner had not demonstrated 
a hardship other than financial and he is very opposed to this request. 
 
Kyle Jones, 4280 Wentworth was present and stated that he extremely opposed to this 
petition.  In the preamble read at the beginning of this meeting it states that the 
petitioner has to demonstrate a hardship to justify breaking the law, and this petitioner 
does not have a hardship just an accommodation.  The petitioner is asking to double the 
amount of development on this property and in so doing impose their will on the 
adjacent subdivision.  The character of this area is already set.  There are a certain 
number of homes, with basically the same size lots and square footage of the homes 
and the 100’ required frontage is in place for a reason.  Mr. Jones said that they want to  
take the axial of the street and call it frontage.  His opinion is that it is up to the Board to 
uphold the Ordinance and he does not feel this would be accomplished by opening up 
the stub street.  Mr. Jones also feels that opening this stub street will have a domino 
effect in that traffic will begin using Wentworth and Prestwick as a shortcut to Beach.  
Mr. Jones said that the address in question has a temporary license as a group home 
and developmentally or injured people.  All they are asking is to make this house part of 
the Greentree Subdivision and impose the negative property value and consequences  

 14



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                                    JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
to this Subdivision.  Mr. Jones further stated that he believes all this petitioner wants to 
do is create two lots out of one and there are a great deal of negatives that would 
impact this area if this variance is granted and strongly urged the Board to deny this 
variance.  There is no authority under the Ordinance or with the power of this Board to 
grant this variance as there is no hardship. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that someone had stated that this stub street was never intended to 
go to Beach and asked Mr. Jones what he thought the purpose of this stub street was.  
Mr. Jones stated that he didn’t know.   Mr. Kovacs went on to say that if there was never 
meant for traffic to flow in this direction, they would not have put the stub in.  Mr. Kovacs 
also said that he did not see any purpose to put this street  and asked who would use 
this road to cut through beside the residents of the Greentree Sub.  Mr. Jones stated 
that anyone that did not want to wait for traffic to clear westbound on Wattles could use 
that street as a shortcut.  Mr. Jones said that he does not how this property is going to 
be developed, and all they see is an intentional detachment from the easterly parcel that 
was intended to front on Beach.  Mr. Kovacs asked if the 55’ of frontage on the axial 
wasn’t more than some of the other homes in the sub that front on cul-de-sacs. If there 
was a slight angle in this road, Mr. Kovacs believes the petitioner would meet the 
requirements of the Ordinance.  Mr. Jones said that his property is on one of these cul-
de-sacs and thinks Mr. Kovacs has to look at the area and will see a tremendous 
number of cul-de-sacs that creates a circle of homes that is very attractive.  Mr. Jones 
stated that he did not believe that it was not up to this Board to make suggestions to the 
developer as to how he could meet the requirements of the Ordinance.  If they are going 
to remodel this house, all they are going to do is attach the driveway to the stub end of 
Prestwick and call it frontage.  Mr. Kovacs then asked if Mr. Jones thought cul-de-sacs 
were created for aesthetic purposes.  Mr. Kovacs also said that this Board does have 
the power to make this type of decision.  Mr. Jones said that he believes it is up to the 
Board to make a decision based on a hardship and not as an accommodation.  Mr. 
Kovacs asked if he would rather see this petitioner improve these lots, or would he 
rather see this property sold to a developer and create a number of homes in this area.   
 
Mr. Wright said that in looking at this area, the best way to make certain that Prestwick 
was never extended to Beach, would be to allow the petitioner to connect to Prestwick.  
Mr. Wright said that he does not see why the petitioner objects to this variance.  Mr. 
Jones stated that he is concerned because this property has a temporary license to be 
a group home and does not want to see it attached to the Greentree Subdivision.   
 
Ms. Lancaster addressed the Board and stated that the City of Troy does not regulate 
group homes the State regulates group homes.  Furthermore, the City of Troy does not 
have the authority to deny group homes. Furthermore, if this Board uses the fact that 
this is a group home as part of their decision regarding this variance, the City will be 
sued.   The City has no control over group homes.  The State licenses group homes 
and are considered as residential use. 
 

 15



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                                    JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Jones said that they do not object to group homes, they object to the fact that it will 
be connected to their subdivision, and since it is already connected to Beach Road that 
is where they should leave it.  Mr. Kovacs stated that he understands that Mr. Jones is 
objecting to the traffic generated by the group home, however that cannot be a reason 
that the Board uses to deny this variance request.  Mr. Kovacs said that they have to 
consider this a R-1B residential property.            
 
Mr. Jones said that the City cannot consider the placement of the home, but asked if 
they could consider traffic or consequences of its existence.  Mr. Stimac said that the 
City and Village Zoning Act specifically say that a duly licensed residential facility, foster 
care facility is to be considered a single-family use.  If the use of that property is going 
to have a negative impact regarding traffic that is the statement that has to be made. 
 
Mr. Jones said that he does not want the decision of this Board to be unfairly swayed by 
any negative or emotional comment that he may have made.  In his opinion there is no 
need to do what the petitioner is asking there is no hardship pertaining to this piece of 
property other than build two homes. 
 
Leroy Barnes, 2296 Prestwick, was present and stated that he against this variance.  
Mr. Barnes stated that he did not understand why they would land lock a piece of 
property and then come in and ask for a variance in order to gain access when there is 
enough frontage available on Beach Road to make the split.  Mr. Kovacs asked if he 
rather see a double frontage on Beach Road rather than one frontage on Prestwick.  Mr. 
Barnes said it is his understanding that there is 150’ of frontage on Beach Road and 
believes there is more than enough for a driveway.  Mr. Barnes stated that he thinks this 
is a very poor use of this Board’s time and attention to come in and ask for this waiver. 
 
Mr. Farnell came back and asked the Board how this property could be split when there 
was only 150’ of frontage on Beach Road.  Mr. Stimac explained that the Board did not 
say this property could be split Mr. Barnes did.  Mr. Stimac also said that although there 
are two separate descriptions, owned by the same person and according to the Zoning 
Ordinance they are considered to be a single parcel undivided.  A second house could 
not be built on this property. 
 
Oakie Meyers, 4257 Wentworth was present and stated that he objects to this variance 
request as he believes this will create a problem with snow plowing and garbage pickup.  
Mr. Meyers stated that he does not see a hardship with this property other than a 
financial one.  Mr. Meyers also said that this is not a cul-de-sac and he believes all that 
would happen if this was opened up is that it would create an alley.   
 
David Boyer, 4301 Wentworth stated that he also objects to this request.  Mr. Boyer 
stated that in his opinion a cul-de-sac is designed for a turning radius for ambulances 
and school buses.  With the stub on Prestwick being opened up he believes this would 
create a problem not only for emergency vehicles and snowplows as well as for the  

 16



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                                    JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
property owner at 4293 Prestwick whose driveway is connected to Prestwick.  Currently 
the petitioner has two lots and would like to get $400,000 for each house.  This house 
would be far less than the million dollar homes that are being built to the south of this 
property.  The petitioner also has the opportunity to purchase the land to the north of 
this site and develop that .  Mr. Boyer feels that we should get away from building very 
large homes on very small lots.  Mr. Boyer said that he is concerned about the traffic, 
emergency vehicles and does not see any type of hardship other than financial.  This is 
a non-conforming lot now and access to Prestwick will continue the non-conformance.   
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that if this lot was divided the way the petitioner was requesting it 
would be the best chance to avoid another subdivision going in.  Mr. Boyer did not 
agree with Mr. Kovacs and said that the petitioner could tear down the existing house, 
purchase the property to the north and put in another subdivision.  They have already 
done that and they could connect right to Beach Road.  Mr. Kovacs said that the Board 
could not stop them from building a subdivision if they acquire the property.  Mr. Boyer 
said he agrees and granting access to Prestwick would encourage this.  Mr. Boyer also 
said that he believes this is exactly what this developer is trying to do. 
 
Larry Walatkiewicz, 4285 Wentworth was present and stated that his home is located 
four houses north of the stub street.   Mr. Walatkiewicz asked the Board if they had read 
every letter they had received.  The Board stated that they had.  Mr. Walatkiewicz asked 
if these conditions existed or if there had been any type of change to this property since 
the Choice Group had purchased this property.  Mr. Stimac said that he did not know 
when the Choice Group bought the property and was unable to give any information as 
to what they knew and didn’t know.  Mr. Walatkiewicz said that in his opinion this 
property was purchased as an investment and now that investment has diminished, 
which brings him here to ask for a variance.  No one knows what the decision was when 
the stub road was put in.  Mr. Walatkiewicz said that he also wants to check further with 
the City regarding the policy of the City and rental homes.  Mr. Stimac said that the 
Zoning Ordinance as well as the Building Codes require and regulate the use of a 
property and the use of this property is designated as a single-family residential 
dwelling.  It does not stipulate whether or not that has to be owner occupied or whether 
that can be rental.  There is neither requirement for the registration or inspection nor 
certification for a single-family home that is not owner occupied. 
 
Mr. Walatkiewicz said that the City Services will be negative affected by this variance 
and it would be a terrible situation with the School Bus services.  Basically those are Mr. 
Walatkiewicz’s concerns and he personally contacted the Choice Group and asked 
them to withdraw this request.  
 
Joe Cracchiolo, 4881 Riverchase was present and stated that he is the owner of the 
property to the south.  Mr. Cracchiolo said that he does not feel there is a hardship that 
runs with the land, but merely a financial hardship for the petitioner.  His property is R-
1B Zoning and he has to have lots that conform to the requirements of this Zoning  

 17



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                                    JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
District.  The trees that were removed were dead and he has just spent $75,000 to 
landscape the back of his lots and another $75,000 for additional landscaping on Beach 
Road.  Every house that is built there is landscaped.  His other concern would be fire.  
Fire trucks going down Prestwick to the existing house could create a problem.  Mr. 
Kovacs asked if he would rather have the house front Beach.  Mr. Cracchiolo said that 
the Ordinance states that a house has to front a public street and this house does not 
front a public street.  In the current condition the house does front on Beach Road, but if 
accessed to Prestwick the garage would become the front of the house.  The homes 
that are being built south of this property are in the million-dollar range and he is 
concerned about the type of houses the Choice Group would plan to construct.  Mr. 
Cracchiolo went on to say that he had to do a floodplain study and a wetland study and 
did not believe this petitioner has done that.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if Mr. Cracchiolo had attempted to purchase this property and Mr. 
Cracchiolo said he did not.  Mr. Stimac said that the Ordinance says that the property 
has to have frontage on a public street the width of which has to meet the minimum 
requirements of the Ordinance, however, it does not state which way the house has to 
face. 
 
Mr. Walatkiewicz came forward and said that theoretically you could build a house 
backwards.  Mr. Stimac said there is nothing in the Ordinance that states you have to 
have a front door, or that the house has to face a certain way.  The Ordinance states 
that it has to comply with the setbacks. 
 
Mr. Cracchiolo came back up and asked who would buy a house that fronts on Beach 
Road but has a Prestwick address.  Mr. Kovacs asked what his concern was and Mr. 
Cracchiolo said that he thought the property values would drop because of the address 
change.  Mr. Cracchiolo also said that in the last month the Choice Group had removed 
all the trees on this property.  Mr. Kovacs said that this was not something that the 
Board was concerned with and felt that during the remodeling process the house could 
be changed to look like it was facing Prestwick. 
 
Oakie Myers said that if a developer came to the Board with a new development 
showing a street with houses on both sides and asked for a 55’ foot variance for an  
additional house, it would not be approved and he did not think this request should be 
approved either. 
 
Najib Bahura, 4245 Wentworth was present and stated that when he purchased this 
property in 1972 he was assured that Prestwick would never be opened or extended.  
This was the main reason he bought this property.  Mr. Bahura said that he believes it is 
in the records that Prestwick would not be opened either as a street or a driveway.  Mr. 
Kovacs said that the reason a stub street is put in is for a future extension and did not 
believe that it would be written that the street would never be extended.   Mr. Bahura 
said that the reason the stub street was put in was for a fire hydrant and this was a part  

 18



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                                    JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
of the City record that this street would not be extended.  Mr. Kovacs said that he could 
assure Mr. Bahura that there would not be a record that this street would never be 
extended as the main purpose of a stub street is for future expansion.  Mr. Bahura also 
said that the reason this home was constructed at the back of this property was 
because of a high water table.  He does not believe the front lot would ever be buildable 
and asking to put in a road.  Mr. Kovacs said they are not putting in another road, they 
are asking to put a driveway in off of the stub street Prestwick.  Mr. Bahura said that he 
should not be able to do this as he does not own the property.  Mr. Stimac said that 
officially the public owns the property so everyone owns the property.  Mr. Bahura said 
that he does not believe he has a right to have a driveway here.  Mr. Kovacs explained 
that all the petitioner is asking for is a driveway to this property. 
 
Mr. Bahura said that he objects because he thinks lots of other developers are going to 
come in and create more lots.  Mr. Kovacs said that was correct in that other developers 
could come in buy the property to the north and put in a street.  Mr. Kovacs explained 
that this was not the reason this petitioner was there.  This petitioner only wanted a 
variance to be able to put in a driveway off of Prestwick.  Mr. Kovacs also said that there 
is no guarantee that in the future someone does not come in, buy all this property, and 
put in another subdivision. 
 
Mr. Wright stated that he had served on the Planning Commission for twenty-five years 
and when stub streets are approved, they are always there for future connectivity to a 
future subdivision.  They do not put in stub streets so that there are dead ends, they are 
always put in for future expansion. 
 
Mr. Bahura asked about the setback and Mr. Kovacs said that he meets all the setback 
requirements, he does not meet the 100’ of frontage and that is the reason he is asking 
for a variance.  Mr. Bahura said the subdivision is already created and opening this 
street would be changing the original subdivision.  Mr. Bahura asked if he could 
guarantee that this is the only thing he is going to do and Mr. Kovacs said that he does 
not have to guarantee anything. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that this stub was built in 1972 and just because there is a stub there 
does not automatically guarantee that there will be another subdivision there.   
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are five (5) written objections on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he thinks this should be a development taking in the lots to the 
north, and granting a variance at this point would be to place an impediment to the 
development of the property to the north and because of that he is opposed to this 
variance.  Mr. Kovacs said that he did not understand Mr. Courtney’s objection and the 
variance is based on the frontage of the road.  Mr. Courtney said that the more buildings  

 19



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                                    JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
you put up the harder it is to consolidate and if this variance is granted there would be 
two buildings instead of one and it would be harder to consolidate them with building to 
the north.  Mr. Courtney said that he did not believe this Board should grant a variance 
that would allow for financial assistance to a developer as it will allow for twice as much 
property and twice as much development.  There is no hardship that runs with the land, 
the only hardship is financial. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Hutson 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of David Donnellon, of the Choice Group to split an 
existing parcel of land,4254 Beach, from its Beach Road frontage, which would result in 
a street frontage for the property of only 55 feet where Section 30.10.02 of the 
Ordinance requires that properties in the R-1B Zoning District have a minimum of 100’ 
of frontage on a public street. 
 

• Petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship that runs with the land. 
• Variance would be contrary to public interest. 
• Variance would have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Mr. Hutson said that he does not believe there is a practical difficulty that would allow 
for this variance to be granted.  Mr. Hutson also said that the petitioner had the ability to 
put another house on this property without a variance. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that parcel #1 is not buildable.  Mr. Stimac said that this property legally 
has 150’ frontage on Beach Road, it is two different parcels owned by the same person.  
Section 40.50.02 of the Ordinance says “ …. If two or more lots or combination of lots 
and portions of lots with contiguous frontage in single ownership of record at the time of 
passage of amendments to this Chapter  and if all or part of the lots do not meet the 
requirements of lot width or area as established by this Chapter, the lands involved shall 
be considered to be an undivided parcel for the purposes of this Chapter and no portion 
of said land shall be used or occupied that does not meet the lot width and area 
requirements established by this Chapter nor shall any division of the parcel be made 
which leaves remaining any lot with a width or area below the requirements as stated in 
this Chapter”.  In effect, this is considered to be one parcel of land with 150’ of frontage 
and can only support one house.  Mr. Hutson said that even though they cannot build a 
second house on this property, he still does see a practical difficulty that runs with the 
land. 
 
Mr. Wright asked for clarification regarding the sale of Parcel #1.  Mr. Stimac said that 
technically they could sell Parcel #1, however the Building Department would not allow 
them to build a house on this parcel. 
 
 

 20



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS –FINAL                                                    JULY 19, 2005 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he would like to see another alternative as he did not think that 
opening up this property to Prestwick is the best solution. 
 
Mr. Kovacs called for a vote on Mr. Courtney’s motion to deny this request. 
 
Yeas:  3 – Hutson, Maxwell, Courtney 
Nays:  3 – Gies, Kovacs, Wright 
 
MOTION TO DENY FAILS 
 
Mr. Donnellon asked that this request be postponed until the next scheduled meeting to 
allow him to do more research and consult with his client. 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of David Donnellon, the Choice Group, 4254 Beach 
Road, for relief of the Ordinance to split an existing parcel of land from its Beach Road 
frontage.  This split would result in a street frontage for this property of only 55 feet 
where Section 30.10.02 of the Ordinance requires that properties in the R-1B Zoning 
District have a minimum of 100’ of frontage on a public street until the meeting of 
August 16, 2005. 
  

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to develop an alternative plan. 
 
Yeas:  All - 6  
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF AUGUST 16, 2005 
CARRIED 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 10:03 P.M. 
 
 
 
             
      Matthew Kovacs, Vice Chairman 
 
       
             
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 

 21



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 26, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:30 p.m. on July 26, 2005 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Lawrence Littman 
Lynn Drake-Batts Mark J. Vleck 
Fazal Khan 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Christopher Kulesza, Student Representative 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-123 
Moved by: Wright  
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Littman and Vleck are excused from attendance at this 
meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

3. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Wright reported on two items that appeared before the BZA.  Both items were 
tabled due to not having a full board present. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 26, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported that PUD 4 - “The Monarch” - North side of Big Beaver Road, 
east of Alpine and west of McClure, Section 20 – Received Preliminary PUD 
Approval by City Council on July 18, 2005. 
  
Mr. Waller asked if the design of The Monarch that received a recommendation from 
the Planning Commission was the same design that was before City Council.  Mr. 
Savidant responded in the affirmative. 
 
 

5. PRESENTATION BY LORI GRIGG BLUHM, CITY ATTORNEY – OPEN 
MEETINGS ACT AND RELATED ITEMS 
 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney, made a presentation on the Open Meetings Act 
and other related items.  General discussion followed. 
 
The members thanked Ms. Bluhm for her time and excellent presentation.   
 

___________ 
 

 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:45 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 8:50 p.m. 
 

___________ 
 

 
6. PRESENTATION BY U.S. GREEN BUILDING COUNCIL, DETROIT REGIONAL 

CHAPTER, ADVOCACY COMMITTEE 
 
Paul H. Goldsmith and Mark Hieber of Harley Ellis and Detroit Regional Chapter of 
U. S. Green Building Council (USGBC) made a presentation on sustainable design, 
entitled “Sustainable Planning for the Future”.  General discussion followed. 
 
The third and final presentation entitled “Bringing It All Together” is scheduled for 
the August 2, 2005 Special/Study Meeting.   
 
The members thanked Mr. Goldsmith and Mr. Hieber for their time and excellent 
presentations.   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 26, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

7. RESCHEDULE NOVEMBER 8, 2005 REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING (GENERAL ELECTION) 
 
Mr. Savidant reported that Troy Council Chambers is not available for the 
November 8, 2005, Planning Commission Regular Meeting because of the General 
Election. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-124 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission reschedules the November 8, 2005 
Regular Meeting to November 29, 2005, to be held in Council Chambers, as 
requested by the Planning Department. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
8. DAYCARE CENTERS LOCATED IN SCHOOLS, R-1A - R-1E ZONING DISTRICTS 

– POTENTIAL ZOTA 
 

Mr. Savidant explained that there is a Montessori school in the R-1C district that 
wishes to add a child care center.  Child care centers are permitted by special use 
approval in the R-1A through R-1E districts, provided the center is “located adjacent 
to a multiple family residential, office or commercial District, or within a previously 
established church complex” (Article 10.30.03.B).  Given that child care services are 
provided in all elementary schools within the Troy School District, it seems 
reasonable to amend the Zoning Ordinance to formally permit these uses in all 
schools. 

 
Mr. Chamberlain stated that child care centers were appropriate uses in schools. 
 
Mr. Schultz asked if child care centers in schools would be approved by Special 
Use Approval.   
 
Mr. Savidant replied in the affirmative. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-125 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, that a Public Hearing be held for this item, which permits child care 
centers in school complexes by Special Use Permit in the R-1A through R-1E 
districts, at the September 13, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 26, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
9. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Chamberlain requested that Planning Commissioner motions should be stated clearly 
so that they are understood by all members and so the public record is clear.  Reasons for 
negative votes should also be stated clearly.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain also requested that the Planning Department compile a list of Planning 
Commissioners who plan to attend the MAP 2005 Annual Conference at the Grand Hotel 
on Mackinac Island.  Further, the Planning Department should pay registration fees up 
front so that Planning Commissioners do not have to wait for reimbursement. 
 
Planning Commissioners who indicated they are attending the 2005 MAP Conference 
included:  Mr. Chamberlain, Ms. Drake-Batts, Mr. Khan, Mr. Strat and Mr. Waller.   
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:00 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Final\07-26-05 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 
 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT AUGUST 2, 2005 

I.  CALL TO ORDER 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, August 2, 2005 
at Troy City Hall – Conference Room C. Meeting was called to order at 7:11 p.m. 
 
II.  MEMBERS PRESENT 
Present: 
     Hailu Robele  Padma Kuppa 
     Amin Hashmi  Oniell Shah  
     Anju Brodbine   Tom Kaszubski 
     Cindy Stewart, City Liaison 
 
Absent: 
     Flora Tan   Charles Yuan  

Jeff Hyun  
 
Guests: 
 Malini Sarma- substitute teacher in Troy Schools & dance instructor, and Yogesh 
Gusani, Troy resident, CPA & neighbor of Oniell.  Both are interested in being appointed to 
the EIA Board when there are openings. 
      
III.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Moved by Padma Kuppa 
Seconded by Amin Hashmi 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes from the June 7, 2005 Ethnic Issues Advisory Board Meeting 
are approved.  Approved unanimously. 
 
IV. ARTICLES 

• NY Times-Outsourcing –July 24, 2005 
• Detroit Free Press – Race & Ethnicity - July 4, 2005 
• Metro Parent NCCJ/LINC article by Padma Kuppa – July 2005 
• August in Metro Parent – Padma will have an article on Bilingual Education 
• Padma suggests reading-“Ethnicity in Michigan” by Jack Glazier. 
• Oakland Press - Major uproar over editorial cartoon –July 28, 2005 
 

V.   NEW BUSINESS 
A. NCCJ and LINC 
• National conference for community and justice: help with diversity, bias, bigotry 

issues. Leadership in the new century (LINC) group for teens in 50-60 school 
districts in the area. Ex. Diversity Day at Churchill High School teaching conflict 
resolution, racial biases.  Deb Williamson will be at our September meeting. Padma 
will attend TYC meeting August 24 to invite their members. 

 
B. EIAB Mission & Goals - Cindy will e-mail goals/mission to members. Board needs to 
explore our Mission Statement & Goals again.  Discuss at a future meeting in October. 
 

 
C. Business Sponsored - Diversity Program Idea:  Local Business would like to give 

money/grant to a group who would do something related to diversity and kids.  

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT AUGUST 2, 2005 

• Plan of Action must be in writing – geared to Elementary /Middle School 
• Could be $10,000 each year 

Examples: Exploring different cultures, customs, holidays, traditions; Mini Sights  
and Sounds program at each school  

 
VI. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Resource Guide: Continue to send good resources 
• Idea to share our list with other communities, especially ones with EIA type boards 

(Southfield, Ann Arbor, Farmington Hills, Sterling Heights)  
• Contact other cities re: Sharing info 
 
B. Troy Daze - EthniCity 

• EIA needs to man booth-Saturday, September 17, 2-4 pm, Sunday,  
September 18, 2-4 
• Giveaways: key chains, quiz re: flags of countries 
• Saturday, 2-3 pm Oniell  
• Saturday, 3-4 pm Amin 
• Sunday, 2-3 pm Anju  
• Sunday 3-4 pm Padma/Malini 
 

C. Law Brochures - Check out cost for those to be printed.  We could possibly get 
grant from Community Foundation.  

 
D. Sights & Sounds World Bazaar - need to promote this and get vendors. Padma will 

take applications to India Craft Show August 7, 2005 at Temple 
 
E. Padma Kuppa Motion to recommend appointing Malini Sarma to replace Hailu 

Robele. Hailu Robele Seconded. Approved unanimously.  
 
VII. MOTION TO ADJOURN  
 
Moved by   Anju Brodbine 
Seconded by Oniell Shah 
 
RESOLVED that the Ethnic Issues Advisory Board Meeting be adjourned at 8:29 p.m. 
Approved unanimously. 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Padma Kuppa, EIA Co-Chair 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, EIA Recording Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 2, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:30 p.m. on August 2, 2005 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Lynn Drake-Batts 
Fazal Khan Wayne Wright 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck (arrived 7:38 p.m.) 
David T. Waller 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Christopher Kulesza, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-08-126 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Drake-Batts and Wright are excused from attendance 
at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Waller 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Vleck (arrived 7:38 p.m.), Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

3. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
There was no report available.   
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 2, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on Council actions taken at its August 1, 2005 Regular Meeting. 
 
• Rezoning Application (Z 703) – 600 Stephenson Highway, east side of 

Stephenson Highway, north of 14 Mile Road, Section 35, from R-C to O-1 – 
Approved.   

 
• Rezoning Application (Z 704) – Proposed Dunkin Donuts, south side of 

Vanderpool, west of Rochester Road and east of Ellenboro, Section 22, from 
R-1E to B-2 – Denied.   

 
• Rezoning Application (Z 180-B) – Proposed Binson’s Home Health Care Center, 

northwest corner of Rochester and Marengo, Section 3, from R-1B to B-1 – 
Postponed to March 7, 2006 Regular Meeting (Planning Commission and City 
Management to look into an amendment to the Future Land Use Plan). 

 
[Mr. Vleck arrived 7:38 p.m.] 
 
There was a brief discussion on the authoritative body to make amendments to the 
Future Land Use Plan.   
 
 

5. PRESENTATION BY U.S. GREEN BUILDING COUNCIL, DETROIT REGIONAL 
CHAPTER, ADVOCACY COMMITTEE 
 
Paul H. Goldsmith of Harley Ellis and Detroit Regional Chapter of U.S. Green 
Building Council  (USGBC) presented the final session on green building entitled 
“Bringing It All Together”.   
 
A question and answer session followed. 
 
The members thanked Mr. Goldsmith for his excellent presentation. 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:50 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 8:55 p.m. 
 

___________ 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 2, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

6. CONDITIONAL REZONING 
 
Mr. Miller reported that conditional rezoning was recently legalized with an 
amendment to the City and Village Zoning Act.  He briefly reviewed the model 
zoning ordinances prepared by McKenna Associates and the Michigan Township 
Association and the draft zoning ordinance language proposed by the City of 
Rochester Hills.  Mr. Miller pointed out five provisions that the Planning Department 
recommends be inclusive of any zoning ordinance amendment proposed by the City 
of Troy.   
 
Mr. Motzny said initially the City Attorney recommended that the City of Troy not 
consider any requests for conditional rezoning, and noted amendments to the 
legislation might be necessary.  Mr. Motzny said he is not aware of any city that has 
incorporated the new legislation into their ordinance.   
 
Brief comments were solicited from around the table.   
 
Mr. Khan is experiencing firsthand a conditional rezoning for one of his firm’s 
proposed development projects.  He said he would keep the members informed of 
the outcome, and suggested that it might be necessary for the City to address its 
fee structure with respect to requests for conditional rezonings.  
 
 

7. HB 4398 – ZONING ENABLING ACT 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the intent of House Bill 4398.  Discussion followed on:   
 
• Sec. 506 (1) (b) – The percentage of land area to remain perpetually in an 

undeveloped state by means of a conservation easement, plat dedication, 
restrictive covenant, or other legal means that runs with the land. 

 
• Sec. 206 (4) – The requirement to permit conditionally group day care homes in 

residential districts.   
 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Chris Komasera of 5287 Windmill, Troy, was present.  Mr. Komasera commented 
favorably on the USGBC green build presentation and said green building is the right 
direction to go.   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 2, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Littman shared a website for aerial mapping -- www.virtualearth.msn.com.   
 
Mr. Miller addressed the following items: 
• Planning Department activity/application submissions with respect to economic 

turnaround. 
• Potential lawsuits on proposed rezoning requests. 

(1) Binder request, west side of Rochester Road, south of Trinway, from R-1C to 
R-1T. 

(2) Binson’s Home Health Care, northwest corner of Rochester and Marengo, from 
R-1B to B-1. 

 
Chair Strat addressed the following: 
• Revision to the Future Land Use Plan with respect to the Binson’s Home Health Care 

proposed rezoning. 
• Procedure for review and overall revisions to the Future Land Use Plan. 
• K-Mart Headquarters Building. 
• Big Beaver Road Corridor Study. 
• ZOTA 215 Accessory Structures. 
• PUD #4 – The Monarch. 
 
It was agreed to discuss revisions to the Future Land Use Plan with respect to both the 
Binson’s proposed rezoning and overall revisions at future study sessions, allowing 
approximately 45 minutes for discussion at each session.   
 
Mr. Miller said he would provide background information and maps to assist discussion on 
the Future Land Use Plan.   
 
Mr. Miller reported that Madison Marquette has an option to purchase the K-Mart 
Headquarters Building.  After meeting with Madison Marquette, it appears the development 
direction is commercial/retail.  Mr. Miller noted that the Future Land Use Plan does not 
designate retail for the area.   
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief review of the Big Beaver Road Corridor Study and its correlation 
with the Futuring and Strategic Planning process.  
 
Mr. Miller reported he is not aware that ZOTA 215 is coming back to the Planning 
Commission for further review.   
 
Mr. Miller said he is not aware that City Council would like to revise PUD 4.  Mr. Miller 
indicated he would provide better representation on behalf of the Planning Commission’s 
review process in City Council report presentations.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 2, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Mr. Miller said as soon as the Planning Department is in receipt of the application 
documents for the proposed PUD #5, Casswell Town Center Community (east side of 
Rochester Road, south of South Boulevard, Section 2), he would forward copies to the 
members for their review.   
 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:12 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Draft\08-02-05 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING -FINAL AUGUST 2, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:30 p.m. on August 2, 2005 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Lynn Drake-Batts 
Fazal Khan Wayne Wright 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck (arrived 7:38 p.m.) 
David T. Waller 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Christopher Kulesza, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-08-126 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Drake-Batts and Wright are excused from attendance 
at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Waller 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Vleck (arrived 7:38 p.m.), Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

3. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
There was no Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) meeting on which to report. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING -FINAL AUGUST 2, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on Council actions taken at its August 1, 2005 Regular Meeting. 
 
• Rezoning Application (Z 703) – 600 Stephenson Highway, east side of 

Stephenson Highway, north of 14 Mile Road, Section 35, from R-C to O-1 – 
Approved.   

 
• Rezoning Application (Z 704) – Proposed Dunkin Donuts, south side of 

Vanderpool, west of Rochester Road and east of Ellenboro, Section 22, from 
R-1E to B-2 – Denied.   

 
• Rezoning Application (Z 180-B) – Proposed Binson’s Home Health Care Center, 

northwest corner of Rochester and Marengo, Section 3, from R-1B to B-1 – 
Postponed to March 7, 2006 Regular Meeting (Planning Commission and City 
Management to look into an amendment to the Future Land Use Plan). 

 
[Mr. Vleck arrived 7:38 p.m.] 
 
There was a brief discussion on the authoritative body to make amendments to the 
Future Land Use Plan.   
 
 

5. PRESENTATION BY U.S. GREEN BUILDING COUNCIL, DETROIT REGIONAL 
CHAPTER, ADVOCACY COMMITTEE 
 
Paul H. Goldsmith of Harley Ellis and Detroit Regional Chapter of U.S. Green 
Building Council  (USGBC) presented the final session on green building entitled 
“Bringing It All Together”.   
 
A question and answer session followed. 
 
The members thanked Mr. Goldsmith for his excellent presentation. 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:50 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 8:55 p.m. 
 

___________ 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING -FINAL AUGUST 2, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

6. CONDITIONAL REZONING 
 
Mr. Miller reported that conditional rezoning was recently legalized with an 
amendment to the City and Village Zoning Act.  He briefly reviewed the model 
zoning ordinances prepared by McKenna Associates and the Michigan Township 
Association and the draft zoning ordinance language proposed by the City of 
Rochester Hills.  Mr. Miller pointed out five provisions that the Planning Department 
recommends be inclusive of any zoning ordinance amendment proposed by the City 
of Troy.   
 
Mr. Motzny said initially the City Attorney recommended that the City of Troy not 
consider any requests for conditional rezoning, and noted amendments to the 
legislation might be necessary.  Mr. Motzny said he is not aware of any city that has 
incorporated the new legislation into their ordinance.   
 
Brief comments were solicited from around the table.   
 
Mr. Khan is experiencing firsthand a conditional rezoning for one of his firm’s 
proposed development projects.  He said he would keep the members informed of 
the outcome, and suggested that it might be necessary for the City to address its 
fee structure with respect to requests for conditional rezonings.  
 
 

7. HB 4398 – ZONING ENABLING ACT 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the intent of House Bill 4398.  Discussion followed on:   
 
• Sec. 506 (1) (b) – The percentage of land area to remain perpetually in an 

undeveloped state by means of a conservation easement, plat dedication, 
restrictive covenant, or other legal means that runs with the land. 

 
• Sec. 206 (4) – The requirement to permit conditionally group day care homes in 

residential districts.   
 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Chris Komasera of 5287 Windmill, Troy, was present.  Mr. Komasera commented 
favorably on the USGBC green build presentation and said green building is the right 
direction to go.   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING -FINAL AUGUST 2, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Littman shared a website for aerial mapping -- www.virtualearth.msn.com.   
 
Mr. Miller addressed the following items: 
• Planning Department activity/application submissions with respect to economic 

turnaround. 
• Potential lawsuits on proposed rezoning requests. 

(1) Binder request, west side of Rochester Road, south of Trinway, from R-1C to 
R-1T. 

(2) Binson’s Home Health Care, northwest corner of Rochester and Marengo, from 
R-1B to B-1. 

 
Chair Strat addressed the following: 
• Revision to the Future Land Use Plan with respect to the Binson’s Home Health Care 

proposed rezoning. 
• Procedure for review and overall revisions to the Future Land Use Plan. 
• K-Mart Headquarters Building. 
• Big Beaver Road Corridor Study. 
• ZOTA 215 Accessory Structures. 
• PUD #4 – The Monarch. 
 
It was agreed to discuss revisions to the Future Land Use Plan with respect to both the 
Binson’s proposed rezoning and overall revisions at future study sessions, allowing 
approximately 45 minutes for discussion at each session.   
 
Mr. Miller said he would provide background information and maps to assist discussion on 
the Future Land Use Plan.   
 
Mr. Miller reported that Madison Marquette has an option to purchase the K-Mart 
Headquarters Building.  After meeting with Madison Marquette, it appears the development 
direction is commercial/retail.  Mr. Miller noted that the Future Land Use Plan does not 
designate retail for the area.   
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief review of the Big Beaver Road Corridor Study and its correlation 
with the Futuring and Strategic Planning process.  
 
Mr. Miller reported he is not aware that ZOTA 215 is coming back to the Planning 
Commission for further review.   
 
Mr. Miller said he is not aware that City Council would like to revise PUD 4.  Mr. Miller 
indicated he would provide better representation on behalf of the Planning Commission’s 
review process in City Council report presentations.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING -FINAL AUGUST 2, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Mr. Miller said as soon as the Planning Department is in receipt of the application 
documents for the proposed PUD #5, Casswell Town Center Community (east side of 
Rochester Road, south of South Boulevard, Section 2), he would forward copies to the 
members for their review.   
 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:12 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Final\08-02-05 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                              AUGUST 3, 2005 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M., on Wednesday, August 3, 2005 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Rick Sinclair 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ABSENT:  Tim Richnak 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES - MEETING OF JULY 6, 2005 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of July 6, 2005 as written. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Dziurman, Kessler, Sinclair, Zuazo 
Absent: 1 – Richnak 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that Mr. Richnak was required to attend another meeting this 
morning. 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  R.E. MOORHOUSE & ASSOCIATES, 2380 
MEIJER DR., for relief of Chapter 78 to install a 30 square foot ground sign with a one 
(1)-foot setback from the right of way of Meijer Drive where a ten (10)-foot setback is 
required. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the Building Department had received a letter from R.E. 
Moorhouse & Associates indicating their intent to withdraw this request, as they have 
submitted a site plan that indicates the location of the proposed sign, which is in 
compliance with the requirements of the Sign Ordinance. 
 
Withdrawal request noted and filed.  No further action required by this Board. 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  HAYSSAM BOUSSI, 36949 DEQUINDRE, for relief 
of Chapter 78 to expand the existing 40 square foot ground sign to 48 square feet and 
to have 150 square feet of wall sign where 128 are permitted. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Sign Ordinance to 
expand the existing 40 square foot ground sign to 48 square feet.  The existing ground 
sign is non-conforming as it has a height of 16’ and a setback of less than 20’.  Section 
9.01 states that signs setback between 10’ and 20’ cannot exceed 10’ in height.   

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                              AUGUST 3, 2005 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Section 10.02.03 of the Sign Ordinance prohibits the expansion of non-conforming 
signs. 
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of July 6, 2005 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner the opportunity to meet with his client to determine if 
conformance is possible and to allow the Building Department the time necessary to 
publish the petitioner’s request for an additional wall sign. 
 
The plans submitted also indicate an additional wall sign with a size of 28 square feet.  
Section 9.02.04 of the Sign Ordinance states the total combined area of all wall signs 
cannot exceed 10% of the front of the structure or tenant area.  The total square footage 
of the front of the structure is 1,280 square feet, which would allow for 128 square foot 
of signage.  Currently there is 122.2 square feet of signage, leaving only 5.8 square feet 
available.  The proposed sign would result in 150 square feet of wall signs. 
 
Mr. Boussi was present and stated that his client wished to withdraw his request to 
enlarge the ground sign, but would still like a variance to allow the new wall sign.  Mr. 
Boussi explained that the Sav-Mor Pharmacy was a new business inside this market 
and this would be their only means of advertising. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.   No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Sinclair 
 
MOVED, to grant Hayssam Boussi, 36949 Dequindre relief of Chapter 78 to install a 
second wall sign, which will result in 150 square feet of wall signs where Section 
9.02.04 of the Sign Ordinance limits the amount of wall signage to 128 square feet. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:   4 – Kessler, Sinclair, Zuazo, Dziurman 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JEFF CLEMENTS, 5505 CORPORATE, for relief 
of Chapter 78 to install a 192 square foot ground sign 19’ from the City right of way. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 78 to install a 192 
square foot ground sign 19’ from the Corporate Drive and New King City right of way. 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                              AUGUST 3, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Paragraph B of Section 9.02.03 of Chapter 78 requires that a ground sign of this size be 
placed a minimum of 30’ from the City right of way line.  This item first appeared before 
this Board at the meeting of July 6, 2005 and was postponed to allow the petitioner the 
opportunity to be present. 
 
Mr. Jeff Clements was present and stated that it would be difficult to move the proposed 
sign because of the existing retention pond.  Mr. Clements also said that presently EDS 
leases this space and they have informed the owner of the building that they will be 
vacating these premises in the middle of next year.  The new sign will aid in the leasing 
of this space out.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if there were any ground signs at this location presently.  Mr. Clements 
explained that this sign will replace the existing sign, which is smaller, but in the same 
location. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to grant Jeff Clements, 5505 Corporate, relief of Chapter 78 to install a 192 
square foot ground sign located 19’ from the City right of way. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Kessler, Sinclair, Zuazo, Dziurman 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JEFF CLEMENTS, 700 TOWER, for relief of 
Chapter 78 to install a 192 square foot ground sign 16’ from the City right of way lines. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 78 to install a 192 
square foot ground sign 16’ from the City right of way line along Tower Drive and 16’ 
from the right of way line along Long Lake Road.  Paragraph B of Section 9.02.03 of 
Chapter 78 requires that a ground sign of this size be placed a minimum of 30’ from the 
City right of way lines.  This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of July 
6, 2005 and was postponed to allow the petitioner the opportunity to be present. 
 
 

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                              AUGUST 3, 2005 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Clements was present and stated that the existing sign is the same size and in the 
same location as the proposed sign.  They wish to update the existing sign.  Mr. 
Clements also said that the existing sign was granted a variance approximately fifteen 
(15) years ago. 
 
Ms. Struckman confirmed that the existing sign was granted a variance by this Board 
approximately fifteen (15) years ago. 
 
Mr. Clements also said that they plan to use the same concrete for the new sign. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Sinclair 
 
MOVED, to grant Jeff Clements, 700 Tower, relief of Chapter 78 to install a 192 square 
foot ground sign 16’ from the City right of way line along Tower Drive and 16’ from the 
right of way line along Long Lake Road. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance applies only to the property listed in this application. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Sinclair, Zuazo, Dziurman, Kessler 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  LIBERTY PROPERTY TRUST, 2710 
BELLINGHAM, for relief of Chapter 78 to install a second ground sign at 2710 
Bellingham. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 78 to install a 
second ground sign at 2710 Bellingham.  The site plan submitted indicates a new 48 
square foot ground sign.  This site already has an existing 70 square foot ground sign.  
Chapter 78, Section 9.02.05 limits the number of ground signs to one. 
 
Mary McLean from Liberty Property Trust was present and stated that the Ordinance 
allows for both a wall sign and a ground sign at this location, but they wished to forego 
the wall sign and put up an additional ground sign.  Ms. McLean explained that they 
have a new tenant moving into this location and this ground sign would be used to 
identify them.  All of the buildings in this area are occupied and this is the last space to  

 4



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                              AUGUST 3, 2005 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
be leased.  They have created a new entrance and this ground sign will make their 
location more visible. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if this sign would be in compliance if it were the only ground sign 
put up and Mr. Stimac said that the specifications do comply with the requirements of 
the Ordinance.  The only reason they need a variance is because there is already an 
existing ground sign at the location.  Mr. Dziurman stated that he would be concerned if 
someone came back to request a wall sign.  Mr. Stimac said that unless stipulations 
were added to the variance, the Building Department would grant a Sign Permit for a 
wall sign if one was requested. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if there were any other spaces for lease and Ms. McLean stated that 
the rest of the buildings were already leased. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked how the present tenant spaces were identified and Mr. McLean said 
that there are numerals above each door, e.g. 100, 400, etc. 
 
Mr. Sinclair asked if they would be allowed to put the names of the tenants on the glass 
doors.  Mr. Stimac said that signs that are on the inside of the glass are not regulated by 
the Sign Ordinance and therefore would be allowed. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Sinclair 
 
MOVED, to grant Liberty Property Trust, 2710 Bellingham, relief of chapter 78 to install 
a second ground sign where Section 9.02.05 of the Ordinance limits the number of 
ground signs to one. 
 

• In lieu of a wall sign, this 48 square foot ground sign will be allowed. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Zuazo, Dziurman, Kessler, Sinclair 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
 
 
 

 5



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                              AUGUST 3, 2005 

ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  TAMELA CORBIN, 503 RANDALL, for relief of 
Chapter 83 to install a 6’ high privacy fence in the front yard setback along Tallman. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 6’ 
high privacy fence.  This property is a double front corner lot.  It has front yard setback 
requirements along both Randall and Tallman.  Chapter 83 limits the height of front yard 
fences on this property to not more than 30”.  The site plan submitted indicates a 6’ high 
privacy fence setback 2’ from the east property line along Tallman. 
 
Ms. Corbin was present and stated that she is a single mom with a five year old 
daughter and basically wants the fence to provide a safe environment for her.  Ms. 
Corbin also stated that she has a dog and this fence would allow her the freedom of 
enjoying the back yard.  The previous owner had a fence and removed it when it started 
to deteriorate.  Ms. Corbin wants to put the new fence in the same area as the previous 
fence.  Ms. Corbin explained that there is a row of shrubs that are being ruined by dogs 
and this fence would also protect those shrubs.  She understands that her property has 
a large utility easement and would also provide a gate to allow access in case anyone 
had to work on this easement.   
 
Mr. Dziurman clarified that Ms. Corbin wanted a 6’ high privacy fence.  Ms. Corbin 
stated that the she is planning to put up a vinyl, lattice type fence and stated that it did 
not have to be 6’ high she would just like to provide boundaries around her property.  
Presently there is a chain link fence at the back of her property that is between 4’ and 6’ 
high and she would like to connect her fence with the section that is 6’ high. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are four (4) written approvals on file.  There are two (2) written objections on file. 
 
Ms. Corbin asked why the neighbors objected and Mr. Dziurman explained that one 
person complained because of the height, their view being obstructed and the possibility 
that predators could use part of this area to hide out.  Ms. Corbin stated that she is also 
concerned about predators, especially regarding her daughter. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if placing the fence 3’ from the sidewalk would put it behind the 
existing shrubs.  Ms. Corbin explained that she was hoping to put the fence on the 
outside of the shrub line in order to protect these shrubs from further damage by dogs. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked about the fence at the back of the property and Ms. Corbin 
explained that the height of this cyclone fence goes from 4’ high to 6’ high.  Mr. 
Dziurman asked if the fence would stop in the corner and Ms. Corbin said that she 
would like it to meet the 6’ high fence. 
 
 
 

 6



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                              AUGUST 3, 2005 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if Ms. Corbin wanted a 6’ high fence.  Ms. Corbin stated that she 
believes this fence is available in either a 4’ or 6’ height.  Ms. Corbin also indicated that 
she would be happy with a shorter fence as it would still provide security for her 
daughter and her dog.  
 
Mr. Zuazo clarified that basically all she is looking for is a boundary, and that it does not 
have to be 6’ high.  Ms. Corbin stated that was correct. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if there were any restrictions regarding a fence in a utility easement.  
Mr. Stimac stated that as long as it was a standardized fence and not a permanent wall, 
it would be allowed in the easement.  Ms. Corbin said that she understood that her 
property had this utility easement as well as a gas line easement and did not see a 
problem with them accessing her property if need be. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that Ms. Corbin could have a fence that would run from the northeast 
corner of the garage straight back to the property line.  The reason a variance is needed 
is because she wants to run the fence toward Tallman.  Ms. Corbin said that she 
thought if she placed the fence in this location, she would lose a lot of the use in her 
yard and just wishes to place the fence in the same location as the previous owner.  Mr. 
Stimac explained that this lot is wider than other lots in the area because it is on the 
corner and therefore she would not lose that much of her yard. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if there was fence on the west side of the house and Ms. Corbin 
stated that there is a 4’ chain link fence. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that normally a variance is granted for this type of fence with the 
stipulation that it is placed farther from the property line in order to be able to provide a 
buffer of landscaping to make the fence line less visible.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if Ms. Corbin would be willing to put the fence farther back from the 
property line in order to provide additional landscaping.  Ms. Corbin asked if she could 
put the fence on the other side of the shrub line.   
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if this was the vegetation that had been damaged.  Ms. Corbin said 
that when she first moved in there was a large number of shrubs along this property 
line, but as they have died she has removed them.  Mr. Dziurman asked if she would be 
willing to add extra shrubs.  Ms. Corbin said that she would, but feels it would be an 
unnecessary expense because she believes the same thing would happen to any new 
shrubbery that is added.  
 
Mr. Zuazo said that if everything is moved back, it would not be as readily accessible 
and would also open up the view for the neighbor that is objecting to the height of the 
fence.  Ms. Corbin indicated that she wants it look nice also and would like to put in a lot 
of landscaping. 

 7



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                              AUGUST 3, 2005 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac suggested postponing this request so that research could be done regarding 
the location of the original fence, and also to allow the petitioner the opportunity to 
provide the Board with the exact height and type of fence she would like to install.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if Ms. Corbin would like to postpone this request until the next 
meeting.  Ms. Corbin said that she would like to be able to act on this as soon as 
possible and asked if the height of the fence was a problem for the Board.  Mr. 
Dziurman said that it would be beneficial for Ms. Corbin to get a picture of what she 
would like to install.  Mr. Dziurman also asked if she would be willing to move the fence 
back.   
 
Mr. Kessler said that he would like to see it moved back about 10’ to allow for additional 
landscaping.  Mr. Zuazo also pointed out that one of the objections received stated that 
a 6’ high fence would block their view. 
 
Ms. Corbin stated that she had spoken to the neighbors and explained that the fence 
would be a lattice type fence and the reason she would like to put it up would be to set 
boundaries on her property.  Ms. Corbin then asked if the Board would be willing to 
grant the variance if she moved it back 10’ and stated that she was more than willing to 
work with the Board. 
 
Ms. Corbin also indicated that if possible, she would like to be able to put up a 5’ high 
fence if she could find that.  Ms. Corbin said that she believed this fence was only sold 
in 4’ or 6’ high sections.  Mr. Dziurman stated that if Ms. Corbin did not wish to postpone 
her request the Board would vote on whether or not she could up a 6’ high privacy 
fence.  Ms. Corbin said that she would be willing to work with the Board and stay within 
whatever guidelines they stipulate. 
 
Motion by Zuazo 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Tamela Corbin, 503 Randall, for relief of Chapter 
83 to install a 6’ high privacy fence in the front yard setback along Tallman until the next 
scheduled meeting of September 7, 2005. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to provide a picture of the type of fence 
she wishes to install. 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to research the height of the fence she 
wishes to install. 

• To allow a landscaping plan to be presented to this Board. 
• To allow the Building Department the opportunity to research the history of the 

original fence to determine whether or not a variance was granted. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Zuazo, Dziurman, Kessler, Sinclair 

 8



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                              AUGUST 3, 2005 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 7, 2005 
CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:20 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
     Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
     Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 16, 2005 

The Chairman, Christopher Fejes, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M., on Tuesday, August 16, 2005 in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Council. 
 
PRESENT:  Kenneth Courtney 
   Christopher Fejes 
   Marcia Gies 
   Michael Hutson 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Wayne Wright 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JULY 19, 2005 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of July 19, 2005 with the following 
corrections: 
 

• Page 2 – Duplicate paragraph under Item #4 indicating Mr. Stimac’s explanation, 
to be removed. 

• Page 13 – Address listed as 4392 Beach to be changed to 4342 Beach. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Gies, Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney 
Abstain: 1 – Fejes 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES WITH CORRECTIONS CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – APPROVAL OF ITEMS #3 THROUGH ITEM #8 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve a three (3)-year renewal of Items #3 through #5 and Items #7 and 
#8 as suggested in the Agenda Explanation; and also, MOVED, to postpone Item #6 to 
allow the Building Department the opportunity to publish a Public Hearing to consider 
the possibility of granting a permanent variance. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #3 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  PSI HOLDINGS, 2525 CROOKS, for relief of the 
6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the west and south property lines where 
this property abuts residential zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board to have a six-foot high wood fence along the west and south property line where 
it abuts residential zoned property.  This relief was originally granted in 1983, primarily 
because there already was a six-foot high wood fence along the property line and the 
petitioner would have to remove a number of established trees in order to install the 
wall.  This item last appeared before this Board in August 2002 and was granted a three 
(3) year renewal at that time.  Conditions remain the same and we have no objections 
or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant PSI Holdings, Inc. 2525 Crooks Road, a three (3) year renewal of their 
variance for relief of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the west and 
south property line where it abuts residential zoned property. 
 

• There is an existing 6’ high fence at this location. 
• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  MG ACQUISITIONS, 2555 CROOKS, for relief 
of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the west property line where this 
property abuts residential zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of a variance granted by 
this Board for relief of the 6’ high masonry screening-wall required along the west 
property line of their site that abuts residential property.  This relief was originally 
granted in 1984 based on the fact that a wood fence from the Somerset Apartment 
complex currently screens the property.  This item last appeared before this Board in 
August 2002 and was granted a three (3) year renewal at that time.  Conditions remain 
the same and we have no objections or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant MG Acquisitions, 2555 Crooks a three (3) year renewal of relief of the 
6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the west property line where this property 
abuts residential zoned property. 
 

• There is an existing 6’ high fence at this location. 
• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
ITEM #5 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  CROOKS OFFICE LLC, 2585 CROOKS, for 
relief to maintain a 6’ high stockade fence in lieu of the decorative masonry screening-
wall required along the west property line of this site where it abuts residential zoned 
property. 
 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant the Crooks Office L.L.C., 2585 Crooks Road, a three (3) year renewal 
of relief granted by this Board to maintain a 6’ high stockade fence in lieu of the 
decorative masonry screening-wall required along the west property line of their site that 
abuts residential zoned property. 
 

• There is an existing 6’ high fence at this location. 
• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
ITEM #6 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  OAK MANOR, INC., 2316 JOHN R., for relief of 
the required 4’-6” high masonry screening-wall along the east and south areas of your 
parking lot where it abuts residential zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board of the requirement for a 4’-6” high masonry screening-wall along the east and 
south areas of their parking lot where they are adjacent to residential zoned property.  
This relief was originally granted in September 1985 based on the fact that the wall 
would serve no useful purpose in this area.  The property to the east is an apartment 
complex and the property to the south is a church.  This item last appeared before this 
Board in August 2002 and was granted a three (3) year renewal at that time.  Conditions 
remain the same and we have no objections or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Oak Manor, Inc., 2316 John R., for relief of the 
required 4’-6” high masonry screening-wall along the east and south areas of the 
parking lot where it abuts residential zoned property until the meeting of September 20, 
2005. 
 

• To allow the Building Department to publish a Public Hearing in order to consider 
a permanent variance. 

 
ITEM #7 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  ANDREW MANNING, OF THE DETROIT 
EDISON COMPANY, 3080 JOHN R., for renewal of relief of the landscaped berms 
required along the north, east and west property lines. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of a three (3) year 
variance for relief of the landscaped berms required along the north, west and east 
property lines.  This variance was originally granted in September 1992, based on the 
fact that a number of mature established trees that currently provide adequate 
screening would have to be removed in order to install the berm.  This item last 
appeared before this Board in August 2002 and was granted a three (3) year renewal at 
that time.  The southern portion of the property has now been sold, rezoned to the P-1  
 
 
 

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
(Vehicular Parking) zoning classification, and is being developed in conjunction with the 
adjacent day care facility.  Other than that, the conditions remain the same and we have 
no objections or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant Andrew Manning, Detroit Edison, 3080 John R., a three (3) year 
renewal for relief of the landscaped berms required along the north, west and east 
property lines. 
 

• There are several mature trees providing screening. 
• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
ITEM #8 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  VERSATUBE CORPORATION, 4755 
ROCHESTER, for relief of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the north 
and west property lines where the property abuts residentially zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board in regard to a 6’ high masonry screening wall required along the north and west 
property lines of their site that abuts residential zoning.  The Zoning Ordinance requires 
that a 6’ high masonry-screening wall be provided at the zoning boundary. This Board 
has granted this relief since 1985. The Board granted relief allowing the petitioner to 
install an 8’ high steel fence in lieu of the wall based on the fact that the fence suits the 
needs probably as well as, if not better, than the masonry wall.  This item last appeared 
before this Board in July 2002 and was granted a three-year renewal.  The property to 
the north is now zoned R1-T (One Family Attached) but remains vacant.  Other than 
that, conditions remain the same and we have no complaints or objections on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant Versatube Corporation, 4755 Rochester a three (3) year renewal of 
relief of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the north and west property 
lines where the property abuts residentially zoned property. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
ITEM #9 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  INDEPENDENT BANK, 5950 ROCHESTER, for 
relief of the required 6’ high masonry screening wall required along the south and east 
property lines where this property abuts residentially zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting of relief of the 6’ high masonry-
screening wall required along the south and east property lines where it abuts 
residentially zoned property.  These property lines abut a multiple-family residential 
development and relief was originally granted in 1977 based on the fact that a drain 
surrounded the area and there was a substantial brush growth that adequately screens 
the abutting residential land.  This item last appeared before this Board in July 2005 and  

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
was postponed to allow the Building Department the opportunity to publish a Public 
Hearing to consider this a permanent variance.  That notice has been completed and 
the Public Hearing scheduled for this meeting. 
 
Mr. Scott Whitford of Independent Bank was present and stated that he had nothing 
further to add. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to speak and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he was concerned that if this property was altered in the future, the 
vegetation may be removed.  Mr. Whitford said that they have no future plans for 
expansion and they would not be able to move the building farther back because of the 
existing creek. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Independent Bank, 5950 Rochester, relief of the required 6’ high 
masonry-screening wall required along the eastern property line where this property 
abuts residentially zoned property. 
 

• Existing vegetation along east property line must remain, even if this property is 
developed further. 

• A wall would be an eyesore to the surrounding property and would be difficult to 
install because of the creek on the property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #10 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  OSPREY, LTD, 2701 TROY CENTER, for 
relief of the 6’ high masonry screening wall required along the north property line where 
this property abuts residentially zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the 6’ high masonry-
screening wall required along the north property line where it abuts residentially zoned 
property.  This variance was originally granted based on the fact that the petitioner 
would install 280’ of decorative metal fencing and landscaping along this north property 
line that abuts a residential apartment complex.  This item last appeared before this 
Board in July 2005 and was postponed to allow the Building Department the opportunity 
to publish a Public Hearing to consider this a permanent variance.  That notice has  

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
been completed and the Public hearing has been scheduled for this meeting.  This 
entire area was planned for multiple family dwelling, however, did not materialize 
beyond the first building that was constructed there and the remaining sites around this 
property were developed in the office classification.  The Zoning Ordinance does require 
that a 6’ high masonry screen wall be provided between the Office Zoning classification 
and the residential property to the north. 
 
Mr. Roger O’Toole was present and stated that the cement wall is currently in place 
along most of the northern property line.  The principal beneficiaries are the inhabitants 
of the Village Green Apartments.  There is a section along the tennis courts on the 
northern property and the cement wall is not in this area.  Mr. O’Toole believes that the 
intent of the Ordinance has been met and only a small portion of the tennis courts is 
visible from the office building. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Osprey, LTD, 2701 Troy Center, relief of the 6’ high masonry- 
screening wall required along the north property line where this property abuts 
residentially zoned property. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance would not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #11 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  DAVID DONNELLON OF THE CHOICE 
GROUP, 4254 BEACH, for relief of the Ordinance to split an existing parcel from its 
Beach Road frontage. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to split an 
existing parcel from its Beach Road frontage.  The site plan submitted indicates a split 
of this property from its Beach Road frontage and creating access to the property from 
the western end of the stub street Prestwick.  This would result in the only street 
frontage for this property being the 55 feet at the end of Prestwick Drive.  Section 
30.10.02 requires that properties in the R-1B Zoning District have a minimum of 100’ of 
frontage on a public street. 

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of July 19, 2005 and was 
postponed at the request of the petitioner to allow him the opportunity to discuss other 
options with his client. 
 
The Building Department has received a request from the petitioner to postpone this 
item until the meeting of October 18, 2005. 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Hutson 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of David Donnellon of the Choice Group, 4254 Beach, 
for relief of the Ordinance to split an existing parcel from its Beach Road frontage until 
the meeting of October 18, 2005. 
 

• Per the request of the petitioner. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL OCTOBER 18, 2005 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #12 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  LISA HIGH OF CDPA ARCHITECTS, 1639 E. 
BIG BEAVER (PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new 
building for the Suma Medical Center that will result in only 9,176 square feet of 
landscaping, where Section 39.70.02 and Section 39.70.04 require 14,738 square feet 
of landscaping. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new building for the Suma Medical Center.  Section 39.70.04 requires that ten (10) 
percent of the net site area be developed as landscaped open space.  This landscaping 
must be located in the front or side yard and must be in addition to the 10’ green belt 
required by Section 39.70.02.  The required landscaping for a site this size is 14,738 
square feet.  The site plan submitted indicates that only 9,176 square feet of 
landscaping is provided, making the site deficient 5, 562 square feet. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of July 19, 2005 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner the opportunity of a full Board. 
 
Mr. Stimac also indicated that he had provided an aerial map of this area indicating the 
setbacks of other buildings along Big Beaver in this area.  This was not a formal survey, 
but was information taken from an aerial photograph.   
 
Mr. Maxwell asked how much of this property was zoned E-P (Environmentally 
Protected).  Mr. Stimac indicated that it is approximately 28,713 square feet. 
 

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #12 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Hutson stated that Mr. Stimac had indicated that the parcel to the west of this 
property had received a variance that is now over one-year old, and asked if it was for a 
medical office or general office.  Mr. Stimac said that he did not recall but thought that it 
was for general office. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if this request was for the two vacant parcels along Big Beaver.  Mr. 
Stimac said that this request was for only the one western parcel. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that the petitioner had indicated that they needed to build close to 
Big Beaver because other buildings were constructed close to the Big Beaver property 
line.  From the aerial photograph provided, it is clearly shown that there are other 
buildings that have been placed farther back along Big Beaver.  Mr. Courtney also 
indicated that he feels the building should be set back farther so that parking could be 
put in that would be more convenient to the patients requiring medical care.   
 
Ms. High stated that this property has three (3) different zoning districts and the setback 
requirement for the O-1 Zoning District is only 30’ from the property line; however, they 
are proposing a building setback of 88’ from the property line.  Ms. High also said that 
the area for the three zoning districts combined is 147,379 and the requirement for 
landscaping for that is 10% that is 14,738.  We have provided 9,176 square feet at the 
front and side yards of the building.  The other sites along Big Beaver do not have the 
depth of this parcel, or the narrow area.  They are providing 12.9% landscaping of the 
front and side yards of the parcel.  They are also providing 23.5% landscaping in the O-
1 Zoning District .  The total landscaping provided for this site will be 34.3% and the 
reason they require this variance is not because there is not enough landscaping on the 
total site, but there is not enough landscaping at the front of the property.  Ms. High also 
feels that they have met the spirit of the Ordinance and when they went for the Zoning 
approval some of the residential properties had objections to this request and they 
provided the E-P Zoning next to the residential property and proposed to put the 
building at the front of the property in order to isolate the residential area from the 
commercial property.      
 
Mr. Courtney suggested that if the building was moved back or made smaller this 
petitioner would not require a variance.  Mr. Courtney also said that he felt the building 
could be moved farther back and more landscaping provided at the front of the property.  
In his opinion, the only reason they want the building in this location is for advertising.  
Ms. High stated that the wanted to maintain the street edge established by the other 
buildings and this medical center would be a small practice and not an emergency 
center.  Mr. Courtney also stated that the building to west is seen after people pass this 
building.  Ms. High indicated that the building to the west is actually 10’ – 12’ in front of 
the proposed location of this building.  Mr. Courtney also stated that if either the building 
was built smaller or moved back, a variance would not be required, and he believes this 
is an unnecessary request.  Ms. High said that the size of this building falls well into the  
 

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #12 – con’t. 
 
requirements of  what the Ordinance allows, and if it was moved back farther it would be 
closer to the residential property behind this site. 
 
Mr. Fejes stated that he is having a problem understanding what the hardship is 
regarding this request.  Ms. High stated that the site is extremely narrow and hinders 
their ability to provide side yard landscaping.  Mr. Fejes then asked if a variance would 
be required if this building was moved back.  Mr. Stimac said that the countable 
landscaping is to the south of the proposed location.  The area behind the building 
cannot be considered countable landscaping.  If the building is moved back you would 
pick up more landscaping but it would be possible to lose some of the parking. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the landscape requirement of this site is being applied to the 
developed portion of this property, which includes the  O-1, the P-1 and  the E-P zoned 
area in the back.  There is also a reasonable expectation that the property at the back 
which is zoned R-1E, will be developed into a single-family area and is not included in 
the 10% calculation.  Technically because of the E-P zoning at the back, they are 
required to have an additional 2,871 square feet of landscaping at the front of the 
property.  If they were given permission to pave this area, and not have the E-P zoning, 
they could put the parking area back here and move the landscaping up front. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked if less of a variance would be required and Mr. Stimac said it would be 
less of a variance if they did not have the E-P zoning to deal with.  Mr. Courtney stated 
that in his opinion the E-P should not be counted in the landscape requirement and a 
lesser variance request would be given more consideration. 
 
Mr. Fejes stated again that he did not see what the hardship was in moving this building 
back farther on the property.  Ms. High said that they would have to move the building 
back about 56’ in order to meet the landscaping requirement and that would put them 
about 64’ behind the adjacent building.  Ms. High believes this will create a zigzag effect 
along the street edge and they would lose approximately eighteen (18) parking spaces.  
Because this is a medical building, they have very stringent parking requirements and 
could not afford to lose this much parking.  They are also providing a green belt along 
the street and Ms. High stated that the will create a nice green edge along Big Beaver.   
Moving the building back they would probably add more grass in front of the building 
and does not see the necessity of adding more trees or shrubbery.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked if Ms. High had checked to see how much a variance would be 
required if the E-P Zoning was not taken into account for the landscape requirement.  
Ms. High said that she had not. 
 
Ms. High’s associate, Najin Saymuah came up and stated that they had tried to buy the 
property to the east however it did not work out.  He has heard all of the arguments and 
stated that there is no reason this building could not be pushed back.  This property was 
re-zoned by the recommendation of the City Staff.  The E-P Zoning was done by choice  

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #12 – con’t. 
 
as they did have the option of putting up a 6’ high wall.  According to the Zoning 
Ordinance and in reviewing them, he does not see any reason for this Board to reject 
this request other than construction could cause an adverse effect to surrounding 
property.  It is possible that another building could be put on the property adjacent to 
this parcel and could be placed much closer to Big Beaver.  This request does not affect 
the neighborhood and they could put this building up within 30’ of Big Beaver.  Mr.  
Saymuah also said that he appreciated the fact that it would be possible not to consider 
the E-P Zoning District.  The Zoning Ordinance also allows developers to land bank 
25% of the land for parking and they would like to do that. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked how the landscaping requirement would be met if this building was 
placed within 30’ of Big Beaver.  Mr. Saymuah stated that he could make the building 
20’ wide and 200’ long and would meet the landscape requirement.  It is Mr. Saymuah’s 
understanding that he could put the landscaping at the front and side of the building. 
 
Mr. Saymuah stated that they are trying to do what is best for their client.  They are 
professionals and have an obligation to be professional.  They are not just planning to 
provide a parking lot but there will also be a garden area provided with a canopy.  
Behind the building they will provide benches so that people may relax and settle down 
after seeing the doctor.  Mr. Saymuah stated that he feels this is a very reasonable 
request.   
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if they would be willing to compromise on the distance to the road by 
approximately 15’.  Mr. Saymuah said that they would be willing to do that and if this site 
were similar to the property to the west they would not have an objection to putting the 
building at the back of the property.  Mr. Maxwell said that he understood that this lot is 
very narrow and part of this property is zoned E-P.  If he was a resident in back of this 
property, he would prefer an office building as far away from his home as possible.  Mr. 
Saymuah said that if the E-P area is not considered in the landscape calculations, they 
could put the building farther back. 
 
Mr. Hutson stated that if the petitioner is thinking of a compromise, he would like to see 
it in a drawing and not base a decision on general talk and therefore would like to see 
the petitioner back again.  Mr. Courtney agreed with Mr. Hutson and stated that he also 
would like to see drawings indicating a compromise.  Mr. Saymuah said that they do not 
mind coming back as they would like to see this Board happy. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked if they could put a stipulation on their motion or if a drawing was 
required.  Mr. Stimac stated that if the building was moved back 15’ there is nothing to 
indicate what kind of landscaping total would result from this move.  If the petitioner is 
going to keep the same size building they have four (4) parking spaces to spare, but if 
the building was moved back 15’, they would lose two (2) parking spaces in three (3) 
bays, which would result in a loss of six (6) parking spaces.  The variance before the 
 

 10



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #12 – con’t. 
 
Board is for the amount of landscaping required and is not a request for a setback 
variance.   
 
Mr. Courtney indicated that he would be willing to make one of two resolutions, one of 
which would be to postpone this request until next month in order to see a new drawing; 
or to not include the E-P zoned portion of this property in the landscaping requirement. 
Mr. Stimac said that if the Board was so inclined to not require landscaping for the E-P 
in the final action, the landscaping requirement for this site would be 11,867 square feet 
and the petitioner is proposing to put in 9,176 square feet.  Mr. Stimac said that the 
Board could pass a resolution to allow 11,867 square feet of landscaping where 14,738 
square feet of landscaping is required, which would have the effect to not count in the 
E-P zoned property and then have the petitioner draw a plan showing how this would be 
accomplished; or, the Board could require the petitioner to come back with a revised 
plan. 
 
Mr. Fejes stated that he would like to see a revised plan.  Mr. Saymuah stated that this 
would not be problem.  
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the reason the petitioner came to the Board was because they did 
not feel they could make the building thinner.  Mr. Kovacs wanted to know why the 
building could not be made thinner.  Mr. Kovacs also asked what the zoning was for the 
property to the east.  Mr. Stimac stated that a portion of it is zoned O-1, and P-1 along 
the back, but does not know if there is any E-P Zoning on the parcel.  Mr. Kovacs then 
asked if the setback for O-1 zoning was 30’ and Mr. Stimac confirmed that it was.  Mr. 
Kovacs stated that his concern is that if this building is pushed further back and an 
adjacent building constructed within 30’ of  Big Beaver, this building could become a 
safety hazard for people trying to locate it.  Mr. Courtney stated that they could put up 
address signs. 
 
Mr. Kovacs then asked how much signage would be allowed for this site.  Mr. Stimac 
explained that they could have one ground sign depending on its setback that could be 
up to 200 square feet and an additional wall sign that would be limited to 10% of the 
front area of the building.   
 
Mr. Saymuah said that they are trying to do what is reasonable and it could be made 
narrower; however, the most efficient dimension is to have a hallway in the center and 
suites on either side.  This would be the most optimum dimension.  If the building were 
made narrower, Mr. Saymuah said that he did not think this would be in the best 
interests of his client.  From a design standpoint a consistent streetscape also 
contributes to the community rather than buildings with a zigzag line.   
 
 
 
 

 11



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #12 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Hutson 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Lisa High of CDPA Architects, 1639 E. Big Beaver 
(proposed address), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new building for the Suma 
Medical Center that will result in only 9,176 square feet of landscaping, where Section 
39.70.02 and Section 39.70.04 required 14,738 square feet of landscaping. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to present a revised plan to this Board. 
• Revised plan to show how much landscaping will be provided if the building is 

moved back 15’; or, 
• Revised plan to show 11,867 square feet of landscaping with E-P zoned section 

of property not taken into landscape requirement. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL SEPTEMBER 20, 2005 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #13 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  RUSSELL D. LONG, 1071 NORWICH, for 
relief of the Ordinance to remove a carport and construct an attached garage, which 
would result in a 5’ side yard setback where Section 30.10.04 requires a 10’ minimum 
side yard setback and a 26’ front yard setback where 30’ is required.   

 
Mr. Stimac explained that the Petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to demolish 
an existing carport and construct a new attached garage.  Section 30.10.04 requires a 
10’ minimum side yard setback and a 30’ minimum front yard setback for homes in the 
R-1C Zoning District.  The site plan submitted indicates the existing carport has a 5’ 
side yard setback and a 31’ front setback.  The proposed attached garage would 
continue the 5’ non-conforming side yard setback and is proposed to have a 26’ front 
yard setback.   
 
Mr. Long was present and stated that he would like to construct a two-car garage in 
order to store his vehicles inside and off of the street.  The carport is only large enough 
for one car, he has spoken to his neighbors, and they do not have any objections to this 
addition.  This garage would improve the look of his property and would match other 
garages in the area.  The existing side yard setback will not change.  Mr. Long brought 
in pictures of other homes on his block showing how the garage would look.  Mr. Long’s 
garage would have four windows on the front. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he felt this garage would look much better than the existing 
carport. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 

 12



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #13 – con’t. 
 
There are three (3) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what the dimensions of the proposed garage are.  Mr. Long stated 
that it is 20’ x 22’-6”, which he feels is the minimum for a two car garage.   
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to approve the request of Russell D. Long, 1071 Norwich, relief of the 
Ordinance to remove a carport and construct an attached garage, which would result in 
a 5’ side yard setback where Section 30.10.04 requires a 10’ minimum side yard 
setback and a 26’ front yard setback where 30’ is required. 
 

• Garage would be a nice improvement to the home. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance would not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Mr. Kovacs said that he would be in support of the petitioner getting another two feet for 
this garage, as he believes that 20’ is too small for two cars.  Mr. Stimac explained that 
the Public Hearing was published for a 26’ front yard setback and without a new Public 
Hearing, the Board could not go below that number. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that the petitioner could have the opportunity to come back and 
petition for a larger garage.  Mr. Long asked if this variance was approved and his 
builder suggested another two feet, if he could come back before the Board.  Mr. Stimac 
said that the Board had a motion and a second to approve the original request.  An 
additional two feet would require a new Public Hearing. 
 
Vote on the motion to approve this request. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #14 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  MICHAEL CAMERON, MICHAEL’S 
CARPENTRY & BUILDING, REPRESENTING DAMON FRISCH, 2910 LANERGAN, 
for relief of the Ordinance to construct an addition that will result in a 27.3 front yard 
setback where 40’ is required by Section 30.10.02. 

 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
an addition at 2910 Lanergan.  This house is a legal non-conforming structure.  It has 
an existing 22.7’ front yard setback where 40’ is required per Section 30.10.02.  The 
proposed addition on the east side of  the home would have only a 27.3’ front yard  
 

 13



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #14 – con’t. 
 
setback.  Section 40.50.04 prohibits expansions of non-conforming structures in a way 
that increases the non-conformity. 
 
Michael Cameron and the architect Richard Berilli were present.  Mr. Berilli stated that 
they wished to add an additional 672 square feet to the existing 1500 square foot 
house.  Because of the layout of the land and a glass curtain wall on the east side of the 
home this would be the best location for this addition.  Mr. Berilli stated that they want to 
be able to provide a safe, dry, play yard adjacent to the living area and that is the 
reason they wish to push this addition forward.  The north side of the property drops off 
very quickly and often has standing water there.  Lanergan is one of the through streets 
from Adams to Coolidge and they are concerned about the amount of traffic going down 
this street.  They desire to maintain the aesthetic quality of the homes in this area.  If 
they were to push the addition back from the face of the garage, the garage would 
maintain its presence at the front of the property. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the addition could be moved back at all.  Mr. Berilli said that if 
they moved the addition back it would cover up the glass wall.  Pushing the entire 
addition back to the 40’ setback would render the glass wall completely gone. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are eight (8) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what  the length of the glass wall was. Mr. Berilli stated that it is the 
entire width of the occupied portion of the house, which is about 23 to 25 feet.  Mr. 
Kovacs asked where the stairs lead to on this plan and Mr. Berilli said they are putting in 
a basement in order to maintain the aesthetics of a single story home.  Mr. Kovacs said 
that he understands why you want to keep the glass wall, but is concerned about the 
roofline and wondered if it could be moved back resulting in 13’ of the glass.  Mr. 
Kovacs also said that he understands their concerns regarding a safe play area for 
children.  Mr. Berilli stated that they are trying to preserve as much of the glass portion 
of the house as they can.    
 
Ms. Tortosa, the owner of this home stated that their yard is the lowest land in the 
neighborhood and when it rains, has a tendency to collect standing water. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked how close the house to the east would be with the new addition.  Mr. 
Stimac said that although he did not have a survey in front of him, based on the aerial 
photograph the house to the east appears to be approximately 23’ from the common 
property line, and the new addition would be 16’ from the property line. 
 
Ms. Tortosa said that the addition will be back farther than the existing garage and other 
garages in the area are closer to the street than their garage. 

 14



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 16, 2005 

ITEM #14 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Michael Cameron, representing Damon Frisch, 2910 Lanergan, relief 
of the Ordinance to construct an addition that will result in a 27.3 front yard setback 
where 40’ is required by Section 30.10.02. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Standing water creates a hardship, which runs with the land. 
• Variance will create a safe environment for children. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance is necessary for the preservation, enjoyment, and substantial property 

rights possessed by the subject property. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Stimac informed the Board that Ms. Lori Grigg-Bluhm, City Attorney for the City of 
Troy would like to make a presentation to the Board regarding ex-parte communication, 
open meetings act and a number of issues that are useful for Boards and Committees.  
If the Board agrees, Ms. Bluhm would make the presentation at the September meeting.  
Mr. Courtney stated that he would like some type of written communication regarding 
this presentation from Ms. Bluhm.  Mr. Stimac said that if possible he would try to 
arrange for Ms. Bluhm make her presentation before the next meeting. 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:00 P.M. 
 
 
             
     Christopher Fejes, Chairman 
 
 
 
             
     Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 15



TROY CAC ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT August 18, 2005  
 
I. Call to Order 
 
The regular meeting was called to order at 7:08 p.m. at Troy City Hall. 
 
 
II. Roll Call 
 
Present:  Bryan Wehrung 

  Kent Voigt 
Jerry Bixby  
Alan Manzon  
Cindy Stewart, CAC Liaison 
 
 

Absent:  Penny Marinos, Richard Hughes  
 
Introductions:  Robert Lin, Senior at Athens High – interested in being appointed as the 
Student Rep.  
 
 
III.  Approval of Minutes 
Moved by:  Kent Voigt 
Seconded by:  Alan Manzon 
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes of the April 21, 2005 regular meeting be approved.  
Yeas:  All 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
IV. Correspondence 
 

A. Comcast — Residential Late notice – August 1, 2005. Rates appear to be very 
reasonable. Unfortunate that items are all ala carte with no group rates. Usually can 
get special deals if you ask due to fierce competition.  

B. Comcast – High Speed Internet Speed Update – July 13, 2005. Again upgrading 
their speed to 8 mbps/768kbps and 6 mbps/384 kbps, 400% increase in less than 
two years. Comcast customers will more easily be able to  

– Share photo slideshows with music 
– Send video greetings 
– Stream online music or download songs  
– Download online games 

Comcast serves 21.5 million cable customers, 7.4 million high-speed internet 
customers and 1.2 million voice customers. 

C. Comcast - Price Reduction — June 28, 2005. Converter Box price $2.09 to $.80.  
D. Wide Open Wes t— Cable System Equipment Move — May 25, 2005. WOW 

removed all cable system equipment including PEG channel electronics housed at 
SBC facility in Troy to an existing WOW owned facility also in Troy from June 7-10, 
2005. Customers experienced a loss of the Educational Channel. 
- C.S did call WOW and got them to adjust hours so as not to lose service for a long 
period of time during peak graduation season for schools. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01n



TROY CAC ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT August 18, 2005 
 
 

 2

E. Comcast  — Cable Lineup Adjustments - May 2, 2005. Changes effective June 8, 
2005. Some customers in our area using an analog converter to receive premium 
services need to replace current converter to a new converter at no charge in price.  

F. Comcast — Lineup Changes - April 28, 2005  
-TNT High Definition recently added on digital channel 204  
-Through 5/7/05, Comcast Digital Cable customers with ON DEMAND can view 
profiles of the top 50 draft prospects - produced by NEL Network 

 
 

V. Articles  
 

A. Phone, Cable Firms to Fight for Video:  - Free Press 6/4/05: 
Next big battle in telecommunications industry will pit phone companies against cable 
TV firms to provide TV-like video to consumers. Phone companies want the freedom to 
provide video programming over high-speed phone lines, much as cable TV companies 
provide phone connections over the Internet.  
B. Answers to Your Questions about Digital Cable — Free Press 06/29/05: 
Good information sheet related to digital TV service.  
C. Cable Companies Must Deliver Better Service — Detroit News 07/01/05:  
Michigan television subscribers expect the benefits of competition. Nearly 1/3 of all 
Michigan residents benefit from having multiple cable providers from which to choose 
service.  
D. Cable Users Haggle for Lower Bills - Detroit News 6/19/05:  
Service providers negotiate to keep customers, but customers have to call—companies 
won’t call you. WOW has shown a willingness to bargain with customers, but can’t 
meet every demand.  
E. City Shares Cable Money With Schools — Daily Tribune 7/25/05.  
F. Rochester Hills asked to reconsider TV cuts – Detroit News - 7/24/05 
 
 

VI. Old Business 
  

A. Cable Complaint Logs – Fairly routine customer concerns and complaints. Nothing 
negligible.  Cable line buries that might have been overlooked from the winter.  Brian 
suggests we remove this topic from future agendas since Troy does not seem to 
received the large volume of complaints we did in the past.  

 
B. Report on Web Publications – Brian went through all sites listed – more situations 

on cable personalities. No new technology. What do we want? What’s new in 
technology, what’s new for the future?   Committee should continue to watch for any 
articles of interest to the group.  Cindy’s articles have more information than the 
websites listed. 

 
 
 
VII. New Business 
 

A. Cable Franchise Lawsuit Report from City Attorney Lori Bluhm –  



TROY CAC ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT August 18, 2005 
 
 

 3

 
The City of Troy was one of 13 defendants served with a lawsuit challenging the cable 
franchise fees as an illegal tax.  Eight of the individual circuit court judges dismissed the 
lawsuit against Ann Arbor, Canton Twp, Grand Rapids, Livonia, Muskegon, St. Clair 
Shores and Westland.  Troy, Royal Oak and Midland filed motions for dismissal; the circuit 
court judges stayed these three cases to wait for a decision in the Michigan Court of 
Appeals.  These three cases will now likely be dismissed. 
 

B. CAC Mission Statement & Goals - It’s a good idea to revisit these form time to time 
especially after new members are appointed.  CAC does have one vacancy.  Cindy 
will check out waiting list since it appears that Bob Victor cannot make a 
commitment at this time.   

 
VIII. Staff Report 
 
Update on the ICCA – CMN Contract negotiations: 9 of the 11 ICCA communities have 
brought the proposed contract and bylaws to their Councils/Commissions.  Of those, 
Auburn Hills, Berkley, Clawson, Huntington Woods, Oakland Twp, Rochester, Royal Oak 
and Troy have approved the contract & bylaws.  Pleasant Ridge voted no.  Ferndale and 
Rochester Hills should be bringing it to their Councils soon.  Clawson, Huntington Woods, 
Pleasant Ridge and Rochester Hills have decided not to give any money to CMN.  Royal 
Oak took their ¾ % down to ½%. 
 
  

A. WTRY Cable Guide – August 2005:  We have taped a lot of new Talking History 
programs – interviews with long-time Troy residents or business owners.  Also 
airing 50th Anniversary Concerts, 50th Anniversary Museum Lectures.  Upcoming 
programs for August/September: Miss Troy Pageant & Contours Concert. 

 
B. CAC Member Listing – one correction 

 
C. ICCA Meeting Minutes – June 20, 2005 

 
D. Bryan suggested we invite a rep form Comcast to the next meeting followed by a 

rep from WideOpenWest at the following meeting.  Ask them to have information 
on:   

 
• Project where the cable industry is going in the near future; 
•  New products & services anticipated one year and five years from now;  
• With rates so high, how will they plan on accommodating senior citizens and low 

income families; 
• What would Comcast/WOW like the City of Troy to do to help advance the cable 

industry in our community? 
 

E. Next meeting Thursday, October 20, 2005 
 
 



TROY CAC ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT August 18, 2005 
 
 

 4

IX. Adjournment 
X.  

 Motion to Adjourn – Moved by J. Bixby, Seconded by A. Manzon that the CAC Meeting be 
adjourned at 8:41 pm. 
 
Yeas: All 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 
    _____________________________________ 
    Bryan Wehrung, CAC Chairman 
 
 
 
    _____________________________________ 
    Cindy Stewart, Recording secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   August 24, 2005 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on August 24, 2005 at 7:00 PM at 
Community Center in room 303, 3179 Livernois Road.  Nicole Vitale and Rishi Joshi called the 
meeting to order at 7:05 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Andrew Corey 

Maxine D’Amico 
Rishi Joshi (co-chair) 
Jessica Kraft  
Jia (Lisa) Luo 
Aswin Natarajan 
Anupama Prasad 
Kristin Randall 
Neil Shaw 
Katie Thoenes 
Nicole Vitale (co-chair) 
Karen Wullaert 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski (excused) 
VISITORS: Padma Kupa, Ethnic Issues Advisory Board Member 
ALSO PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 

 
                              
1. Roll Call 
2. Approval of Minutes 
 

Resolution # TY-2005-08-17 
 Moved by Vitale 
 Seconded by Kraft 

 RESOLVED, That the minutes of 5/18/05 be approved. 
 Yes: All - 12 
           No:      None  
 Absent: 1 – Bozimowski 

 MOTION CARRIED 
3. Attendance Report: To note and file 
4. Membership Update: New members (8) welcomed by Vitale. 
5. Visitor: 

 Padma Kuppa, Ethnic Issues Advisory Board Member – Presented information 
regarding National Conference for Community and Justice/Leadership in the New 
Century.  Invited council members to meeting scheduled for Tuesday, September 6th 
(7:00pm) at City Hall.  

6. Troy Daze Festival Update 
 Members submitted availability form for community affairs. 

7. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provided Advance Notification  
  
 Resolution # TY-2005-08-18 

 Moved by Joshi 
 Seconded by Kraft 

RESOLVED that Alexandra Bozimowski is excused. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01o



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   August 24, 2005 
 
 

 2

 Yes: All - 12 
           No:      None  
 Absent: 1 – Bozimowski 

 MOTION CARRIED 
 

8. Youth Council Comments - None 
9. Public Comments - None 

 
 

 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:20 P.M. 
 
_______________________________ 
Rishi Joshi, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott E. Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
 
 
 

Following adjournment - took photos. 
 

Reminder Next Meeting: September 28th at 7:00 P.M. @ Community Center 
 



campbellld
Text Box
J-02a





































August 24, 2005 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager – Services 
  Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – Preliminary Report from the Historic District Study  
  Committee Concerning the Brian and Mary Jean Wattles Property 
 
 
The lot and single-family residence located at 3864 Livernois, Troy, Michigan is 
currently an historic district.  The owners, Brian Wattles and Mary Jean Wattles 
requested that the boundaries of the property be redefined as to the historic 
district status. The Historic District Study Committee researched the property and 
submits this Preliminary Report in accordance with the City’s Historic 
Preservation ordinance.  This report recommends that the boundary of the 
historic district be revised so that parcel B, which has no significant structures, be 
eliminated from the historic district. 
 
After sixty days of this report’s appearance on the City Council Agenda as an 
information item, a public hearing will be held by the Historic District Study 
Committee.  After the public hearing, the Historic District Study Committee will 
write a Final Report.  This report will be sent to the Historic District Commission 
and the Planning Commission for their recommendation.  The Final Report and 
the recommendations along with the corresponding ordinance change will then 
be advanced to the City Council for their action. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02b

















September 7, 2005 
 
 
 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Update on Futures Project, as well as Big Beaver Corridor Study 
 
 
Mr. Ed Barlow advises now that he is older and smarter, he has found a way to reduce the 
timeframe involved relative to having the community make a recommendation for a 
preferred future.  This is accomplished by having staff provide research material and 
trends prior to the formulation of task forces.  In accordance with this method, attached you 
will find the name of project task forces along with a brief description for each task force.  
Resource staffers are identified as well as the items we are researching.  If there is any 
other research you would like to see performed, please advise and I will be happy to 
accommodate.   
 
At this point we are in the data gathering stage, and we hope to have Mr. Barlow facilitate 
a community discussion in October or November.  One outstanding issue of salience is 
selection of the chair and co-chair that would head up the steering committee.  Last time 
was easy.  Mr. Dick Doyle was retiring as Mayor after serving the community in a positive 
leadership role for 17 years.  He transitioned very well into a co-chair position.  Ms. Barb 
Palazzolo was the other co-chair who had no political aspirations and represented both the 
residential and business community as a Troy resident and executive with Kmart 
Corporation, which at the time employed about 5,000 people.   
 
With reference to the Big Beaver corridor study, we are also in the data gathering stage.  
This study is going to have an outcome with more specificity than the Futuring project and 
thus will run semi-autonomously.  Having said that, there will be a tie-in between this study 
and the “Wealth Creation” task force.  In addition, we will be utilizing Planning Consultant 
Dick Carlisle to facilitate public stakeholder and technical expert meetings for the Big 
Beaver corridor study.   
 
We expect to have the Big Beaver corridor study completed in April/May of 2006 and the 
Futures study in June/July of 2006.   
 
As always please call should you have any questions. 
 
 
 
 
JAS/bt\my documents\agenda items\2005\09.12.05 – Update on Futures Project, as well as Big Beaver Corridor Study  

campbellld
Text Box
J-02c



 
 FUTURING PROJECT TASK FORCES 

 
 
 
 

 
WEALTH  
CREATION 

 

 
Description:     

 
Prosperity for individuals, organizations, and the City of Troy 
 

Staff:    
 
Resource Depts:  

Doug Smith – Real Estate and Development 
 
Assessing 
Building 
Planning  
 

Research:   Per capita income trends, how money was earned 10 years ago and future 
projections, nature and size of businesses, types and benefits, manpower 
trends (including temp workers), housing trends   

 
LIFESTYLE 
 

 

 
Description:   

 
Opportunities for citizens to actualize their social, and recreational interests 
and needs 
 

Staff:  
 
Resource Depts: 

Carol Anderson – Parks and Recreation   
 
Community Affairs 
Planning 
 

Research: Housing trends, demographics, entertainment locations, churches, 
diversity, ageing, inventories of activities, patterns of activity, trends/use of 
recreation 

 
LIFETIME  
LEARNING 

 

 
Description:   

 
Access to personal, professional and organizational intellectual growth and 
stimulus 
 

Staff: 
 
Resource Depts: 

Brian Stoutenburg – Library/Museum 
 
Community Affairs 
Human Resources 
Information Technology 
Parks and Recreation 



 
 FUTURING PROJECT TASK FORCES 

 
 

 
Research: 
Suggested resources:  
Automation Alley 
business assistance, 
Oakland County 
Workforce Board, 
CEOexpress.com, 
SEMCOG, local 
universities 

Inventory of traditional learning centers, self-help trends, diversity/ 
demographics, access and technology trends, teaching trends (for all age 
groups) 
 
 

 
MOBILITY 
 

 

 
Description:   

 
Physical and virtual pathways to movement 
 

Staff: 
 
 
 
Resource Depts: 

John Abraham – Traffic Engineering 
Tim Richnak – Department of Public Works 
Steve Vandette – Engineering 
 
Fire  
Information Technology 
Parks and Recreation 
Planning 
Police 
 

Research: Documentation of existing systems (master thoroughfare plan), alternative 
methods, modes of transportation, trends of commuting, trends of types of 
systems, changing demographics 

 
IMAGE AND 
PRESENTATION 

 

 
Description:   

 
The look and feel of the City of Troy 
 

Staff: 
 
Resource Depts: 

Mark Miller – Planning 
 
Building Inspection 
Community Affairs 
Engineering 
Parks and Recreation 
 

Research: Psychographic drivers, design, destination for retirees 
 
 
 



 
 FUTURING PROJECT TASK FORCES 

 
 

 
CIVIC  
INFRASTRUCTURE 
 

 

 
Description:   

 
Community awareness, governance, citizenship and collaboration 
 

Staff: 
 
Resource Depts: 

Brian Murphy - City Manager’s Office 
 
Police 
Boards and Committees Liaisons 
 

Research: Role of citizens, ownership of issues affecting society, historical 
governance trends, current governance trends, methodology for boards 
and committees, level of public input, devolution trends of state and federal 
governments, individual rights and community responsibility, collaborative 
projects with citizens 

  
REGIONAL 
COLLABORATION 
 

 

 
Description:  

 
Role and relationships with area units of government and other entities. 
 

Staff: 
 
 
Resource Depts: 

Jeanette Bennett – Purchasing 
Tim Richnak – Department of Public Works 
 
Fire 
Police 
 

Research: 
Suggested resources: 
SEMCOG, Governor’s 
Regional Excellence 
project 

List of regional collaboration projects/groups (including non-profits), list of 
City of Troy’s collaborative projects, optimum economies of scale (use 
bank example), optimum blend of property types contributing to tax base, 
optimal size of government 

 



 
 
 
 
DATE:  August 30, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development 

Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 

RE: AGENDA ITEM – Development of City of Troy Comprehensive 
Plan/Amendments to City of Troy Future Land Use Plan 

 
 
At the August 15, 2005 meeting, City Management was asked by City Council to 
explain how the plan adoption process presently mandated in the City of Troy 
Zoning Ordinance differs from the process mandated under the Municipal 
Planning Act. 
 
Article 02.10.02 (1) of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance describes the powers 
and duties of the Planning Commission.  One of the mandated duties is “The 
making and adopting of a master plan for the physical development of the 
municipality”.  Article 02.10.03 outlines voting requirements for plan adoption.   
 
PA 265 of 2001 (effective January 9, 2002) amended the Municipal Planning Act 
and provided a city’s legislative body with the authority to adopt the master plan.  
The legislative body must assert the right to adopt or reject the plan by 
resolution; if they do not, authority for Plan adoption would remain with the 
Planning Commission.   
 
 
Attachment 
 
 
cc: File/ Master Plan 
 Planning Commission 
 Planners 
 
 
G:\CC Memo Comprehensive Plan Memo 09 12 05.doc 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02d



AUTHORITY TO ADOPT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN/AMENDMENTS TO CITY OF TROY FUTURE LAND USE PLAN 
 

City Of Troy Zoning Ordinance 
 

Municipal Planning Act,  
PA 285 of 1931, as amended 

02.10.02 POWERS AND DUTIES: 
The City Planning Commissions shall have the 
powers and duties vested in it by the laws of the 
State of Michigan and the Ordinance Code of the 
City of Troy and shall consider and make its 
recommendations to the City Council on any 
matters referred to it by the City Council relating 
to such duties including: 
 
(1) The making and adopting of a master plan 

for the physical development of the 
municipality. Such plan shall show among 
other things, the Commission’s 
recommendations for the general location, 
character and extent of streets, boulevards, 
parkways, playgrounds, parks, location of 
public buildings, and utilities, and the change 
of use, extension, removal, relocation, 
widening, narrowing, vacating or abandoning 
of any of the foregoing. 

(2)  
02.10.03 VOTING REQUIREMENTS: 
The concurring vote of five (5) members of the Planning 
Commission is necessary to decide in favor of the applicant on 
site plan review and special use requests unless the Planning 
Commission does not have final jurisdiction on the matter. The 
concurring vote of six (6) members of the Planning Commission 
is necessary for approval of master plan or future land use plan 
amendments.  

Sec. 8. (1) Before approving a proposed municipal plan, the municipal 
planning commission shall hold not less than 1 public hearing on the 
proposed plan. The hearing shall be held after the expiration of the deadline 
for comment under section 7b(5). The planning commission shall give notice 
of the time and place of the public hearing not less than 15 days before the 
hearing by 1 publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the 
municipality and in the official gazette, if any, of the municipality. The 
planning commission shall also submit notice to each entity described in 
section 7a(2).  

(2) The approval of the plan shall be by resolution of the planning 
commission carried by the affirmative votes of not less than 2/3 of the 
members of the planning commission. The resolution shall refer expressly to 
the maps and descriptive and other matter intended by the planning 
commission to form the whole or part of the plan, and the action taken shall 
be recorded on the map and plan and descriptive matter and signed by the 
chairperson or the secretary of the planning commission. Following approval 
of the proposed plan by the municipal planning commission, the secretary of 
the planning commission shall submit a copy of the proposed plan to the 
legislative body of the municipality.  

(3) Approval of the plan by the planning commission under subsection (2) is 
the final step for adoption of the plan, unless the legislative body by 
resolution has asserted the right to approve or reject the plan. In that case, 
after approval of the plan by the planning commission, the legislative body 
shall approve or reject the plan.  

(4) If the legislative body rejects the proposed plan, the legislative body shall 
submit to the planning commission a statement of its objections to the 
proposed plan. The planning commission shall consider the legislative body's 
objections and revise the proposed plan so as to address those objections. 
The procedures provided in subsections (1) to (3) and this subsection shall 
be repeated until a proposed plan is approved by the legislative body.  
 

 
G:\Plan Approval Chart.doc 



campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c



campbellld
Text Box
J-03d



Mary F Redden 

From: Tom Kafkes [TKafkes@jfreed.com]

Sent: Friday, August 12, 2005 1:56 PM

To: John Szerlag

Cc: Larry Freed; Gary Jonna

Subject: FW: City of Troy Meeting

Page 1 of 2FW: City of Troy Meeting

8/17/2005

John- 
I am writing to thank you for your effort to “get us on the right track” 
with your staff and with the Homeowner’s.  It is not often that we find a 
City Manager that possesses the desire and the skills to assist with a 
development project.  We are very pleased with the results.  It is a 
pleasure to work with you, John. 
Thank you. 
Tom Kafkes 
 
------ Forwarded Message 
From: Kevin Ashby <KAshby@rossetti.com> 
Date: Fri, 12 Aug 2005 10:16:26 -0500 
To: Tom Kafkes <TKafkes@jfreed.com> 
Cc: Dave Richards <DRichards@rossetti.com> 
Subject: City of Troy Meeting 
 
Tom,  
 
Dave and I had  good meeting yesterday with Mark Stimac, Rick Kessler, and Brian 
Murphy.  They have agreed to work with us in the upcoming months to address and 
resolve their concerns regarding code issues and the PUD process on the Monarch. 
 We have scheduled meetings every Thursday at 9:00 AM at City Hall for the next 
couple of months. 
 
Kevin Ashby  
Principal  
 
ROSSETTI  Michigan | California  
 
Two Towne Square Suite 200  
Southfield, MI  48076  
T. 248.262.8300  
F. 248.262.8360  
M. 248.890.0445  

rossetti.com  

campbellld
Text Box
J-03e



 

 
 
Copyright 2005 Rossetti Associates, Inc. 
This electronic mail message was sent by Rossetti Associates, Inc. and 
may contain information, photographs, graphics, and other material 
(collectively "Content") that are protected by copyrights, trademarks, 
service marks, trade secrets, or other proprietary rights.  The recipient is 
not permitted to remove or amend any trademark, copyright or other 
proprietary notice and may not reproduce, or distribute Content in any 
way without obtaining permission of the owner.  The recipient may not 
modify, remove,  publish, transmit, create derivative works from, or in 
any way exploit the Content, in whole or in part.  While Rossetti makes 
all reasonable attempts to exclude viruses from its email, it cannot 
ensure such exclusion and no liability is accepted for any email virus or 
resultant damage it may cause. 
 
(MI)  
 
 
------ End of Forwarded Message 

THIS E-MAIL COMMUNICATION MAY CONTAIN PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL 
INFORMATION AND IS FOR THE USE OF THE ADDRESSEE ONLY. If you are not the addressee, 
you may not disclose or use information it contains. If you received this e-mail in error, please inform 
TKafkes@jfreed.com and destroy this message and file attachments immediately. 

Page 2 of 2FW: City of Troy Meeting

8/17/2005



campbellld
Text Box
J-03f



August 23, 2005 

 

 

Hi Cynthia,  

 

I just wanted to let you know how honored Aldo and Orleta Cairo are to have received the “Most 
Tranquil Garden” award. They have placed their beautiful plaque on their living room wall for all to 
see. Please pass this note along to all involved in this worthwhile award program, so that they 
may know that such recognition instills pride in City of Troy residents. 

 

 

Best Regards, 
Roberta L. Beauchamp 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-03g



campbellld
Text Box
J-03h





campbellld
Text Box
J-04a













mccombca
Text Box
J-05







campbellld
Text Box
J-06





campbellld
Text Box
J-07





campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
J-08



campbellld
Text Box
J-10





 

Memorandum 
 
To: John M Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
From: Tonni L Bartholomew, City Clerk 
Date: September 8, 2005 
Subject: OPTECH Eagle IIIP Voting Devices and supplies 
 
The City Clerk’s Office staff contacted the Purchasing Department in regards to the sale or 
disposal of our old voting equipment. The Purchasing Department reported that there have 
been several attempts by Oakland County communities to dispose of the equipment using 
such means as MITN and Ebay. They were unsuccessful in their attempts. Rochester Hills 
indicated that they disposed of their 41 devices at a cost to the city of $628.00 via 
Complete Compliance Recycling. 
 
The Oakland County Clerks Office has contacted our office and indicated that they have a 
request for the donation of one device to Boulan Middle School. The device would be used 
for mock elections. 
 
I have asked the Purchasing Department to attempt to have our contracted auctioneer 
place the devices in an upcoming auction. Purchasing has indicated that the auctioneer 
may reject the devices because the market is over saturated with used machines at this 
time. Additionally, I spoke with an individual from the State of Alabama about the 
possibility of purchasing our devices and/or supplies as they are continuing to utilize the 
OPTECH Eagle IIIP equipment for their elections. They indicated they are not interested in 
acquiring any additional machines 
 
As there is no value to the machines, I would recommend the donation to Boulan School 
and attempt to auction the remaining 47 devices. If they auction company rejects the 
devices, I would recommend destruction of the devices. 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-11


	AGENDA:  September 12, 2005
	GOALS:
	AGENDA:  Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET:  Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations

	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1  Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2239 East Maple Road
	C-2 Rezoning Application – South Side of Long Lake Road, Wes

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Rezoning Application – West Side of Rochester Road, Nort
	D-2 Revision of Troy’s Sign Ordinances

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations – None Proposed
	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  E�
	b\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  A�
	c\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  E�
	d\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  B�
	e\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  E�
	f\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  A�
	g\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 6:  G�
	h\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  A�

	E-5 Request to Waive Parking Restrictions – Smith Middle Sch
	E-6 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easements for Ashbur
	E-7 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed and Permanent Ea
	E-8 Request to Waive Parking Restrictions – Congregation Shi
	E-9 Winter Maintenance Agreement – Road Commission for Oakla

	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Downtown Development Authority  b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities
	F-2 Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 and Bid Waiver – Option
	F-3 Sole Source – In-Car Camera and Radar Equipment Parts an
	F-4 Designation of Voting Delegates at Annual NLC Meeting – 
	F-5 Recommendation to Negotiate Purchase of Replacement Ladd
	F-6 Final Site Condominium Review – Hidden Creek Site Condom
	F-7 Amendment #1 – SLC Meter Service, Inc. – Automatic Meter
	F-8 Resolution Opposing Senate Bill 528
	F-9 Section 23 – Pavement Replacement Project – Change Order

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2256 Garry – September 19, 2005
	b\) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2002 Atl�
	c\) Parking Variance – 4550 Investment D�
	d\) Rezoning Application – Cambridge Squ�

	G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  Councilwoman Broomfield has requested a resolution advi
	H-2  Council Member Howrylak has requested City Council set 

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a\) Troy Youth Council/Final – May 18, 2�
	b\) Advisory Committee for Persons with �
	c\) Advisory Committee for Persons with �
	d\) Planning Commission Regular/Final – �
	e\) Employees’ Retirement System Board o�
	f\) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – July�
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – July 19, 2005
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – July 26, 2005
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – August 2, 2005
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – August 2, 2005
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – August 2, 2005
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – August 3, 2005
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – August 16, 2005
	Troy CAC Advisory Committee/Draft – August 18, 2005
	Troy Youth Council/Draft – August 24, 2005

	J-2 Department Reports:
	a\) The Report of the Twenty fifth Annua�
	b)  Preliminary Report from the Historic District Study Committee Concerning the Brian and Mary Jean Wattles Property
	c) Update on Futures Project, as well as Big Beaver Corridor Study
	d) Development of City of Troy Comprehensive Plan/Amendments to City of Troy Future Land Use Plan

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	a\) Letter of Thanks to Carol Anderson f�
	b) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Julie Zenger Hain, Thanking Officer Broderick and Other Officers and Staff for Their Professionalism in Court
	c) Letter to Troy Police Department from Mothers and More, In Appreciation of the Presentation at Their Annual Family Picnic
	d) Letter of Thanks to Jay Reynolds from Lorri Konieczko-Jim Hadden of ARUP, In Appreciation of the Presentation on Identity Theft
	e) Letter of Thanks to John Szerlag from Tom Kafkes, In Appreciation of His Assistance with the Monarch Project
	f) Letter of Thanks to Cindy Stewart from Paula and Steve Brazel, Thanking Cindy for Her Presentation at the Home and Garden Awards
	g\) Letter of Appreciation to Cindy Stew�
	h) Letter of Appreciation to Mayor Schilling from Marvin Danto of the Michigan Design Center, Regarding the Organized Repaving of Maple Road

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	Resolution from the Oakland County Board of Commissioners – 

	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Notice of Rating Action for Troy DDA from Fitch Ratings
	J-7  Notice of Rating Action for City of Troy from Fitch Rat
	J-8  Letter from James R. Stokes, Deputy Director of Governo
	J-9   2005-2007 Economic Outlook Forecast for Oakland County
	J-10   Letter from Phoebe White Regarding Penalty on Tax Bil
	J-11   Memorandum Regarding OPTECH Eagle IIIP Voting Devices

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT
	SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS:
	Monday, September 19, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, September 26, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, October 3, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, October 17, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, October 24, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, November 14, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, November 21, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, November 28, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, December 5, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, December 19, 2005 Regular City Council





